
               
THROUGH THESE DOORS WALK ONLY THE FINEST PEOPLE – THE CITIZENS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY. DECISIONS ARE MADE IN
THIS ROOM AFFECTING THE DAILY LIVES OF OUR PEOPLE. DIGNIFIED CONDUCT IS APPRECIATED. 
 

CHAMBER RULES
 
1. IF YOU WISH TO SPEAK, YOU WILL BE HEARD.
2. YOU MUST SIGN UP TO SPEAK. SIGN-UP SHEETS ARE AVAILABLE AT THE BACK OF THE ROOM.
3. YOU ARE REQUESTED TO KEEP YOUR REMARKS BRIEF AND FACTUAL.
4. BOTH SIDES ON AN ISSUE WILL BE GRANTED UNIFORM/MAXIMUM TIME TO SPEAK.
5. DURING QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARINGS (I.E., REZONINGS), CONDUCT IS VERY FORMAL AND
    REGULATED BY SUPREME COURT DECISIONS. VERBAL REACTION OR APPLAUSE IS NOT 
    APPROPRIATE.

 

PLEASE NOTE THAT ALL BCC MEETINGS ARE RECORDED AND TELEVISED
 

AGENDA
Board of County Commissioners

Regular Meeting –February 3, 2011– 5:30 p.m.
Governmental Complex – First Floor

             
1. Call to Order. 

 
(PLEASE TURN YOUR CELL PHONE TO THE VIBRATE, SILENCE, OR OFF
SETTING)

 

2. Invocation – Pastor Darren McClellen, Perdido Bay United Methodist Church.
 

3. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag.
 

4. Are there any items to be added to the agenda? 
 
Recommendation:  That the Board adopt the agenda as prepared (or duly amended).

 

5. Commissioners’ Forum.
 

6. Special Recognition/Presentation:

A.  Special Recognition - John S. Dosh, Escambia County Emergency Management,
for receiving the Florida Emergency Preparedness Association's Emergency Manager
of the Year Award; and

B.  Presentation - Framed print from the Detention Division of the Escambia County
Sheriff's Office to the Escambia County Commission.  

 



             
7. Adoption/Ratification of Proclamations.
 

Recommendation:   That the Board take the following action concerning the
adoption/ratification of the following three Proclamations:

A.  Adopt the Proclamation commending and congratulating Dr. Willie C. Green, Pastor
of East Hill Church of God in Christ, for his elevation to the Office of Jurisdictional
Bishop;

B.  Ratify the Proclamation dated January 19, 2011, commending the men and women
of Naval Aviation past and present on their achievements and congratulating them on
100 years of service; and

C.  Ratify the Proclamation dated January 13, 2011, encouraging all citizens to reflect on
the great sacrifices and accomplishments of Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr.

 

8. Written Communication:

A.  December 3, 2010 - Communication from William H. Geiger and Cereza D. Geiger
requesting that the Board forgive a Code Enforcement Lien against property located at
7245 Bruner Street; and

B.  November 10, 2010 - Email communication from Ron and Susan Degraaf requesting
that the Board forgive the fines relative to a Code Enforcement Lien against property
located at 7501 Jamesville Road.

 

9. Did the Clerk’s Office receive the proofs of publication for the Public Hearing(s) on the
agenda and the Board’s Weekly Meeting Schedule? 
 
Recommendation:  That the Board waive the reading of the legal advertisement(s) and
accept, for filing with the Board’s Minutes, the certified affidavit(s) establishing proof of
publication for the Public Hearing(s) on the agenda, and the Board of County
Commissioners, Escambia County, Florida, Meeting Schedule.
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10. 5:31 p.m. Public Hearing to Consider the Petition to Vacate a Portion of Maywood

Avenue.
 

That the Board, at the 5:31 p.m. Public Hearing, take the following action concerning
the Vacation of a portion of Maywood Avenue (25 feet x approximately 565 feet =
14,125 square feet or 0.32 acres), as petitioned by the School Board of Escambia
County: 

A.  Approve the Petition to Vacate;
 
B.  Accept the Hold/Harmless Agreement;
 
C.  Adopt the Resolution to Vacate; and

D.  Authorize the Chairman or Vice Chairman to accept the documents as of the day of
delivery of the documents to the Chairman or Vice Chairman, and authorize the
Chairman or Vice Chairman to execute them at that time.

 

11. 5:32 p.m. Second of Two Public Hearings Designating 7220 North Palafox Street as a
Brownfield Area.

 

Recommendation:   That the Board, at the 5:32 p.m. Public Hearing, take the following
action concerning designating 7220 North Palafox Street as a Brownfield Area:

A. Adopt a Resolution of the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County
Florida, designating 7220 North Palafox Street as a Brownfield Area within Escambia
County for the purpose of economic development and environmental rehabilitation;
authorizing the Community & Environment Deputy Bureau Chief to notify the
Department of Environmental Protection of said designation; providing for an effective
date; and 

B. Authorize the Chairman to execute the Resolution.
 

12. 5:33 p.m. Public Hearing Concerning the Competency Board Ordinance.
 

Recommendation:   That the Board, at the 5:33 p.m. Public Hearing, adopt an
Ordinance that will establish a new expiration date for contractor licenses based on the
date of issuance and will authorize the Escambia County Contractor Competency board
to designate the Building Official with the authority to grant reciprocity upon receipt of
required documentation.
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13. 5:35 p.m. Public Hearing Concerning the Dangerous or Vicious Animal Ordinance

Amendment.
 

Recommendation:   That the Board, at the 5:35 p.m. Public Hearing, adopt an
Ordinance amending Chapter 10, Article I, Section 10-14, of the Escambia County
Code of Ordinances, relating to the procedures for the classification of dangerous or
vicious animals; providing for severability; providing for inclusion in the Code; providing
for an effective date.

 

14. Reports:
 

Clerk of the Circuit Court & Comptroller's Report
   

Growth Management Report
   

County Administrator's Report
   

County Attorney's Report
   

15. Items added to the agenda.
 

16. Announcements.
 

17. Adjournment.
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AI-385     Item #:  7.     
BCC Regular Meeting
Date: 02/03/2011  

Issue: Adoption/Ratification of Proclamations.
From: Charles R. (Randy) Oliver, CPA PE
Organization: County Administrator's Office
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:

Recommendation:  That the Board take the following action concerning the adoption/ratification
of the following three Proclamations:

A.  Adopt the Proclamation commending and congratulating Dr. Willie C. Green, Pastor of East
Hill Church of God in Christ, for his elevation to the Office of Jurisdictional Bishop;

B.  Ratify the Proclamation dated January 19, 2011, commending the men and women of Naval
Aviation past and present on their achievements and congratulating them on 100 years of
service; and

C.  Ratify the Proclamation dated January 13, 2011, encouraging all citizens to reflect on the
great sacrifices and accomplishments of Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr.

BACKGROUND:
Various bureaus, outside agencies, special interest groups, civic and religious organizations in
recognition of specific events, occasions, people, etc., request Proclamations.  Information
provided on the Proclamation is furnished by the requesting party and placed in the proper
acceptable format for BCC approval by the County Administration staff. Board approval is
required by Board Policy Section I, A (6).

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A



N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
Proclamations









AI-308     Public Hearings    Item #:  10.     
BCC Regular Meeting
Date: 02/03/2011  

Issue: 5:31 p.m. Public Hearing to Consider the Petition to Vacate a Portion of
Maywood Avenue.

From: Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Bureau Chief
Organization: Public Works-Infrastructure Branch
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:

That the Board, at the 5:31 p.m. Public Hearing, take the following action concerning the
Vacation of a portion of Maywood Avenue (25 feet x approximately 565 feet = 14,125 square
feet or 0.32 acres), as petitioned by the School Board of Escambia County: 

A.  Approve the Petition to Vacation;
 
B.  Accept the Hold/Harmless Agreement;
 
C.  Adopt the Resolution to Vacate; and

D.  Authorize the Chairman or Vice Chairman to accept the documents as of the day of delivery
of the documents to the Chairman or Vice Chairman, and authorize the Chairman or Vice
Chairman to execute them at that time.

BACKGROUND:
The School Board of Escambia County owns property in Section 39, Township 1 South, Range
31 West, Escambia County, Florida, which is the site of Bellview Middle School.  The School
Board  of Escambia County  is requesting that the Board vacate any interest the County has in
the unopened portion of Maywood Avenue (25 feet x approximately 565 feet = 14,125 square
feet or 0.32 acres), which extends east to west through the School property.  The portion of
Maywood Avenue requested to be vacated is a 25’ wide unopened right-of-way, as shown on
the plat of Bellview Heights Subdivision as recorded in Plat Book 1 at Page 27 of the public
records of Escambia County, Florida.  Staff has made no representations to the Petitioner or
Petitioner’s agent that Board approval of this request operates to confirm the vesting or return of
title to the land to the Petitioner or to any other interested party.
 
There are no encroachment issues involved with this vacation request.  Staff has reviewed the
request and has no objections to the proposed vacation.  All utility companies concerned have
been contacted and have no objection to the requested vacation provided a utility easement is
retained with the understanding that the County will not be responsible for the maintenance of
the easement.  No one will be denied access to his or her property as a result of this vacation. 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:



Indirect staff cost associated with the preparation of documents and recommendation. 

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
All work associated with this request is being done in-house and no additional staff is required.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This recommendation is based on the Board’s Vacating, Abandoning, and Closing Existing
Public Streets, Rights-of-Way, Alleyways, Roads, Highways, Other Places Used for Travel or
Other Lands Dedicated for Public Use or Purposes, or Any Portions Thereof to Renounce and
Disclaim Any Right of the County and The Public In and To Said Lands policy for closing,
vacating and abandoning County owned property – Section III, and Florida Statutes, Chapter
336. 

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Upon Board approval of the vacation, the necessary documents will be signed and delivered to
the Petitioner or to the Petitioner’s Agent, who will have them recorded in the public records and
will have notices published.  Staff has been in contact with Donald P. Jehle, P.E., jehle-halstead,
inc. as agent for the Petitioner.  It is the responsibility of Petitioner or Petitioner’s agent to
advertise the Notice of Public Hearing. 

Attachments
Petition
Hold Harmless Agreement
Resolution
Adoption
Map
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AI-314     Item #:  11.     
BCC Regular Meeting
Date: 02/03/2011  

Issue: 5:32 p.m. Second of Two Public Hearings Designating 7220 North Palafox Street as
a Brownfield Area.

From: Keith Wilkins, REP
Organization: Comm & Env Neigh Redevelopment
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:

Recommendation:  That the Board, at the 5:32 p.m. Public Hearing, take the following action
concerning designating 7220 North Palafox Street as a Brownfield Area:

A. Adopt a Resolution of the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County Florida,
designating 7220 North Palafox Street as a Brownfield Area within Escambia County for the
purpose of economic development and environmental rehabilitation; authorizing the Community
& Environment Deputy Bureau Chief to notify the Department of Environmental Protection of
said designation; providing for an effective date; and 

B. Authorize the Chairman to execute the Resolution.

BACKGROUND:
Escambia County has received an Application for Brownfield Site Designation of property
located at 7220 North Palafox Street by Mr. Robert Slate of Strategic Systems, Inc., on behalf of
the Carlisle Development Group, Inc. The Carlisle Group plans to build new affordable housing
units on the site. The project will be consistent with the land use plan by reducing slum and
blight and increasing the availability of affordable housing.
 
As an affordable housing project, the site meets the requirements for State Brownfield
redevelopment incentives. The applicant will not request any local funding but will use the
designation to apply for incentives available through Enterprise Florida.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Florida Statute requires two advertised public hearings to allow for public comment. All
advertisements to be funded through CRA Admin, Fund 151, Cost Center 220523, Object Code
54901. 

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
Escambia County Legal Office has reviewed and approved the Resolution as to form and legal
sufficiency.

PERSONNEL:



N/A 

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Florida Statute requires two advertised public hearings to allow for public comment. 

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A 

Attachments
Resolution_Legal Description_Maps

















AI-353     Public Hearings    Item #:  12.     
BCC Regular Meeting
Date: 02/03/2011  

Issue: 5:33 p.m. Public Hearing Concerning the Competency Board Ordinance.
From: Ryan E. Ross, Assistant County Attorney
Organization: County Attorney's Office
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:

Recommendation:  That the Board, at the 5:33 p.m. Public Hearing, adopt an Ordinance that will
establish a new expiration date for contractor licenses based on the date of issuance and will
authorize the Escambia County Contractor Competency board to designate the Building Official
with the authority to grant reciprocity upon receipt of required documentation.

BACKGROUND:
At the January 20, 2011 meeting, the Board scheduled a public hearing to consider adopting an
Ordinance that would amend the Competency Board Ordinance.  Chapter 18, Article II of the
Escambia County Code of Ordinances establishes the Escambia County Contractor
Competency Board and vests the Competency Board with certain duties related to the licensing
of contractors in Escambia County.  The Escambia County Building Official has identified two
areas where greater efficiencies may occur in the administration of the Competency Board’s
licensing program.  First, he believes that establishing a new expiration date for certificates
based on the issuance date, rather than the certificate holder’s birth date, would allow County
staff to utilize more efficient computer programming.  Second, he requests that the Competency
Board vest him with the ability to grant reciprocal licenses when there is no question of the
requesting party’s credentials.  Both changes will require amendments to Chapter 18, Article II. 
The Building Official has presented both requests to the Competency Board and they concur
with the necessity of the amendments. 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A 

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
Assistant County Attorney, Ryan E. Ross, drafted the amendment to the Ordinance and it was
advertised in the Pensacola News Journal on Saturday, January 22, 2011.

PERSONNEL:
N/A 

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A 



IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A 

Attachments
Competency Board Ordinance
PNJ Proof of Publication



                                                                                                                 
  

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2011-___ 1 
 2 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 3 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING CHAPTER 18, ARTICLE 4 
II, DIVISION 1, SECTION 18-35(b) OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE 5 
OF ORDINANCES BY AUTHORIZING THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY 6 
CONTRACTOR COMPETENCY BOARD TO DELEGATE ITS 7 
JURISDICTION TO GRANT RECIPROCAL LICENSES TO THE  8 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY BUILDING OFFICIAL;  AMENDING CHAPTER 18, 9 
ARTICLE II, DIVISION 3, SECTION 18-80 OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY 10 
CODE OF ORDINANCES BY ESTABLISHING A ONE-YEAR 11 
EXPIRATION AND RENEWAL DATE FOR CERTIFICATES OF 12 
COMPETENCY; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 13 
INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 14 
 15 

 WHEREAS, Chapter 18, Article II of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances 16 

establishes the Escambia County Contractor Competency Board and vests the Competency 17 

Board with certain duties related to the licensing of contractors in Escambia County; and   18 

 WHEREAS, the Escambia County Building Official has identified two areas where 19 

greater efficiencies may occur in the administration of the Competency Board’s licensing 20 

program; and   21 

 WHEREAS, the Building Official believes that establishing a new expiration date for 22 

certificates of competency based on the issuance date, rather than on the certificate holder’s 23 

birth date, would allow County staff to utilize more efficient computer programming; and 24 

 WHEREAS, the Building Official also requests that the Competency Board vest him with 25 

the ability to grant reciprocal licenses when there is no question of the requesting party’s 26 

credentials; and 27 

 WHEREAS, both changes will require amendments to Chapter 18, Article II; and 28 

 WHEREAS, the Building Official has presented both requests to the Competency Board 29 

and they concur with the necessity of the amendments; and 30 



                                                                                                                                                       

 WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners finds that these amendments will result 1 

in a more efficient and expeditious licensing program for contractors operating in Escambia 2 

County, and that the amendments therefore advance the public health, safety, and welfare. 3 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 4 

COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA: 5 

SECTION 1.

Chapter 18, Article II, Division 1, Section 18-35 of the Escambia County Code of 7 

Ordinances is hereby amended to read as follows: 8 

   6 

Sec. 18-35.  License reciprocity with other counties in Florida. 9 

 (a)  Conditions.  It shall be a requirement of the issuance of a reciprocal license 10 

that the applicant has met the following conditions in order to receive a license in this 11 

county under the provisions of this section: 12 

 (1)  The candidate for licensure must have taken for the license for which he or 13 

she is applying and received a passing grade of 75 percent on examination 14 

administered and graded by an authorized testing agency. 15 

 (2)  The applicant’s examination must be equivalent to the examination given in 16 

Escambia County for the license being sought. 17 

 (3)  The candidate for licensure must have satisfied the experience and other 18 

requirements set forth in F.S. § 489.111. 19 

 (b)  Procedure.  If the licensed applicant from another county seeks a reciprocal 20 

license under the provisions of this section he or she must obtain a letter of verification 21 

from that county’s contractor licensing authority.  Such letter will verify the type of 22 

license that the applicant currently holds and a statement that the applicant has taken 23 

the current licensing examination and the grade received on it.  The applicant also must 24 



                                                                                                                                                       

provide verification to the county from the testing company of his or her score.  This 1 

information will be submitted to the licensing board for which a license is being sought, 2 

along with the proper application.  If the applicant has met the requirements of this 3 

section, the licensing board will review and approve the application, and the applicant 4 

may then pay the fee to the county and receive a license.  

 (c)  Confirmation.  The contractor competency board is authorized to confirm the 11 

status of the applicant’s license in the sponsoring county if there is a question as to the 12 

authenticity of the letter of certification and all information submitted with the application. 13 

The contractor competency 5 

board, acting as the licensing board, may delegate its authority under this section to the 6 

county building official; however, if there is a question as to the authenticity of the letter 7 

of certification or any information submitted with the application, the county building 8 

official shall present the question to the contractor competency board pursuant to 9 

subsection 18-35(c). 10 

 (d)  Fee.  The fee for the issuance of a reciprocal license under this section shall 14 

be the same as the issuance of an initial license in this county, which fee shall be paid 15 

to the licensing clerk in this county at the time of issuance of the county license. 16 

 (e)  License status.  Upon the issuance of a license in this county, the licensee 17 

shall be bound by all the rules, regulations, laws, and ordinances of the county and will 18 

be entitled to the rights and privileges of a licensee in the same manner and to the 19 

same extent as if the license had been initially issued in this county. 20 

SECTION 2.

Chapter 18, Article II, Division 3, Section 18-80 of the Escambia County Code of 22 

Ordinances is hereby amended to read as follows: 23 

   21 



                                                                                                                                                       

Sec. 18-80.  Certificate termination. 1 

 (a)  Expiration of certificates of competency.  Certificates of competency issued 2 

prior to March 1, 2011 shall expire on the birthdate of the license holder.  C

 (1)  Failure to renew certificates of competency during the license holder’s birth 6 

month of the renewal year 

ertificates of 3 

competency issued on or after March 1, 2011 shall expire one calendar year (365 4 

calendar days) after issuance. 5 

expiration date

 (2)  A certificate which is invalid because of failure to timely renew shall be 11 

automatically restored if the application for renewal and payment of the proper renewal 12 

fee are made within 90 days after the license holder’s birthdate 

 shall cause such certificates to become 7 

invalid and it is unlawful thereafter for any person to engage or offer to engage, or hold 8 

himself or herself out as engaged in, contracting under the certificate unless such 9 

certificate is restored or reissued. 10 

expiration date.  The 13 

renewal fee for restoration within this time period shall be equal to the current 14 

application fee plus the required renewal fee set by resolution of the board of county 15 

commissioners pursuant to section 18-82. 16 

SECTION 3.  

 If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 18 

unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way 19 

affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 20 

SEVERABILITY 17 

SECTION 4.  

It i s the i ntention of  t he Board of  County Commissioners that the pr ovisions of 22 

this Ordinance shall be codified as required by Section 125.68, Fla. S tat. (2009); and 23 

INCLUSION IN CODE 21 



                                                                                                                                                       

that t he se ctions, su bsections and ot her pr ovisions of t his Ordinance m ay be 1 

renumbered or  r elettered and t he w ord “ ordinance” m ay be ch anged t o “ section,” 2 

“article,” or  su ch ot her appr opriate word or  phr ase i n order t o acco mplish s uch 3 

intentions. 4 

SECTION 5.  

 This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing with the Department of State. 6 

EFFECTIVE DATE 5 

DONE AND ENACTED THIS   DAY OF    , 2011. 7 

 8 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 9 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 10 

 11 

Kevin W. White, Chairman 13 
___________________________________ 12 

 14 
 15 
 16 
ATTEST:  ERNIE LEE MAGAHA  17 
  Clerk of the Circuit Court 18 
 19 
 ______________________ 20 
  Deputy Clerk 21 
 22 
(Seal) 23 
 24 
 25 
Enacted:      26 
Filed with Department of State:   27 
Effective:      28 

 29 



PENSACOLA

Journal
>^Informed. In Tune. In Touch

Published Daily-Pensacola, Escambia County, FL

PROOF OF PUBLICATION

State of Florida

County of Escambia:

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared

Anna Hammcs who on oath, says that she is a personal

representative of the Pensacola News Journal, a daily

newspaper published in Escambia County, Florida: that

the attached copy of advertisement, being a legal

advertisement in the matter of:

Notice of Intent to Adopt a County Ordinance

Was published in said newspaper in the issue(s) of:

January 22, 2011

Affiant further says that the said Pensacola News Journal

is a newspaper published in said Escambia County and

Santa Rosa County, Florida, and that the said newspaper

has heretofore been published in said Escambia County

and Santa Rosa County, Florida, and has been entered as

second class matter at the Post Office in said Escambia

County and Santa Rosa County, Florida, for a period of

one year next preceding the first publication of the

attached copy of advertisement; and affiant further says

that she has neither paid nor promised any person, firm or

corporation any discount, rebate, commission or refund for

the purpose of securing this advertisement for publication

in the said newspaper.

Sworn to and subscribed before me 24lh Day of
January. 2011. by Anna Hnnunes who

Is personally known to me.

Affiant

Notary Public

NOTICE OF INTENT TO ADOPT A COUNTY ORDINANCE

NOTICE IS HEREBY OIVEN of the intention of the Board of
County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida at a
public hearing to be held on Thursday, February 3, 2011 at
Bi33 pjn. In the BCC Meeting Room, Escambia County Gov
ernment Complex, 221 Palafox Place, First Floor, to consider
the adoption of the following ordinance:

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COM
MISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA,
AMENDING CHAPTER 18, ARTICLE II, DIVISION 1,
SECTION 18-38(b) OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY
CODE OF ORDINANCES BY AUTHORIZING THE
ESCAMBIA COUNTY CONTRACTOR COMPETENCY
BOARD TO DELEGATE ITS JURISDICTION TO
GRANT RECIPROCAL LICENSES TO THE
ESCAMBIA COUNTY BUILDING OFFICIAL; AMEND-
INQ CHAPTER 18. ARTICLE tl, DIVISION 37860-
TION 18-80 OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF
ORDINANCES BY ESTABLISHING A ONE-YEAR EX
PIRATION AND RENEWAL DATE FOR CERTIFI
CATES OF COMPETENCY; PROVIDING FOR
SEVERABIUTY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN
THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Any Interested party may appear at the public hearing and
be heard regarding the proposed ordinance. A draft of the
proposed ordinance Is available for review at the Escambia
County Government Complex, Deputy Clerk's Office, 221
Palafox Place, Suite 130.

Please note any person who decides to appeal any decision
made with respect to any matter considered at the public
hearing will need a record of the proceedings of the meet-
Ing. Since the Board of County Commissioners does not
make verbatim records of Its meetings, such person may
need to Independently secure a record, which should In
clude the testimony or evidence on which the appeal is to
be based. In accordance with the Americans wftn Disabili
ties Act, persons needing a special accommodation or an In
terpreter to participate In the public hearing should contact
Cheryl Lively, Program Coordinator, County Administration
(850) SSS-4900 afleaat seven days prior to the date of hear
ing.

BOARD OP COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIOA

Legal No. 15066861T January 22,2011

GRANT PAQUIN

Notary Public, State of Florida

My Commission Expires May 31,2014

Commission No. DD996Q28



AI-354     Public Hearings    Item #:  13.     
BCC Regular Meeting
Date: 02/03/2011  

Issue: 5:35 p.m. Public Hearing Concerning the Dangerous or Vicious Animal
Ordinance Amendment.

From: Kristin D. Hual, Assistant County Attorney
Organization: County Attorney's Office
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:

Recommendation:  That the Board, at the 5:35 p.m. Public Hearing, adopt an
Ordinance amending Chapter 10, Article I, Section 10-14, of the Escambia County Code of
Ordinances, relating to the procedures for the classification of dangerous or vicious animals;
providing for severability; providing for inclusion in the Code; providing for an effective date.

BACKGROUND:
At its January 20, 2011 meeting, the Board scheduled a public hearing to consider amending
Section 10-14 of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances. This section was previously ruled
unconstitutional as part of an Order entered by the County Court of Escambia County in the
matter of  State of Florida v. Anthony S. Davis.  The Office of the County Attorney is requesting
that the Board consider amending the provision relating to the procedures for classifying a
dangerous or vicious animal to conform with the requirements of state law and provide the
necessary constitutional protections.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
Assistant County Attorney, Kristin Hual, drafted the proposed ordinance. The proposed
ordinance was advertised in the Pensacola News Journal on Saturday, January 22, 2011,
and the Proof of Publication is attached.

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
A copy of the Ordinance will be filed with the Department of State.



Attachments
Draft Ordinance
Order
Proof of Publication



1 ORDINANCE NUMBER 2011 -

2

3 AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA AMENDING

4 VOLUME 1, CHAPTER 10, ARTICLE I, SECTION 10-14 OF THE

5 ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES REGULATING

6 COUNTY ANIMAL CONTROL; PROVIDING PROCEDURES FOR THE

7 CLASSIFICATION OF DANGEROUS OR VICIOUS ANIMALS;

8 PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN

9 THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

10

11 WHEREAS, pursuant to Chapter 125, Florida Statutes, the County is authorized

12 to establish regulations in the interest of the public health, safety and welfare to regulate

13 and control animals in the County; and

14

15 WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners finds that the County's animal

16 control ordinance relating to dangerous or vicious animals requires amendment to better

17 ensure the well being of the public; and

18

19 WHEREAS, the Board of County Commissioners further finds that the proposed

20 amendment amending the provision pertaining to dangerous or vicious animals serves

21 an important public purpose.

22

23 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY

24 COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA:

25

26 Section 1. Chapter 10, Article I, Section 10-14 of the Escambia County Code of

27 Ordinances is hereby amended to read as follows:

28

29 Sec. 10-14. Dangerous or vicious animals.

30

31 (a) The owner of any animal classified as a dangerous or vicious animal pursuant to

32 this Chapter, shall confine the animal in a secure or proper enclosure. The owner and/or

33 any person who shall release, either willfully or through a failure to exercise due care or

34 control, or take such animal out of such secure or proper enclosure in such a manner

35 which is likely to cause injury to another person or damage to the property of another

36 person shall be in violation of this chapter and punished as a civil infraction as provided

37 for in section 10-23.

38

39 (b) An animal control authority shall investigate reported incidents involving any dog

40 that may be dangerous or vicious and shall, if possible, interview the owner and require

41 a sworn affidavit from any person, including any animal control officer or enforcement

42 officer, desiring to have a dog classified as dangerous. Furthor, in accordanco with the

43 provisions of Laws of Fla., oh. 90 180, individuals may provide duly cwom formal

44 complaints to animal control roquosting that a dog bo classifiod ao "dangerous." (1)

45 Such formal complaints shall bo oxooutod by a minimum of two individuals who roside

46 in separate households who have witnessed the dangerous actions of the dog. Any dog

1



1 that is the subject of a dangerous dog investigation shall be immediately impounded bv

2 the animal control authority and shall remain impounded pending the outcome of the

3 investigation if deemed necessary to protect the public. Animal Control Officers are

4 hereby authorized to confiscate dogs that are the subject of dangerous dog

5 investigations, and the Director is hereby authorized to institute appropriate proceedings

6 in any court of competent jurisdiction if necessary to effectuate the seizure of the doo.

7 The Animal Control Officer shall issue the responsible party a written notice of the

8 confiscation. The owner shall be responsible for payment of all boarding costs and fees

9 incurred during the investigation.

10

n (2c) A dog shall not be declared dangerous if the threat, injury, or damage was

12 sustained by a person who, at the time, was unlawfully on the property, or while lawfully

13 on the property was tormenting, abusing, or assaulting the dog or its owner or a family

14 member. No dog may be declared dangerous if the dog was protecting or defending a

15 human being within the immediate vicinity of the dog from an unjustified attack or

16 assault.

17

18 (d) Within ten (10) business days of impoundment, the owner may file a petition with

19 the director of animal control reouestina custody of the animal during the investigation

20 and the petition shall be granted or denied at the discretion of the director of animal

21 control. Any animal that is the subject of a dangerous dog investigation, that is not

22 impounded with the animal control authority shall be humanely and safely confined bv

23 the owner in a secure or proper enclosure pending the outcome of the investigation and

24 resolution of any related proceedings. The address of where the animal is confined

25 during the investigation shall be provided to the animal control authority. No animal that

26 is the subject of an investigation may be relocated or ownership transferred pending the

27 outcome of the investigation or any proceedings related thereto.

28

29 (e) After the dangerous dog investigation is concluded, the animal control authority

30 shall make an initial determination as to whether there is sufficient cause to classify the

31 dog as dangerous and shall afford the owner an opportunity for a hearing prior to

32 making a final determination. The animal control authority shall provide written

33 notification of the sufficient cause finding to the owner bv registered mail, certified hand

34 delivery, or service provided in conformance with the provisions of F.S. ch. 48. relating

35 to service of process.

36

37 ffl Within seven (7) calendar days from the date of receipt of the notification of the

38 sufficient cause finding, the owner may file a written reguest with the animal control

39 authority for a hearing with the County Special Magistrate and, if requested, the hearing

40 shall be held no sooner than five (5) but no more than 21 calendar days after receipt of

41 the reguest from the owner. The hearing shall be conducted before the County Special

42 Magistrate, who shall timely provide notice of hearing bv registered mail, certified hand

43 delivery or service provided in conformance with the provisions of F.S. ch. 48. relating to

44 service of process. In hearings before the County Special Magistrate, formal rules of

45 evidence shall not apply, but fundamental due process shall be observed and govern all



1 proceedings. The Special Magistrate shall decide the issues based upon the

2 preponderance of the evidence.

3

4 fq) If the owner cannot appear at any hearing scheduled by the County Special

5 Magistrate, the owner shall contact the animal control authority no later than 24 hours

6 prior to the hearing, requesting a continuance to the next available hearing date. If the

7 owner fails to appear at the rescheduled classification hearing, the owner shall be

8 deemed to have waived his or her right to appear at the hearing. In such case, the

9 Special Magistrate shall proceed with the hearing and shall notify the owner in writing of

10 the outcome of the proceeding.

n

12 (h) After the hearing, the Special Magistrate shall provide written notice of said

13 determination to the owner by registered mail, certified hand delivery or service

14 provided in conformance with the provisions of F.S. ch. 48. relating to service of

is process.

16

17 (0 If the dog is classified as dangerous, the owner may file a written request for a

18 hearing in the county court to appeal the classification within ten (10) business days

19 after receipt of the Special Magistrate's determination. The county court shall thereafter

20 conduct a hearing on the issue as to whether the animal should be classified as

21 dangerous and review the Special Magistrate's determination de novo. If the animal is

22 in the owner's custody, the owner must confine the animal in a securely fenced or

23 enclosed area pending resolution of the appeal. If the animal remains impounded, the

24 owner shall be responsible for payment of all boarding costs and fees incurred pending

25 resolution of the appeal.

26

27 (ej) Within 30.14_days after a dog is classified as dangerous by the Special Magistrate

28 and the determination is upheld on appeal, the owner must obtain a certificate of

29 registration for the dog from the animal control authority serving the area in which he or

30 she resides, and the certificate shall be renewed annually. The animal control authority

31 is authorized to issue such certificates of registration and renewals only to persons who

32 are at least 18 years of age and who present to the animal control authority sufficient

33 evidence of:

34 (1) A current certificate of rabies vaccination for the doo. current animal license tag.

35 and proof of sterilization from a certified veterinarian licensed in any state;

36 (2) A proper enclosure to confine a dangerous dog and the posting of the premises

37 with a clearly visible warning sign at all entry points that informs both children and adults

38 of the presence of a dangerous dog on the property;

39 (3) Permanent identification of the dog, such as a tattoo on the insido thigh or

40 electronic implantation; and

41 (4) Payment of annual registration fee to animal control authority. The appropriate

42 governmental unit may impose an annual fee for the issuance of certificates of

43 registration required by this section.

44

45 (dk) The owner shall immediately notify the appropriate animal control authority when

46 a dog that has been classified as dangerous:



1 (1) Is loose or unconfined;

2 (2) Has bitten a human being or attacked another animal;

3 (3) Is sold or given away, or dies; or

4 (4) Is moved to another address.

5

6 (ej) Prior to a dangerous dog being sold or given away, the owner shall provide the

7 name, address, and telephone number of the new owner to the animal control authority.

8 The new owner must comply with all of the requirements of this chapter, even if the

9 animal is moved from one local jurisdiction to another within the state. The animal

10 control officer or appropriate agency of another jurisdiction must be notified by the

n owner of a dog classified as dangerous that the dog is in his jurisdiction.
12

13 (fm) It is unlawful for the owner of a dangerous dog to permit the dog to be outside a

14 proper enclosure unless the dog is muzzled and restrained by a substantial chain or

15 leash and under control of a competent person. The muzzle shall be made in a manner

16 that will not cause injury to the dog or interfere with its vision or respiration, but shall

17 prevent it from biting any person or animal. When being transported, such dogs shall be

18 safely and securely restrained within a vehicle.

19

20 (n) Any dog classified as dangerous shall only be returned to the custody of the

21 owner after the owner has satisfied all requirements for the ownership and care of a

22 dangerous dog as set forth herein. Should the owner fail to comply with the foregoing

23 reguirements on or before the fourteenth day after final classification is rendered, the

24 animal control authority shall retain custody of the animal and the animal shall be

25 destroyed in an expeditious and humane manner. If the owner, thereafter, fails to

26 comply with the aforementioned ownership reouirements. the animal control authority

27 may immediately impound the animal pending the owner's compliance with

28 impoundment at the expense of the owner. Should the owner fail to comply with the

29 foregoing reguirements on or before the fourteenth day after the animal is impounded.

30 the animal control authority shall retain custody of the animal and the animal shall be

31 destroyed in an expeditious and humane manner.

32

33 (o) If a dog that has previously declared dangerous attacks or bites a human or a

34 domestic animal without provocation, the owner shall be in violation of this chapter and

35 punished as a civil infraction as provided for in section 10-23. In addition, the dog shall

36 be immediately impounded bv the animal control authority and shall remain impounded

37 under Quarantine pending resolution of any related proceedings. The animal control

38 authority shall provide the owner with a sufficient cause finding and within seven (7)

39 calendar days from the date of receipt of the notification of the sufficient cause finding.

40 the owner mav file a written reouest with the animal control authority for a hearing with

41 the County Special Magistrate as provided herein. After final resolution of any related

42 proceedings, and thoroaftor if the sufficient cause finding is upheld the dog shall be

43 destroyed in an expeditious and humane manner, and the owner shall be responsible

44 for all boarding costs and fees reouired to confiscate, impound, and destroy the animal.

45



1 (§2) Anv-lf a dog that has NOT been previously deemed declared dangerous or

2 vicious as a result of attackm§s and causm§es_severe injury or death to a human or a

3 domestic animal without provocation, the owner shall be in violation of this chapter and

4 punished as a civil infraction as provided for in section 10-23. In addition, the dog shall

5 be immediately impounded by the animal control authority as provided for in sootion 10

6 § and the dog shall be held at the county animal shelter for ton businoss days including

7 tho day of impoundmont and thoroaftor dostroyod in an oxpoditious and humano

8 manner under Quarantine pending resolution of any related proceedings. The animal

9 control authority shall timely provide the owner with a sufficient cause finding and within

10 seven (7) calendar days from the date of receipt of the notification of the sufficient

n cause finding, the owner may file a written request with the animal control authority for a

12 hearing with the County Special Magistrate as provided herein. After final resolution of

13 any related proceedings, and thoroaftor if the dangerous dog determination is upheld

14 the dog shall be destroyed in an expeditious and humane manner, and the owner shall

15 be responsible for all boarding costs and fees required to confiscate, impound, and

16 destroy the animal.

17

18 (fcg) Hunting dogs are exempt from the provisions of this section when engaged in any

19 legal hunt or training procedure. Dogs engaged in training or exhibiting in legal sports

20 such as obedience trials, conformation shows, field trials, hunting/retrieving trials, and

21 herding trials, are exempt from the provisions of this chapter when engaged in any legal

22 procedures. However, such dogs at all times in all respects shall be subject to this

23 chapter. Dogs that have been classified as dangerous shall not be used for hunting

24 purposes.

25

26 (ir) This section does not apply to dogs used by law enforcement officials for law

27 enforcement work.

28

29 (js) A violation of any provision of this section shall be a civil infraction punishable

30 pursuant to section 10-23. Notwithstanding the proooding, tho amount of tho civil

31 ponalty for a violation of subsections (o), (d) and (o) of this soction, shall bo tho amount

32 ostablishod by rosolution of tho board of county commissionors, which, from timo to

33 timo, may bo amondod, and which is by roforonoo mado a part horoof.

34

35 Section 2. Severability.

36

37 If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid

38 or unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no

39 way affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance.

40

41 Section 3. Inclusion in the Code.

42

43 It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of

44 this ordinance shall become and be made a part of the Escambia County Code; and

45 that the sections of this Ordinance may be renumbered or relettered and the word



1 "ordinance" may be changed to "section", "article", or such other appropriate word or

2 phrase in order to accomplish such intentions.

3

4 Section 4. Effective Date.

6 This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing with the Department of State.

8 DONE AND ENACTED THIS DAY OF . 2011.

10 BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

n ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

12

13

14 BY: .

15 Kevin W. White, Chairman

16 ATTEST: ERNIE LEE MAGAHA

17 Clerk to the Circuit Court

18

19

20 BY: .

21 Deputy Clerk

22

23

24 (SEAL)

25

26

27 Enacted:

28 Filed with Department of State:

29 Effective:



IN THE COUNTY COURT IN AND FOR

ESCAMBIA COUNTY FLORIDA

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Plaintiff

vs. Case No. 2010 CO 021778 and

2010 CO 021779

Division 5

ANTHONY S. DAVIS,

Defendant.

ORDER FINDING DEFENDANT NOT GUILTY

AND FINDING COUNTY ORDINANCE S10-14 UNCONSTITUTIONAL

At a final hearing in open court on July 22, 2010, the defendant appeared with counsel.

Animal Control issued citations to defendant for his two dogs, Cutter and Trixie, declaring them

to be "dangerous or vicious" animals. The notation on both citations in the comment section

states "attacked probation officer1." It is undisputed that Cutter became agitated and bit the
probation officer's leg. It is not clear whether or not this action would necessarily cause Cutter to

fall within the statutory definition of a "dangerous dog." There is no evidence that Trixie would fall

within the statutory definition of a "dangerous dog."

Defendant entered a plea of not guilty and seeks to have the county ordinance declared

unconstitutional due to conflict with §767.12, Florida Statutes. Defendant argues that the animal

control officer, under the apparent authority of county ordinance §10-14, violated his due process

rights to a statutorily defined pre-deprivation procedure wherein he could contest the classification

of Cutter and Trixie as dangerous dogs. See §767.12(1 )(a)-(d).

Because the State has already defined a person's pets (in this case the defendant's dogs)

to be "property," and because certain procedural due process rights attach to these ownership

interests, when the county enacted §10-14, there was a constitutional obligation to preserve the

"owner's" due process rights through a series of hearings or other procedures before imposing

constraints on the owner's use and enjoyment of his or her "property." There can be no dispute

that §10-14 subjects the "property" to physical confinement, tattooing, electric implantation, and

as in the instant case, euthanasia. The language in §10-14 thereby permits officers to impose the

constraints on the defendant's "use and enjoyment" of his "property" by simply issuing a citation

without the benefit of a pre-deprivation hearing process. It is clear that this deprivation makes
§10-14 both facially unconstitutional and unconstitutional as applied in this case.

The instant case is not the first time in Florida that a county ordinance relating to

"dangerous dogs" has been found to be unconstitutional. In CountyofPasco v. Riehl, 635 So.2d

17 (Fla. 1994), the Florida Supreme Court quotes extensively from the United States Supreme

'it is undisputed that the defendant had two dogs, Cutter and Trixie, but only one
dog, Cutter, bit the defendant's probation officer. Trixie did not attack anyone or cause any
injury.



Court decision in Mathews v. E/dridge'm finding that ordinance to be unconstitutional. The Court
stated that ". . . we must emphasize that "procedural due process imposes constraints on

governmental decisions which deprive individuals of 'liberty' or 'property1 interests within the

meaning of the Due Process Clause of the Fifth or Fourteenth Amendment." Mathews v. Eldridae.

424 U.S. at 332. "The degree of potential deprivation that may be created by a particular decision
is a factor to be considered in assessing the validity of any administrative decisionmaking [sic]
process." Id. at 341. "The possible length of [a] wrongful deprivation ... is [also] an important

factor in assessing the impact of official action on ... private interests." Id., citing Fusari v.
Steinbere. 419 U.S. 379. 95 S. Ct. 533. 42 L. Ed. 2d 521 <1975V

Here the defendant was instructed that he could either agree to euthanasia or relinquish

possession of Cutter to animal control for quarantine and possible euthanasia depending on other

determinations through the simple act of issuing a "dangerous dog" citation. Further, even if the

dogs were returned to him, he would be required to post signs, build an enclosure and incur
additional expenses with regard to the designation of his dogs as "dangerous." Throughout this

process there was no opportunity for the defendant to have an evidentiary hearing to determine

if the "bite" met the criteria for "unprovoked" prior to the county issuing the citations for "dangerous

dogs." In this case, because the defendant complied with the instructions from the county officer,
his loss of Cutter through euthanasia was permanent. Even if he had elected to surrender Cutter,

the "length of deprivation" was, by definition, permanent because of restrictions imposed and

expense which would be incurred in an on-going attempt to meet the requirements of §10-14 so

he might be permitted to keep his two dogs. Clearly this violates his procedural due process rights

and conflicts with §767.12, Florida Statutes, and therefore the county ordinance fails as a matter
of law and it is

ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that County Ordinance §10-14 is both facially

unconstitutional as well as unconstitutional as applied in this case and therefore the defendant,
Anthony S. Davis, is not guilty.

DONE AND ORDERED this 6th day of August 2010 in chambers, Pensacola, Escambia
County, Florida.

/s/ PAT KINSEY
County Judge

cc: Kim Anthony Skievaski, Attorney for Defendant

/Ma/k-Cnapman, Escambia County Animal Control



PENSACOLA

Journal
s^ Informed. In Tune. In Touch

Published Datly-Pensaeola, Escambia County, FL

PROOF OF PUBLICATION

State of Florida

County of Escambia:

Before the undersigned authority personally appeared

Anna Hiinniics who on oalli. says thai she is a personal

representative of the Pensacola News Journal, a daily

newspaper published in Escambia County, Florida; thai

the attached copy ofadvertisement, being a legal

advertisement in the matter of:

Notice ofIntent to Adopt u County Ordinance

Was published in said newspaper in the issue(s) of:

January 22,2011

Affiant further says thai the said Pensaeola News Journal

is ii newspaper published in said Escambia County and

Santa Rosa County, Florida, and that the said newspaper

has heretofore been published in said Escambia County

and Santa Rosa County, Florida, and has been entered as

second class matter si the Post Office in said Escambia

County and Santa Rosa County, Florida, For a period of

one year next preceding the first publication oftlie

attached copy of advertisement; and affiant Further says

that slie lias neither paid nor promised any person, firm or

corporation any discount, rebate, commission or refund For

the purpose ofsecuring this advertisement for publication

in the said newspaper.

Sworn to and subscribed before me 24"' Day of

January, 201 I. by Anna Utunnies who

Is personally known to me.

Affiant

Notary Public

NOTICE OF INTENT TO ADOPT A COUNTY ORDINANCE

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN of the intention ol tha Board of
County Commissioners of Escambia County. Florida at a
public hearing to be held on Thursday, February 3, 2011 al
5:35 p.tn, in ihe BCC Meeting Room, Escambia County Gov
ernment Complex. 221 Palafox Race. First Floor, to consider
the adoption of the Mowing ordinanco:

AN ORDINANCE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
AMENDING VOLUME 1, CHAPTER 10, ARTICLE I.
SECTION 10-14 OF THE ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE
OF ORDINANCES REGULATING COUNTY ANIMAL

CONTROL: PROVIDING PROCEDURES FOR THE
CLASSIFICATION OF DANGEROUS OR VICIOUS ANI
MALS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABIL1TY; PROVID
ING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Any interested party may appear at Ihe public hearing and
bo heard regarding the proposed ordnance. A draft of the
proposed ordinance is available for review at Ihe Escambia
County Government Complex, Deputy Clerk's Office, 221
Palafox Place, Suite 130.

Please note any person who decides to appeal any decision
made with respect to any matter considered at the public
hearing will need a record of the proceedings Of the meet
ing. Since the Board of County Commissioners does not
make verbatim records of its meetings, such person may
need to Independently secure a record, which should in
clude the testimony or evidence on which the appeal Is to
ba based. In accordance with the Americans with Disabili
ties Act, persons needing a special accommodation or an in
terpreter to participate in the public hearing should contact
Cheryl Lively, Program Coordinator, County Adrrinlstration
(B50| 595-4900 afleast seven days prw to the date of hear
ing.

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

Legal No. 1506939 1T January 22, 2011

GRANT PAQUIN

Notary Public. State of Florida

My Commission Expires May 31. 2014

Commission No. 00996323
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BACKUP NOT INCLUDED WITH THE CLERK'S REPORT IS AVAILABLE FOR REVIEW
IN

THE OFFICE OF THE CLERK TO THE BOARD
ESCAMBIA COUNTY GOVERNMENTAL COMPLEX, SUITE 130

 

CLERK OF THE COURTS & COMPTROLLER'S REPORT
February 3, 2011

             
I.   CONSENT AGENDA

 

1. Recommendation : That the Board accept, for filing with the Board's Minutes, the following
three Reports prepared by the Clerk of the Circuit Court & Comptroller's Finance
Department:

A. Payroll Expenditures for Pay Date January 21, 2011, in the amount of $2,288,372.33;
and

B. The following two Disbursement of Funds:

    (1) January 13, 2011, to January 19, 2011, in the amount of $130,816.71; and

    (2) January 20, 2011, to January 26, 2011, in the amount of $5,539,888.07.
 

2. Recommendation : That the Board accept, for filing with the Board's Minutes, the following
two Financial Statements provided to the Clerk to the Board's Office:

A. The Financial Statements of Escambia-Pensacola Human Relations Commission
September 30, 2010 and 2009, as prepared and audited by Brown Thornton Pacenta &
Company, P.A., Certified Public Accountants, Business & Financial Consultants, and
received in the Clerk to the Board's Office on January 20, 2011; and 

B. The Pensacola Bay Area Chamber of Commerce, Inc., and Affiliates, Pensacola,
Florida, Consolidated Financial Statements September 30, 2010 and 2009, as prepared
and audited by Saltmarsh, Cleaveland & Gund, Certified Public Accountants and
Consultants, and received in the Clerk to the Board's Office on January 21, 2011.

 



             
3. Recommendation : That the Board take the following action concerning Minutes and

Reports prepared by the Clerk to the Board's Office:

A. Accept for filing with the Board's Minutes, the Report of the Agenda Work Session held
January 20, 2011;

B. Approve the Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting held January 20, 2011; and

C. Accept for filing with the Board's Minutes, the Report of the Committee of the Whole
Workshop held January 13, 2011.

(TO BE DISTRIBUTED UNDER SEPARATE COVER)
 

CLERK OF THE COURTS & COMPTROLLER'S REPORT
February 3, 2011
Page 2 of 2



Clerk & Comptroller's Report Item #:  1.           
Date: 02/03/2011  

Acceptance of Reports
From: Doris Harris

Recommendation:
Recommendation: That the Board accept, for filing with the Board's Minutes, the following three
Reports prepared by the Clerk of the Circuit Court & Comptroller's Finance Department:

A. Payroll Expenditures for Pay Date January 21, 2011, in the amount of $2,288,372.33; and

B. The following two Disbursement of Funds:

    (1) January 13, 2011, to January 19, 2011, in the amount of $130,816.71; and

    (2) January 20, 2011, to January 26, 2011, in the amount of $5,539,888.07.
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Clerk & Comptroller's Report Item #:  2.           
Date: 02/03/2011  

Acceptance of Financial Statements
From: Doris Harris

Recommendation:
Recommendation: That the Board accept, for filing with the Board's Minutes, the following two
Financial Statements provided to the Clerk to the Board's Office:

A. The Financial Statements of Escambia-Pensacola Human Relations Commission September
30, 2010 and 2009, as prepared and audited by Brown Thornton Pacenta & Company, P.A.,
Certified Public Accountants, Business & Financial Consultants, and received in the Clerk to the
Board's Office on January 20, 2011; and 

B. The Pensacola Bay Area Chamber of Commerce, Inc., and Affiliates, Pensacola, Florida,
Consolidated Financial Statements September 30, 2010 and 2009, as prepared and audited by
Saltmarsh, Cleaveland & Gund, Certified Public Accountants and Consultants, and received in
the Clerk to the Board's Office on January 21, 2011.

Attachments
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Clerk & Comptroller's Report Item #:  3.           
Date: 02/03/2011  

Minutes and Reports
From: Doris Harris

Recommendation:
Recommendation: That the Board take the following action concerning Minutes and Reports
prepared by the Clerk to the Board's Office:

A. Accept for filing with the Board's Minutes, the Report of the Agenda Work Session held
January 20, 2011;

B. Approve the Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting held January 20, 2011; and

C. Accept for filing with the Board's Minutes, the Report of the Committee of the Whole
Workshop held January 13, 2011.

(TO BE DISTRIBUTED UNDER SEPARATE COVER)
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GROWTH MANAGEMENT REPORT

February 3, 2011
             
I.    PUBLIC HEARING

 

1. Review of the Rezoning Case heard by the Planning Board on
January 10, 2011

  RECOMMENDATION:

 

That the Board take the following action concerning the rezoning case heard by the
Planning Board on January 10, 2011:

Review and either adopt, modify, or overturn the Planning Board’s recommendation for
Rezoning Case Z-2011-01 or remand the case back to the Planning Board; and

A.

Authorize the Chairman to sign the Order of the Escambia County Board of County
Commissioners for the rezoning case that was reviewed.

B.

 

 

  Case No.: Z-2011-01
  Location: 300 Highway 95-A
  Property Reference

No.:           
14-1N-31-1004-001-004

  Property Size: 13.3 (+/-) acres
  From: VM-1, Villages Mixed Residential/Commercial District

(gross density for residential uses 4 du/per acre)
  To: GBD, Gateway Business District
  FLU Category: I, Industrial & MU-6, Mixed Use 6
  Commissioner District: 5
  Requested by: Wiley C. "Buddy" Page Agent for Universal Fabricators,

Inc.
  Planning Board

Recommendation:
Approval

  Speakers: Wiley C. "Buddy" Page

 

2. 5:45 p.m. – Public Hearing – Amendment to the Official Zoning Map 
  RECOMMENDATION:

 
That the Board adopt an Ordinance to amend the Official Zoning Map to include the rezoning
case heard by the Planning Board on January 10, 2011 and approved during the previous
agenda item and to provide for severability, inclusion in the code, and an effective date.

 

3. 5:46 p.m. – Public Hearing – LDC Ordinance – Articles 3 & 6 “Wind
Turbines”

  RECOMMENDATION:

 

That the Board review and approve an Ordinance to the Land Development Code (LDC)
amending Article 3 “Definitions,” to define “small wind energy systems” and “wind
turbines”; and amending Article 6 “Zoning Districts,” to add such structures as an
allowable accessory use, provided all standards are met.



 

4. 5:47 p.m.- Public Hearing - Parade of Homes - Issuance of Additional
Model Home Permits

  RECOMMENDATION:

 

That the Board approve the issuance of an additional six model home permits for
purposes of constructing the display homes for the annual Parade of Homes event,
pursuant to Article 4.01.03.E of the Land Development Code (LDC).  The event is
scheduled to be held April 16-24, 2011, in the Fiddler's Walk subdivision.

 

II.   CONSENT AGENDA
 

1. Schedule of Public Hearings
  RECOMMENDATION:

 

That the Board authorize the scheduling of the following Public Hearing(s):

Thursday, March 3, 2011  

5:45 p.m. - A Public Hearing to amend the Official Zoning Map to include the following
Rezoning Case to be heard by the Planning Board on February 7, 2011.

Case No. Z-2011-02
Location: 5890 Hwy 99
Property Reference
No.:

05-3N-32-1310-000-000

Property Size: 23.82(+/-)
From: VAG-1, Villages Agriculture District (5 du/100 acres on one acre

parcels)
To: VAG-2, Villages Agriculture District ( 1 du/5 acres)
FLU Category: AG, Agriculture
Commissioner District: 5
Requested by: Michael E. Black and Kristi Y. Black, Owners 

 



    Public Hearing    Item #:  1.     
Growth Management Report
Date: 02/03/2011  

Issue: Review of the Rezoning Case heard by the Planning Board on January 10, 2011
From: T. Lloyd Kerr, AICP
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
That the Board take the following action concerning the rezoning case heard by the Planning
Board on January 10, 2011:

Review and either adopt, modify, or overturn the Planning Board’s recommendation for
Rezoning Case Z-2011-01 or remand the case back to the Planning Board; and

A.

Authorize the Chairman to sign the Order of the Escambia County Board of County
Commissioners for the rezoning case that was reviewed.

B.

 

 

 Case No.: Z-2011-01

  Location: 300 Highway 95-A
  Property Reference

No.:           
14-1N-31-1004-001-004

  Property Size: 13.3 (+/-) acres
  From: VM-1, Villages Mixed Residential/Commercial District (gross

density for residential uses 4 du/per acre)
  To: GBD, Gateway Business District
  FLU Category: I, Industrial & MU-6, Mixed Use 6
  Commissioner District: 5
  Requested by: Wiley C. "Buddy" Page Agent for Universal Fabricators, Inc.
  Planning Board

Recommendation:
Approval

  Speakers: Wiley C. "Buddy" Page

BACKGROUND:
The above case was owner initiated and heard at the January 10, 2011 Planning Board
meeting. Under the Land Development Code (LDC) 2.08.00.E.1., “the Board of County
Commissioners shall review the record and the recommendation of the Planning Board and
either adopt the recommended order, modify the recommended order as set forth therein, reject
the recommended order, or remand the matter back to the Planning Board for additional facts or
clarification. Findings of fact or findings regarding legitimate public purpose may not be rejected
or modified unless they are clearly erroneous or unsupported by the record. When rejecting or



modifying conclusions of law, the Board of County Commissioners must state with particularity
its reasons for rejecting or modifying the recommended conclusion of law and must make a
finding that its substituted conclusion of law is as or more reasonable than the conclusion that
was rejected or modified. However, the Board of County Commissioners may not modify the
recommendation to a more intensive use than recommended by the Planning Board; rather the
matter shall be remanded with instructions. The review shall be limited to the record below. Only
a party of record to the proceedings before the Planning Board or representative shall be
afforded the right to address the Board of County Commissioners and only as to the correctness
of the findings of fact or conclusions of law as based on the record. The Board of County
Commissioners shall not hear testimony."
 
To further the County’s policy of “decreasing response time from notification of citizen needs to
ultimate resolution,” the Board is acting on both the approval of the Planning Board
recommended order and the LDC Map Amendment for this month’s rezoning cases. This report
item addresses only the review and upholding of the Planning Board’s recommendation. The
next report item will address the Public Hearing for the LDC Zoning Map Amendment.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
This action may increase the ad valorem tax base for Escambia County.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The recommended order is the result of deliberations by the Planning Board based on staff
analysis, public testimony, and knowledge of the Comprehensive Plan and Land Development
Code as well as case law and Florida Statutes.

PERSONNEL:
N/A 

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The Chairman will need to sign the Orders of the Escambia County Board of County
Commissioners either denying or approving the rezoning request.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION: 
The cases under review are presented to the Planning Board for collection of evidence. The
Planning Board conducts a quasi-judicial public hearing and issues a recommended order to the
Board.

Attachments
Z-2011-01
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             IN AND FOR ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
              ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD

       Quasi-judicial proceedings held before the Escambia

County Planning Board, on Monday, January 10, 2011, at the

Escambia County Central Office Complex, 3363 West Park

Place, First Floor, commencing at 8:30 a.m.

___________________________________________________________

APPEARANCES

PLANNING BOARD:

WAYNE BRISKE, CHAIRMAN (Not present)
TIM TATE, VICE CHAIRMAN
DOROTHY DAVIS
STEVEN BARRY
R. VAN GOODLOE
KAREN SINDEL
ALVIN WINGATE
PATTY HIGHTOWER, SCHOOL BOARD MEMBER
STEPHANIE ORAM, NAVY REPRESENTATIVE    
STEPHEN WEST, ASSISTANT COUNTY ATTORNEY

DEVELOPMENT SERVICES BUREAU:

HORACE JONES, DIVISION MANAGER, LONG RANGE PLANNING
DAVID FORTE, PROJECTS AND COMPREHENSIVE PLANNING        
GENERAL PUBLIC

1
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18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED

2

I N D E X

                                                 Page

Opening Remarks by Vice-Chairman Tate            3

Proof of Publication 3

Exhibit A, Rezoning Hearing Package and Legal
Advertisement

8

CASE NO:      Z-2011-01
Location:    300 Highway 95-A
Parcel:       14-1N-31-1004-001-004
From:         VM-1, Villages Mixed           
              Residential/Commercial         
              District (gross density of     
              residential uses 4 du/per      
              acre)
To:           GBD, Gateway Business District
FLU Category: I, Industrial & MU-6, Mixed-Use 6
BCC District: 5
Requested by: Wiley C. "Buddy" Page, Agent For
              Universal Fabricators, Inc.

8

Presentation of Maps and Photographs 10

Presentation by Buddy Page 11

Presentation by David Forte 15

Public Testimony: None

Recommendation by the Board 21

CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER 22
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08:37

08:37

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED

3

                   P R O C E E D I N G S

MR. TATE: Good morning. I would like to call

this meeting to order. At this time I'll ask y'all

to rise for the Invocation and the Pledge.

Mr. Wingate.

(Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance.)

MR. TATE: Do we have Proof of Publication?

MS. SPITSBERGEN: Yes, sir, we do. The meeting

was advertised in the December 23rd, 2010 Pensacola

News Journal.

MR. TATE: All right. Do I have a motion to

waive the reading of the legal advertisement?

MR. BARRY: So moved.

MR. GOODLOE: Second.

MR. TATE: Thank you. It passed.

I guess I better ask for a vote on that. Did I

miss -- we're all in favor. All right.

(The motion passed unanimously.)

MR. TATE: Just before we get started real

quick, there's a lot of people here and two

different issues going on, I think. I want to make

sure if you're here to speak for rezoning case we're

about ready to deal with on 95-A that you filled a

form out and brought it forward. I've only received

one form. We'll cover that in a little bit, too, on

4

the topic, but, ma'am, if you would like to bring it 1

forward here, they will take care of it for you.  2

At this hearing the Planning Board is acting 3

under its authority to hear and make recommendations 4

to the Board of County Commissioners on rezoning 5

applications.  These hearings are quasi-judicial in 6

nature.  Quasi-judicial hearings are like 7

evidentiary hearings in a court of law, however, 8

less formal.  All testimony will be given under oath 9

and anyone testifying before the Planning Board may 08:38 10

be subject to cross-examination.  All documents and 11

exhibits that the Planning Board considers will be 12

entered into evidence and made part of the record.  13

Opinion testimony will be limited to experts and 14

closing arguments will be limited to the evidence in 15

the record.  Before making a decision, the Planning 16

Board will consider the relevant testimony, the 17

exhibits entered into evidence and the applicable 18

law.19

Each individual who wishes to address the 08:38 20

Planning Board must complete a speaker request form 21

and submit it to the Planning Board clerk.  These 22

forms are located on the table at the back of the 23

chamber.  You will not be allowed to speak unless 24

you have completed a form.  Please note that only 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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5

those individuals who are present and give testimony 1

on the record at this hearing before the Planning 2

Board will be allowed to speak at the subsequent 3

hearing before the Board of County Commissioners. 4

Is that better?  Sorry.  Do I need to start 5

over?  Okay.  6

No new evidence can be presented at the BCC 7

meeting.  Therefore, all testimony and evidence must 8

be presented today.  9

The Planning Board will provide a 08:39 10

recommendation for each rezoning request to the 11

Board of County Commissioners, which will review 12

testimony, documents and exhibits and consider the 13

closing arguments and make a final decision.  All 14

decisions by the BCC are final.  Anyone who wishes 15

to seek judicial review of the decision of the Board 16

of County Commissioners must do so in a court of 17

competent jurisdiction within 30 days of the date 18

the Board of County Commissioners approves or 19

rejects the recommended order of the Planning Board.  08:40 20

All written or oral communications outside of 21

this hearing with members of the Planning Board 22

regarding matters under consideration today are 23

considered ex parte' communications.  Ex parte' 24

communications are presumed prejudicial under 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED

6

Florida law and must be disclosed as provided in the 1

Board of County Commission Resolution 96-13.  As 2

each case is heard, the Chair will ask that any 3

Board member who has been involved in any ex parte' 4

communication please identify themselves and 5

describe the communication.6

As required by Section 2.08.02.D of the 7

Escambia County Land Development Code, the Planning 8

Board's recommendation to the Board of County 9

Commissioners shall include consideration of the 08:40 10

following six criterion:  11

Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan.  12

Whether the proposed amendment is consistent with 13

the Comprehensive Plan.  14

Consistency with the code.  Whether the 15

proposed amendment is in conflict with any portion 16

of the Land Development Code and is consistent with 17

the stated purpose and intent of the Land 18

Development Code.  19

Compatibility with surrounding uses.  Whether 08:41 20

and the extent to which the proposed amendment is 21

compatible with existing and proposed uses in the 22

area of the subject property.  23

Changed conditions.  Whether and the extent to 24

which there are any changed conditions that impact 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED

7

the amendment or property.  1

Effect on the natural environment.  Whether and 2

to the extent the proposed amendment would result in 3

significant adverse impacts on the natural 4

environment.  5

Development patterns.  Whether and the extent 6

to which the proposed amendment will result in a 7

logical and orderly development pattern.8

At the beginning of each case, as long as there 9

are no objections from the applicant, we will allow 08:41 10

staff to briefly present the location and zoning 11

maps and photographs for the property.  12

Then we will hear from the applicant and any 13

witnesses that he or she may wish to call.  Then 14

we'll hear from the staff and any witnesses that 15

they may wish to call.  Finally, we'll hear from 16

members of the public who have filed a speaker 17

request form.  18

At this time I would like to swear in any of 19

the staff that are going to be used.  08:42 20

(County staff sworn.)  21

MR. TATE:  The Board has previously qualified 22

all these individuals to offer expert testimony in 23

the area of land use and planning.  Does anyone have 24

any questions regarding his or her qualifications 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED

8

and ability to offer expert testimony?  Thank you.  1

The rezoning hearing package for Z-2011-01 with 2

staff's Findings-of-Fact has previously been 3

provided to Board members.  The Chair will entertain 4

a motion to accept the rezoning hearing package with 5

staff's Findings-of-Fact and the legal advertisement 6

into evidence.  Do we have a motion?  7

MS. DAVIS:  I so move.  8

MR. TATE:  Do we have a second?  9

MS. SINDEL:  Second. 08:42 10

MR. TATE:  All in favor. 11

(Board members vote.)  12

MR. TATE:  Those opposed?  13

(None.) 14

MR. BRISKE:  The motion passes. 15

(The motion passed unanimously.) 16

MR. TATE:  The rezoning hearing package with 17

staff's Findings-of-Fact and the legal advertisement 18

will be marked and included in the record as 19

Composite Exhibit A for all of today's case, of 08:43 20

which we only have one. 21

(Exhibit A, Rezoning Hearing Package and Legal 22

Advertisement, was identified and admitted.)  23

MR. TATE:  This rezoning for consideration is 24

Case Number Z-2011-01, which requests rezoning of 25

TAYLOR REPORTING SERVICES, INCORPORATED
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9

300 Highway 95-A from VM-1, Villages Mixed Use, 1

Residential Commercial District, to GBD, a Gateway 2

Business District, as requested by Mr. Buddy Page 3

for the applicant.4

Members of the Board, have there been any ex 5

parte' communications between you and the applicant, 6

or the applicant's agents, attorneys or witnesses, 7

with fellow Planning Board members or anyone from 8

the general public prior to this hearing?  Also, 9

have you visited the property?  Please disclose if 08:43 10

you are a relative or a business associate of the 11

applicant or the agent.  We will start.  12

MS. ORAM:  Nothing to disclose. 13

MS. HIGHTOWER:  Nothing to disclose. 14

MR. GOODLOE:  Nothing to disclose.15

MR. BARRY:  No communication, but I'm familiar 16

with the parcel.  17

MS. DAVIS:  No communication.18

MR. WINGATE:  I visited the site by a drive-by. 19

MS. SINDEL:  Nothing to disclose.  08:44 20

MR. TATE:  I am familiar with the site and I 21

have had communication with not the applicant, but a 22

member of the public who lives on Country Lane who 23

was notified of the case.  The gentleman, Mr. James 24

Hicks, is a good personal friend of mine.  He's a 25
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former Planning Board member, as well.  The nature 1

of his question to me was what is Gateway Business 2

District?  He wanted to know what was allowable 3

within that district.  We did not speak to the 4

nature of the zoning or what we were going to do.  I 5

previously discussed this with Mr. West and do not 6

feel that I have a conflict acting in this capacity 7

today.  8

Mr. West, do you have any?  9

MR. WEST:  You're correct.  08:45 10

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  11

Staff, was notice of the hearing sent to all 12

interested parties?  13

MR. FORTE:  Yes, sir, it was. 14

MR. TATE:  Was notice of the hearing posted on 15

the subject property?  16

MR. FORTE:  Yes, sir, it was. 17

MR. TATE:  Staff will now present the maps and 18

photographs for this case. 19

(Presentation of Maps and Photographs.)08:45 20

MR. FORTE:  David Forte, Urban Planner, 21

Development Services Bureau.  Again, this is 22

Z-2011-01 from VM-1 to GBD.  Here you see the 23

location and wetlands map.  The 2009 aerial.  The 24

Future Land Use and existing land use.  It's a split 25
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Future Land Use of Industrial and, I believe, that's 1

MU-6.  The current zoning of VM-1.  The public 2

notice sign on the actual subject site.  Looking 3

north along Highway 95-A.  Looking south.  Looking 4

north along Woodbury Circle.  Looking south from the 5

northeast corner of the subject property.  Looking 6

west from the subject property.  The subject 7

property itself.  Another site of the subject 8

property.  The County Appraiser's map.  The 500-foot 9

radius map and the 500-foot mailing list.  That 08:46 10

concludes the maps and photos.  11

MR. TATE:  Mr. Page, would you please come 12

forward.  Would you please swear in Mr. Page.  13

(Buddy Page, sworn.) 14

MR. TATE:  Please state your full name for the 15

record.  16

MR. PAGE:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  Buddy 17

Page, 5337 Hamilton Lane, Pace, Florida 32571. 18

MR. TATE:  Have you received a copy of the 19

rezoning hearing package with staff's 08:46 20

Findings-of-Fact?  21

MR. PAGE:  Mr. Chairman, I have.  22

MR. TATE:  Do you understand that you have the 23

burden of providing substantial and competent 24

evidence that the proposed rezoning is consistent 25
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with the Comp Plan, furthers the goals, objectives 1

and policies of the Comprehensive Plan and is not in 2

conflict with any portion of the County's Land 3

Development Code?  4

MR. PAGE:  Yes, sir.  5

MR. TATE:  Please proceed with your testimony.  6

MR. PAGE:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.  As the 7

staff presentation already showed, the industrial 8

site is located in the Cantonment area, previously 9

used as a trucking terminal, Evergreen Trucking 08:47 10

Terminal.  As you saw in the aerials there were 11

quite a few trucks as part of that aerial 12

identification package.  13

It is currently split zoned.  The front portion 14

of it is zoned Industrial and the rear portion of it 15

is zoned MU-6.  In meeting with the staff it was the 16

thought that a Gateway Business District, which is 17

fairly predominant in that area to begin with, would 18

be more of an appropriate upzoning for a use as is 19

proposed for this particular site, so that's what we 08:48 20

applied for.21

Under Criterion (1), Mr. Chairman, the package 22

we turned in, the staff found that the proposed 23

amendments were consistent with the Comprehensive 24

Plan under Criterion (1).  25
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And under Criterion (2), consistency with the 1

code, the staff, too, found that the request for 2

that zoning category was consistent with the Land 3

Development Code, as well.  4

Under Criterion (3), the compatibility with the 5

surrounding areas, the use that is predominant in 6

the area, of course, is Champion International Paper 7

and associated type of facilities that support that 8

type of operation, a railroad track and so forth.  9

So there's a fair amount of nonresidential type 08:48 10

activity.  The proposed use for that site I'm not 11

sure that it would be appropriate, Mr. Chairman, to 12

get into that because that's speculative and there 13

are a lot of things allowed under that, but I think 14

it's suffice to say that the new owner that has 15

bought this out of bankruptcy court in Orlando 16

proposes an intensity of use that's probably one one 17

hundredths of what the neighborhood may have been 18

used to.19

Mr. Chairman, under Criterion (3), we feel like 08:49 20

that we would be very compatible in the Gateway 21

Business District category because it allows what 22

the new owner proposes to do and the staff has found 23

that that Gateway Business District category is 24

certainly compatible with the surrounding areas. 25
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Under Criterion (4), changed conditions, we, 1

too, are not aware of any significant changes in 2

that particular area of the county zoning-wise.  3

Criterion (5), the effect on the natural 4

environment.  The particular site has an L-shaped 5

holding pond that was seen in the overhead aerial.  6

Part of it runs across the easterly portion of the 7

property and part of it, a considerable amount of it 8

over the westerly or, let's see, the southerly 9

portion that would separate it from the residential 08:50 10

area.  That's a fairly dense area.  All the 11

vegetation will be left there.  The new owner 12

recognizes that there will be a fair amount of 13

requirements in terms of buffering as he moves 14

through this overall process and he certainly wants 15

to maintain that integrity of the buffer to separate 16

his proposed use from the adjacent neighborhood.  17

And, Mr. Chairman, under Criterion (6), the 18

development patterns, the staff did conclude with 19

our application that that Gateway Business District 08:50 20

request would be consistent and certainly compatible 21

with that type of activity going on in the 22

Cantonment area and as a result of that, the 23

development pattern should be acceptable under 24

what's proposed here today.  25
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So, Mr. Chairman, that's basically our somewhat 1

annotated presentation to the Board.  I'll be happy 2

to attempt to answer any questions that the Board 3

might have at this point.  4

MR. BRISKE:  I think at this point we'll just 5

continue to move through. 6

MR. PAGE:  Very good.  7

MR. TATE:  Can we have staff's presentation at 8

this time?  9

(Presentation by David Forte.)  08:51 10

MR. FORTE:  Staff's Findings-of-Fact for 11

Z-2011-01, Criterion (1), consistency with the 12

Comprehensive Plan.  The proposed amendment is 13

consistent with the intent and purpose of the Future 14

Land Use categories Industrial and MU-6.  15

Approximately 15 percent of the total acreage of the 16

subject property is Industrial, which allows for the 17

commercial industrial uses permitted in the proposed 18

GBD zoning district.  The remaining acreage, MU-6, 19

allows for a mix of commercial and industrial uses.  08:52 20

Criterion (2), consistency with the code.  The 21

proposed amendment is consistent with the intent and 22

purpose of the Land Development Code.  The Gateway 23

Business District is intended to provide Commercial 24

C-1 and C-2 type uses within the area of Highway 29 25
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provided all conditions stated in LDC Section 1

6.05.29 are met.  The Planning Board may grant an 2

exemption to the locational criteria as stated in 3

LDC Section 7.20.03.D.  Further review from the 4

Development Review Committee will be needed to 5

ensure the buffering requirements and other 6

performance standards for the GBD zoning district 7

have been met should this amendment be granted.  8

Criterion (3), compatibility with surrounding 9

uses.  The proposed amendment is compatible with the 08:52 10

surrounding and existing uses in the area.  Within 11

the 500-foot radius impact area, staff observed 12

approximately 51 parcels, excluding the subject 13

parcel, with zoning districts of V-1, V-3, V-R1, 14

ID-2 and GBD.  There are 37 single-family 15

residences, one church, one gasoline station, one 16

office, one bank, one parcel with offices, and a 17

pizza shop, eight vacant parcels and a borrow pit 18

within the 500-foot radius.19

Criterion (4), changed conditions.  Staff found 08:53 20

no changed conditions that would impact the 21

amendment or property.  22

Criterion (5), effect on the natural 23

environment.  According to the National Wetland 24

Inventory, wetlands and hydric soils were indicated 25
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on the eastern portion of the subject property.  1

When applicable, further review during the 2

Development Review Committee process will be 3

necessary to determine if there would be any 4

significant adverse impact on the natural 5

environment.  6

Criterion (6), development patterns.  The 7

proposed amendment to GBD would result in a logical 8

and orderly development pattern because of the 9

parcel's proximity to Highway 29 and existing GBD 08:54 10

zoning districts within the impact area.  The 11

stringent site development standards established for 12

the GBD zoning district protects the adjacent 13

residential uses from the impacts of commercial type 14

uses GBD permits.  15

That conclude staff's Findings-of-Fact. 16

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  Is there any -- do you 17

have anything further to present, Mr. Page or staff?  18

MR. PAGE:  No, sir. 19

MR. FORTE:  No, sir.  08:54 20

MR. TATE:  Board?  Okay.  21

For those members of the public who wish to 22

speak on this matter, please note that the Planning 23

Board bases its decision on the criteria and 24

exceptions described in Section 2.08.2.D of the 25
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Escambia County Land Development Code.  During its 1

deliberations, the Planning Board will not consider 2

general statements of support or opposition.  3

Accordingly, please limit your testimony to the 4

criteria and exceptions described in Section 5

2.08.02.D.  6

Please also note that only those individuals 7

who are present and give testimony on the record at 8

this hearing before the Planning Board will be 9

allowed to speak at subsequent hearings before the 08:55 10

Board of County Commissioners.  11

Is there anyone from the public who wishes to 12

speak on this matter?  13

(None indicated.) 14

MR. TATE:  If not, I'll now close the public 15

comment portion of this hearing.  16

Board members, do you have any questions for 17

the applicant, staff or members of the public?  18

I do, if no one else does, just a question for 19

staff.  In the application it seemed to be there's a 08:55 20

portion where you all worked with the applicant in 21

deciding or choosing the most appropriate possible 22

zoning to use, whether it be C-2 or the GBD.  What's 23

the -- primarily, can you explain the difference 24

between those two or C-1 either?  What does the 25
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Gateway Business District provide and/or not allow 1

that C-1 or C-2 would provide or allow or disallow?  2

MR. JONES:  The primary difference -- well, the 3

Gateway Business District, the Gateway Business 4

District, it focuses a lot on the landscaping 5

provisions, but it still allows for C-1 and C-2 type 6

uses.  7

MR. TATE:  Any C-1 or C-2 type use? 8

MR. JONES:  Yes. 9

MR. TATE:  Well, let me rephrase that.  I guess 08:56 10

that would be totally true because it does say it 11

has to be indoor only, if I remember correctly.  Is 12

that -- 13

MR. JONES:  Yes, sir.  I'll go directly to the 14

code and see what it says.  15

MR. TATE:  I believe there's a portion of it 16

that's part of our -- 17

MR. JONES:  Yes, it does.  C-2 type 18

distribution completely enclosed within confines of 19

the building are permitted when located in a planned 08:57 20

business development.  That is saying if there's a 21

special planned business development that's coming 22

through, which is another part of the Land 23

Development Code, that type of business has to be 24

within the confines of a building for those planned 25
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business type developments with some very, very, 1

stringent type of requirement and code that the 2

applicant must go through if they want to do this 3

type of planned business development. 4

MR. TATE:  So if they're not part of a planned 5

business development, any C-1 or C-2 type use is -- 6

MR. JONES:  According to what the code says 7

that is applicable, but you've got to meet all the 8

locational criteria and those other elements.  9

MR. TATE:  This is the first time we've dealt 08:57 10

with the Gateway Business District, so we're trying 11

to get our hands around what we're dealing with as 12

far as the uniqueness of it.  I don't know that 13

there's anything unique at this point with this 14

single site setup.  15

MR. JONES:  Again, the primary difference was 16

because they want to make this an attractive well 17

business plan type development which focused on the 18

landscaping criteria. 19

MR. TATE:  How it looks. 08:58 20

MR. JONES:  Yes, how it looks.  21

Does anybody else have any questions?  22

All right.  Is there anything further from the 23

staff?  24

MR. FORTE:  No, sir.  25
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MR. TATE:  Anything further from the applicant?  1

     MR. PAGE:  No, sir.  2

MR. TATE:  If not, the Chair will entertain a 3

motion.  4

MR. GOODLOE:  Mr. Chairman, I recommend that we 5

approve the rezoning application to the Board of 6

County Commissioners and adopt the Findings-of-Fact 7

provided in the rezoning hearing package labeled as 8

Z-2011-01. 9

MR. BARRY:  Second.  08:58 10

MR. TATE:  We have a motion and a second.  Any 11

comments by Board members?  At this time, all those 12

in favor, please raise your right hand. 13

(Board members vote.)  14

MR. TATE:  The motion passes.  15

(The motion passed unanimously.)16

MR. TATE:  Thank you.  17

MR. PAGE:  Thank the Board.  18

MR. TATE:  At this point we will adjourn this 19

meeting and begin our next meeting in two minutes. 08:59 20

(Rezoning Hearings concluded at 8:59 a.m.) 21

22

23
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DEVELOPMENT SERVICES BUREAU 
FINDINGS-OF-FACT 

REZONING CASE: Z-2011-01 
January 10, 2011 

I. SUBMISSION DATA: 

BY: Wiley C. “Buddy” Page, Agent for 

FOR: Universal Fabricators, Inc. 

PROPERTY REFERENCE NO.: 14-1N-31-1004-001-004 

PROJECT ADDRESS: 300 Highway 95-A 

FUTURE LAND USE: I, Industrial & MU-6, Mixed-Use 6 

COMMISSIONER DISTRICT: 5 

BCC MEETING DATE: February 3, 2011 

II. REQUESTED ACTION:   REZONE 

FROM: VM-1, Villages Mixed 
Residential/Commercial District 
(gross density for residential uses 
4 du/per acre) 

TO: GBD, Gateway Business District 

III. RELEVANT AUTHORITY: 
(1) Escambia County Comprehensive Plan 
(2) Escambia County Land Development Code 
(3) Board of County Commissioners of Brevard County v. Snyder, 

627 So. 2d 469 (Fla. 1993) 
(4) Resolution 96-34 (Quasi-judicial Proceedings) 
(5) Resolution 96-13 (Ex-parte Communications) 
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January 10, 2011 Planning Board Hearing 
Page 2 of 5 

CRITERION (1) 
Consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 
Whether the proposed amendment is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 

Comprehensive Plan Policy (CPP) 7.A.4.7 h.  The industrial category provides for and 
allows intensive industrial development and uses and ancillary commercial uses and 
provides protection for such uses from adjacent or nearby properties. It is the intent of this 
policy to create protected industrial areas to facilitate the continued industrial operations 
within the county and provide jobs and employment security for present and future residents 
of the county. The intensity of use for lands within this category shall be defined by limiting 
the maximum amount of impervious surface to 85 percent and a floor area ratio of 1.1. Also, 
the height, area and bulk restrictions contained within the county's zoning ordinance will 
further limit and restrict the intensity of use. 

CPP 7.A.4.7.f.6. The MU-6 category provides for a complimentary mix of agricultural, 
residential, commercial and industrial uses while promoting infill development and the 
separation of urban and rural land uses. Allowable uses within this subset include all types 
of residential uses; clustered developments away from prime farmland and wetlands; 
compatible neighborhood uses; planned neighborhood commercial centers; planned 
business developments; industrial uses that are compatible with adjacent and nearby uses; 
religious, medical and educational facilities; public utilities and facilities; and recreational 
uses. 

FINDINGS 
The proposed amendment is consistent with the intent and purpose of Future Land 
Use categories Industrial and MU-6.  Approximately, 15% of the total acreage of the 
subject property is Industrial which allows for the commercial and industrial uses 
permitted in the proposed GBD zoning district.  The remaining acreage is MU-6 which 
also allows for a mix of commercial and industrial uses. 

CRITERION (2) 
Consistent with this Code. 
Whether the proposed amendment is in conflict with any portion of this Code, and is 
consistent with the stated purpose and intent of this Code.  

LDC 6.05.27. VM-1 villages mixed residential/commercial district.   
Gross density for residential uses (four units per acre). 

Maximum area for commercial uses (6,000 square feet for retail/service unless a planned 
neighborhood center). 

A.   Intent and purpose of district.  Mixed residential/neighborhood commercial district 
allowing neighborhood commercial uses within single-family and multifamily residential 
areas. "Planned neighborhood commercial centers" which meet specific development 
criteria are permitted. Multifamily uses include duplexes, quadraplexes, townhouses, and 
patio homes, but do not include other apartment structures. No minimum lot size for new 
subdivisions, but development must meet overall density requirements.   
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All neighborhood commercial (VM-1) development, redevelopment, or expansion must be 
consistent with the locational criteria in the Comprehensive Plan (Policies 7.A.4.13 and 
8.A.1.13) and in article 7. Refer to article 11 for uses and densities allowed in VM-1, villages 
mixed residential/neighborhood commercial areas located in the Airport/Airfield Environs. 
Structures within Airport/Airfield Environs, Zones, and Surfaces remain subject to the height 
definitions, height restrictions, and methods of height calculation set forth in article 11. 

B.   Permitted uses.     
1. Single- and multiple-family uses permitted in V-1, V-2, V-3 or V-4 districts, except as 

noted above. 
2. Professional offices including but not limited to those of architects, engineers, 

lawyers, tax consultants, accountants and medical and dental clinics, real estate and 
insurance offices. 

3. Planned neighborhood centers containing neighborhood retail sales and services 
with maximum square footage of 35,000. 

4. Neighborhood retail sales and services listed below (gross floor area of building not 
to exceed 6,000 square feet unless in a planned neighborhood center). No 
permanent outside storage allowed. 
a. Food and drugstores. 
b. Personal service shops. 
c. Clothing and dry goods store. 
d. Specialty shops. 
e. Banks and financial institutions. 
f. Bakeries, whose products are made and sold at retail on the premises. 
g. Florists shops provided that products are displayed and sold wholly within an 

enclosed building. 
h. Health clubs, spa and exercise centers. 
i. Studio for the arts. 
j. Martial arts studios. 
k. Bicycle sales and mechanical services. 
l. Other retail/service uses of similar type and character of those listed herein. 

5. Laundromats and dry cleaners (gross floor area not to exceed 4,000 square feet). 
6. Restaurants. 
7. Automobile service stations (no outside storage, minor repair only). 
8. Appliance repair shops (no outside storage or work permitted). 
9. Public utility and service structures. 
10. Places of worship and educational facilities/institutions. 
11. Reclamation of borrow pits that existed prior to September 16, 2004 (subject to local 

permit and development review requirements per Escambia County Code of 
Ordinances, Part I, Chapter 42, article VIII, and performance standards in Part III, the 
Land Development Code, article 7). 

12. Other uses which are similar or compatible to the uses permitted herein that would 
promote the intent and purposes of this district. Determination on other permitted 
uses shall be made by the planning board (LPA). 

LDC 6.05.29. GBD--Gateway business district.     
A.   Intent and purpose of district.  The district is intended to enhance specific segments of 
the US 29 and SR 97 corridor as a visually attractive, well planned business communities. 
To accomplish this purpose, stringent site development standards established adequate 
setbacks, landscaping, and buffering.   
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These districts are characterized by community-serving commercial uses located adjacent to 
or in immediate proximity to the US 29 corridor and in immediate proximity to SR 97 at the 
Alabama-Florida state line. 

C-2 type distribution, manufacturing, fabrication and assembly-type operations which are 
completely enclosed within the confines of a building are permitted when located within a 
planned business development. Outside storage is permitted when screened. Such 
treatment is appropriate to protect nearby residential areas from the incompatible impacts of 
more intense uses such as noise, odors, truck traffic, glare, and visual blight.  

B.   Permitted uses.     
1. C-1 and C-2 type uses with conditions noted above. 
2. Planned business developments. 
3. Reclamation of borrow pits that existed prior to September 16, 2004 (subject to local 

permit and development review requirements per Escambia County Code of 
Ordinances, Part I, Chapter 42, article VIII, and performance standards in Part III, the 
Land Development Code, article 7). 

LDC 7.20.03.D. Zoning District Exemptions.  When a property is located within the GBD 
zoning district, new commercial uses are not required to meet the roadway requirements of 
the locational criteria.  Although an exemption to the roadway requirement may be granted 
by the Planning Board, the property will still be required to meet all of the other performance 
standards for the zoning district.  The additional landscaping, buffering, and site 
development standards cannot be waived without obtaining a variance from the board of 
adjustment (BOA). 

LDC 7.01.06.A.3. Buffering between zoning districts and uses. GBD districts, where they 
are adjacent to single-family or two-family districts (V-1, VR-1), require a buffer. 

FINDINGS 
The proposed amendment is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Land 
Development Code.  The Gateway Business District is intended to provide 
commercial C-1 and C-2 type uses within in the area of Highway 29, provided all 
conditions stated in LDC 6.05.29. are met.  The Planning Board may grant an 
exemption to locational cirtieria as stated in LDC 7.20.03.D. 
Further review from the Development Review Committee (DRC) will be needed to 
ensure the buffering requirements and other performance standards for the GBD 
zoning district have been met, should this amendment be granted. 

CRITERION (3) 
Compatible with surrounding uses. 
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment is compatible with 
existing and proposed uses in the area of the subject property(s). 

FINDINGS 
The proposed amendment is compatible with surrounding existing uses in the area. 
Within the 500’ radius impact area, staff observed approximately 51 parcels 
(excluding the subject parcel) with zoning districts of V-1, V-3, VR-1, ID-2 and GBD.  

GMR: 02-03-11 Rezoning Case Z-2011-01 Attachment Page 11 of 42



Findings-of-Fact – Z-2011-01 
January 10, 2011 Planning Board Hearing 
Page 5 of 5 

There are 37 single-family residences, one church, one gas station, one office, one 
bank, one parcel with offices and a pizza shop, eight vacant parcels, and a borrow 
pit. 

CRITERION (4) 
Changed conditions. 
Whether and the extent to which there are any changed conditions that impact the 
amendment or property(s). 

FINDINGS 
Staff found no changed conditions that would impact the amendment or property(s). 

CRITERION (5) 
Effect on natural environment. 
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in significant 
adverse impacts on the natural environment. 

FINDINGS 
According to the National Wetland Inventory, wetlands and hydric soils were 
indicated on eastern portion of the subject property. When applicable, further review 
during the Development Review Committee (DRC) process will be necessary to 
determine if there would be any significant adverse impact on the natural 
environment. 

CRITERION (6) 
Development patterns. 
Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would result in a logical 
and orderly development pattern. 

FINDINGS 
The proposed amendment, GBD, would result in a logical and orderly development 
pattern because of the parcel’s proximity to Highway 29 and existing GBD zoning 
districts within the impact area.  The stringent site development standards 
established for the GBD zoning district protects the adjacent residential uses from 
the impacts of commercial type uses GBD permits. 

Note: The above technical comments and conclusion are based upon the information 
available to Staff prior to the public hearing; the public hearing testimony may reveal 
additional technical information. 
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RECEIPT

Development Services

1190 W. Leonard St.

Pensacola, Florida, 32505

(850) 595-3475

Building Inspections Division

3300 N. Pace Blvd. Suite 300

Pensacola, Florida, 32505

(850) 595-3550

Molino Office - (850) 587-5770

VHOWENSCashier ID :

12/02/2010Date Issued. : 521645Receipt No. :

Application No. : PRZ101200014

Project Name : Z-2011-01

Method of Payment Reference Document Amount Paid Comment

PAYMENT INFO

Check

$1,500.0010415 App ID : PRZ101200014

$1,500.00 Total Check

Received From :

Total Receipt Amount :

Change Due :

UNIVERSAL FABRICATORS INC / BUDDY PAGE

$1,500.00

$0.00

Job AddressBalanceInvoice AmtInvoice #Application #

APPLICATION INFO

300  HWY 95-A S , CANTONMENT, FL, 32533PRZ101200014  615722 $0.00 1,500.00

Total Amount : $0.00
Balance Due on this/these 

Application(s) as of 12/9/2010
 1,500.00

Page 1 of 1Receipt.rpt
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INTERNATIONAL PAPER COMPANY 
PO BOX 2118  
MEMPHIS  TN 38101 
 

 BAPTIST HOSPITAL INC 
1000 W MORENO ST  
PENSACOLA  FL 32501 
 

 CARTER GREGORY S & MELISSA A 
3030 WOODBURY CIR  
CANTONMENT  FL 32533 
 

HICKS BRANDY L 
1003 WOODBURY PL  
CANTONMENT  FL 32533 
 

 BERMEJO LEOBARDO D 
99 BROADWAY  
GREENLAWN  NY 11740 
 

 TAYLOR JOHN E & 
1007 WOODBURY PL  
CANTONMENT  FL 32533 
 

MOYE FRANK J JR 
1009 WOODBURY PL  
CANTONMENT  FL 32533 
 

 FRAY ERIC E 
1011 WOODBURY PL  
CANTONMENT  FL 32533 
 

 LOVINS PATRICIA C 
1013 WOODBURY PL  
CANTONMENT  FL 32533 
 

ARNETTE DAVID A & KORINE 
1015 WOODBURY PL  
CANTONMENT  FL 32533 
 

 WARD CHARLES & 
1017 WOODBURY PL  
CANTONMENT  FL 32533 
 

 KNUTSON ALLEN D & ALICE C 
3808 CRABTREE CHUCH RD  
MOLINO  FL 32577 
 

DUPLESSIS LIONEL M JR 
1021 WOODBURY PL  
CANTONMENT  FL 32533 
 

 GRIGGERS JOHN C 
1023 WOODBURY PL  
CANTONMENT  FL 32533 
 

 LEWIS JO ANNE B 
3010 WOODBURY CIR  
CANTONMENT  FL 32533 
 

GING MARY A LIFE EST 
311 HWY 95-A SOUTH  
CANTONMENT  FL 32533 
 

 LAND SERVICES OF FLA LLC 
4770 PEACOCK DR  
PENSACOLA  FL 32504 
 

 C S X TRANSPORTATION INC 
C/O TAX DEPT FAMILY LRS  
500 WATER ST # C910  
JACKSONVILLE  FL 32202-4423 
 

HEATH CURTIS EUGENE 
3020 WOODBURY CIR  
CANTONMENT  FL 32533 
 

 LEWIS JOANNE BENEVENTI 
3010 WOODBURY CIR  
CANTONMENT  FL 32533 
 

 CASEY JOHN W 
3016 WOODBURY CIR  
CANTONMENT  FL 32533 
 

ROADS INC OF NWF 
106 STONE BLVD  
CANTONMENT  FL 32533 
 

 TWOMAYS PROPERTY INC 
PO BOX 517  
GULF BREEZE  FL 32562 
 

 EVERGREEN TRANSPORTATION INC 
PO DRAWER 727  
EVERGREEN  AL 36401 
 

MARCHANT RICK & NORMA 
101 COUNTRI LN  
CANTONMENT  FL 32533 
 

 JUNIOR FOOD STORES OF WEST 
FLORIDA INC 
619 8TH AVE  
CRESTVIEW  FL 325360847 
 

 RBC BANK 
3201 BEECHLEAF CT SUITE 700  
RALEIGH  NC 27604 
 

BARRETT CHRISTINE A 
103 COUNTRI LN  
CANTONMENT  FL 32533 
 

 DAY RONALD E & BARBARA A 
105 COUNTRI LN  
CANTONMENT  FL 32533 
 

 HUELSBECK DORA M 
109 COUNTRI LN  
CANTONMENT  FL 32533 
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HAMMON JOHN E & GERLINDE S 
111 COUNTRI LN  
CANTONMENT  FL 32533 
 

 WEINMAN BOBBY L 
PO BOX 185  
CANTONMENT  FL 32533 
 

 HAMMOCK TROY S & GAYLAN W 
115 COUNTRI LN  
CANTONMENT  FL 32533 
 

HUELSBECK JOHN W JR & 
121 COUNTRI LN  
CANTONMENT  FL 32533 
 

 HICKS JAMES E & CAROL L 
119 COUNTRI LN  
CANTONMENT  FL 32533 
 

 JINRIGHT JEFFERY W 
PO BOX 790  
CANTONMENT  FL 32533 
 

BOREN GEORGE W III 
123 COUNTRI LN  
CANTONMENT  FL 32533 
 

 BROWN PAUL M & BETTY 
112 COUNTRI LN  
CANTONMENT  FL 32533 
 

 FERRIS ROY & CARMEN 
117 COUNTRI LN  
CANTONMENT  FL 32533 
 

SMITH BILL R JR & JOHANNA E 
118 COUNTRI LN  
CANTONMENT  FL 32533 
 

 ENGLISH MYRTLE R L & 
122 COUNTRI LN  
CANTONMENT  FL 325339391 
 

 BRANHAM BRENDA J 
120 COUNTRI LN  
CANTONMENT  FL 325339391 
 

CLIFFORD MARYE C 
106 COUNTRI LANE  
CANTONMENT  FL 32533 
 

 BURT CHARLZA BOREN 
116 COUNTRI LN  
CANTONMENT  FL 32533 
 

 BURT BILLY 
116 COUNTRI LN  
CANTONMENT  FL 32533 
 

PALMER DOUGLAS A & AUDREY L 
TRUSTEES 
108 COUNTRI LN  
CANTONMENT  FL 325339391 
 

 WIGGINS DEVELOPMENTS INC 
PO BOX 537  
LILLIAN  AL 36549 
 

 SAWYER RANDALL & MIRIAM 
104 COUNTRI LN  
CANTONMENT  FL 32533 
 

MOULTON PROPERTIES INC 
PO BOX 12524  
PENSACOLA  FL 325912524 
 

 WILEY C. “BUDDY” PAGE 
5337 HAMILTON LN 
PACE FL 32572 

 UNIVERSAL FABRICATORS, INC 
2898 OLD CHEMSTRAND RD 
PENSACOLA FL 32533 

500-ft radius mailing list obtained from the Escambia County Property Appraiser website (www.escpa.org) 
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ECPA Map 

 

PLEASE NOTE: This product has been compiled from the source data of the Inter-Local Mapping and Geographic Information Network 
(IMAGINE) project of Escambia County. The ESCAMBIA COUNTY PROPERTY APPRAISER I-MAP Service is for reference purposes only and not 
to be considered as a legal document or survey instrument. Relying on the information contained herein is at the user's own risk. We assume 
no liability for any use of the information contained in the I-MAP Service or any resultant loss. 

Map Grid

Major Roads

County Road

InterState

State Road

US Highway

All Roads

Property Line

Page 1 of 1ECPA Map
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    Public Hearing    Item #:  2.     
Growth Management Report
Date: 02/03/2011  

Issue: 5:45 p.m. – Public Hearing – Amendment to the Official Zoning Map 
From: T. Lloyd Kerr, AICP
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
That the Board adopt an Ordinance to amend the Official Zoning Map to include the rezoning
case heard by the Planning Board on January 10, 2011 and approved during the previous
agenda item and to provide for severability, inclusion in the code, and an effective date.

BACKGROUND:
Rezoning case Z-2011-01 was heard by the Planning Board on January 10, 2011. Under the
Land Development Code (LDC), the Board of County Commissioners reviews the record and the
recommended order of the Planning Board and conducts a Public Hearing for adoption of the
LDC Zoning Map Amendment. 
 
As a means of achieving the Board’s goal of “decreasing response time from notification of
citizen needs to ultimate resolution,” the Board is acting on both the approval of the Planning
Board’s recommendation and the LDC Map Amendment for this month’s rezoning cases.
The previous report item addresses the Board’s determination regarding the Planning Board’s
recommendation. This report item addresses only the Public Hearing and adoption of the
Ordinance amending the LDC Official Zoning Map.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impacts are expected as a result of the recommended Board action.
 

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
A copy of the standardized Ordinance has initially been provided to the County Attorney’s office
for review regarding compliance with rezoning requirements in Florida Statutes and the Land
Development Code.
 

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are anticipated for the implementation of this recommended Board
action.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The Board Chairman will need to sign the Ordinance to amend the Official Zoning Map.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:



This Ordinance, amending the Land Development Code Official Zoning Map, will be filed with
the Department of State following adoption by the Board.
 
This Ordinance is coordinated with the County Attorney’s Office, the Development Services
Bureau and interested citizens. The Development Services Bureau will ensure proper
advertisement.

Attachments
Draft Map Ordinance



DRAFT 

1 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2011-______ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING PART III OF THE 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES (1999), THE LAND 
DEVELOPMENT CODE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS 
AMENDED; AMENDING ARTICLE 6, SECTION 6.02.00, THE OFFICIAL 
ZONING MAP; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR 
INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA: 
 
Section 1. Purpose and Intent. 

The Official Zoning Map of Escambia County, Florida, as adopted by reference and 
codified in Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances (1999), the Land 
Development Code of Escambia County, Florida, as amended:  Article 6, Section 
6.02.00, and all notations, references and information shown thereon as it relates to the 
following described real property in Escambia County, Florida, is hereby amended as 
follows. 
 

Case No.: Z-2011-01 
Location: 300 Highway 95-A 
Property Reference No.:  14-1N-31-1004-001-004 
Property Size: 13.3 (+/-) acres 
From: VM-1, Villages Mixed 

Residential/Commercial District (gross 
density for residential uses 4 du/per acre) 

To: GBD, Gateway Business District 
FLU Category: I, Industrial & MU-6, Mixed Use 6 

 

Section 2. Severability. 

If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional by any court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way 
affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 

Section 3. Inclusion in Code. 

It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of this 
Ordinance shall be codified as required by F.S. § 125.68 (2010); and that the sections, 
subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered 
and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section,” “article,” or such other 
appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions. 



DRAFT 

2 

Section 4. Effective Date. 

This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing with the Department of State. 

DONE AND ENACTED by the Board of County Commissioners of  

Escambia County Florida, this ________day of __________________, 2011. 
 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
        ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 
____________________________ 

Kevin W. White, Chairman 
 
ATTEST:  ERNIE LEE MAGAHA 
       CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT 
 
                ____________________________ 
                                  Deputy Clerk 
 
(SEAL) 
 
 
ENACTED: 
 
FILED WITH DEPARTMENT OF STATE: 
 
EFFECTIVE DATE:   



    Public Hearing    Item #:  3.     
Growth Management Report
Date: 02/03/2011  

Issue: 5:46 p.m. – Public Hearing – LDC Ordinance – Articles 3 & 6 “Wind Turbines”
From: T. Lloyd Kerr, AICP
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
That the Board review and approve an Ordinance to the Land Development Code (LDC)
amending Article 3 “Definitions,” to define “small wind energy systems” and “wind turbines”; and
amending Article 6 “Zoning Districts,” to add such structures as an allowable accessory use,
provided all standards are met.

BACKGROUND:
At the February 8, 2010 Planning Board meeting, local business professionals conducted a
presentation requesting a County LDC Ordinance to permit wind turbines throughout the
unincorporated areas of the County. The small wind energy systems and wind turbines
Ordinance has been drafted in response to the local interest.

Although Florida compares poorly with other states in its wind energy potential, the combination
of improved generator technology, more financial incentives, rising electric rates, global warming
and energy security concerns, and laws requiring utilities to buy back extra power have all
combined to increase the chances for small wind power systems to be proposed in unlikely
places – including Escambia County. However, unless addressed by local development
regulations, the greatest market challenge for small wind energy use may be political and
regulatory.

And, while it would be in the best interest of the small wind industry and their customers to
exercise good judgment in the placement of wind turbines, fundamentally it is topography and
the wind itself that largely determine where and how high a turbine must be installed. So, if a
small wind system is proposed within the county, land development regulations must be
prepared to properly address it. To that end, the proposed Ordinance is based on best practices
for local government to balance the interests of property owners and the community. Many of
the practices have been identified by the American Wind Energy Association (AWEA), a national
trade group representing many interests involved in the wind industry.

The Planning Board reviewed and approved an Ordinance defining small wind energy systems
and wind turbines at the June 14, 2010 meeting. At the BCC agenda review, an interested
citizen requested changes to be made to the Ordinance. The Board remanded the Ordinance
back to the Planning Board for further discussion and approval of a revised Ordinance. The
Planning Board held a subsequent public discussion on the Ordinance and requested that staff
and the interested parties to meet and draft an Ordinance to meet the needs of each party. Staff
and the interested parties have met and have revised the Ordinance for the Planning Board’s
recommended approval to the BCC.



The Planning Board reviewed and recommended approval of the Ordinance at the December
13, 2010 meeting.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
No budgetary impact is anticipated by the adoption of this Ordinance.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The attached Ordinance was reviewed and approved for legal sufficiency by Stephen West,
Assistant County Attorney. Any suggested legal comments are attached herein with the
respective Ordinance to which they pertain.

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are required for implementation of this Ordinance.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The proposed Ordinance is consistent with the Board’s goal “to increase citizen involvement in,
access to, and approval of, County government activities.”

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Implementation of this Ordinance will consist of an amendment to the LDC and distribution of a
copy of the adopted Ordinance to interested citizens and staff.

The proposed Ordinance was prepared in cooperation with the Development Services Bureau,
the County Attorney’s Office and all interested citizens. The Development Services Bureau will
ensure proper advertisement.

Attachments
Legal Approval; Ordinance Draft 3A; Ordinance (clean copy); Back-Up Material; PB Summary
Minutes



 
 
 
 

Articles 3 & 6 ‘Wind Turbines’ 
 

LDC Ordinance 
 

Legal Approval 
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LEGAL REVIEW

(COUNTY DEPARTMENT USE ONLY)

Art. 3 & 6 'Wind Turbines' LDC Ordinance Draft 3A
Document:

Date: 01/18/11

Date requested back by: 01/19/11

David Forte
Requested by:

... .. . 595-3470
Phone Number:

{LEGAL USE ONLY)

Legal Review by ( hill)

Date Received: - // Z°

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency.

Not approved.

Make subject to legal signoff.

Additional comments:
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Ordinance Draft 3A 
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  DRAFT 

BCC 02-03-11 
RE: Art. 3 & 6 Wind Turbines 
Ordinance Draft 3A Page 1 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2011-____ 1 
 2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 3 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING PART III OF THE 4 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES (1999), THE LAND 5 
DEVELOPMENT CODE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS 6 
AMENDED; AMENDING ARTICLE 3, SECTION 3.02.00., TO DEFINE 7 
“SMALL WIND ENERGY SYSTEM” AND “WIND TURBINE”; 8 
AMENDING ARTICLE 6, SECTION 6.03.01., TO ADD SMALL WIND 9 
ENERGY SYSTEMS AS AN ACCESSORY USE PROVIDED ALL 10 
STANDARDS ARE MET; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 11 
PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR AN 12 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 13 

 14 

 WHEREAS, the intent of this Ordinance is to define “small wind energy systems” 15 
and “wind turbines” and add small wind energy systems as an accessory use. 16 

 17 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 18 
COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA: 19 
 20 

Section 1. Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land Development 21 
Code of Escambia County, Article 3, Section 3.02.00, is hereby amended as follows: 22 
 23 
3.02.00. Terms defined. 24 
 25 

Small wind energy system. A wind energy conversion system consisting of a wind 26 

turbine, structural support, and associated control or conversion electronics designed to 27 
supply some of the on-site electrical power demands of a home, farm, or small 28 
business. The turbine may be roof or tower mounted and may supply excess power to 29 
the servicing electric utility through net metering. 30 
 31 

Wind turbine. The generator, rotor blades, and other mechanical and electrical 32 

components mounted on a structure for the purpose of converting wind energy to 33 
electrical energy. 34 
 35 

Section 2. Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land Development 36 
Code of Escambia County, Article 6, Section 6.03.01., is hereby amended to read as 37 
follows: 38 
 39 

6.03.01. Accessory uses. Activities or uses customarily associated with and 40 
appropriately incidental and subordinate to the principal use when located on the same 41 
lot as such principal use shall be considered an accessory use and shall adhere to the 42 
conditions set forth in this section. Such accessory uses shall be controlled in the same 43 

manner as the principal use within the district where such uses are located, except as 44 
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  DRAFT 

BCC 02-03-11 
RE: Art. 3 & 6 Wind Turbines 
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otherwise provided in section 2.10.060. Accessory uses include, but are not limited to, 1 

the following: 2 
 3 

H. Small wind energy systems. A small wind energy system is an accessory use which 4 

shall meet the following standards: 5 
 6 
 1. System Height. The height of the system is the minimum necessary to reliably 7 
 provide the required power. 8 

 9 

 2. Prohibited use. To protect the unique scenic view, the installation of systems is 10 
 prohibited within the Scenic Highway Overlay District. 11 
 12 

 3. Airport and Navy review. The installation of a system or additional turbine 13 

 within the Pensacola Gulf Coast Regional Airport Planning District (PNSPD) or 14 
 any Navy Airfield Influence Planning District (AIPD) shall require applicant 15 
 notification to and response from the respective airport/ airfield authority. If the 16 
 authority has objections to the installation, the Planning Official shall consider 17 
 them in a final determination and may impose approval conditions on the 18 
 installation to address the objections. 19 
 20 

4. Setback. The center of a system tower base shall be no closer to any part of a 21 
dwelling outside of the system installation parcel than the total height of the 22 
system. Additionally, no part of a system structure, including any guy wires or 23 
anchors, shall be closer than five feet to the property boundary of the installation 24 
parcel. 25 

 26 

5. Appearance. 27 
 28 

a. Design and Location. Towers shall be designed and located to minimize 29 
visual impacts. Colors and surface treatment of system components shall 30 
minimize visual distraction. 31 

 32 

b. Signs. Signs on system components shall be limited to the manufacturer’s 33 
or installer’s identification and appropriate warnings. 34 

 35 

c. Lighting. System structures shall not be lighted, except to the extent 36 

required by the Federal Aviation Administration or other applicable authority. 37 
 38 

 39 

INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 40 

 41 
 42 
 43 
 44 
 45 
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Section 3. Severability. 1 
 2 

If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 3 
unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way 4 
affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 5 
 6 

Section 4. Inclusion in Code. 7 
 8 

It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of this 9 
Ordinance shall be codified as required by F.S. § 125.68 (2011); and that the sections, 10 
subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered 11 
and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section,” “article,” or such other 12 
appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions. 13 
 14 

Section 5. Effective Date. 15 
 16 

This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing with the Department of State. 17 
 18 

DONE AND ENACTED this_____ day of ______________, 2011. 19 
 20 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 21 
OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 22 

 23 

By: _______________________________ 24 

Kevin W. White, Chairman 25 
 26 

ATTEST:  ERNIE LEE MAGAHA 27 
  Clerk of the Circuit Court 28 
 29 

  By: __________________________ 30 
   Deputy Clerk 31 
 32 
(SEAL) 33 
 34 

ENACTED: 35 
 36 

FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE: 37 
 38 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 39 

 40 
 41 
H:\DEV SRVCS\PRO-000 Projects\LDC Ordinances\Art. 3 & 6 Wind Turbines\BCC 02-03-11\Ordinance Draft 3A.doc 42 
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1 
 

ORDINANCE NUMBER 2011-____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AMENDING PART III OF THE 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES (1999), THE LAND 
DEVELOPMENT CODE OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS 
AMENDED; AMENDING ARTICLE 3, SECTION 3.02.00., TO DEFINE 
“SMALL WIND ENERGY SYSTEM” AND “WIND TURBINE”; 
AMENDING ARTICLE 6, SECTION 6.03.01., TO ADD SMALL WIND 
ENERGY SYSTEMS AS AN ACCESSORY USE PROVIDED ALL 
STANDARDS ARE MET; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; 
PROVIDING FOR INCLUSION IN THE CODE; PROVIDING FOR AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 

 WHEREAS, the intent of this Ordinance is to define “small wind energy systems” 
and “wind turbines” and add small wind energy systems as an accessory use. 
 
 NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COUNTY 
COMMISSIONERS OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA: 
 

Section 1. Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land Development 
Code of Escambia County, Article 3, Section 3.02.00, is hereby amended as follows: 
 
3.02.00. Terms defined. 
 

Small wind energy system. A wind energy conversion system consisting of a wind 
turbine, structural support, and associated control or conversion electronics designed to 
supply some of the on-site electrical power demands of a home, farm, or small 
business. The turbine may be roof or tower mounted and may supply excess power to 
the servicing electric utility through net metering. 
 

Wind turbine. The generator, rotor blades, and other mechanical and electrical 
components mounted on a structure for the purpose of converting wind energy to 
electrical energy. 
 

Section 2. Part III of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances, the Land Development 
Code of Escambia County, Article 6, Section 6.03.01., is hereby amended to read as 
follows: 
 

6.03.01. Accessory uses. Activities or uses customarily associated with and 
appropriately incidental and subordinate to the principal use when located on the same 
lot as such principal use shall be considered an accessory use and shall adhere to the 
conditions set forth in this section. Such accessory uses shall be controlled in the same 
manner as the principal use within the district where such uses are located, except as 
otherwise provided in section 2.10.060. Accessory uses include, but are not limited to, 
the following: 
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H. Small wind energy systems. A small wind energy system is an accessory use which 
shall meet the following standards: 
 
 1. System Height. The height of the system is the minimum necessary to reliably 
 provide the required power. 

 

 2. Prohibited use. To protect the unique scenic view, the installation of systems is 
 prohibited within the Scenic Highway Overlay District. 
 

 3. Airport and Navy review. The installation of a system or additional turbine 
 within the Pensacola Gulf Coast Regional Airport Planning District (PNSPD) or 
 any Navy Airfield Influence Planning District (AIPD) shall require applicant 
 notification to and response from the respective airport/ airfield authority. If the 
 authority has objections to the installation, the Planning Official shall consider 
 them in a final determination and may impose approval conditions on the 
 installation to address the objections. 
 

4. Setback. The center of a system tower base shall be no closer to any part of a 
dwelling outside of the system installation parcel than the total height of the 
system. Additionally, no part of a system structure, including any guy wires or 
anchors, shall be closer than five feet to the property boundary of the installation 
parcel. 

 

5. Appearance. 
 

a. Design and Location. Towers shall be designed and located to minimize 
visual impacts. Colors and surface treatment of system components shall 
minimize visual distraction. 

 

b. Signs. Signs on system components shall be limited to the manufacturer’s 
or installer’s identification and appropriate warnings. 

 

c. Lighting. System structures shall not be lighted, except to the extent 
required by the Federal Aviation Administration or other applicable authority. 

 

 
INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK 
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Section 3. Severability. 
 

If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is held to be invalid or 
unconstitutional by any Court of competent jurisdiction, then said holding shall in no way 
affect the validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 
 

Section 4. Inclusion in Code. 
 

It is the intention of the Board of County Commissioners that the provisions of this 
Ordinance shall be codified as required by F.S. § 125.68 (2011); and that the sections, 
subsections and other provisions of this Ordinance may be renumbered or re-lettered 
and the word “ordinance” may be changed to “section,” “article,” or such other 
appropriate word or phrase in order to accomplish such intentions. 
 

Section 5. Effective Date. 
 

This Ordinance shall become effective upon filing with the Department of State. 
 

DONE AND ENACTED this_____ day of ______________, 2011. 
 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 

 

By: _______________________________ 
Kevin W. White, Chairman 

 
ATTEST:  ERNIE LEE MAGAHA 
  Clerk of the Circuit Court 
 

  By: __________________________ 
   Deputy Clerk 
 
(SEAL) 
 

ENACTED: 
 

FILED WITH THE DEPARTMENT OF STATE: 
 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 
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Current Zoning District Height Limits 
 

AG No height limit except for specifically listed uses (ex. commercial communication 
towers limited to 150’) 

RR  No height limit 
AMU-1  Residential: no structure > 35’; commercial: per airport/airfield limits 
AMU-2  Residential: no structure > 35’; commercial: per airport/airfield limits 
R-1  Building height: mean average roof height not > 45’ above average grade 
R-1 PK  Building height: no building > 35’ above habitable first floor 
R-2   Building height: mean average roof height not > 45’ above average grade 
R-2 PK Building height: no building > 4 stories, or 2 stories less than an adjacent 

structure more than 4 stories on 6-1-97 
R-3 Building height: mean average roof height not > 45’ above average grade 
R-3 PK Building height: no building > 8 stories, or 2 stories less than an adjacent 

structure more than 8 stories on 6-1-97 
R-4 Building height: no building > 95’ 
R-5 Building height: no building > 12 stories or > 120’ 
R-6 Building height: no building > 12 stories or > 120’ 
C-1 Residential: no building > 12 stories or > 120’; non-residential: conditional use for 

any use > 120 feet, except commercial communication towers allowed up to 150’ 
C-1 PK Building height: no building > 4 stories 
CCPK Building height: no building > 18 stories + 2 additional stories for parking and/or 

storage 
CGPK Building height: no building > 10 stories 
PRPK Building height: no building > 10 stories 
C-2 Residential: no building > 12 stories or > 120’; non-residential: conditional use for 

any use > 120 feet, except commercial communication towers allowed up to 150’ 
ID-CP Building height: no building > 65’; commercial communication towers allowed up 

to 150’ 
ID-1 Building height: no building > 90’; commercial communication towers allowed up 

to 150’ 
ID-2 Building height: no building > 120’; commercial communication towers allowed up 

to 150’ 
S-1 No height limit 
SDD No height limit 
VAG-1, 2 No height limit except commercial communication towers up to 150’ 
VR-1, 2, 3 No height limit 
V-1, 2, 2A, 3 Building height: mean average roof height not > 45’ above average grade 
V-4, 5 Building height: mean average roof height not > 45’ above average grade 
VM-1, 2 Building height: mean average roof height not > 45’ above average grade 
GBD Building height: mean average roof height not > 45’ above average grade, except 

commercial communication towers allowed up to 150’ 
GID Building height: no building > 35’, except commercial communication towers 

allowed up to 150’ 
GMD Building height: mean average roof height not > 45’ above average grade, except 

commercial communication towers allowed up to 150’ 
P  Conditional use for any use > 120 feet, except commercial communication towers 

allowed up to 150’ 
WMU No building or structure > 100’ 
 
Pensacola Beach low and medium density districts: no structure > 45’ 
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In the Public Interest
How and Why to Permit 
for Small Wind Systems

A Guide for State and Local Governments

American Wind Energy Association 
September 2008
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A Guide for State and Local Governments

IN T H E PU B L I C IN T E R E S T:
HO W A N D WH Y T O PE R M I T

F O R SM A L L WI N D SY S T E M S

The greatest challenges to small-scale renewable energy are not
technical, but rather financial, political, and regulatory. Confusing,
inconsistent or even absent permitting processes discourage the
very people a forward-thinking community would want to enable:
those with the motivation and resources to generate their own
clean electricity.  

Small wind turbines allow homeowners, farmers, small business
owners, and public facilities to generate their own clean, safe, 
and reliable energy for on-site use. Though thousands of towns
and counties already do, many have not yet included small wind
systems in their zoning codes to allow their use. The reason is
often no more than a lack of familiarity with the technology,
resulting in overabundant care to avoid setting a controversial
precedent. This often renders the permitting process the single
most daunting obstacle for would-be consumers and prevents
the installation - and associated public benefits - of thousands 
of small wind systems. 

The good news is this is easy to fix. Making the permitting process
affordable, streamlined, and accountable is in the best interest of
the consumer, environment, and community. This guide explains
why, and identifies best practices for local governments to balance
the interests of property owners and the community.

Ron Stimmel
September 2008

American Wind Energy Association
rstimmel@awea.org
(202) 383-2546

"We ought to have 
a law that allows
homeowners and 

small business people
to put up photovoltaic
generators and small

windmills and any 
other new sources of

widely distributed
generation that they 
can come up with." 

- Al Gore,  
March 19, 2007

CNN Glenn Beck Show  

"Bad zoning not only
scares away potential

customers, but also
dealers - the local 

small businesses that
distribute, install,

and maintain small 
wind systems." 

- Mike Bergey, 
Bergey WindPower Co.

"Planners can encourage
efficient energy use,

diversification of energy
supply, and emissions

reductions through their
influence over the built

and natural environments 
- including both where
and how we build, and

where and how we
preserve open spaces." 
- American Planning

Association.  
Planning and Climate

Change: Mitigation and
Clean Energy Strategies.

www.planning.org/
energy/index.htm
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American Wind Energy Association

www.awea.org/smallwind
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What Are Small Wind Turbines?

A small wind turbine is a device that
produces electricity from wind. Moving
air causes the turbine to rotate, which
generates clean, emissions-free energy
that can be used to power a home,
farm, school, or small business.1

Though most small wind turbines look
like a miniaturized, "back yard" version
of the large, utility-scale, three-bladed
turbines, the industry encompasses over
200 different models and they can vary
widely in appearance. A small wind
turbine is technologically advanced but
mechanically simple, with only two or
three moving parts. Most feature three
blades of 2-15 feet in length, a generator
located at the hub, and a tail. The turbine
is mounted on a steel tower 35-140 feet
high, which is designed as a freestanding
monopole (like a street light), a lattice
tower (like a radio tower), or a guyed
monopole (like a street light with

support cables from mid-tower to 
the ground). (See p. 10 for illustration)

Some models eliminate the traditional
propeller-shaped blade design and
instead feature a cylinder-like
component that revolves similarly to a
barbershop pole or corkscrew. Systems
of this configuration are known as
"vertical axis" turbines because the
plane of rotation is perpendicular, or
vertical, to the ground.

The technology has advanced considerably
in the recent years, making small wind
turbines quieter, more reliable, and better
able to blend in with surrounding aesthetics.
A forthcoming (2009) program to certify
small wind turbines to a safety, performance,
sound, and reliability standard will further
promote high performance and increase
consumer confidence.2

1 "Small wind system" encompasses not only the turbine,
but the tower, foundation, and wiring equipment often
necessary for an installation. "Small wind turbine" and
"small wind system" are sometimes used interchangeably. 

2 The Small Wind Certification Council (SWCC) is an 
independent, third-party program that will, upon its          

introduction in 2009, certify small wind
turbines tested  

to a performance, safety, and reliability standard.
Proposed and enacted incentives for small-turbine
consumers at state and federal levels have already
begun to account for this impending program by making
future certification a requisite for eligibility. Other states,
such as California and New York, have incorporated
their own criteria for eligibility into their incentive
programs in order to grant incentives only to products
that meet certain performance and safety conditions.

IN T R O D U C T I O N

Basic parts of a traditional,
Horizontal-Axis 

Small Wind System

Vertical-Axis Turbine

2

Skystream 1.8kW turbine
aesthetic comparison

to lampposts
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Common Applications

On- or Off-Grid…
•  Single-Family Homes
•  Businesses
•  Farms
•  Institutions
•  Schools
•  Government Buildings
•  Industrial Sites
•  Military
•  Communications 

Systems

American Wind Energy Association

www.awea.org/smallwind

How Are They Used?

Tens of thousands of homes, farms, small
businesses, schools, and other institutions
throughout the country use small wind
turbines to lower or eliminate their
electricity bills. Uses are diverse and quite
similar to those of solar photovoltaic
panels. The two technologies are in fact
natural complements (wind resources
are strongest in the winter and spring 
while solar resources are strongest in 
the summer) and are often used together
in hybrid systems.

Some small wind systems connect to the

utility grid while others charge batteries 
for backup power for remote, stand-alone
applications like cabins or even sailboats.
Connecting to the electric grid allows a
turbine owner to use electricity from the
local utility when the wind does not blow,
but also allows any surplus electricity -
energy produced in excess of consumption,
such as when winds are strong and usage
is low - to be sent back into the grid and
used by a neighbor. But unlike large
turbines that power entire cities, small
wind systems are used to produce power
primarily on-site for a single user. 

What Can Neighbors and the Community Expect?

After installation, which takes about
two to 10 days to complete, life with 
a turbine in the neighborhood is largely
uneventful. Visual assimilation of the
new turbine is similar to neighbors
becoming accustomed to a new building
addition, landscaping project, or the
removal of a prominent tree. The best

way to assess the impact is to visit an
actual installation. With approximately
10,000 turbines sold in the U.S. every
year, and in all 50 states, they are
relatively easy to locate. Contact 
a manufacturer or local installer to
see an installation first-hand. (See
www.awea.org/smallwind/smsyslst.html) 

Responsibilities of Turbine Owners

The small wind industry is indeed small,
and every installation potentially affects
public perception of not only small wind
turbines, but of renewable energy as a
whole. Each installation is, in essence,
an ambassador of the industry. It is in
the long-term, self interest of the industry 
and consumers alike that owners exercise
good judgment and courtesy toward their
neighbors and community. Doing so
often includes informing neighbors, in
writing, of a proposed installation and
educating them about potential impacts -
both real and perceived - of a small wind
turbine (see www.awea.org/smallwind/
toolbox2/INSTALL/building_permits.html
for a sample letter to neighbors).

For fundamental reasons though,
topography and the wind itself largely
determine precisely where and how 
high a turbine must be installed.
Sometimes there is no way to avoid
these physical constraints other than
to place or elevate the turbine into a
more aesthetically sensitive place on 
a property. But a turbine owner should
make a deliberate effort to take all
reasonable measures to minimize
impacts on neighboring areas.

"Everybody knows the
good things about using
renewable energy. I
wanted to set an example
down here and perhaps
encourage others to do
the same thing." 
- Small-turbine owner
Chuck Heide, 
Somers, WI

3

0.4 kW turbine
on a sailboat
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Precedent: Commonplace or "Bleeding Edge"?

Understandably, community leaders 
are sometimes hesitant to enact
regulations that appear to be first of
their kind. But with tens of thousands 
of small wind turbines in the U.S., in
every state, zoning officials need not
fear being on the "bleeding edge" of a
new movement. Thousands of townships,
counties, and cities have had small 
wind zoning regulations on the books 
for decades, setting a substantial
precedent for others to follow.

Below is a very small sample of
localities with small wind zoning
ordinances:
Great Falls, MT 
San Bernardino County, CA 
Clarke County, VA

Currituck County, NC
Kern County, CA
Long Lake Township, MI
Norwich, VT
Ocean Gate, NJ
Mason City, IA
Wicasset, ME
Rockingham County, VA
Denver, CO
Thetford, VT
Eliot, ME
Henry County, GA
Cape Elizabeth, MA
Rochester, NY
Tippecanoe County, IN
San Francisco, CA
Chicago, IL
Fillmore County, MN
Weber County, UT

3 "Policy Guide on Energy." American Planning
Association, April 2004.  http://www.planning.org/
policyguides/pdf/Energy.pdf See also: "Planning and
Climate Change: Mitigation and Clean Energy Strategies."
American Planning Association. http://www.planning.org/
energy/index.htm.  Accessed May 2008.

4 For a list of states and incentives available for small 
wind systems, see the Database of State Incentives for
Renewables & Efficiency at http://dsireusa.org. 

TH E "PO W E R” O F GO O D ZO N I N G

4

"Never before has the
general public been

so interested in solar
and wind energy, nor
has the potential for 

political support ever
been so high." 

- Ingrid N. Kelley,
Chair, Environment,

Natural Resources
and Energy Division,

American Planning
Association

"The way we
plan urban areas 

significantly affects
the energy usage of

individual building
sites. Appropriate

site design standards
and building codes

can encourage energy
conservation and the

use of renewable
energy technologies

on site." 
- American Planning 

Association3

Why Zone for Small Wind Systems?

Your family's electric bill has climbed 
to $400 per month and you expect it 
go higher. You are worried how global
warming will affect your kids. And you
don't want to wait around for others to
fix these problems. Generating your
own, clean power sounds like a great
idea, and something you may even be
able to afford with the rebate program
your state offers for small wind turbines. 

So you spend months researching
equipment, your neighborhood's wind
resource, and ways to pay for a new 
turbine. All your ducks are finally in line,

but when you apply for a building
permit, the county office has never
heard of small wind systems, or if they
have, only of rumors that they are noisy
and kill birds. This technology is also
nowhere to be found in the zoning code
and it is hard for the zoning office to find
out information about how to treat this
unique structure. Or, since the closest
thing the zoning office has dealt with
before is large, utility-scale turbines,
your 5 kilowatt turbine is treated the
same as a 50,000 kilowatt power plant
and the permitting requirements and
costs are impossibly out of reach.

Bergey WindPower 
10kW turbine 
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American Wind Energy Association

www.awea.org/smallwind

Left without a solution readily at hand,
the permit is denied, and you are 
stuck with high electricity bills and a
dependency on conventional fuels. Your
community misses the opportunity to
increase clean, in-state generation,
reduce the pressure on a stressed power
grid, and employ local businesses to
sell, install, and maintain these systems.

Simply listing small wind systems as
an allowed use (such as an accessory,
permitted, or conditional use) can avoid
this scenario that happens with startling
frequency around the country. 

Other reasons to permit for 
small wind systems include:

To Be Prepared. Many states4

carefully craft incentive programs to
help consumers purchase small wind
systems only to find that local zoning
ordinances stand in the way of the
systems' installation. Communities 
may wish to design zoning policy to
anticipate and accommodate small 
wind installations, especially in states
that try to encourage them. 

To Retain Autonomy. The states of
California, Nevada, Oregon, Wisconsin,
Michigan, Vermont, and New Hampshire
have been the first to create statewide
rules for the permitting of small wind
systems. Whether to follow suit or
preserve local autonomy, knowing how
best to deal with this technology in your
community is good long-term strategy.

To Conserve Public Resources. Case-
by-case application reviews and hearings 
cost time and money. Proactively planning 

for small wind installations can be a
rewarding investment. 

For the Personal Benefits. Owners 
of small wind systems enjoy:

•   Personal energy independence
•   Free electricity after recouping costs
•   Relief from high and volatile prices 

of other forms of electricity
•   Reliable electricity
•   Ability to support clean energy and 

fight global warming in a tangible way
•   Increased property values

For the Public Benefits. Though the
power generated by a small wind system
is used only by a single residence or
facility, the benefits of wind power
extend to the entire community.
Community benefits include:

•   Reduced pressure on the local 
electricity grid

•   Increased security: can provide 
back-up power to strategic 
applications like police stations or 
hospitals for "hazard mitigation" 
purposes5

•   Increased local energy independence
•   Increased property values
•   Enhanced reliability and power 

quality of the power grid
•   Reduced peak power demands
•   Increased in-state electricity 

generation
•   Diversified energy supply portfolio
•   Reduced pollutants from traditional 

forms of energy
•   Increased market competition from 

more consumer choice
•   Increased visible indicators of 

community support for clean energy 
•   Increased regional economic growth

5

A turbine's
productivity 
is largely in 
the hands 
of zoning
officials.

"Distributed small 
wind energy systems…
enhance the reliability
and power quality of
the power grid, reduce
peak power demands,
increase in-state
electricity generation,
diversify the sate's
energy supply portfolio,
and make the electricity
supply market more
competitive by
promoting consumer
choice." 
- California
Government Code,
Section 65891.13
(a)(2) www.leginfo.ca.
gov/cgi-bin/displaycode
?section=gov&group=
65001-66000&file=
65892.13 

Manufacturers ask:
"In which state should I
base my operations?"  

The answer is: 
"States with the best
policies."

5 Sandia National Laboratory has begun 
development of strategic Energy Surety Microgrids
http://www.sandia.gov/news/resources/releases/
2006/microgrid.html 
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Why Do They Need To Be Tall?

A tall tower is the single most important
factor in the economic viability of a
small wind system. Tall towers enable
turbines to access faster and better
quality winds, and even small increases
in wind speed translate to exponentially
more energy the turbine can generate.
In other words, a taller tower means 
far more - and cheaper - energy. 

The best sites for turbines are those
where the wind is least obstructed,
which is often the highest point on a
property. The bottom of the turbine
rotor should clear the highest wind
obstacle (rooftop, mature tree, etc.)
within a 500 foot radius by at least 
30 feet. Doing so ensures the turbine
reaches consistent, fast wind speeds
and prolongs the life of the turbine by
avoiding stressful air turbulence.

TH E IM P O R T A N C E O F HE I G H T

6

Ventera 10kW turbine

Putting a turbine 
on too short of a

tower is like placing
a solar panel in 

the shade.

Restrictive Zoning
Rules Can Undermine 

State Law
Several states offer

financial incentives to
promote small wind
turbines and clean
energy. But zoning

height limitations can
prevent turbines 

from generating any
meaningful amount 

of energy, thwarting
the intent of the 
state incentive.
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Overly conservative zoning height
restrictions therefore cost the owner 
money - and a lot of it. They can also
mean more sound, since taller towers
raise the generator high above the
ground, diluting sound considerably.
Sound decreases four-fold with every
doubling of distance from the turbine
(including distance above the ground) so
taller towers are better for their owners as

well as neighbors. (See also “Sound” p. 11.)

For zoning officials, the importance 
of strong winds also means that tower
height cannot be compromised as a
gesture to neighbors concerned about
the visibility of the turbine. "Hiding" a
turbine from neighbors using a shorter
tower almost always means hiding it
from the wind, too.  

7

Bergey WindPower 
10kW XLS turbine

Mariah Power Windspire
1kW turbine

Nor do two shorter installations make an
acceptable substitute for a single, taller
one. A tower alone can comprise 50% or
more of a system's total cost, so multiple,
shorter turbines (on multiple towers) cost
the owner far more than a single, taller
system. (See also "Multiple Turbines," p. 14.)

It is also important to keep in mind 
that a turbine's generator size
(generating capacity, measured in
kilowatts or kW) has little, if anything,
to do with its tower height. Sometimes
zoning regulations mistakenly limit
tower heights based on the size of 
the turbine's capacity, thinking that 

a 2kW turbine, for example, always
corresponds to a 40 foot tower. This is
not the case. Appropriate tower height 
is matched to a turbine depending on
surrounding terrain, trees and buildings,
and wind resource. Therefore, tower
height restrictions, if any, should only
reflect sound and safety concerns rather
than be designed to correspond to a
system's generating capacity. Most
often, in fact, established sound and
setback requirements negate the need
even to mention height in regulations
for small wind systems.
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1.  Setback Distances and Height:

To balance against the need for tall
towers (see p. 6), good practice requires
that a turbine in a residential district be
"set back" from a property line some
given distance. (For commercial or
other zones, this distance is often
considerably less, even zero, since in
these areas affected parties seldom
exist immediately outside a property
line.) The mandated distance in
residential zones should reflect valid
concerns for property rights of abutting
neighbors, as well as those of the
turbine owner. 

This most commonly translates to the
tower height plus the length of one
blade (the turbine's "total extended
height") from the property line,
inhabited neighboring structures, utility
lines, and/or road right-of-ways. This
distance should suffice so long as the

tower is professionally engineered
and/or the installer provides engineered
plans of the tower, the foundation, and
the system does not exceed the
definition of nuisance noise as
established in the zoning code.
(See also "Sound," p. 11.) 

Independent structural analyses of a
tower and its foundation are readily
available from the manufacturer, so
requiring additional studies is
unnecessary and also prohibitively
expensive for a turbine owner. For 
their own protection and insurance
considerations, the manufacturer
conducts these studies for reasons of
economics, responsibility, and - even if
for no other reason - self-preservation.
(See "Potential of Structural or Electrical
Failure," p. 15.)

IS S U E S

8

Many existing height
limitations still exist

based upon the fact that
100 years ago water

pressure in firefighters'
hoses could not reach 

higher than 35 feet.

The following issues are key components of land use law, as well as public
acceptance of small wind systems, and are critical for the successful placement
of a turbine:

1.    Setback Distances and Height

2.    Lot Size

3.    Aesthetics

4.    Sound

5.    Property Values

6.    Insurance

7.    Abandonment

8.    Multiple Turbines

9.    Urban and Building-Integrated 

Installations

10.   Potential of Structural or 

Electrical Failure

11.   Soil Studies

Southwest Windpower “Air”
on lamppost 

EnergiePGE 35kW turbine

Flagpoles, lamp posts,
and utility poles are

allowed in front of
schools and parking lots
among cars and people

because they are
engineered structures,

just like wind turbine
towers. They should 
all receive the same

treatment under law.
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However, in residential zones, some
argue that a turbine's setback should
be no different than that of a house,
cellular tower, flag pole, street lights, 
or any other engineered structure, 
and that height should not be expressly
limited nor specified in zoning
regulations. Instead, they argue that
in residential zones turbine heights are
already self-regulated based on sound
level restrictions at the property line. 

Also keep in mind that:

Turbines on the market are
engineered to withstand hurricane
force winds (110 -130 mph).

Allowing abutting property owners
to submit signed easements may be an
alternative form of compliance should
roads and utility lines be absent in the
immediate vicinity.

A manufacturer's engineering
specifications should be an acceptable
means of ensuring safety and practicality.

9

2.  Lot Size:

Some zoning rules limit turbines 
and/or their heights to a corresponding
property size. For example, some
jurisdictions limit tower height to 80 feet
for lots 0.5-1.0 acre and impose no
height limit for lots larger than 1.0 acre. 

This regulatory approach, however,
usually has no meaningful effect simply

because sound and setback
requirements, which are usually 
more restrictive, make such a
stipulation redundant. Such a
requirement may contribute only
to additional administrative burdens 
and unnecessarily limit the use of 
wind turbines.

Bergey WindPower 
1kW turbine

Skystream 1.8kW turbine
dual-use on lamppost 

Skystream 1.8kW turbine

Allowing abutting property owners to submit signed easements 
may be an alternative form of compliance should roads and 

utility lines be absent in the immediate vicinity.
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3.  Aesthetics: 

To function, wind turbines must be tall
and unobstructed, which means that
they will likely be visible at some
distance (see p. 6). It is also a fact that
some people object to their appearance.
However, legislating "taste" becomes a
difficult task - and an inappropriate one
for any authority other than a
homeowners' association (and even
homeowners' associations may wish 
to create policies that prohibit aesthetics
from entering the debate). Regulating
aesthetics requires balancing the
perceived or desired character of a
community; the public and private
benefits of clean, renewable energy;
and property rights of all parties.

Advocates say that small wind turbines
are icons of the American rural
landscape, dating back to the 1920s,
and that today they have again emerged
as a symbol of independence and a
cleaner future. They argue that so long
as a turbine is installed safely,
particularly on private property, they
should be allowed. System owners
compare the aesthetics of their turbine
to that of a street lamp, utility pole, or
flag pole, and like a flag on a flagpole, 
a turbine only moves or makes a sound
when the wind blows (see "Sound," p. 11).
Advocates also point to precedent,
noting that communities already accept
water towers, buildings, billboards, relay
towers, cell phone towers, utility poles
and lines, grain silos, and radio
antennas as part of the landscape.  

But the aesthetic impact of wind
turbines may be unacceptable in 
areas with historic significance where
aesthetics play an important role in a
district's long-established character.
Opponents say that their height and 

movement are a distractive and
unpleasant sight and visually intrude 
on their rights as property owners.
Both views are based on emotion,
however, not fact. As such, aesthetics
are often a very sensitive issue and
policymakers should take care to
address any concerns fairly.

Small turbines are designed to blend in
with their surroundings as much as
possible. Studies show that turbines
best blend into the sky when painted 
the factory-default color. Manufacturers
avail themselves of expertise to
determine how to prevent their turbines
from standing out like a sore thumb on
the landscape. So requiring owners to
"disguise" a turbine or tower by painting
it green or other colors to match
vegetation would actually make it stand
out more and should be avoided.

Some communities regulate appearance
by prohibiting the use of commercial
markings, messages, or banners on 
the turbine or tower. Some towns also
dictate which tower types are acceptable
in order to ensure only the most visually
appealing design. This, too, is a
subjective assessment, and such
decisions are often made without
considering the added cost of a
"sleeker" tower that performs just as
reliably as another design. A monopole
tower (like a flag pole) generally has a
"tidier" appearance than a lattice tower
(like a radio tower) or guyed tower 
(like a flag pole with wire supports), 
but they can cost several thousands 
of dollars more and should not be
considered equal economic substitutes.
All towers on the market are
professionally engineered for safety 
and reliability, leaving appearance and
cost the only significant differences
among them.

Monopole Tower

10

"By placing these
windmills where many
people can see them,
[people] will be able

to learn about and
experience alternative
energy as part of their

daily lives."
- Pennsylvania Gov.

Edward  Rendell

Lattice Tower

Guyed Monopole Tower
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4.  Sound:

Modern wind turbines have better
insulation, lower rotation speeds, fewer
moving parts, no gearboxes, and more
efficient blades that make them much
quieter than their ancestors. Today's
turbines emit sound that is barely
discernible from ambient noise, even
with a decibel (dB) meter. Sound from
traffic, rustling trees, airplanes, and
people in fact often sufficiently mask 
the dull, low, "white noise" sounds a
small turbine can make at certain wind
speeds. Only during short-term events
like severe storms or utility outages do
turbines make distinctive sounds, but in
these occurrences ambient sound levels
increase as well.

To put this into further perspective, 
the sound made by the lanyard clasp 
on a flagpole line hitting its pole is far
more "tonal" and distinguishable than
any sound a small wind turbine makes,
and is less easily masked by ambient
sounds.6

Zoning policy should reflect ambient
sound levels as well as occasions 
where no affected parties are located
immediately outside a property
boundary. Therefore, except during
short-term events like storms and utility
outages, a small wind system should be
installed and operated such that sound
pressure levels do not exceed the
definition of "nuisance noise" as
established by existing zoning code. 
or at the nearest dwelling, whichever 
is greater. Sound levels should always
be measured downwind of the turbine 
to account for the canceling effect of 
the sound of the wind itself. If ambient
sound levels exceed "nuisance" levels 

on certain occasions, such as during
storms, sound level limits of small wind
systems should also be given reprieve
during these events which are out of
everyone's control.

Or, instead of singling out wind turbines
in sound regulations, it may be more 
fair and administratively simple to use
default sound/noise regulations that
apply universally to other objects and
appliances in a community. The small
wind section of Wisconsin's (state-wide)
zoning ordinance, for example, has no
mention of sound because its designers
chose to treat small wind turbines
equally with other allowed
devices/structures.  

11

A clasp hitting a flagpole 
is far more distinguishable

than any sound a small
wind turbine makes

Modern small
wind turbines are
typically quieter
than most external
air conditioners.

6 Flag clasp photo credits:
Flags Unlimited

Sound Level Comparison
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4.  Sound (con’t):

Planners and zoning committees
should also keep in mind that:

Sound decreases significantly with
distance from the source (including
height - another good reason to allow
tall towers). Doubling the distance 
from the turbine decreases the sound
level by a factor of four. For example,
sound level readings at 25ft. from the
turbine hub drop by a factor of 4 at
50ft., and by a factor of 16 at 100ft.
Noise intrusion across a property line
from a turbine that is set back 100ft. 
or more is typically very limited. 

Turbine manufacturers are keenly
aware of the public demand for quieter
machines and have invested in new
materials and designs to minimize
sound. As a result, today's turbines
operate at near-ambient sound levels. 

Only a few events or circumstances
can cause a normal operating wind
system to become audible, including
utility blackouts (or a full battery bank
for those models that incorporate

batteries). Both situations are
temporary, and in many cases (but 
not all), easily remedied by the owner
by manually shutting down the turbine.

Sound level test data for some
turbines is available from the U.S.
Department of Energy's (DOE) National
Renewable Energy Laboratory (NREL).7

Requiring certified noise tests for a
residential wind system is unnecessary
given the lower sound emissions of
today's turbines and that sound data
is readily available from manufacturers.
Such tests are also beyond the budget
of any homeowner.

"Noise" is a subjective term. Whether
a person generally favors wind turbines
or not can determine how he or she views
a single, seemingly objective sound.

The single best way to understand
the nature of a turbine's sound is to visit
an installation site. All turbines are a
marginally different so be sure to visit a
location with a similar wind resource and
the same model turbine as is in question.

7 The National Renewable Energy Laboratory (NREL) 
has tested several residential-sized wind turbines for
sound emission levels. NREL engineers noted a "marked
progress toward quieter turbines" in recent years and
concluded in one case that "the turbine noise could not
be separated from the background noise." This is
generally true of most of today's residential wind
equipment over a great range of operating wind speeds.
NREL engineers noted, however, that "the operating
condition [of the wind turbine] has a strong influence 
on the noise characteristics." They found two scenarios 
where  sound actually increased above normal operating 

conditions: when grid connection was lost (for grid-
connected models) and when the batteries were full 
(for battery-charging models).  The solution is simply
for the owner to shut off the turbine in these situations
to avoid excessive noise.  See the NREL report,
"Acoustic Tests of Small Wind Turbines," NREL/CP-500-
34662, by P. Migliore, J. van Dam, and A. Huskey at
http://www.nrel.gov/docs/fy04osti/34662.pdf. 

Additional Resources:
Alberts, Daniel J. "Primer for Addressing Wind Turbine
Noise".  Lawrence Technological University, 2005.
http://home.nethere.com/dja1701/technical_writing/
papers/AddressingWindTurbineNoise.pdf 

12

"Vermont turbine owner
David Blittersdorf

reports that the home
next to his sold within

one day for the full
asking price. His new

neighbors later told him
that his 10kW turbine
was a major factor in
the quick sale. 'They

said they wanted to live
in a place where the

community cared about
the environment. They
told me that they, too,

wanted to install a small
wind turbine someday,'

says Blittersdorf."
- Permitting Small

Wind Turbines: 
A Handbook: Learning

from the California
Experience. California

Energy Commission,
2003.  www.awea.org/
smallwind/documents/

permitting.pdf 

Most people's
reaction to

turbines, even 
up close, is that

they are much
quieter than 

they expected.
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5.  Property Values:

Evidence8 indicates that the presence 
of wind turbines increases neighboring
property values. No study has ever
concluded that wind turbines - neither
large nor small - have had a depressing 
effect on nearby residential property
values. 

A recent survey found that most people
are interested in or willing to pay more
for homes equipped with solar panels or
wind turbines.9

13

8 A May 2003 study by the Renewable Energy Policy
Project (REPP) study, The Effect of Wind Development
on Local Property Values, finds that  "…for the great
majority of projects the property values actually rose
more quickly in the view shed than they did in the
comparable community. Moreover, values increased
faster in the view shed after the projects came online
than they did before." Available at http://www.crest.org/
articles/static/1/ binaries/wind_online_final.pdf.  

See also: Advice from an Expert: Residential Wind
Turbines and Property Value. American Wind Energy
Assoc. http://www.awea.org/faq/sagrillo/ms_zoning
_property values.html.

9 "Renewable Energy Study." California Energy
Commission, Nov. 2001. http://www.energy.ca.gov/
reports/2002-04-03_500-02-016.pdf. 
p. 28

Windward Engineering
4.25kW turbine

6.  Insurance:

The small wind system should simply 
be added to existing homeowner, farm,
or business policies as an "appurtenant"
(uninhabited) structure and not require
a separate policy. Precautions such as
setback requirements for wind turbines

are designed specifically to protect that
which is beyond one's own property line.
Homeowner's insurance policies make
no distinction based on how far a turbine
is from one's own house, so neither
should zoning rules.  

7.  Abandonment:

Some towns require assurance that any
non-functioning turbine will be removed
after a period of time to prevent
unnecessary clutter in a community.
Abandonment due to malfunction has
become particularly rare due to today's
improved technology, though a
community should be entitled to
recourse should an abandoned turbine
present a nuisance.  

Security bonds may be required for
large, utility-scale turbines which are
located on land leased from a third-
party property owner, but these are

inappropriate and unduly burdensome
for owners of small systems who install
turbines on land they own. It is
recommended that any small wind
turbine owner whose equipment is
inoperable for six months be notified 
by the zoning committee that the
owners have six months from the notice
date to restore their system to operating
condition. If the owner fails, the wind
turbine should be removed from the
tower for safety reasons. The tower
itself would then be managed under the
Public Nuisance language of the rest of
the existing zoning code. 

Bergey WindPower 
10kW XLS turbine

lowered for 
ground maintenance
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Proven Energy 
2.5kW turbine 
rooftop array

Abundant Renewable
Energy ARE 110 2.5kW and

ARE 442 10kW turbines

14

8.  Multiple Turbines:

Though rare, some small wind systems
come in "arrays" of multiple turbines,
each of which is usually very small.
However, regulations should treat
additional turbines no differently than
the first. So long as each turbine, 
or the resulting aggregate installation,
meets the sound, setback, and safety
requirements as exist for other
structures, there should be no need 
for further or special considerations.

When determining height limits 
(if any - see "Setback Distances and
Height," p. 8), keep in mind that rarely
are multiple units equal economic
substitutes for one larger, taller turbine.
Therefore to meet restrictive height
limitations, multiple small turbines are
not an equal substitution. See the
payback period table in the "Height" 
(p. 7) section of this guide for an
illustration.   

9.  Rooftop Turbines and Urban Environments:

In very rare instances turbines are
installed directly onto building rooftops
or even designed as part of the building
itself (known as "architecturally
integrated"). These installations appear
mostly in urban or densely-built areas
where small property sizes may prevent
the use of towers elsewhere on a
property. These types of installations
currently account for less than 1% of 
all applications, but interest is increasing
rapidly and zoning officials may receive
permit applications for urban or rooftop
installations.

Siting becomes especially important
for turbines in urban settings. Wind

patterns behave very differently around
buildings and in densely-built areas, so 
a turbine must be sited very precisely in
order to gain access to wind of sufficient
quality. Height, for example, becomes
increasingly important in order for the
turbine to rise above aerodynamic
obstacles and turbulence, as depicted 
in the graphic below. 

Regardless of these unusual physical
conditions, as long as other sound  
and setback requirements are met, 
no additional or unusual standards
should be imposed for architecturally-
integrated turbines and/or those in
dense environments.

Source:  Watson, S.J. "Predicting the Yield of Micro-Turbines in the Urban 
Roof-Top Environment." Centre for Renewable Energy Systems Technology,

Loughborough University, U.K. Presentation, March 2008.

AeroVironment
rooftop array
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10.  Potential of Structural or Electrical Failure:

Requiring code compliance and
manufacturer drawings should
sufficiently balance the public and
private needs for an installation to be
safe, practical, reliable, and affordable. 

Wind turbines are professionally
engineered structures and are designed
to withstand decades of near-constant
operation (see "Setback Distances and
Height" p. 8). They shut down
automatically during utility outages in
order to protect utility line workers, and
will not energize a dead power line.
They are also equipped with manual and
automatic over-speed protection devices
that keep the turbine operating in a
controlled range of speeds. Because of
these and other factors, mechanical
failures are very rare, especially those
that would have an impact on
surrounding areas.  

But as a precaution, just as for any
other allowed structure, the applicant

should submit to the zoning board a line
drawing of the electrical components, 
as supplied by the manufacturer, in
sufficient detail to allow for a
determination that the manner of
installation conforms to the National
Electrical Code. Doing so also serves 
to demonstrate that the installer and
manufacturer are engaged in an
evaluation of the suitability of the site. 

Though rare, some zoning boards
require an engineering analysis of 
a tower and its foundation, but this 
is a very costly and often redundant
measure. Even more rare is the
requirement of an engineer's "wet
stamp," which is a from-scratch
calculation performed by a structural
engineer of the tower's integrity. Such 
a study can cost thousands of dollars
and serves only to duplicate work that
the manufacturer originally performed
as a prerequisite for securing liability
insurance. 

"Renewable energy
equipment has become
more reliable and
economical, and
installation standards
are more professional." 
- American Planning
Association, 2004.10

15

10 "Policy Guide on Energy." American Planning
Association, April 2004.
http://www.planning.org/policyguides/pdf/Energy.pdf 

Bergey WindPower 
blade testing 

Proven Energy, Ltd. manufacturing facility 
in Scotland, UK

A small wind turbine 
can in fact be one of 

the more aesthetically
pleasing features in a city.

Rooftop heating and
ventilation systems,
antennas, and other

structures found in urban
environments usually
reduce any aesthetic

impacts from small wind
turbines in comparison.
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11. Soil Studies:

Wind turbine foundations face forces
that are not unlike those seen in light-
pole or flag-pole foundations, but for 
the same height, wind turbine towers
generally experience higher forces at
the very top of the tower. The wind
turbine foundation therefore plays an
important role in an installation, as 
does the soil in which it is installed.  

As standard practice, manufacturers
engineer foundations for "worst-case"
scenarios by assessing soil conditions
based on U.S. Geological Survey soil
maps, core samples, studies from the
National Resource Conservation Service,
or other resources. For "abnormal" soils
consisting of rock, gravel, sand, peat 
or water-saturated earth/muck, etc., 
a manufacturer or local professional
engineer conducts a tailored, project-
specific soil review and often designs 
a custom foundation for the site. 
The installer always confirms with 
the manufacturer or an independent
professional engineer that the site's 
soil conditions meet minimum standards
as specified by the tower manufacturer,
and that the tower is designed to local
engineering standards (which vary by
jurisdiction). For decades this has
effectively ensured safe, durable
installations while maintaining their
affordability.

These built-in safeguards make formal
site soil analyses unnecessary for
residential-scale (20kW or smaller)
turbines and avoid the need for special
studies and designs that can exceed 
the cost of the foundation itself. For
example, a foundation designed for a
"worst case" scenario might require
50% more concrete than that for
another, similar structure. Assuming
this fortified foundation also costs 50%
more, an installation for a residential
turbine normally costing, say, $4,000,
would increase to $6,000. This is
expensive, but a relatively small share
of the total cost of the system.
However, a foundation 50% more robust
(and expensive) for a turbine larger
than 20kW, where the foundation might
normally cost $30,000, would now cost
$45,000 - an increase of $15,000. At
this point, a professional engineer's 
"wet stamp" based off a site-specific
geotechnical study is now the best
economic option for achieving the 
same, safe ends. 

The best practice would be to require 
an engineer's wet stamp and a soil
analysis for turbines greater than 20kW,
but allow "worst-case" foundations
(already the industry's standard
practice) for turbines any smaller.  
This would ensure quality, secure, 
and affordable installations.

Northern Power 
100kW turbine

Entegrity Wind Systems
50kW turbine

in Quinter, Kansas
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i.  Shadow "Flicker":

Under very specific circumstances, low
sunlight passing through the moving
rotor of a turbine can cast visible
shadows on the ground or on structures.
This issue pertains almost exclusively
(and similarly rarely) to large, utility-
scale turbines because of their slower-
moving blades. Shadows also depend 
on the time of day, day of year, and
latitude of the site's location.11

Small turbines are shorter, have
narrower blade profiles, and spin 
much faster than utility-scale turbines

so that any shadows become essentially
invisible at operating speeds. Turbines 
of all sizes are designed to start
spinning only after a minimum wind
speed has been attained, so chances 
are very slim that a small turbine will
spin slowly enough to make shadow
flicker a concern.

Furthermore, normal setback distances
dictated by property lines or sound
requirements mitigates, if not entirely
eliminates, this potential nuisance,
especially at U.S. latitudes.

NO N-IS S U E S/"RE D HE R R I N G S"

The following are common misconceptions about small wind:

i.     Shadow "Flicker"

ii.    Fences/Attractive Nuisance

iii.   Birds

iv.   "Icing"

v.     Electrical Signal Interference

vi.    Lightning Strikes

vii.   Stray Voltage

11 The possibility of shadow flicker affecting a given
location can be calculated very precisely.  See
http://www.windpower.org/en/tour/env/shadow/
shadowc.htm for a shadow flicker calculator.

Northern Power 
100kW turbine 

in Golden, Colorado
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10kW XLS 

monopole turbine
with fence in Erie, PA 
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ii.  Fences/Attractive Nuisance:

Some voice concern that a turbine 
could pose a temptation to unauthorized
climbers and should be fenced off to
prevent potential climbing-related
injuries. However, decades of
experience and tens of thousands of
installations have shown that
unauthorized climbing is exceedingly
rare. A fence, which is itself climbable,
can impose its own attractive and
aesthetic nuisance and in the process 
do little more than create false, negative
impressions about renewable energy. 

Furthermore, for a turbine tower to be
an "attractive nuisance" to the public, 
in most cases a potential climber would
first have to trespass on private
property - a much more prevalent issue
and one that should be dealt with
separately. Requiring fencing also 
places a burden on turbine owners
unlike any imposed on flagpoles, utility
towers, or other common, climbable
structures.  

Perhaps most detrimental of all,
fences prevent access to the turbine 
in emergencies. Sometimes a turbine
must be shut down manually during 
storms or electrical problems, and

emergency shut-off switches are most
often located at the base of the turbine
tower. Utilities also require that the
turbine be readily accessible to workers
performing routine or emergency
maintenance on power lines.

Instead, to prevent unauthorized
climbing: 

Remove climbing foot rungs on the
lower 10 or 12 feet of a freestanding
tower.

For lattice or guyed towers, fasten
sheets of metal or wood to the lower
part of the tower to cover all hand - 
and foot-holds.

Display "Danger-High Voltage" or
"Caution-Electrical Shock Hazard" 
signs to the sides of the tower. Of the
thousands of freestanding utility high-
line towers across the country, few, if
any, are policed or fenced, but they all
are posted with such signs.

Utilities, tower manufacturers, and the
small wind industry have successfully
employed these techniques for decades
and are more effective deterrents than
any fence.
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iii.  Birds:

The most common - and most
exaggerated - misconception about 
both large and small turbines is that
they are disproportionately harmful 
to bird and bat populations. Even the
vastly larger, utility-scale wind farms
that are grouped closely in large arrays
account for less than 0.003% of all
human-caused bird deaths.12 House 
cats and glass windows, by comparison,
cause 10,000 times more bird deaths
than do wind turbines. No study has
been performed specifically to address
avian effects of small wind turbines, 
but because of their dispersed nature
and small size, it can be inferred that

they have an even smaller impact than
their larger counterparts.13

Environmental impact or avian 
migration studies should not be 
required for individual small wind
turbine installations. Are environmental
impact studies required for every plate
glass window or pet license? Small wind
turbines in fact offer a net benefit to
local and global environments: they
emit no air pollutants, require no mining
for fuel nor water for cooling, and have
land use "footprints" of only a few
square feet.  

iv.  "Icing":

Like trees, street lamps, or other
structures, turbines in cold climates 
can become covered in ice, which falls 
to the ground as it melts. But just as 
an airplane's wing must be de-iced in
order for it to fly, a turbine's blade must
be free of ice in order to rotate at any
significant speed. The weight and
aerodynamic interference of ice buildup
slows the blades' rotation to a near

stand-still, making any melting ice fall
straight downward rather than being
thrown from the blade. 

To put this in further perspective, a 1998
study calculated that the risk of personal
or property damage from ice falling from
a (large) turbine is lower than the risk of
being struck by lightning.14

19

12 "Environmental Impacts of Wind-Energy Projects."
National Academy of Sciences, 2007.
http://books.nap.edu/catalog.php?record_id=11935 

13 Erickson, et.al, 2002. Summary of Anthropogenic
Causes of Bird Mortality

14 Bossanyi, Morgan, and Siefert. "Assessment 
Of Safety Risks Arising From Wind Turbine Icing."
Finland, April 1998.
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Bergey WindPower
1kW turbine

on telecommunications
station 

in Bristol Bay, Alaska
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v.  Electrical Signal Interference:

Small wind turbine blades are made
from materials that are "invisible" to
radio frequency transmissions and
cannot cause interference problems.  
In fact, small wind turbines are used 
by the U.S. Navy to power military
communications equipment.15

In the past, wind turbine blades were
sometimes made of metal which did
create unwanted radio or television
interference, but the industry has long

since abandoned the use of metal
blades.

Any structure under 200 feet high - 
that is to say, any small wind turbine - 
is also too short to interfere with civilian
or military radar. Radar usually does not
even scan for objects this close to the
ground because common land features
at this height, like trees, would normally
cause distorted, cluttered, or misleading
radar images.

15 Sagrillo, Mick. "Telecommunication Interference from
Home Wind Systems."  AWEA Windletter, Volume 22,
Issue 4, April 2003.

vi.  Lightning Strikes:

Wind turbines do not attract lightning,
so pose no threat to neighboring
properties. 

Lightning is essentially the release of
pent-up static electricity that moves
from a turbulent atmosphere to the
ground. Small wind turbines are
"grounded," meaning that any static
electricity on the tower or generator is
dispersed into the ground, preventing 
a build-up that could invite lightning
strikes. As a result, even though small
wind turbine towers are made of metal
(a conductor of electricity), by virtue of
their grounding they are less susceptible
to lightning strikes than trees, which
cannot shed built-up static electricity.
To a lightning bolt, a turbine is therefore

no more "appealing" than the ground
itself.

However, lightning strikes are still
possible, which is why small wind
turbines incorporate back-up
technologies like surge and lightning
arrestors (also known as silicon oxide
varistors) and metal oxide varistors,
which are also used to protect home
computers from electrical surges.
Lightning strikes are never completely
preventable, but these industry-
standard measures offer the best
protection available to the owner of the
wind system. Good practice in the wind
industry includes grounding of all towers
and guy wires, which significantly
reduces the chance of a lightning strike.

Proven Energy 6kW turbine
powering

telecommunications
equipment

Small wind turbines 
are commonly 
used to power

communications
equipment. They 

will not cause
signal interference.
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vii.  Stray Voltage:

This unusual phenomenon, primarily
affecting farm livestock, is the result of
faulty wiring on any number of electrical
systems (not just wind turbines) and
easily prevented by industry-standard
practices. It is also a strictly localized
issue that will not affect off-site parties
or properties.

For safety reasons, including to
minimize lightning strikes (see above),
nearly all types of electrical systems in
the U.S. are, at some point in the
system, connected to the earth or
"grounded." Electric current flowing in
the ground dissipates quickly as it
moves away from its source (much like
sound from a wind turbine). Grounding
also allows power systems to detect
equipment malfunctions and
automatically shut down before 
harming people or equipment. 

If a system is not properly wired, the
point(s) at which a system is grounded
can develop a small voltage (electrical
pressure, essentially) that can push
current through the earth and end up
contacting unintended objects. Hence
the name, "stray" voltage. This
phenomenon is rare and primarily
affects cattle, whose legs are far enough
apart to stand on two points where
different voltage levels in the ground

exist. The cow may or may not feel 
this voltage difference, depending on
the level and duration of the exposure.

While the design of electrical system
makes stray voltage possible, its actual
occurrence is the result of poor
grounding practices, improper or
inadequate wiring, or deteriorated wire
insulation. Most small wind turbine
inverters - those that are IEEE 1547 or
UL1741 compliant - can detect faulty
grounding and automatically shut down
current flow. Like solar photovoltaic
installations that require "ground-fault
circuit interrupter" (GFCI) devices to
protect consumers from any stray
voltage, small wind turbines are also
equipped with GFCI measures. 

In other words, stray voltage is caused
by problems on a particular customer's
side of the utility billing meter so is not 
a problem beyond the electrical system
of a particular home or farm. Nor can
stray voltage move or be transferred
from one property to another, since it
is an "on-site" problem stemming from
electricity distribution or wiring, not
the generation of electricity. The issue
therefore does not fall under the
jurisdiction of zoning rules, which are
designed to protect that which exists
outside a property line. 

21
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Anticipating, acknowledging, and
understanding small wind turbines not
only reduces administrative burdens for
zoning boards, but it lowers permitting
time and costs to the point where it
makes the project within the realm of
financial reason for the owner.
Streamlining the permitting process is
often best achieved by listing small wind
turbines as a conditional or accessory use. 

A Permitted Use permit allows a 
small wind system by default, provided
it meets applicable design standards,
and is applied commonly to flag poles,
church steeples, and grain silos. A
permitted use indicates that a
justification has been established for 
the structure's standing eligibility. As
such, no public hearings are required
and a permit can be obtained quickly.
Permitted uses are frequently found 
in rural areas where potential impacts 
are minimal.

A Special/Conditional Use permit
allows an installation under certain
conditions identified in the statute. 
This option usually requires a more
detailed description of the project from
the applicant and often involves a public
hearing. A hearing can disadvantage
both the zoning board and potential
owner, however, since each application
must be decided on a case-by-case
basis and educational efforts must begin
from scratch. Many documented
experiences show that this process can
cost potential small-turbine owners
thousands of dollars and take hundreds
of hours to accomplish, if at all.

A Site Plan Review allows an installation
after a physical inspection of the proposed
project site and surroundings. This
option is usually accompanied by a
special/conditional use permit.

An Accessory Use of land is one that 
is subordinate, incidental to, and
customarily found in connection with 
the principal use allowed on a lot by 
the zoning law. A garage, for example,
is incidental to the principal use of a lot
as a single-family residence and
customarily found on a single-family lot.
For small wind, this normally appears in
agricultural, commercial, or industrial
settings where energy produced by a
turbine is instrumental in accomplishing
a main function of the property's use.
Importantly, allowing small wind as an
accessory use avoids the need for
special use permits for future applications.

A Variance is a modification or waiver
of certain zoning requirements for a
permitted use structure. For a small
wind turbine, this usually means making
an exception for setback distances or
height limits. Variances are issued when
prevailing regulations cause an
unreasonable "burden" on the property
owner and usually require public
hearings, making a variance for a small
wind turbine very difficult to obtain.

An Overlay Zone supersedes prevailing
zoning rules in certain geographies. A
jurisdiction may establish an overlay
zone to indicate that a certain area is
appropriate for small wind turbines or
other renewable energy technologies. 
This expedites the permitting process, but
planners must be careful that this strategy
does not overly limit areas outside of zone.

Entegrity Wind Systems
50kW turbine
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Education may 
be the single most
important factor in
streamlining the
permitting process.

American Wind Energy Association
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Recommendations 
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See also AWEA's "Policies to Promote Small Wind Turbines: A Policy Menu for State
and Local Governments" 2008.  www.awea.org/smallwind 

FOR STATE AND LOCAL GOVERNMENTS

Create regulations in advance of
public inquiries.

Recognize that small wind systems
have very different impacts than large,
utility-scale turbines and require
completely separate siting considerations.
In terms of impact, a residential-scale
wind turbine has more in common with
a solar photovoltaic panel than it does
with a utility-scale wind turbine.

Treat small turbines as improvements
to an individual property, not as
commercial or industrial projects.

Promote consistency among fees,
requirements, and procedures across
jurisdictions. Doing so reduces
complications and inefficiencies for
installers, applicants, and governments. 

Experience your own permitting
process firsthand: Mayors or governors
may want to try to obtain a permit for a
turbine for installation at city hall or the
governor's mansion.

Educate permitting staff, zoning
officials, and governments about small
wind. Share with them this and other
publications listed in the “Contributing 
& Additional Resources” section (p. 28).

Base code compliance on a common
set of standards (IEEE 1547 and UL
1741) that ensure the reliability and
safety of a turbine's electrical

components, as installed according to
the National Electric Code. But also
ensure the grid interconnection process
formed around these standards is well-
founded. See "Freeing the Grid" 2007
report.16

Keep in mind the public benefits
of small wind:
•   Increased property values
•   Increased in-state electricity 

generation
•   Reduced pressure on the utility grid
•   Increased local energy independence
•   Increased security/can provide back-

up power to strategic applications 
like police stations or hospitals for 
"hazard mitigation" purposes17

•   Reduced dependence on polluting 
forms of electricity

•   Enhanced reliability and power 
quality of the electricity grid

•   Reduced peak power demands
•   Diversified state energy supply 

portfolio
•   Displaced pollutants from traditional 

forms of energy
•   Increased consumer choice
•   Increased visible indicators of 

community support for clean energy  
•   Increased regional economic growth.  

Manufacturers ask, "In which state 
should I base my operations?"  
The answer is: "States with the best 
policies."

American Wind Energy Association

www.awea.org/smallwind

23

16 http://www.newenergychoices.org/uploads/
FreeingTheGrid2007_report.pdf  

17 Sandia National Laboratory has begun 
development of strategic Energy Surety Microgrids
http://www.sandia.gov/news/resources/
releases/2006/microgrid.html 

Proven Energy
2.5kW turbine
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Additional Options

Creating incentives:  Beyond
removing obstacles and enabling
installations to occur on their own, 
a state or community can create
incentives to make small wind turbines
a more attractive option for individuals
and businesses. These include:

•   Reducing, or waiving, permit 
and development impact fees

•   Fast tracking review periods
•   Permitting small wind systems by-

right in some or all districts to avoid 
costly and contentious hearings

•   Awarding points in performance-
based review and green building 
programs

•   Awarding density bonuses for 
developments that reduce or 
generate >50% of energy 
demand on site

Protecting windy areas: A town 
or state might also anticipate future
installations by protecting areas in 
the community that have exceptionally 
good wind resources. Local dealers 
and installers are trained in wind
resource assessment and can help
locate these areas.

24

Federal preemption 
of home rule for 

cell phone towers
enabled the industry

to expand
dramatically, which

would not have likely
occurred without it.
Fair zoning for small
wind turbines could

bring similar
economic benefits.

SPECIFICALLY FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENTS

Implement a stand-alone ordinance
specifically to address small wind
turbines (see “Appendix,” p. 30).   

Expedite processing times by
consolidating a jurisdiction's permit
review process to as few departments
or agencies as possible.

Encourage permit applicants to
notify their neighbors of their proposed
installation.

Educate permit department staff
about small wind to ensure safe, fair,
expedited, and less costly installations.
Demonstration projects offer an
excellent educational opportunity.
Contact a local dealer to locate a 
nearby installation.

Coordinate with neighboring zoning
jurisdictions to establish consistent
practices, rate schedules, etc. This can
be done through Regional Councils of
Government or independently, and will
save time and money for the town,
turbine owner, and installer. 

In the absence of pertinent state
legislation, local governments can 

overrule neighborhood covenants that
unnecessarily restrict renewable energy.

Initiate a Community Energy Plan to
assess the renewable energy potential
of a locality and devise strategies for
meeting energy goals. (This may include
implementing a renewable energy
overlay zone - see last paragraph.)

Consider establishing renewable
energy overlay zones.18 This policy 
would be ideally situated in a local
government's Comprehensive Plan
(or equivalent) that describes a town's
future objectives and strategies.  

Without proper care however, a
renewable energy overlay zone could
inadvertently prevent small wind
installations outside the zone where
they may be perfectly acceptable. As 
a precaution, make the zone sufficiently
large and create or maintain a provision
that allows small turbines (and other
renewables) outside of the zone. It 
may in fact be easier to identify any
areas not suitable for such installations
and make distributed renewables an
allowed use elsewhere by default.
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SPECIFICALLY FOR STATE GOVERNMENTS

State government action can very
effectively streamline the permitting
process by standardizing permitting
requirements across local jurisdictions.
Consider implementing the following:

Establish statewide zoning standards
for renewable energy systems. Oregon
state law, for example, requires cities
and counties to list small wind turbines
as an allowed use on any land zoned for
agricultural or forest use, pending they
meet certain conditions.19

Provide educational opportunities for
planners and zoning officials.

Preempt private covenant restrictions
that prohibit or restrict small wind and
other distributed renewable energy
systems on aesthetic grounds.

Follow precedent set by over 10
states that prohibit the unreasonable
restriction of renewable, distributed
energy use within planned communities.20

These laws are, unfortunately, not often
publicly known and so are violated
frequently. Therefore accompany any
such rules with educational outreach
efforts. The Community Associations
Institute (CAI) and its chapters, for
example, could provide a platform upon
which to educate community associations
and homeowners about their rights and
responsibilities under the law. 

Preempt local zoning jurisdictions.
Though likely a politically sensitive
measure, the most effective way to
enable small wind installations is for 
a state to preempt "home rule"
jurisdiction of local zoning codes to 
allow the (conditional), statewide
installation of small wind turbines 
under a single umbrella policy. Several
precedents demonstrate that doing 
so helps consumers, communities,
and industry. Home rule was preempted 
on a national scale for cell phone 
towers (Telecommunications Act of
1996) and was far stronger than what
would be needed for small wind
systems. This federal preemption
succeeded in passing largely because 
of the perceived national benefit that 
wireless communications would bring.
Advocates argue that the same could
surely be said of renewable energy.  
The states of Wisconsin,21 Nevada,22

Vermont,23 Michigan,24 Oregon,19

New Hampshire,25 and California26

have all agreed and enacted laws 
that preempt home rule specifically
to prevent undue prohibitions of small 
wind systems in their states. As a 
direct consequence, these states enjoy
more in-state (non-imported) energy
generation and other environmental 
and economic benefits that small wind
offers.

18 Example renewable energy overlay zone: Klickitat
County, WA. Klickitat County Planning Department:
http://www.klickitatcounty.org/Planning/filesHtml/
200408-EOZ-EIS/06-01-map-EOZ.pdf 

19 Northwest Sustainable Energy for Economic
Development.  Community Wind: An Oregon
Guidebook.  Report for the Energy Trust of Oregon. 
(No date given). p. 41-42.  http://www.energytrust.org/
RR/wind/community/forms_request.html. 

20 These states include Arizona, California, Colorado,
Florida, Hawaii, Indiana, Iowa, Massachusetts, Nevada,
Utah, and Wisconsin.

21 1993.  Wisconsin statute 66.0401. Wisconsin's small
wind zoning ordinance http://renewwisconsin.org/wind/
Toolbox-Zoning/Small%20Wind%20System%20Model
%20Ordinance%2012-06.pdf.  Available from
http://renewwisconsin.org/wind/windtoolbox.html 

22 Nevada State Legislature NRS 278.0208 http://www.leg.
state.nv.us/Nrs/NRS-278.html #NRS278Sec0208 

23 Vermont Statute Title 30 Sections 219(a) and 219(b), 
and 248 amended with bill 209 from 2008
http://www.leg.state.vt.us/statutes/statutes2.htm

24 Michigan Siting Guidelines for Wind Energy Systems
http://www.michigan.gov/documents/Wind_and_Solar_
Siting_Guidlines_Draft_5_96872_7.pdf 

25 New Hampshire House Bill 310 http://www.gencourt.
state.nh.us/legislation/2008/HB0310.html 

26 California AB 1207 http://info.sen.ca.gov/pub/01-02/
bill/asm/ab_1201-1250/ab_1207_bill_ 
20011007 _chaptered.html

Northern Power 
100kW turbine 
in Kotzebue, AK
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renewables statewide under the Certificate of Public Good application process.  
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PERMITTING PROCESS: TIME & COST

Even the best zoning ordinances are often thwarted by overly expensive and
lengthy requirements for obtaining a permit. We recommend the following:

Permitted or
Accessory Use

Conditional Use

The permit should
be granted upon
timely review of
the application, not
exceeding 30 days.

Hearings are usually required to determine
whether the installation meets the "conditions"
upon which permission is contingent. Any hearings
should be held within 30 days of the application
date. Promptly thereafter the zoning board should
notify the applicant whether or not the permit has
been granted and what conditions are necessary 
to satisfy the permit.

If an application must be approved by a town or county board after being passed
through a planning committee, a reasonable timeframe is 60 days or less.

Total permitting costs should be commensurate with any other non-
commercial end-use objects or structures, and should reflect the cost 
of administering the permit and any associated reviews or inspections.

Most localities levy fees at a flat rate, but some occasionally use a
"valuation method" that calculates the fee as a percentage of the system's
cost. However, there is little, if any, correlation between the size of a
turbine and the costs and time required for its inspection and review
process. Flat fees are therefore more practical and desirable.

Furthermore, the valuation method inadvertently discourages larger
systems and their associated public benefits. Paradoxically, under this
fee structure, the more a turbine owner wants to contribute to the
community, the more difficult it becomes to do so. 

Some localities have implemented a tiered fee structure to distinguish
between residential and commercial uses. Still others have waived
permitting fees entirely for on-site renewable generators, sending a
powerful message of local government support for clean energy and 
their associated community benefits. Some communities that have
waived permitting fees for on-site renewables include Tucson (AZ), 
San Diego (CA), Fairfax (CA), and the entire state of Vermont.28
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Vermont's 
Net-Metering

Permitting Process 
Vermont's permitting

process for net metered
(thus, grid-tied) small

wind turbines is
straightforward and
simple: A customer

applies for a Certificate
of Public Good (CPG), 

at no cost, from the
Vermont Public Service

Board (PSB) and
distributes the

application to adjacent
landowners, the town
planning committee, 

and select board, local
utility, and several 

state agencies. Barring
any objections within 

30 days, the CPG
application is generally

approved and is exempt
from additional state or

local zoning regulations.
Should there be any

public objections,
witnesses for each 

party testify at a public
hearing where the PSB
makes a final decision.

Windward Engineering
Endurance 4.25kW turbine

in Arkport, NY
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CO N C L U S I O N

Good zoning for small wind is important, achievable, and good public
policy. 

Planners and zoning officials are in a unique and powerful position to help
renewable energy and those who rely on it. Of all the challenges consumers 
and the industry face to deliver the benefits of clean, on-site power generation, 
the permitting process can be the most severe. But fortunately, a remedy is
available and implementing it can come at a net benefit to the community at large.  

By understanding the issues and identifying a variety of potential solutions,
renewable energy will be able to play a more vibrant part in American communities.  

Entegrity Wind Systems 50kW turbine
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Abundant Renewable
Energy (ARE) 110

2.5kW turbine
in Newberg, Oregon
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Abandonment
Aesthetics 
Barriers to small wind
systems
Code Compliance
Considerations for wind
turbine towers
FAA
Fences
Ice shedding
Keeping hearings under
control
Net metering and zoning
Payback

Perceptions and local
concerns
Property values
Protecting your right
Rules of thumb for tower 
heights
Setbacks
Shadow flicker and
strobing
Siting towers and heights
for small wind turbines 
Sound 
Stray Voltage
Tall tower economics

Tower cost versus power 
Tower height versus
power
Tower engineering for
building permits
Tower heights and zoning
hearings
Tower Styles
Towers and Engineering
Trials and tribulations
TV and communications
interference
Visibility
Zoning obstacles

A special thanks to Erica Heller of Clarion Associates, Mick Sagrillo of
Sagrillo Power & Light, and Jim Green of the National Renewable Energy
Laboratory for their expertise and contributions to this document.

Entegrity Wind Systems
50kW turbine

in Quinter, Kansas
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This model zoning ordinance is used by many localities across the country 
and aims to strike an equitable balance among the interests of the consumer, 
industry, and community. It is the product of lessons learned over decades of
industry experience and tens of thousands of installations.

AWEA MODEL ZONING ORDINANCE

Use Regulation for Small Wind Energy Conversion Systems

Section 1: Purpose
It is the purpose of this regulation to allow the safe, effective and efficient use of small wind energy
systems installed to reduce the on-site consumption of utility supplied electricity.

Section 2: Findings 
The [city or county] finds that wind energy is an abundant, renewable, and nonpolluting energy
resource and that its conversion to electricity will reduce our dependence on nonrenewable energy
resources and decrease the air and water pollution that results from the use of conventional energy
sources. Distributed small wind energy systems will also enhance the reliability and power quality of
the power grid, reduce peak power demands, and help diversify the State's energy supply portfolio.
Small wind systems also make the electricity supply market more competitive by promoting
customer choice.

The State of __________ has enacted a number of laws and programs to encourage the use of
small-scale renewable energy systems including rebates, net metering, property tax exemptions,
and solar easements. [As appropriate] However, many existing zoning ordinances contain restrictions,
which while not intended to discourage the installation of small wind turbines, that can substantially
increase the time and costs required to obtain necessary construction permits.

Therefore, we find that it is necessary to standardize and streamline the proper issuance of building
permits for small wind energy systems so that this clean, renewable energy resource can be utilized
in a cost-effective and timely manner.

Section 3: Definitions
Small Wind Energy System: A wind energy conversion system consisting of a wind turbine, a tower,
and associated control or conversion electronics, which has a rated capacity of not more than 100
kilowatts (kW) and which is intended to primarily reduce on-site consumption of utility power.

Tower Height: The height above grade of the fixed portion of the tower, excluding the wind 
turbine itself.

Total Extended Height: The height above grade to a blade tip at its highest point of travel.

Section 4: Allowed Use
Small wind energy systems shall be allowed as an accessory use in all zoning districts where structures
of any sort are allowed; subject to the requirements of Section 5 below. Small wind energy systems
not meeting the performance standards of Section 5 may be allowed by conditional use permit.

See p. 4  for a sample of
cities, counties, and states
that have enacted zoning

laws for small wind systems.
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Section 5: Use Standards for Small Wind Electric Conversion System

5.01
Setback: The base of the tower shall be set back from all property lines, public right-of-ways, and
public utility lines a distance equal to the total extended height. Turbines shall be allowed closer to a
property line than its total extended height if the abutting property owner(s) grants written permission
and the installation poses no interference with public utility lines or public road and rail right-of-ways.

5.02
Tower Height: So long as the total extended height meets sound and set-back requirements, there
shall be no specific height limitation, except as imposed by Federal Aviation Administration regulations
as stated in 5.07.

5.03
Sound: Sound produced by the turbine under normal operating conditions, as measured at the
property line, shall not exceed the definition of nuisance noise. Sound levels, however, may be exceeded
during short-term events out of anyone's control such as utility outages and/or severe wind storms.

5.04
Wind Turbine Equipment: Small wind turbines must have been approved under the state public
benefits program or any other small wind certification program recognized by the American Wind
Energy Association.

5.05
Requirement for Engineered Drawings: Building permit applications for small wind energy
systems shall be accompanied by standard drawings of the wind turbine structure and stamped
engineered drawings of the tower, base, footings, and/or foundation as provided by the manufacturer.
Wet stamps shall not be required.

5.06
Soil Studies: For standard soil conditions (not including gravel, sand, or muck), foundations developed
by the wind turbine manufacturer shall be acceptable for turbine installations of 20kW or less and will
not require project-specific soils studies or an engineer's wet stamp.

5.07
Compliance with FAA Regulations: No WEC shall be constructed, altered, or maintained so as 
to project above any of the imaginary airspace surfaces described in FAR Part 77 of the FAA guidance
on airspace protection.

5.08
Compliance with National Electric Code: Building permit applications for small wind energy
systems shall be accompanied by a line drawing of the electrical components, as supplied by the
manufacturer, in sufficient detail to allow for a determination that the manner of installation conforms
to the National Electrical Code.

5.09
Utility Notification: No small wind energy system shall be installed until evidence has been given
that the utility company has been informed of the customer's intent to install an interconnected
customer-owned generator. Off-grid systems shall be exempt from this requirement.

5.10 Insurance: Additional insurance beyond homeowners' coverage shall not be required.

5.11

Abandonment: If a wind turbine is inoperable for six consecutive months the owner shall be notified
that they must, within six months of receiving the notice, restore their system to operating condition.
If the owner(s) fails to restore their system to operating condition within the six-month time frame,
then the owner shall be required, at his expense, to remove the wind turbine from the tower for safety
reasons. The tower then would be subject to the Public Nuisance provisions of the zoning code.

5.12
Signage: All signs, other than the manufacturer's or installer's identification, appropriate warning
signs, or owner identification on a wind generator, tower, building, or other structure associated with 
a small wind energy system visible from any public road shall be prohibited.

5.13 Lighting: No illumination of the turbine or tower shall be allowed unless required by the FAA.

5.14
Access: Any climbing foot pegs or rungs below 12 feet of a freestanding tower shall be removed to
prevent unauthorized climbing. For lattice or guyed towers, sheets of metal or wood may be fastened
to the bottom tower section such that it cannot readily be climbed.

For more information contact Ron Stimmel at rstimmel@awea.org. 
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SUMMARY OF THE  

ESCAMBIA COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 
QUASI-JUDICIAL AND REGULAR MEETING 

HELD ON DECEMBER 13, 2010 
ESCAMBIA COUNTY CENTRAL OFFICE COMPLEX 

3363 WEST PARK PLACE, FIRST FLOOR 
PENSACOLA, FLORIDA 

 
(8:32 A.M. – 9:50 A.M.) 

 
MEMBERS PRESENT: Wayne Briske, Chair 
 Tim Tate, Vice Chair 
 Steven Barry 
 Dorothy Davis 
 Vann Goodloe 
 Karen Sindel 
 Alvin Wingate 
 Patty Hightower, School Board Representative (non-voting) 
 Stephanie Oram, Navy Representative (non-voting) 
 
STAFF PRESENT: Stephen West, Assistant County Attorney 
 T. Lloyd Kerr, Bureau Chief, Development Services 
 Horace Jones, Division Manager, Development Review 
 Andrew Holmer, Senior Planner, Development Review 
 Allyson Cain, Planner II, Development Review 
 David Forte, Planner I, Projects & Comprehensive Planning 
 Lynette Harris, Urban Planner I, Projects & Comprehensive Planning 
 Karen Spitsbergen, SOSA, Development Review  
 
 8:32 AM Quasi-Judicial Meeting Convened 

   
1. The meeting was called to order at 8:32 a.m. with 7 voting members present.  
 
2. Invocation and pledge was given by Wingate. 
 
3. Proof of Publication was given by Karen Spitsbergen. 
 
4. Rezoning Public Hearings 

A. Case No.: Z-2010-18 
 Location: 300 Beverly Parkway (46-1S-30-2001-001-037) 
 From: R-6, Neighborhood Commercial and Residential 

District (cumulative) High Density (25 du/acre)  
 To:  C-2, General Commercial and Light 

Manufacturing District, (cumulative) (25 du/acre) 
 Requested by: Thomas G. Hammond, Jr. P.E., Agent for 

Ramzan Ali, Owner 
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 Speakers: Thomas G. Hammond, Jr. P.E., Agent 
David Forte 

 
Motion was made by Goodloe to accept staff’s findings of fact and recommend 
approval of the C-2 request, seconded by Barry and passed unanimously (7-0).  

B. Case No.: Z-2010-19 
 Location: 3407 N Tarragona Street (04-2S-30-6001-005-

021) 
 From: R-3, One-family and Two-family District 

(cumulative) Medium Density (10 du/acre) 
 To:  R-5, Urban Residential/Limited Office District 

(cumulative) High Density (20 du/acre) 
 Requested by: Leonard and Carrie Walker, Owners 
 Speakers: Leonard Walker, Owner 
  Della Cruse 

David Forte 
 
Motion was made by Tate to accept staff’s findings of fact and recommend 
approval of the R-5 request, seconded by Davis, and passed unanimously (7-
0). 
 

 9:05 AM Quasi-Judicial Meeting Adjourned 
 9:06 AM Regular Meeting Convened 
 
 1. The meeting was called to order at 9:06 a.m. with 7 voting members present. 

 
2. Proof of publication was given by Karen Spitsbergen. 
 
3. Election of Chairman and Vice-Chairman 
 

Motion was made for Briske to be retained as Chairman by Wingate, 
seconded by Sindel and passed unanimously (7-0). 
 
Motion was made for Tate to be retained as Vice Chairman by Barry, 
seconded by Sindel and passed unanimously (7-0). 

   
4.  Board Minutes 

A. RECOMMENDATION:  That the Planning Board review and approve the 
Meeting Summary Minutes of the November 8, 2010 Planning Board Meeting. 

Motion was made by Goodloe to approve the meeting minutes, 
seconded by Sindel and passed unanimously (7-0). 
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B. Planning Board Monthly Action Follow-up Report for December 2010. 
 

 C. Planning Board 6-Month Outlook for December 2010. 
 
 
5. Public Hearings 
 

A. LDC Ordinance – Article 3 & 6 “Wind Turbines”; presented by David 
Forte, Urban Planner I, Projects & Comprehensive Planning 

 
RECOMMENDATION: 

 
That the Planning Board review and recommend approval to the Board of 
County Commissioners (BCC) for adoption, an Ordinance to the Land 
Development Code (LDC) amending Article 3 “Definitions,” to define “small 
wind energy systems” and “wind turbines”; and amending Article 6 “Zoning 
Districts,” to add such structures as an allowable accessory use, provided all 
standards are met. 
 
Motion was made by Tate to recommend approval to the BCC for 
adoption, seconded by Barry and passed unanimously (7-0). 
 

B. LDC Ordinance – Article 3, 6 & 7 “Outdoor Sales & Outdoor Storage”; 
presented by David Forte, Urban Planner I, Projects & Comprehensive 
Planning 

 
  RECOMMENDATION: 
 

That the Planning Board review and recommend approval to the Board of 
County Commissioners (BCC) for adoption, an Ordinance to the Land 
Development Code (LDC) amending Article 3 “Definitions,” to define “outdoor 
sales” and redefine “outdoor storage”; amending Article 6 “Zoning Districts,” 
to create Section 6.04.18 to add tables for outdoor storage categories and 
outdoor standards and amending Sections 6.05.14 and 6.05.16 to establish 
the zoning districts where outdoor sales are permitted; and amending Article 
7 “Performance Standards” to clarify screening for outdoor storage. 
 
No action was taken as it was sent back to staff for further revisions. 

   
6. Bureau Chief’s Report 
 

 Mr. Kerr gave a brief update on the status of the EAR Based Amendments. 

7. County Attorney’s Report 

No Action taken.   
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8. Scheduling of Future Meetings 

A. The next Regular Planning Board meeting is scheduled for Monday, January 
10, 2011 at 8:30 a.m., in the Escambia County Central Office Complex, Board 
Meeting Room, Room 104, 3363 West Park Place, Pensacola, Florida. 

9. Announcements/Communications 

10.  Adjournment 

9:50 AM – Regular Board Meeting Adjourned 
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    Public Hearing    Item #:  4.     
Growth Management Report
Date: 02/03/2011  

Issue: 5:47 p.m.- Public Hearing - Parade of Homes - Issuance of Additional Model Home
Permits

From: T. Lloyd Kerr, AICP
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
That the Board approve the issuance of an additional six model home permits for purposes of
constructing the display homes for the annual Parade of Homes event, pursuant to Article
4.01.03.E of the Land Development Code (LDC).  The event is scheduled to be held April 16-24,
2011, in the Fiddler's Walk subdivision.

BACKGROUND:
The annual Parade of Homes typically includes model homes in various price ranges for public
viewing, made available later for purchase and occupancy.  Model homes are included in  LDC
Section 4.01.03.E  which states, " The Board of County Commissioners may authorize at a duly
noticed public hearing the issuance of additional model home permits under special
circumstances (e.g., the Parade of Homes), if additional assurances of infrastructure completion
are provided".  Issuance of the model home permits does not authorize issuance of a certificate
of occupancy.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel required.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This recommendation is in compliance with LDC Section 4.01.03.E of the Land Development
Code.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
Letter of Request





    Consent    Item #:  1.     
Growth Management Report
Date: 02/03/2011  

Issue: Schedule of Public Hearings
From: T. Lloyd Kerr, AICP
Organization: Development Services

RECOMMENDATION:
That the Board authorize the scheduling of the following Public Hearing(s):

Thursday, March 3, 2011 

5:45 p.m. - A Public Hearing to amend the Official Zoning Map to include the following Rezoning
Case to be heard by the Planning Board on February 7, 2011.

Case No. Z-2011-02
Location: 5890 Hwy 99
Property Reference
No.:

05-3N-32-1310-000-000

Property Size: 23.82(+/-)
From: VAG-1, Villages Agriculture District (5 du/100 acres on one acre

parcels)
To: VAG-2, Villages Agriculture District ( 1 du/5 acres)
FLU Category: AG, Agriculture
Commissioner District: 5
Requested by: Michael E. Black and Kristi Y. Black, Owners 



AI-393     Item #:  14.     
BCC Regular Meeting
Date: 02/03/2011  

SUBJECT:

Attachments
County Administrator's Report



               
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT

February 3, 2011
             
I.   Technical/Public Service Consent Agenda

 

1. Recommendation Concerning Request for Disposition of Surplus Property for the
Office of the Public Defender, First Circuit, Escambia County Office - David
Lambert, IT Director

That the Board approve the Request for Disposition of Property Form for the
Office of the Public Defender, First Circuit, Escambia County Office, for property to
be auctioned as surplus or properly disposed of, which is listed on the Disposition
Form with agency and reason stated.

 

2. Recommendation Concerning Disposition of Surplus County Property for the
Public Works Bureau - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Bureau Chief

That the Board approve the two Requests for Disposition of Property Forms
indicating four items – a flatbed crew truck and various other equipment – all of
which are described and listed on the Requests, with reasons for disposition
stated on each.  The items are to be auctioned as surplus or properly disposed of.

 

3. Recommendation Concerning the Request for Disposition of Surplus Property for
the Corrections Bureau – Gordon C. Pike, Corrections Bureau Chief

That the Board approve the Request for Disposition of Property Form, for property
which is described and listed on the  Request, with reason for disposition stated.
The item is to be auctioned as surplus or properly disposed of.

 

4. Recommendation Concerning Community Center License and Management
Agreement with Ebonwood Homeowners & Neighborhood Watch Community, Inc.
- Keith Wilkins, REP, Community & Environment Interim Bureau Chief

That the Board approve and authorize the Chairman to sign the Community
Center License and Management Agreement between the County and Ebonwood
Homeowners & Neighborhood Watch Community, Inc., for the Ebonwood
Community Center, with an effective date of September 24, 2010.

 

5. Recommendation Concerning Appointments to the Escambia County Mass Transit
Advisory Committee - Larry M. Newsom, Interim Assistant County Administrator

That the Board take the following action concerning the District 2 and District 3
appointments to the Escambia County Mass Transit Advisory Committee (MTAC):



A.  Confirm the appointment of Jesse Casey as the District 2 representative to the
Escambia County Mass Transit Advisory Committee, with the term of the
appointment to be effective February 4, 2011, and to run concurrent with the term
of Commissioner Gene M. Valentino (November 2014);

B.  Confirm the appointment of Bonita Player, PE, as the District 3 representative
to the Escambia County Mass Transit Advisory Committee, with the term of the
appointment to be effective February 4, 2011, and to run concurrent with the term
of Commissioner Marie Young (2012); and

C.  Request the County Administrator's Office to provide letters of appreciation to
Sherri Myers, District 2 appointee, and Edward McCorvey, District 3 appointee, for
their service. 
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II.  Budget/Finance Consent Agenda

 

1. Recommendation Concerning Ratification of Purchase Order No. 110411 Issued
to Gentry & Associates, LLC - Charles R. "Randy" Oliver, CPA PE

That the Board ratify Purchase Order No. 110411 issued to Gentry & Associates,
LLC, for Fiscal Year 2010/2011, in the amount of $60,000, based upon the
previously-awarded Contract PD 08-09.023.  [Funding: Fund 001, General Fund,
Cost Center 110201, Object Code 53101.]

 

2. Recommendation Concerning Letter of Agreement Between Escambia County and
the State Agency for Health Care Administration (AHCA) for Health Care Services
- Amy Lovoy Management & Budget Services Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action concerning the Letter of Agreement for
Health Care Services:

A.  Approve the Letter of Agreement between Escambia County and the State of
Florida through its Agency for Health Care Administration (AHCA) for Health Care
Services, in the amount of $65,824; and

B.  Approve any required Purchase Order.

[Funding: Fund 103, Economic Development Fund, Cost Center 360704,
Economic Development]

 

3. Recommendation Concerning Supplemental Budget Amendment #093 - Sheriff
Vehicle Sale Revenue - Amy Lovoy, Management and Budget Services Bureau
Chief

That the Board adopt the Resolution approving Supplemental Budget Amendment
#093, Local Option Sales Tax (LOST) III, Fund (352) in the amount of $145,430, to
recognize proceeds from the sale of surplus law enforcement vehicles, and to
appropriate these funds back to the Sheriff's LOST budget allocation for Fiscal
Year 2010/2011 for vehicle replacement.

 

4. Recommendation Concerning Supplemental Budget Amendment #096 - Amy
Lovoy, Management and Budget Services Bureau Chief

That the Board adopt the Resolution approving Supplemental Budget Amendment
#096, General Fund (001) in the amount of $7,000, to recognize a private
donation from the Edward Spencer Revocable Trust, and to appropriate these
funds for a new K-9 Unit at the Escambia Sheriff's Office.
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5. Recommendation Concerning Supplemental Budget Amendment #097-
Ex-Oriskany PCB Artificial Reef Monitoring Grant - Amy Lovoy, Management and
Budget Services Bureau Chief

That the Board adopt the Resolution approving Supplemental Budget Amendment
#097, Other Grants and Projects Fund (110) in the amount of $53,000, to
recognize proceeds from the State of Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation
Commission, and to appropriate these funds to be used for reef monitoring.

 

6. Recommendation Concerning Supplemental Budget Amendment #101 - 2008 FTA
Grant - Amy Lovoy, Management and Budget Services Bureau Chief

That the Board adopt the Resolution approving Supplemental Budget Amendment
#101, FTA Capital Projects Fund (320) in the amount of $93,377, to recognize
proceeds from the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), and to appropriate these
funds to be used for various mass transit capital projects associated with the
Escambia County Area Transit System (ECAT).

 

7. Recommendation Concerning 2010 Community Development Block Grant
Program Fire Protection Improvements Project - Keith Wilkins, REP, Community &
Environment Interim Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action regarding the 2010 Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Fire Protection Improvements Project:
 
A.  Approve the Interlocal Agreement with the Emerald Coast Utilities Authority
(ECUA), in the amount of $175,000, providing for the completion of the Fire
Protection Improvements Project (2010), including installation of fire hydrants and
associated water main upgrades, primarily within Census Tracts 28 and 29; and

B.  Authorize the Chairman or Vice Chairman to execute the Agreement and all
related documents as required to implement the project.
  
[Funding: Fund 129/2010 CDBG, Cost Center: 220435]
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8. Recommendation Concerning Neighborhood Stabilization Program 3 (NSP3)

Substantial Amendment - Keith Wilkins, REP, Community & Environment Interim
Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action concerning the Neighborhood
Stabilization Program 3 (NSP3) Substantial Amendment to 2010 Escambia
Consortium Annual Action Plan:
 
A.  Approve and authorize submission of a Substantial Amendment to the 2010
Escambia Consortium Annual Action Plan to incorporate $1,210,487, in
Neighborhood Stabilization Program 3 (NSP3) funding to undertake activities
targeting the acquisition, rehabilitation or redevelopment of foreclosed, vacant or
abandoned properties in designated areas of Escambia County and the City of
Pensacola, as provided by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban
Development (HUD) under the National Housing Economic Recovery Act of 2008
(HERA), as amended; and 

B.  Authorize the County Administrator to execute the 2010 Substantial
Amendment and related NSP3 Program forms, certifications, and any related
documents, as may be required to submit the Amendment to HUD and authorize
the County Administrator or Chairman, as appropriate, to execute all documents
required to receive the NSP3 funds and to implement the NSP3 Program.

[Funding: Fund/Cost Center to be assigned]
 

9. Recommendation Concerning Recycling Collection Services Agreement PD
10-11.017- Keith Wilkins, REP, Community & Environment Interim Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action concerning Escambia County’s Office
Recycling Program, PD 10-11.017:

A.  Authorize the County to piggyback off the Escambia County School District
Recycling Collection Services Agreement, which was made and entered into as
of the 26th day of August, 2010, (the effective date), between the Escambia
County School District and West Florida Recycling, LLC, in accordance with the
Escambia County Code of Ordinances, Chapter 46, Article II; and

B.  Award a Contract to West Florida Recycling, LLC, at no cost to the County, for
collection and processing of County facility generated recyclables. 

[Funding: N/A]
 

10. Recommendation Concerning Lake Stone Campground Facility Management
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10. Recommendation Concerning Lake Stone Campground Facility Management
Agreement - Keith Wilkins, REP, Community & Environment Interim Bureau Chief

That the Board approve the Agreement between the County and Mervyn Leroy
Simmons for the Management of the Lake Stone Campground Facility and
authorize the County Administrator to sign the Agreement.

[Funding Source: General Fund 001, Lake Stone Cost Center 220804 = $10,200,
paid via 12, equal, monthly installments of $850 with housing and utilities
provided]

 

11. Recommendation Concerning State of Florida, Division of Emergency
Management Federal Fiscal Year 2010 Homeland Security Grant Program
Award – Michael D. Weaver, Public Safety Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action concerning the State of Florida, Division
of Emergency Management (FDEM) Federal Fiscal Year 2010 Homeland
Security Grant Program award for the Citizen Corps and Community Emergency
Response Team (CERT) Programs, allocating to Escambia County a Grant
totaling $20,951, for the period of August 1, 2010, through January 31, 2013:

A.  Accept the FDEM Award, allocating $10,475.50 each, for the Citizen Corps
and CERT Grant Programs, to be identified in Fund 110, Other Grants and
Projects, Cost Centers 330458 and 330430, respectively;

B.  Authorize the Chairman to sign the Grant Award Letter; and

C.  Authorize the County Administrator to execute the associated Grant
Agreements.
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12. Recommendation Concerning the Florida Department of Health, Bureau of

Emergency Medical Services (EMS), EMS Matching Grant Application – Michael
D. Weaver, Public Safety Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action concerning the Florida Department of
Health, Bureau of Emergency Medical Services (EMS), EMS Matching Grant
Application for 2010/2011, in the amount of $49,495, with a 25% County match,
for the purpose of providing Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) to each
Escambia County Emergency Medical Specialist:

A.  Approve the EMS Matching Grant Application; and

B.  Authorize the Chairman to sign the Grant Application and all related
documents.

[Funding Source:  Fund 408, Emergency Medical Service; Cost Center 330302,
EMS Operations; Account Code 55201, Operating Supplies]

 

13. Recommendation Concerning the Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Office
of Criminal Justice, Residential Substance Abuse Treatment Grant for the
Corrections Bureau – Gordon C. Pike, Corrections Bureau Chief

That the Board accept the Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Office of
Criminal Justice, Residential Substance Abuse Treatment (RSAT) Grant for
Pathways for Change Male Group, in the amount of $50,000, with a match of
$17,000, for a total of $67,000, and ratify the Chairman’s signature on the Grant
Application and Certification of Acceptance.

[Funding Source: $17,000 has been budgeted in Fund 001, General Fund, Cost
Center 110201, Object Code 54901, to serve as the required 25% match for the
Grant]

 

14. Recommendation Concerning Reallocation of Fiscal Year 2010-2011 Capital
Improvement Program Funds - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Bureau
Chief

That the Board approve the reallocation of funds totaling $4,365,860, from Fiscal
Year 2010/2011 Capital Improvement Program to projects listed in Attachment
"A".  Various issues have hindered progress and affected the ability to construct
some projects as previously scheduled, so staff is requesting the Board's
approval to reallocate funds, so that we can move forward with projects that are
currently in progress or are ready for design/construction.

[Funding Source:  Fund 352, "Local Option Sales Tax III", Account 210107]
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15. Recommendation Concerning the Acquisition of Property, by Donation, for
Drainage Improvements in the Greenbrier Boulevard Drainage Area - Joy D.
Blackmon, P.E., Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action concerning acquisition of property, by
donation, for drainage improvements in the Greenbrier Boulevard Drainage Area:

A.  Authorize staff to negotiate and resolve any matters related to, or associated
with the acquisition of property, by donation, for drainage improvements in the
Greenbrier Boulevard Drainage Area, and to gather information and conduct
inspections as needed, to allow the Board’s acceptance of the real property;

B.  Authorize the payment of documentary stamps because the property is being
acquired for governmental use, which is for drainage Easements, and the County
benefits from these acquisitions because they facilitate the installation of
drainage improvements, which will result in a more efficient and safe
roadway, enhancing the quality of life for the citizens of Escambia County;

C.  Authorize the payment of incidental expenditures associated with the
acquisition of these properties, which includes, but is not limited to, a title search,
documentary stamp tax and recording of documents; and

D.  Authorize staff to prepare and the Chairman or Vice Chairman to accept the
drainage Easements as of the day of delivery of the Easements to the Chairman
or Vice Chairman, and authorize the Chairman or Vice Chairman to acknowledge
the Board’s acceptance at that time, subject to Legal review and sign-off.

[Funding Source: Fund 352, LOST III, Account 210107/56301, Project
#11EN0955 "Greenbrier"] 
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III. For Discussion

 

1. Recommendation Concerning County Payroll Procedures - Charles R. "Randy"
Oliver, CPA PE, County Administrator

That the Board approve changing the County payroll procedures to reflect an
employee's choice of payment by either direct deposit or the Bank of America
Payroll Debit Card Program.  This will result in no further need to print or distribute
paychecks or direct deposit vouchers.

 

2. Recommendation Concerning a Resolution to Adopt Development Services Policy
Entitled "72-Hours or It's Free" - T. Lloyd Kerr, AICP, Development Services
Bureau Chief

That the Board adopt a Resolution to establish a Development Services Policy
entitled "72-Hours or It's Free" that will provide timely and responsive service for
the citizens in regard to Building Permitting Procedures, and providing an effective
date. 

 

3. Recommendation Concerning Revenue Settlement with BP for Revenues Lost in
Fiscal Year 2010 as a Result of the Deepwater Horizon Oil Spill - Amy
Lovoy, Management & Budget Services Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action concerning the Settlement with BP for
revenues lost in Fiscal Year 2010:

A.  Approve a settlement with BP for revenues lost in Fiscal Year 2010 as a result
of the Deepwater Horizon Oil Spill as shown in the backup; and 

B.  Approve a release with BP for these revenues subject to Legal sign-off.
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4. Discussion Concerning Siguenza Cove Canal Dredging - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E.,

Public Works Bureau Chief

That the Board consider the following action concerning the Siguenza Cove Canal
dredging:

A.  Authorize staff to pursue the acquisition of Hold Harmless Agreements or other
financial assurances;

B.  Upon satisfactory receipt of the Hold Harmless Agreements, accept for
permanent County maintenance and public use the canal (Canal) as shown on the
plat of Siguenza Cove Subdivision, recorded in Plat Book 5, Page 12, of the Public
Records of Escambia County, Florida;

C.  Approve transferring $80,000 from Fund 352, "LOST III" (Local Option Sales
Tax III), Account 210107, Project #08EN0301, "Coral Creek S/D Drainage", to
Fund 352, "LOST III", Account 210107, Project Number to be set up, "Siguenza
Cove"; and

D.  Authorize the Chairman or Vice-Chairman to execute the Hold Harmless
Agreements subject to Legal review and sign-off.
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5. Recommendation Concerning the Approval of a Ground Lease and Memorandum

of Lease with The School Board of Escambia County, Florida - Joy D. Blackmon,
P.E., Public Works Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action concerning the approval of a Ground
Lease and Memorandum of Lease between Escambia County, Florida, and The
School Board of Escambia County, Florida, for a one acre parcel of property,
located at the southwest corner of the Warrington Elementary School property, for
the purpose of constructing a sub-station facility for the Escambia County Sheriff's
Office:

A.  Approve the Ground Lease and Memorandum of Lease at a cost of $10
annually for a period of 99 years;

B.  Authorize the payment of incidental expenditures associated with the approval
of the Ground Lease and Memorandum of Lease; which includes, but is not limited
to, recording of documents; and

C.  Authorize the Chairman or Vice Chairman to execute, subject to legal review
and sign off, the Ground Lease and Memorandum of Lease as of the day of
delivery and authorize the Chairman or Vice Chairman to acknowledge the Board’s
acceptance at that time.

[Funding Source: Fund 351, LOST II, Account 540110/56101]

(GROUND LEASE & MEMORANDUM OF LEASE TO BE DISTRIBUTED
UNDER SEPARATE COVER)
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    Technical/Public Service Consent    Item #:  1.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 02/03/2011  

Issue: Surplus Information Systems Property
From: David Lambert
Organization: Escambia County Public Defender
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Request for Disposition of Surplus Property for the Office
of the Public Defender, First Circuit, Escambia County Office - David Lambert, IT Director

That the Board approve the Request for Disposition of Property Form for the Office of
the Public Defender, First Circuit, Escambia County Office, for property to be auctioned
as surplus or properly disposed of, which is listed on the Disposition Form with agency
and reason stated.

BACKGROUND:
Escambia County establishes policy for disposing of surplus or obsolete equipment. 
This policy and procedure is in accordance with FS 274.07. 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This recommendation is in compliance with FS 274.07 and BCC Policy B-1, 2, Section II,
Procedures for Disposition of County Property. 

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A



N/A

Attachments
Request for Disposition of Property Form







    Technical/Public Service Consent    Item #:  2.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 02/03/2011  

Issue: Recommendation for Property Disposition
From: Joy D. Blackmon, P.E.
Organization: Public Works
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Disposition of Surplus County Property for the Public
Works Bureau - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Bureau Chief

That the Board approve the two Requests for Disposition of Property Forms
indicating four items – a flatbed crew truck and various other equipment – all of which
are described and listed on the Requests, with reasons for disposition stated on each. 
The items are to be auctioned as surplus or properly disposed of.

BACKGROUND:
All surplus property listed on the attached Requests for Disposition of Property has been
checked and declared either surplus to be auctioned or surplus to be properly disposed
of. The Requests have been signed by all applicable authorities, including Division
Manager, Bureau Chief, County Administrator and if applicable, Information Technology
Technician.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Possible recoup of funds if/when property goes to auction.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This recommendation is in compliance with FS 274.07 and BCC Policy B-1, 2, Section II,
Procedures for Disposition of County Property.



IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Upon approval by the BCC, Disposing Bureau, Constitutional Officer, or Outside Agency
must put items in good condition on the “Pensacola Community Auction” website for 30
days. All other property will be disposed of according to the Disposition of County
Property policies of the BCC.

Attachments
Requests for Disposition







    Technical/Public Service Consent    Item #:  3.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 02/03/2011  

Issue: Disposition of Surplus County Property
From: Gordon Pike
Organization: Corrections
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Request for Disposition of Surplus Property for the
Corrections Bureau – Gordon C. Pike, Corrections Bureau Chief

That the Board approve the Request for Disposition of Property Form, for property
which is described and listed on the  Request, with reason for disposition stated. The
item is to be auctioned as surplus or properly disposed of.

BACKGROUND:
All surplus property listed on the attached Request for Disposition of Property has been
checked and declared either surplus to be auctioned or surplus to be property disposed
of.  The Request has been signed by all applicable authorities, including Property
Custodian, Bureau Chief and the Interim County Administrator or designee.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Possible recoup of funds if/when property goes to auction.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This recommendation is in compliance with FS 274.07 and BCC Policy B-1, 2, Section II,
Procedures for Disposition of County Property.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Upon approval by the BCC, Disposing Bureau, Constitutional Officer, or Outside Agency



Upon approval by the BCC, Disposing Bureau, Constitutional Officer, or Outside Agency
must put items in good condition on the “Pensacola Community Auction” website for 30
days. All other property will be disposed of according to the Disposition of County
Property policies of the BCC.

Attachments
Disposition of Property



REQUEST FOR DISPOSITION OF PROPERTY
ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

DATE: 12/15/1 0 TO: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

FROM: Corrections Bureau-Road Prison COST CENTER NO: 290202
Property Custodian (PRINT NAME)

REQUEST THE FOLLOWING ITEM(S) TO BE DISPOSED:
ITEM PROPERTY DESCRIPTION OF ITEM SERIAL NUMBER MODEL YEAR CON-
NO. NUMBER DITION

1 51632 Van (passenger)

DISPOSAL METHOD: Junked
Donated x

Auction / Sold
Other: Totaled

Disposing Dept. Corrections Bureau-Road Prison

Property Custodian (Signature), ~ ~hone 0' --'-0"",,'-- _

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY (IT Technician):
Print Name

Conditions: Dispose to Charity-Unusable for BOCC
___ Send for recycling-Unusable

Computer is Ready for Disposition
Date: Information Technology Technician Signature:

TO: County Administration

FROM: Escambia County Bureau
Date: ~2.0~ ~
~ ~.

RECOMMENDATION:
TO: Board of County Commissioners
FROM: County Administration

Date: 11612011

Charles R. "Randy" Oliver, CPA PE, County Administrator

Approved by the County Commission and Recorded in the Minutes of:
I Ernie Lee Magaha/Clerk of the CircuitCourt& Comptroller

By (DeputyClerk)

This Equipment Has Been Auctioned / Sold

by: _

Print Name Signature Date
Property Tag Returned to Clerk & Comptroller's Finance Department

Clerk & Comptroller's Finance Signature of Receipt Date
dg 8-28-08



    Technical/Public Service Consent    Item #:  4.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 02/03/2011  

Issue: Community Center License and Management Agreement with
Ebonwood Homeowners and Neighborhood Watch Community, Inc.

From: Keith Wilkins, REP, Interim Bureau Chief
Organization: Community & Environment
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Community Center License and Management Agreement
with Ebonwood Homeowners & Neighborhood Watch Community, Inc. - Keith Wilkins,
REP, Community & Environment Interim Bureau Chief

That the Board approve and authorize the Chairman to sign the Community Center
License and Management Agreement between the County and Ebonwood Homeowners
& Neighborhood Watch Community, Inc., for the Ebonwood Community Center, with an
effective date of September 24, 2010.

BACKGROUND:
The Community & Environment Bureau, Community Services Division, at the direction of
the Board of County Commissioners, has partnered with local, non-profit organizations
in the management of community centers throughout the county. These organizations
assist in providing a vital service to the citizens of their communities by their operations.
The Ebonwood Homeowners & Neighborhood Watch Community, Inc. is the current
management partner of the Ebonwood Community Center. 

The majority of the County-owned community centers operate under Community Center
License and Management Agreements. A partially executed copy of the agreement has
been attached to the recommendation for reference purposes.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The Community Center License and Management Agreement was prepared in



The Community Center License and Management Agreement was prepared in
conjunction with the County Attorney Office, and was approved as to form and legal
sufficiency.

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Board policy requires the approval of the Board for such agreements involving
County-owned property.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
The Community & Environment Bureau, Community Services Division will coordinate all
efforts on behalf of the County with the respective organization regarding the agreement.

Attachments
License and Management Agreement for Ebonwood Community Center



















    Technical/Public Service Consent    Item #:  5.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 02/03/2011  

Issue: Appointments To The Escambia County Mass Transit Advisory
Committee

From: Larry M. Newsom, Interim Assistant County Adm
Organization: Transportation & Traffic
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Appointments to the Escambia County Mass Transit
Advisory Committee - Larry M. Newsom, Interim Assistant County Administrator

That the Board take the following action concerning the District 2 and District 3
appointments to the Escambia County Mass Transit Advisory Committee (MTAC):

A.  Confirm the appointment of Jesse Casey as the District 2 representative to the
Escambia County Mass Transit Advisory Committee, with the term of the appointment to
be effective February 4, 2011, and to run concurrent with the term of Commissioner
Gene M. Valentino (November 2014);

B.  Confirm the appointment of Bonita Player, PE, as the District 3 representative to the
Escambia County Mass Transit Advisory Committee, with the term of the appointment to
be effective February 4, 2011, and to run concurrent with the term of Commissioner
Marie Young (2012); and

C.  Request the County Administrator's Office to provide letters of appreciation to Sherri
Myers, District 2 appointee, and Edward McCorvey, District 3 appointee, for their
service. 

BACKGROUND:
On January 12, 2011, Sherri Myers resigned her appoinment at the MTAC meeting due
to her winning the election to serve on the Pensacola City Council.  In November 2010,
Edward McCorvey resigned his appoinment due to accepting employment that would
relocate him overseas. Both Jesse Casey and Bonita Player, PE, have submitted their
resumes expressing interest in the appointments.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:



N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Board policy requires that all established Committee appointments have Board approval.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Upon approval by the Board, these appointments shall become effective.

Attachments
District 2 and 3 Appointees to MTAC









    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  1.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 02/03/2011  

Issue: Ratification of Purchase Order No. 110411 Issued to Gentry &
Associates, LLC

From: Charles R. (Randy) Oliver, CPA PE
Organization: County Administrator's Office
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Ratification of Purchase Order No. 110411 Issued to
Gentry & Associates, LLC - Charles R. "Randy" Oliver, CPA PE

That the Board ratify Purchase Order No. 110411 issued to Gentry & Associates, LLC,
for Fiscal Year 2010/2011, in the amount of $60,000, based upon the
previously-awarded Contract PD 08-09.023.  [Funding: Fund 001, General Fund, Cost
Center 110201, Object Code 53101.]

BACKGROUND:
The Board awarded Contract PD 08-09.23 to Gentry & Associates LLC to provide
lobbying services to Escambia County. Purchase Order No. 110411 was issued to
Gentry & Associates, LLC to cover these services for FY 2010/2011 and was
inadvertently omitted from the list of Purchase Orders over $50,000 previously
submitted to the Board for approval.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Fund 001 General, Cost Center 110201, Object Code 53101.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A



POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This recommendation is in compliance with the provisions of the Code of Ordinances of
Escambia County, Florida, 1999, Chapter 46, Finance, Article II, Purchases and
Contracts.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
This recommendation has been coordinated with the staff of the Purchasing Division
and Clerk’s Finance Division.

Attachments
Gentry PO





    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  2.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 02/03/2011  

Issue: Letter of Agreement with AHCA for Health Care Services
From: Amy Lovoy
Organization: Management and Budget Services
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Letter of Agreement Between Escambia County and the
State Agency for Health Care Administration (AHCA) for Health Care Services - Amy
Lovoy Management & Budget Services Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action concerning the Letter of Agreement for Health
Care Services:

A.  Approve the Letter of Agreement between Escambia County and the State of Florida
through its Agency for Health Care Administration (AHCA) for Health Care Services, in
the amount of $65,824; and

B.  Approve any required Purchase Order.

[Funding: Fund 103, Economic Development Fund, Cost Center 360704, Economic
Development]

BACKGROUND:
This Agreement will allow the County to contribute a total of $65,824 to the State from
the existing allocation to the Escambia Community Clinics as a grant match.  Escambia
Community Clinics will then receive a total of $294,000 from the AHCA.  These funds
will be used by the Clinics to hire 8 positions who will be used at area hospitals to
navigate clients to the appropriate health care resource.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Funds are available in the existing allocation to the Escambia Community Clinics.  No
further funds are needed.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:



This contract has been reviewed by the County Attorney's Office

PERSONNEL:
No change in County personnel.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
AHCA LIP Agreement









    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  3.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 02/03/2011  

Issue: SBA#093 - Sheriff Vehicle Sale Revenue
From: Amy Lovoy
Organization: Management and Budget Services
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Supplemental Budget Amendment #093 - Sheriff Vehicle
Sale Revenue - Amy Lovoy, Management and Budget Services Bureau Chief

That the Board adopt the Resolution approving Supplemental Budget Amendment #093,
Local Option Sales Tax (LOST) III, Fund (352) in the amount of $145,430, to recognize
proceeds from the sale of surplus law enforcement vehicles, and to appropriate these
funds back to the Sheriff's LOST budget allocation for Fiscal Year 2010/2011 for vehicle
replacement.

BACKGROUND:
The Sheriff's Office has surplused some of its older law enforcement fleet, the revenues
generated due to auctioning these vehicles must be recognized and appropriated
accordingly. These funds will be placed in the Sheriff's vehicle replacement LOST III
allocation, Project #08SH0018 for Fiscal Year 2010/11.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
This amendment will increase LOST III Fund 352 by $145,430.  

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Board policy requires increases and decreases in revenues to be approved by the
Board. 



IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
Sheriff Vehicle Sale Revenue



Board of County Commissioners
Escambia County Resolution Number

Supplemental Budget Amendment Resolution R2011-

  WHEREAS, the following revenues were unanticipated in the adopted budget for Escambia County
and the Board of County Commissioners now desires to appropriate said funds within the budget.

  WHEREAS, the Escambia County Sheriff has sold older vehicles in auction generating additional LOST 
funds and these revenues must be recognized and appropriated.

  NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida,
that in accordance with Florida Statutes, Section 129.06 (2d), it does hereby appropriate in the following
funds and accounts in the budget of the fiscal year ending September 30, 2011:

LOST III 352
Fund Name Fund Number

Revenue Title Fund Number Account Code Amount
Sale Of Equipment 352 364002 $145,430

Total $145,430

Account Code/
Appropriations Title Fund Number/Cost Center Project Number Amount

Machinery & Equipment 352/540115 56401/08SH0018 $145,430

Total $145,430

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida,
that the foregoing Supplemental Budget Amendment be made effective upon adoption of this Resolution.

ATTEST: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
ERNIE LEE MAGAHA OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT

Kevin W. White, Chairman
Deputy Clerk

Adopted

OMB Approved

Supplemental Budget Amendment
# 093



    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  4.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 02/03/2011  

Issue: Supplemental Budget Amendment #096 - Sheriff Donation for K-9 Unit
From: Amy Lovoy
Organization: Management and Budget Services
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Supplemental Budget Amendment #096 - Amy Lovoy,
Management and Budget Services Bureau Chief

That the Board adopt the Resolution approving Supplemental Budget Amendment #096,
General Fund (001) in the amount of $7,000, to recognize a private donation from the
Edward Spencer Revocable Trust, and to appropriate these funds for a new K-9 Unit at
the Escambia Sheriff's Office.

BACKGROUND:
The Sheriff's Office has received a private donation for the purchase of a new K-9 Unit.
These funds will increase the FY10/11 Sheriff's Budget and must be approved by the
Board.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
This amendment will increase the Sheriff's Budget allocation in Fund 001 by $7,000.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Board policy requires increases and decreases in revenues to be approved by the Board.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A



N/A

Attachments
Sheriff Donation K-9 Unit



Board of County Commissioners
Escambia County Resolution Number

Supplemental Budget Amendment Resolution R2011-

  WHEREAS, the following revenues were unanticipated in the adopted budget for Escambia County
and the Board of County Commissioners now desires to appropriate said funds within the budget.

  WHEREAS, the Escambia County Sheriff has received a donation from a private source for the purchase 
of a new K-9 unit and these revenues must be recognized and appropriated into the FY10/11 Sheriff's 
Budget.

  NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida,
that in accordance with Florida Statutes, Section 129.06 (2d), it does hereby appropriate in the following
funds and accounts in the budget of the fiscal year ending September 30, 2011:

General Fund 1
Fund Name Fund Number

Revenue Title Fund Number Account Code Amount
Donations - Sheriff 1 366222 $7,000

Total $7,000

Account Code/
Appropriations Title Fund Number/Cost Center Project Number Amount

Capital Outlay 001/540101 59704 $7,000

Total $7,000

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida,
that the foregoing Supplemental Budget Amendment be made effective upon adoption of this Resolution.

ATTEST: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
ERNIE LEE MAGAHA OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT

Kevin W. White, Chairman
Deputy Clerk

Adopted

OMB Approved

Supplemental Budget Amendment
#096



    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  5.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 02/03/2011  

Issue: Supplemental Budget Amendment #097 - Ex-Oriskany PCB Artificial
Reef Monitoring Grant

From: Amy Lovoy
Organization: Management and Budget Services
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Supplemental Budget Amendment #097- Ex-Oriskany
PCB Artificial Reef Monitoring Grant - Amy Lovoy, Management and Budget Services
Bureau Chief

That the Board adopt the Resolution approving Supplemental Budget Amendment #097,
Other Grants and Projects Fund (110) in the amount of $53,000, to recognize proceeds
from the State of Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, and to appropriate
these funds to be used for reef monitoring.

BACKGROUND:
Escambia County Marine Resources Division has been awarded $53,000 from Florida
Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission (FWC) for the monitoring of background
PCB levels in fish tissue near the Oriskany reef site in the Gulf of Mexico as required by
US Environmental Protection Agency.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
This amendment will increase Fund 110 by $53,000. No matching funds are required.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Board policy requires increases and decreases in revenues to be approved by the Board.



IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
Ex-Oriskany PCB Monitoring Grant SBA# 097



Board of County Commissioners
Escambia County Resolution Number

Supplemental Budget Amendment Resolution R2011-

  WHEREAS, the following revenues were unanticipated in the adopted budget for Escambia County
and the Board of County Commissioners now desires to appropriate said funds within the budget.

  WHEREAS, Escambia County was awarded a grant from the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation 
Commission (FWC) for Ex-Oriskany PCB Artificial Reef Monitoring, and these revenues must be recognized 
and appropriated.

  NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida,
that in accordance with Florida Statutes, Section 129.06 (2d), it does hereby appropriate in the following
funds and accounts in the budget of the fiscal year ending September 30, 2011:

Other Grants and Projects 110
Fund Name Fund Number

Revenue Title Fund Number Account Code Amount
Oriskany PCB Monitoring 110 334326 $53,000

Total $53,000

Account Code/
Appropriations Title Fund Number/Cost Center Project Number Amount

Professional Services 110/220338 53101 $53,000

Total $53,000

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida,
that the foregoing Supplemental Budget Amendment be made effective upon adoption of this Resolution.

ATTEST: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
ERNIE LEE MAGAHA OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT

Kevin W. White, Chairman
Deputy Clerk

Adopted

OMB Approved

Supplemental Budget Amendment
#097



    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  6.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 02/03/2011  

Issue: Supplemental Budget Amendment #101 - 2008 FTA Grant
From: Amy Lovoy
Organization: Management and Budget Services
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Supplemental Budget Amendment #101 - 2008 FTA
Grant - Amy Lovoy, Management and Budget Services Bureau Chief

That the Board adopt the Resolution approving Supplemental Budget Amendment #101,
FTA Capital Projects Fund (320) in the amount of $93,377, to recognize proceeds from
the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), and to appropriate these funds to be used for
various mass transit capital projects associated with the Escambia County Area Transit
System (ECAT).

BACKGROUND:
Escambia County Area Transit System (ECAT) was awarded additional funds for the
2008 Federal Transit Grant (Project FL 90-X666), and this portion of funds were not
budgeted in FY 2010/11. 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
This amendment will increase Fund 320 by $93,377.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Board policy requires increases and decreases in revenues to be approved by the Board.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A



N/A

Attachments
2008 FTA Grant - SBA# 101



Board of County Commissioners
Escambia County Resolution Number

Supplemental Budget Amendment Resolution R2011-

  WHEREAS, the following revenues were unanticipated in the adopted budget for Escambia County
and the Board of County Commissioners now desires to appropriate said funds within the budget.

  WHEREAS, the Fiscal Year 2008 Federal Transit Administration Grant (Project FL90-X666) will provide
funding for Mass Transit Capital Projects in the amount of $93,377.00 and these revenues need to be 
recognized and appropriated.

  NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida,
that in accordance with Florida Statutes, Section 129.06 (2d), it does hereby appropriate in the following
funds and accounts in the budget of the fiscal year ending September 30, 2011:

FTA Capital Project Fund 320
Fund Name Fund Number

Revenue Title Fund Number Account Code Amount
FTA Capital Project FL90-X666 320 331450 $93,377

Total $93,377

Account Code/
Appropriations Title Fund Number/Cost Center Project Number Amount

Improvements other than Buildings 320/270311 56301 $93,377

Total $93,377

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved by the Board of County Commissioners of Escambia County, Florida,
that the foregoing Supplemental Budget Amendment be made effective upon adoption of this Resolution.

ATTEST: BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
ERNIE LEE MAGAHA OF ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA
CLERK OF THE CIRCUIT COURT

Kevin W. White, Chairman
Deputy Clerk

Adopted

OMB Approved

Supplemental Budget Amendment
#101



    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  7.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 02/03/2011  

Issue: 2010 Community Development Block Grant Program Fire Protection
Improvements Project 

From: Keith Wilkins, REP
Organization: Comm & Env Neigh Redevelopment
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning 2010 Community Development Block Grant Program Fire
Protection Improvements Project - Keith Wilkins, REP, Community & Environment
Interim Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action regarding the 2010 Community Development
Block Grant (CDBG) Fire Protection Improvements Project:
 
A.  Approve the Interlocal Agreement with the Emerald Coast Utilities Authority (ECUA),
in the amount of $175,000, providing for the completion of the Fire Protection
Improvements Project (2010), including installation of fire hydrants and associated water
main upgrades, primarily within Census Tracts 28 and 29; and

B.  Authorize the Chairman or Vice Chairman to execute the Agreement and all
related documents as required to implement the project.
  
[Funding: Fund 129/2010 CDBG, Cost Center: 220435]

BACKGROUND:
Annually, during the CDBG Program planning cycle, the Board approves allocation of a
portion of CDBG Program funding to support the enhancement of fire protection within
lower income, underdeveloped areas of the County. The targeted area for the 2010
grant encompasses lower income neighborhoods which are served by ECUA.  As
denoted in Exhibit I, the 2010 CDBG Program project activities, as included in the
Housing and Community Development Annual Plan, were approved by the Board on
July 8, 2010, including an allocation of $175,000 for Fire Protection Improvements in
eligible portions of various CDBG eligible Census Tracts (2010 Project primarily involves
work in Census Tracts 28 and 29), though other work may be added to the Agreement
by mutual consent.  CDBG funds provide for equipment, materials and installation



associated with construction of improvements, while ECUA provides engineering,
design and construction management inspection services. The project supports plans
and activities of the County with respect to enhanced fire protection. 

The basic project entails planned installation of approximately 8 fire hydrants and
installing or upgrading existing water supply mains generally in areas denoted as follows
(detailed location maps are included in the Agreement):  

Along a portion of Beech Street, extending West from 49th (to include water main
upgrades and one fire hydrant)
Along a portion of Willow Street (to include water main upgrades and one fire
hydrant)
Along a portion of Elm Street (to include water main upgrades and one fire hydrant)
Along Colonade Circle, extending West from 65th Avenue (to include water main
upgrades and two fire hydrants)
Along 65th Avenue, extending South from Fairfield Drive (to include water main
upgrades and one fire hydrant)
Along Birkhead  Drive, extending East from 65th Avenue (to include water main
upgrades and one fire hydrant)
Along Flaxman Street, extending East from 65th Avenue (to include water main
upgrades and one fire hydrant)

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Funds for this project are budgeted in Fund 129/2010 CBDG, Cost Center 220435.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The Agreement with ECUA as included in Exhibit II has been reviewed and approved by
Kristin Hual, Assistant County Attorney.  

PERSONNEL:
The project will be accomplished by contract with ECUA.  ECUA will provide all project
level engineering and technical coordination, while Neighborhood Enterprise
Foundation, Inc. (NEFI) will manage CDBG/grant related matters.  There will be no
impact on County personnel or requirement for alteration of existing positions.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
An Agreement between the ECUA and County effectuating the planned improvements
and procedures for payment with CDBG funds is required in order to proceed with the
project.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
This is the continuation of a multi-year project, and based upon the ECUA project



This is the continuation of a multi-year project, and based upon the ECUA project
schedule, all contract related improvements should be completed and operational within
12 months of the date of this Agreement.  The ECUA Board will also approve the
Agreement during their regular meeting in February or early March 2011.  Contract
administration will be managed by NEFI in coordination with the ECUA Engineering
Division.

Attachments
Exhibit I-BCC Approval
Exhibit II - CDBG Agreement with ECUA 
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PUBLIC FORUM WORK SESSION AND REGULAR BCC MEETING MINUTES – Continued 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT – Continued 

 II. BUDGET/FINANCE CONSENT AGENDA – Continued 

 1-39. Approval of Various Consent Agenda Items – Continued 

 23. Taking the following action concerning ap proval of the 2010 Escambia Consortium  
Annual Action Plan (Funding:  Fund 129/CDBG, Fund 147/HOME, and Fund 110/ESG –
Cost Centers to be assigned): 

  A. Approving the 2010 Escambia Consor tium Annual Action Plan for Housing and 
Community Development, including the Escambia County  2010 Annual Plan 
detailing use of 2010 Community Development  Block Grant (CDBG) funds, in the 
amount of $2,260,914; 2010 HO ME Investment Partnerships Act  (HOME) funds, in 
the amount of $1,783,779; and 2010 Em ergency Shelter Grant (ESG) Program 
funds, in the amount of $92,305; and 

  B. Authorizing the Interim County Administrator to execute the 2010 Annual Action Plan 
forms, certifications, and related documents, as required to submit the Plan to the 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urba n Development (HUD), and authorizing the 
Interim County Administrator or Chairman, as appropriate, to execute documents 
required to receive and implem ent the 2010 CDBG,  2010 HOME, and 2010 ESG  
Programs.

 24. See Page 37. 

 25. Taking the following action regarding the State of Florida Department of Community 
Affairs Community Development Block (CDBG) Disaster Recovery (2008 Storms) Grant 
funding f or Sanitary Sewer  Improvements within the Barrancas Community 
Redevelopment Area (Lakewoo d Area) (Funding:  Fund 110/CDBG Disas ter Recovery 
Grant, Cost Center 220436; and Fund 124/Affordable Housing, Cost Center 220406):

  A. Approving the Interlocal Agreement wit h Emerald Coast Utilitie s Authority, in the 
amount of $3,200,000, providing for the construction of public sanitary sewer system 
improvements in the Barrancas Community Redevelopment Areas (specifically 
including major portions of the Lakewood Subdivision/neighborhood), utilizing CDBG 
Disaster Recovery funds; and

  B. Authorizing the Chair man or Vice Chairm an to execute the Agreement and all 
related documents as required to implement the project. 
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                                           INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT 
 
     THIS AGREEMENT,  made and  entered  into  this    3rd      day  of      February   , 2011,  
by and  between the  COUNTY OF  ESCAMBIA, a political  subdivision of the State of 
Florida,  hereinafter referred to as "County" and the EMERALD COAST UTILITIES 
AUTHORITY,  a local government  body,  corporate and politic, hereinafter  referred to as 
"ECUA". 
 
     WITNESSETH: 
 
     WHEREAS, the County is interested in pursuing community improvements, neighborhood 
revitalization, and increasing fire protection for local residents and; 
 
     WHEREAS, the ECUA is the sole provider for the installation of fire hydrants within the 
CDBG Target Area including, but not limited to, portions of Census Tracts 28 and 29, and; 
 
     WHEREAS, the County received a Community Development Block Grant #B-10-
UC-12-0012, through the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, and; 
 
     WHEREAS, a portion of said grants funds have been prioritized for the express purpose of 
providing funds for water main upgrades and installation of said fire hydrants to be located 
within the designated CDBG Target Areas, and; 
 
     WHEREAS, the ECUA is a local governmental body, corporate and politic; 
 
     NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual terms, covenants, and conditions 
contained herein and other good and valuable consideration, the sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged by each of the parties hereto, the parties agree as follows: 
 
     SECTION I:  CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION 
 
         ECUA agrees to perform required tasks as stipulated in this Agreement under the general 
administration and coordination of the County's Agent, Neighborhood Enterprise Foundation, 
Inc., hereinafter referred to as "NEFI," located at 3420 Barrancas Avenue (Mailing Address:   
P. O. Box 18178, Pensacola, Florida 32523), Phone: (850) 458-0466, Fax: (850) 458-0464 and     
E-Mail:  Randy_Wilkerson@co.escambia.fl.us 
 
     SECTION II:  FUNDING 
 
           The funds to be made available to the ECUA for the 2010 Fire Protection Project by the 
County in an amount not to exceed $175,000 are solely available from the 2010 Community 
Development Block Grant #B-10-UC-12-0012 as provided by the U. S. Department of Housing 
and Urban Development, hereinafter referred to as the "Grant".  That portion of the Grant 
expressly dealing with the Fire Protection Improvements is hereby incorporated into this 
Agreement by reference. 
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      SECTION III:  METHOD OF PAYMENT 
 
          1.  From the proceeds of the Grant, the County agrees to provide the ECUA a maximum of 
$175,000 as compensation for the complete installation of as many of the proposed hydrant and 
water main improvements identified in Attachment A hereto as such funds will permit.  
Compensation to ECUA shall include actual costs incurred in construction of the improvements 
and project related surveying; ECUA shall at its expense, provide other necessary engineering 
and administrative services. 
 

2. The County will make payments to ECUA in the following manner: 
 

              Payment #1:  Initial project disbursement will be made  
                                    within (30) days of the agreement date and 
                                    will be in an amount equal to 50% of the 
                                    amount stipulated in Section III (1) above. 
 
              Payment #2:  The second project disbursement will be made 
                                    within thirty (30) days after the initiation of the 
                                    installation of the hydrants and main upgrades  
                                    cited in Attachment A, and will equal 40% of  
                                    the amount stipulated in Section III (1) above.  
                       
              Payment #3:  The final project payment totaling the remaining 
                                   10% of the amount stipulated in Section III(1)  
                                   above will be paid to the Authority after total  
                                   completion of the project construction including  
                                   final inspection and verification of proper operation 
                                   of the hydrants and water mains. 
 
     3.  The County shall make such payments to the ECUA no later than fifteen (15) days after 
the signed payment voucher and invoice, as approved by the County's agent, are received in the 
Escambia County Office of the Clerk of the Circuit Court/Finance Division. 
 
     SECTION IV:  SCOPE OF WORK 
 
          1.  The ECUA will provide the County with an installation schedule for the work described 
in Attachment A as based upon ECUA's existing workload at the time of commission of the 
work by the County.  
 
          2.  The ECUA will diligently strive to complete all required work within the minimal time 
required, however, in no instance shall the work take longer than one hundred eighty (180) days 
from the date of initial payment by the County. 
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          3.  The ECUA shall ensure that all work is performed and that each and every item of 
labor, together with all materials, tools, supplies, equipment, machinery, and means of 
transportation necessary to fully complete the work as described in this Agreement is furnished.  
Work is to be completed to the satisfaction of the County and its designated agent who shall have 
at all times full opportunity to inspect the materials to be furnished and the work to be done 
under this agreement. 
 
          4.  In the event that ECUA elects to subcontract work required hereunder, the County's 
agent shall participate in all aspects of the related bid and subcontracting process to ensure full 
compliance with all applicable Federal, State, and local rules, regulations, and procedures, 
including, but not limited to, requirements of the Davis-Bacon Act as amended and all costs 
related thereto.  Further, ECUA shall continually assure full compliance with such requirements 
throughout the duration of this project. 
 
          5.  Following installation, the ECUA shall maintain, operate, and protect said 
improvements in accordance with procedures utilized for other components of the water 
distribution system, and shall endeavor to provide optimal operation of the equipment for the 
public good. 
 
          6.  The ECUA agrees to fully document completion of stipulated work in writing by 
furnishing copies of the ECUA's work orders, as built drawings, and other such documentation 
as required to clearly evidence the installation of the equipment in accordance with the intent of 
this Agreement.  Such documentation shall be submitted to:  NEFI, P. O. Box 18178, Pensacola, 
Florida 32523. 
 
     SECTION V:  TERM OF AGREEMENT 
 
          1.  This Agreement shall commence on the    3rd      day of      February   , 2011, and 
terminate within twelve (12) months from said date, unless extended by mutually written 
approval of both parties to this Agreement, or terminated earlier as provided for in Sections V(2) 
or V(3). 
 
          2.  If the ECUA should fail to perform its duties as defined herein, the County may 
terminate this Agreement with a written ten (10) day notification, and any funds previously 
disbursed to the ECUA and not expended for the installation of fire hydrants and water mains in 
accordance with this Agreement will become instantly due and payable to the County. 
 
          3.  As this Agreement is expressly contingent upon the availability of Federal Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds, should such funds cease to be available to the County 
for any reason, the County reserves the right to terminate this Agreement with ten (10) days 
written notice, and subject to availability of CDBG funds, pay ECUA for finished work with no 
legal or financial obligation for remaining project-related work. 
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     SECTION VI:  RECORDS 
 
          1.  The ECUA agrees to maintain records specifically related to this project in such manner 
as to assure proper accountability of all CDBG funds, and will require the same of any 
subcontract parties. 
 
           2.  These specific records and accounts shall at all times be subject to inspection, review, 
and/or audit for a period of six (6) years following termination of this Agreement, unless said 
records and accounts are the subject of audit or litigation in which case said records shall be 
maintained indefinitely pending resolution of such actions.  Access to such records will be 
provided to the County, the Federal Department of Housing and Urban Development, and/or 
other duly authorized parties upon request. 
 
     SECTION VII:  GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
          1.  ECUA accepts the terms of this Agreement and the Grant, specifically Federal 
Regulations cited at 24 CFR Part 570, and Regulations cited in Attachment B of this Agreement.  
Further, the ECUA agrees to incorporate these rules and regulations into any and all subcontracts 
which directly result from this project. 
 
       2.  All parties agree to provide Equal Employment Opportunity to all individuals regardless 
of race, color, familial status, handicap, sex, disability, religion, or national origin.  Further, the 
ECUA agrees to abide by the spirit and intent of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as amended, and 
the Civil Rights Act of 1968, as amended, in that its operation under this Agreement is free of 
discrimination against its employees, persons, or groups of persons on the basis of race, color, 
sex, or national origin.  Both of the said Civil Rights Acts are hereby referred to and incorporated 
by reference herein. 
 
      3.  The County agrees that all hydrant and main improvements resulting from work by the 
ECUA under this agreement shall become the property of the ECUA after complete and 
satisfactory installation of said improvements by the ECUA. 
 
       4.  All parties agree to abide by the HUD Section 3 Clause included in Attachment B. 
 
     5.  All parties agree to abide by the Equal Opportunity Clause for Agreement subject to 
Executive Order #11246. 
 
        6.  The ECUA shall continually ensure that all parties completing work under the provisions 
of this Agreement are fully ensured for workmen's compensation and general liability, and shall 
maintain adequate levels of insurance to assure the protection of the ECUA, and the County, and 
NEFI. 
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         7.  The ECUA will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 
because of race, religion, color, sex, national origin, physical handicap, or familial status.  The 
ECUA will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees 
are treated during employment without regard to their race, religion, sex, national origin, 
physical handicap, or familial status.  Such action shall include but not be limited to the 
following:  employment, demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or 
termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation and selection for training, including  
apprenticeship.  The ECUA agrees to post in a conspicuous place notices provided by the County 
setting forth the provision of this Equal Opportunity clause. 
 
          8.  The County's agent, NEFI, and ECUA shall ensure that during the implementation of 
the project, all applicable Federal, State, and Local rules, policies, and regulations are fully 
adhered to in accordance with provisions delineated in Attachment B of this Agreement. 
 
     SECTION VIII:  PROCUREMENT REQUIREMENTS 
 
          The ECUA shall be required to adhere to generally accepted procurement standards in the 
purchase of materials, supplies, equipment, and/or contractual services associated with this 
project.  All such procurements shall afford the maximum level of open competition among 
qualified bidders. 
 
     SECTION IX:  NEPOTISM 
 
          The ECUA agrees to abide by the provisions of Section 112.3135, Florida Statutes, 
pertaining to nepotism in their performance under this Agreement which statute is hereby 
referred to and incorporated by reference herein. 
 
     SECTION X:  UNDERSTANDING OF TERMS 
 
          1.  Attachments A-B included herein are hereby incorporated as part and parcel of this 
Agreement and hold the same legal status as the main body of this Agreement. 
 
          2.  This Agreement represents the entire and integrated agreement between the County and 
the ECUA and supersedes all prior negotiations, representations, or agreements, either written or 
oral.  This Agreement may be amended only by written instrument signed by both ECUA and 
County or in accordance with provisions contained in the Agreement document. 
 
          3.  This Agreement is executed in the City of Pensacola, Escambia County, State of 
Florida, and shall be construed under the laws of the State of Florida, and the parties agree that 
any action relating to the agreement shall be instituted and prosecuted in the courts of the County 
of Escambia, State of Florida, and each party waives the right to change of venue.  Further, it is 
mutually understood and agreed that this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of 
Florida, both as to interpretation and performance. 
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                                                                         EMERALD COAST UTILITIES AUTHORITY 
                                                                         9255 Sturdevant Street 
                                                                         Pensacola, Florida 32514 
WITNESS: 
 
___________________________                     By:  ________________________________ 
Print Name:_________________                             Name:  Stephen E. Sorrell  
 
___________________________                            Title:    Executive Director               
Print Name:_________________ 
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ATTACHMENT A 
 

LOCATION OF FIRE HYDRANT AND WATER MAIN IMPROVEMENTS 
 
  
 

==================================================== 
The attached maps include the minimum locations to be addressed 
through this agreement.  Escambia County and ECUA reserve the 
right to increase the locations for improvements in CDBG eligible 
areas of the County. 

 
============================================================== 
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                                                                                   ATTACHMENT B 
 

CONTRACT RELATED RULES AND REGULATIONS 
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LISTING OF STANDARD CONTRACT PROVISIONS 
 
 
All Federal provisions related to this contract are listed below for reference, and are to be complied with to the  
extent that each is applicable to this specific agreement. 
 

 1. Certification Regarding Non-Segregated Facilities 
 
 2. Compliance with Air and Water Acts 
 
 3. EEO Compliance and Anti-Discrimination Provisions 
 
 4. Copeland Anti-Kickback Act Provisions 
 
 5. Executive Order 11426, as amended by Executive Order 12086, Concerning 
     Affirmative Action in Employment and Employment Practices 
 
 6. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, and amendments thereto 
 
 7. Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (the Fair Housing Act) 
 
 8. Executive Order 11063, as amended by Executive Order 12259 
 
 9. Section 109 of the Housing and Community Development Act of  1974 
     and any amendments thereto 
 
10. Lead Based Paint Prohibition stipulated in Section 401(b) of the 
      Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (as applicable) 
 
11. Section 202 (a) of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973 and  
      amendments thereto regarding Flood Hazards Mitigation (as applicable) 
 
12. Architectural Barriers Act (as applicable) 
 
13. Americans with Disabilities Act Protections (as applicable) 
 
14. Energy Policy and Conservation Act 
 
15. Sections 503/504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 
 
16. Sections 103 and 107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safety  
      Standards Act as applicable 
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Standard Provisions (Continued) 
 
17. Labor Standards Provisions to the extent required by Section110 of the Housing and Community     
      Development Act of 1974 and amendments thereto 
 
18. Minority and Women Owned Business Identification and 
      Utilization 
 
19. Affirmative Action in Employment and Employment Matters 
      The ECUA has an approved Affirmative Action Plan and maintains 
      such Plan in ECUA’s  official records.  The Plan is available for inspection  
      or review at the Administrative Offices of the ECUA. 
 
20. Section 3 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 
      1968, as amended 
 
21. Age Discrimination Act of 1975 
 
22. Provisions Regarding Access to and Maintenance of Records 
 
23. Conflict of Interest Provisions 
 
24. Anti-Lobbying Certification 
 
25. Relocation, Displacement and Acquisition Provisions of the Uniform  
      Relocation Assistance  and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act  
      of 1970 (URA) and HUD Implementing Regulations at 24 CFR Part 
      42 to the extent applicable to Project activities 
 
26. Prohibition against the Use of Debarred, Suspended or Ineligible 
      Contractors or Subrecipients (24 CFR Part 24) 
 
27. Ownership of Project Copyrights and Patents (if applicable) 
 
28. Requirements of 24 CFR Part 24 concerning the Drug Free 
      Workplace Act of 1988. 
  
 
 
SUPPLEMENTAL  
INFORMATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL LAWS OR REGULATIONS IS INCLUDED IN 
THE AGREEMENT ON THE FOLLOWING PAGES AND EACH PROVISION IS 
AN INTEGRAL PART OF THE AGREEMENT AND IS FULLY BINDING UPON THE 
RECIPIENT. EACH PROVISION SHOULD BE CAREFULLY REVIEWED TO ASSURE 
EXISTING COMPLIANCE AND/OR THE CAPACITY TO COMPLY WITH SAID PROVISIONS. 
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE REQUIREMENTS 
 
 
EMERALD COAST UTILITIES AUTHORITY (ECUA) certifies that it will provide a drug-free 
workplace by: 
 
 
(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that  the unlawful  manufacture,  distribution, 

dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s workplace 
and specifying  the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such 
prohibitions;  
   

(b) Establishing a drug-free awareness program to inform employees about- 
 
(1)  The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace; 
 
(2) The grantee’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace; 
 
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and  
 
(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations occurring        
in  the workplace; 
 

(c) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be 
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a); 
 

(d) Notifying  the  employer  in  the  statement  required  by  paragraph  (a)  that,  as  a condition of 
employment under the grant, the employee will- 
 
(1)  Abide by the terms of the statement; and 
 
(2)  Notify the employer of any criminal drug statute conviction for a violation occurring in         
the  workplace no later than 5 days after such conviction; 
 

(e) Notifying HUD within 10 days after receiving notice under subparagraph (d) (2) from an  
employer or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction; 
 

(f) taking one of the following actions, within 30 days of receiving  notice under subparagraph 
(d)(2), with respect to any employee who is convicted- 
 
(1)  taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee,  up to and including         
termination; or 
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(2) requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily  in a drug  abuse assistance  or        
rehabilitation  program  approved  for  such  purposes  by  a  Federal,  State  or local       
health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency; 
 

(g) making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through        
implementation of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (f). 
 

PLACE OF PERFORMANCE 
FOR CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS 

 
    Agency: EMERALD COAST UTILITIES AUTHORITY   Date:  3/3/2011 
 
Grant Program Name: COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM 
 
Grant Number:       B-10-UC-12-0021                                                                         
 
         EMERALD COAST UTILITIES AUTHORITY shall insert in the space provided 
below the site(s) expected to be used for the performance of work under the grant covered by 
the certification: 
 
PLACE OF PERFORMANCE (Including street address, city, county, state, and zip code for 
each site): 
 
          EMERALD COAST UTILITIES AUTHORITY 
          9255 STURDEVANT STREET 
          PENSACOLA, FLORIDA 32514 
 
Total estimated number of employees expected to be engaged in the performance of the grant 
at the site(s) noted above: 
 
                        FIVE (5)                  

                                                                                        
SIGNED:__________________________ 

     Certifying Officer 
                                                                                       Stephen E. Sorrell  
                            Emerald Coast Utilities Authority 
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ANTI-LOBBYING 
CERTIFICATION FOR CONTRACTS, GRANTS, LOANS 

AND COOPERATIVE AGREEMENTS 
 
 
The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that: 
 
(1) No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the  

undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or 
employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, and officer or employee of Congress, or 
an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal 
contract, the making of any federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering 
into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, 
or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. 
 

(2) If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any  
person  for  influencing  or attempting to  influence  an officer or  employee  of any 
agency, a Member  of  Congress,  an  officer  or  employee of  Congress,  or  an  
employee  of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, 
or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard 
Form-LLL, "Disclosure Form To Report Lobbying,"  in accordance with its instructions. 
 

(3) The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the    
award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants, and 
contracts under grants, loans and cooperative agreements) and that all subrecipients shall 
certify and disclose accordingly. 
 

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when 
this transaction was made or entered into.  Submission of this certification is prerequisite for 
making or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code.  Any 
person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less 
than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure. 
 
 
 
 
                                        Signature:____________________________ Date:____________ 
                                                        Certifying Official 
                                                         Stephen E. Sorrell  
                                                         Emerald Coast Utilities Authority 
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CCEERRTTIIFFIICCAATTIIOONN  RREEGGAARRDDIINNGG    
DDEEBBAARRMMEENNTT,,  SSUUSSPPEENNSSIIOONN,,  

AANNDD  OOTTHHEERR  RREESSPPOONNSSIIBBIILLIITTYY  MMAATTTTEERRSS  
PPRRIIMMAARRYY  CCOOVVEERREEDD  TTRRAANNSSAACCTTIIOONNSS  

 
(1)    The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that                  
it and its principals:  
                                

            (a) Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, 
declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions 
by any Federal department or agency; 

 
(b) Have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal been 

convicted of or had a civil judgment rendered against them for 
commission of fraud or a criminal offense in connection with 
obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State 
or local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of 
Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, 
theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records, making 
false statements, or receiving stolen property; 

 
(c) Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged 

by a governmental entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of 
any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; 
and 

 
(d) Have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal 

had one or more public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated 
for cause or default. 

 
(2) Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the statements 

in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation 
to this proposal. 

 
 
Signature:________________________________           2010 ECUA Fire Protection Project 
      Name:      Stephen E. Sorrell                                        Project Name 
      Title  :     Executive Director                                        B-10-CDBG-UC-ECUA                                        
                Project Number  
 
            Firm/Agency:    EMERALD COAST UTILITIES AUTHORITY  
           Street Address:   9255 Sturdevant Street  
                                      Pensacola, Florida 32514                                                                
 
FR 24.510 & 24 CFR, Part 24, Appendix A 
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FEDERALLY RELATED CONTRACT PROVISIONS AND INFORMATION 
 
1. Purpose: THIS SECTION includes the myriad of Federally related contract requirements  

which must be complied with during the completion of this project. All of the requirements 
in this section should be carefully reviewed by the contracting entity.  Each Contracting 
entity and their Subcontractors must conform with the following: 
 

2. Standard Contract Provisions (Full Text Attached) 
    All applicable Federal provision are attached including: 
    1.  Certification of Non-Segregated Facilities 
    2.  Compliance with Air and Water Acts 
    3.  EEO Compliance Certification 
    4.  Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 
    5.  Anti-Kickback Act 
    6.  Executive Order 11246/Affirmative Action 
    7.  Title VI of the Civil Rights Act 
    8.  Lead Base Paint Prohibition 
    9.  Flood Hazards Mitigation (where applicable) 
   10.  Architectural Barriers Act (where applicable) 
   11.  Energy Policy and Conservation Act 
   12.  Section 503 and 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 
   13.  Contract Work Hours and Safety Act 
   14.  Minority and Women owned Business Listings 
 
Each should be carefully reviewed to assure existing compliance and/or the capacity to 
comply with said provisions. 
 

3. Affirmative Action Plan 
ECUA maintains a duly adopted Affirmative Action Plan or Statement which is available 
for public inspection and review during normal business hours.  
 

4. HUD Section 3 Plan and Compliance Requirements 
The successful Bidder on construction of the project must submit an acceptable HUD 
Section 3 Utilization Plan and Certification Regarding Section 3 and Segregated Facilities. 
 

5. Access to Related Documents 
Contracting entity understands that acceptance of this contract assures that Escambia 
County, Department of Housing and Urban Development, the Comptroller General of the 
United States, or any duly authorized representative of such agencies shall have access   to 
any books, documents, papers, and records of the Contracting entity which are directly 
pertinent to this project for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts, and/or transcriptions.  
All records related to this project will be maintained by the contracting entity and any of its 
subcontractors for a period of at least six (6) years and longer should they be the subject of 
inspection, litigation, or under review. 
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6.  Interest of Certain Federal and Other Officials 
A. No member of  or  delegate  to  the  Congress  of  the  United  States  and  no  Resident  

Commissioners shall be admitted to any share or part of this Contract or to any benefit 
to arise from same: Provided, that the foregoing provision of this section shall  not be 
construed to extent to this Contract if made with corporation for its general benefit. 

 
B. No   member, officer or  employee  of  the  Grantee  (Escambia  County,  Florida),  its  

designees or agents, no member of the governing bodies of the locality in which the 
Project is located, and no other public official of such locality or localities who 
exercises any functions or responsibilities in connection with the Project during his 
tenure or for one year thereafter, shall have any interest, direct or indirect, in any 
Contract or Subcontract, or the proceeds thereof, for work to be performed under this 
Contract. 

 
The Contracting entity will include these provisions in every Subcontract such that these 
provisions will be binding upon each Subcontractor. 

 
7. Reporting, Copyrights, and Patents 

Any reports, statistics, cost data, or related documentation of project related activity 
required by NEFI, Escambia County, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development or their duly authorized representatives will be promptly submitted to the  
authorized requesting entity within ten (10) days of such request,    and such reports will be 
approved in writing by the Chief  Executive Officer of the Company or his/her designee. 

 
Any copyright or patent resulting from this project will be retained by the Grantor Agency 
(U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development) and will be made available as 
directed by such agency. 
 

8. SPECIAL EQUAL OPPORTUNITY PROVISIONS 
A. Activities and Contracts Not Subject to Executive Order 11246, as Amended   
     (applicable to Federally assisted construction contracts and related subcontracts $10,000  
      and under) 
 

During the performance of this contract, the Contracting entity and its Subcontractors 
agree as follows: 
 

(1) The Contracting entity or subcontractors thereto or shall not discriminate against  
any employee or  applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, or 
national  origin.  The Contracting entity or subcontractors thereto shall take 
affirmative action to ensure that applicants for employment are employed, and that 
employees are treated during employment without   regard  to  their  race,  color,  
religion,  sex  or national origin. Such action shall include but not be limited to, the 
following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer; recruitment or recruitment 
advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and 
selection for training, including apprenticeship. 
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(2) The Contracting entity and subcontractors thereto or shall  post in conspicuous  

places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be 
provided by Contracting Officer setting forth the provisions of this 
non-discrimination clause. The Contracting entity and subcontractors thereto shall 
state that all qualified applicants will be considered without regard to race, color, 
religion, sex, or national origin. 
 

      (3) The contracting entity shall incorporate foregoing requirements in all subcontracts. 
 
B. Executive Order 11246 (contracts/subcontracts above $10,000) 

(1) Section 202 Equal Opportunity Clause 
 

During the performance of this contract, the contractor agrees as follows: 
(a)  The Contractor  will  not  discriminate  against  any  employee  or applicant  for  

employment because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.  The 
Contractor will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, 
and that employees are treated during employment, without regard to their race, 
color, religion, sex, or national origin.  Such action shall include, but not be 
limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; 
recruitment, or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination, rates of pay or 
other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship.  
The Contractor agrees to post in a conspicuous place, available to employees and 
applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of 
this nondiscrimination clause. 

 
(b) The Contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for  employees  placed 

by or on behalf of the Contractor, state that all qualified applicants will receive 
consideration without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. 

 
(c)  The Contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers  with  

which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or understanding 
a notice to be provided by the Contract Compliance Officer advising the said 
labor union or worker's representatives of the Contractor's commitment under this 
is section, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to 
employees and applicants for employment. 

 
(d) The Contractor  will  comply with  all provisions  of  Executive Order11246  of     

September 24, 1965, and of the Rules,  Regulations,  and  Relevant Orders of  the  
Secretary  of Labor. 
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   (e) The Contractor  will furnish  all  information  and  reports required by Executive  

Order 11246  of September 24, 1965,  and  by rules,  regulations, and orders of 
the Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, 
records, and accounts  by the  Department and the Secretary  of Labor  for  
purposes  of  investigation  to  ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, 
and others. 

 
(f) In   the  event  of  the  Contractor's  noncompliance  with  the  nondiscrimination  
     clauses  of this  contract or with any of the said rules,  regulations,  or orders,   
     this contract  may  be canceled,  be declared ineligible  for  further  Government   
     contracts  in  accordance  with procedures authorized in Executive  Order 11246   
     of  September  24,  1965,  or  by  rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of  
     Labor, or as otherwise provided by law. 
 
(g)  The  Contractor   will  include  the  Provisions  of   the  sentence    immediately  

preceding Paragraph (a) and the provisions  of  Paragraphs (a)  through  (g) in 
every subcontract  or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or 
orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to Section 204 of Executive 
Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such  provisions will be binding 
upon each subcontractor or vendor.   The Contractor will take  such action  with  
respect to  any subcontract  or purchase  order as the Department may direct as a 
means of enforcing such provisions, including sections of noncompliance.  
Provided, however, that in the event a Contractor becomes involved in, or is 
threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such 
direction by the Department, the Contractor may request the United States to 
enter into such litigation to protect the interest of the United States. 
 

(2) Notice of Requirement for Affirmative Action to Ensure Equal Employment 
Opportunity  (Executive Order 11246). (Applicable to contracts/subcontracts exceeding 
$10,000.) 
 

(a) The Offerer's or Bidder's attention is called to the "Equal Opportunity Clause" 
and the "Standard Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Construction Contract 
Specifications" set forth herein. 
 
(b) The goals and timetables for minority and female  participation,  expressed  in  
percentage terms for  the  Contractor's  aggregate  workforce in  each trade  on all  
construction work in the covered area, are as follows: 
 

Female participation:        6.9% (statewide) 
 

Minority participation     19.9% 
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These goals are applicable to all Contractor's construction work (whether or not it is 
federally-assisted)  performed  in  the  covered  area.  If  the Contractor  performs  
construction work in a geographic area located outside of  the  covered area, it shall  
apply the goals established for such geographic area where the work is actually 
performed.  With regard to this second area, the Contractor also is subject to the 
goals  for both its Federally involved and non-Federally involved construction. 
 
The Contractor's compliance with Executive Order and the regulations in 41 CFR 
Part 60-4 shall be based on its implementation of the Equal Opportunity Clause, 
specific affirmative action obligations required by the specifications set forth in 41 
CFR 60-4.3 (a), and its efforts to meet the goals established or the geographic area 
where the contract resulting from his solicitation is to be performed.  The hours of 
minority and female employment or training must be substantially uniform 
throughout the length of the contract and in each trade the Contractor shall make a 
good faith effort to employ minorities and women evenly on each of its projects.  
The transfer of minority or female employees or trainees from Contractor to 
Contractor or from project to project for the sole purpose of meeting the Contractor's 
goals shall be a violation of the contract, the Executive Order, and the regulations in 
41 CFR Part 60-4.  Compliance with the goals will be measured against the total 
work hours performed. 
 
( c)  The Contractor shall provide written notification to the Director of the Office of 
Federal Contract Compliance Programs within 10 working days of award of any 
construction subcontract in excess of $10,000 at any tier for construction work under 
the contract resulting from this solicitation.  The notification shall list the name, 
address, and telephone number of the subcontractor; employer identification 
number; estimated dollar amount of the subcontract; estimated starting and 
completion dates of the subcontract; and the geographical area in which the contract 
is to be performed. 
 
(d) As used in this Notice, and in the contract resulting from the solicitation, the 
"covered area" is Escambia County, Florida. 
 

(3) Standard Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Construction Contract  Specifi-         
cations  (Executive Order 11246). 
 

(1) As used in these specifications: 
 

a. "Covered area”  means  the  geographical  area described  in the  solicitation  
from which  this contract resulted; 
 

b. "Director" means Director, Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs 
United States Department of Labor,  or any  person  to whom  the Director 
delegates  authority; 
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c. "Employer identification number" means the Federal Social Security  number  
used   on  the   Employer's  quarterly  Federal  Tax  Return,  U. S. Treasury  
Department Form  941. 
 

d.  "Minority" includes: 
 

(1) Black (all persons having origins in any of the Black 
African racial groups not of Hispanic origin); 

 
(II) Hispanic (all persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban, 

Central or South American or other Spanish Culture or origin, 
regardless of race); 

 
(III)   Asian and Pacific Islander (all persons having origins in 

any of  the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian Subcontinent, or the                      
Pacific Island); and 

 
(IV)  American Indian or Alaskan Native (all persons having 

origins of any of the original peoples of North America and   
maintaining identifiable tribal affiliations through membership and                      
participation or community identification). 

 
(2)  Whenever the Contractor, or any Subcontractor at any tier, subcontracts a 

portion of the work involving any construction trade, it shall physically include 
in each subcontract in excess of $1 0,000 the provisions of these specifications 
and the Notice which contains the applicable goals for minority and female 
participation and which is set forth in the solicitations from which this contract 
resulted. 
 

(3) If the Contractor is participating (pursuant to 41 CFR 60-4.5) in a Hometown 
Plan approved by the U. S. Department of Labor in the covered area either 
individually or through an association, its affirmative action obligations on all 
work in the Plan area (including goals and timetables) shall be in accordance 
with that Plan for those trades which have unions participating in the Plan.  
Contractors must be able to demonstrate their participation in and compliance 
with the provisions of any such Hometown Plan.  Each Contractor or 
Subcontractor participating in an approved Plan is individually required to 
comply with its obligations under the EEO clause, and to make a good faith 
effort to achieve each goal under the Plan in each trade in which it has 
employees.  The overall good faith performance by other Contractors toward a 
goal in an approved Plan does not execute any covered Contractor's or 
Subcontractor's failure to take good faith efforts to achieve the Plan goals and 
timetables. 
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(4)  The Contractor shall implement the specific affirmative action standards 
provided in paragraphs 7 (a) through (p). of these specifications.  The goals set 
forth in the solicitation from which this contract resulted are expressed as 
percentages of the total hours of employment and training of minority and 
female utilization the Contractor should reasonably be able to achieve in each 
construction trade in which it has employees in the covered area.  Covered 
construction contractors performing contracts in geographical areas where they 
do not have a Federal or Federally-assisted construction contract shall apply 
the minority and female goals established for the geographic area where the 
contract is being performed.  Goals are published periodically in the Federal 
Register in notice form and such notices may be obtained from any Office of 
Federal Contract Compliance Programs office or from Federal procurement 
contracting officers.  The Contractor is expected to make substantially uniform 
progress in meeting its goals in each craft during the period specified. 
 

(5)  Neither the provisions of any collective bargaining agreement, nor the failure 
by a union with whom the Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement, to 
refer either minorities or women shall excuse the Contractor's obligations 
under these specifications, Executive Order 11246, or the regulations 
promulgated pursuant thereto. 
 

(6)  In order for the non-working training  hours  of apprentices  and  trainees  to  
be  counted in meeting goals, such apprentices and trainees must be employed 
by the Contractor during the training period, and the Contractor must have 
made a commitment to, employ the apprentices and trainees at the completion 
of their training,  subject to the availability of employment opportunities.  
Trainees must be trained pursuant to training programs approved by the U. S. 
Department of Labor. 
 

(7)  The  Contractor  shall take  specific affirmative actions to ensure equal 
employment  opportunity.    The  evaluation  of  the  Contractor's  compliance  
with   these specifications shall be based  upon its  effort  to achieve  
maximum  results from  its actions.   The Contractor  shall  document  these  
efforts fully,  and shall  implement affirmative action steps at least as 
extensively as the following: 

 
a.     Ensure and  maintain a  working   environment  free   of  
harassment, intimidation, and coercion at all sites, and in all facilities 
at which the Contractor's employees are assigned to work.  The 
Contractor, where possible, will assign two or more women to each 
construction project.  The Contractor shall specifically ensure that all  
 
 
 
 
 



25 

foremen, superintendents, and other on-site supervisory personnel are  
aware of and carry out the Contractor's obligation to maintain such a 
working environment, with specific attention to minority or female 
individuals working at such sites in such facilities. 
 
b. Establish   and    maintain   a   current   list   of   minority   and   
female recruitment sources, provide written notification to minority 
and female recruitment sources and to community organizations 
when the Contractor or its unions have employment opportunities 
available, and maintain a record of the organization's responses. 
 
c.    Maintain a current file of the names, addresses, and telephone 
numbers of each minority and female off-the-street applicant and 
minority or female referral from a union,  a  recruitment  source,  or  
community organization and of what action was taken with respect to 
each such individual.  If such individual was sent to the union hiring 
hall for referral and was not referred back to the Contractor by the 
union, or if referred, not employed by the Contractor, this shall be 
documented in the file with the reason therefore, along with whatever 
additional actions the Contractor may have taken. 

 
d.   Provide immediate written notification to the Director when the  
union or unions with which the Contractor has a collective bargaining 
agreement has not referred to the Contractor a minority person or 
woman sent by the Contractor, or when the Contractor has other 
information that the union referral process has impeded the 
Contractor's efforts to meet its obligations. 
 

      e .  Develop on-the-job  training  opportunities and/or   participate   in  
training programs for the areas which expressly include minorities 
and women, including upgrading apprenticeship, trainee and other 
programs relevant to the Contractor's employment needs, especially 
those programs funded or approved by the Department of Labor.  The 
Contractor shall provide notice of these programs to the sources 
compiled under 7b above. 

 
f.   Disseminate  the Contractor's  EEO  policy by  providing notice  
of  the policy to unions and training programs and requesting their 
cooperation in assisting the Contractor in meeting its EEO 
obligations; by including it in any policy manual and collective 
bargaining agreement; by publicizing it in the company newspaper, 
annual report, etc.; by specific review of the policy with all  
management personnel and with all minority and female employees  
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at least once a year; and by posting the company EEO policy on  
bulletin boards accessible to all employees at each location where 
construction work is performed. 

 
        g. Review, at least annually, the company's EEO policy and    

affirmative action obligations under these specifications with all 
employees having any responsibility for hiring, assignment, layoff, 
termination, or other employment decisions including specific review 
of these items with on-site supervisory personnel such as 
Superintendents, General Foremen, etc., prior to the initiation of 
construction work at any job site.  A written record shall be made and 
maintained identifying the time and place of these meetings, persons 
attending, subject matter discussed, and disposition of the subject 
matter. 
 

h.  Disseminate the Contractor's EEO policy externally by including it 
in any advertising in the news media, specifically including minority 
and female news media, and providing written notification to and 
discussing the Contractor's EEO policy with other Contractors and 
Subcontractors with whom the Contractor does or anticipates doing 
business. 
 
i. Direct its recruitment efforts, both oral and written, to minority, 
female and community organizations, to schools with minority and 
female recruitment and training organizations serving the Contractor's 
recruitment area and employment needs.  Not later than one month 
prior to the date for the acceptance of applications for apprenticeship 
or other g by any recruitment source, the Contractor shall send written 
notification to organizations such as the above, describing the 
openings, screening procedures, and tests to be used in the selection 
process. 
  
j.   Encourage  present minority and female employees to  recruit other 
minority persons and women and, where reasonable, provide after 
school, summer and vacation employment to minority and female 
youth both on the site and in other areas of a Contractor's work force. 
 

    k. Validate all tests and other selection  requirements  where  there  is    
no obligation to do so under 41 CFR 60-3. 
 
l.   Conduct, at least annually, an inventory  and  evaluation at  least of  
all minority and female personnel for promotional opportunities and 
encourage these employees to seek or to prepare for, through 
appropriate training, etc., such opportunities. 
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m. Ensure that seniority practices, job classifications, work   
assignments and other personnel practices, do not have a 
discriminatory effect by continually monitoring all personnel and 
employment related activities to ensure that the EEO policy and the 
Contractor's obligations under these specifications are being carried 
out. 
 

     n. Ensure that all facilities and company activities are nonsegregated 
     except that separate or single-user toilet and necessary changing           
     facilities  shall be provided to assure privacy between the sexes. 
 
     o. Document and maintain a record of all solicitations of offers for  

subcontracts from minority and female construction contractors and 
suppliers, including circulation of solicitations to minority and female 
contractor associations and other business associations. 
 
p. Conduct  a  review,  at  least  annually,  of  all  supervisors       
adherence to and performance under the Contractor's EEO policies     
and affirmative action obligations. 
 

(8)  Contractors are encouraged to participate in voluntary associations which 
assist in fulfilling one or more of their affirmative action obligations 7(a) 
through (p). The efforts of a contractor association, joint contractor-union, 
contractor-community, or  other similar group of which the Contractor is a 
member and participant, may be asserted as fulfilling any one or more of 
its obligations under 7 (a) through (p). of these Specifications provided 
that the Contractor actively participates in the group, makes every effort 
to assure that the group has a positive impact on the employment of 
minorities and women in the industry, ensures that the concrete benefits of 
the program are reflected in the Contractor's minority and female 
workforce participation, makes a good faith effort to meet its individual 
goals and timetables, and can provide access to documentation which 
demonstrates the effectiveness of actions taken on behalf of the 
Contractor.  The obligation shall not be a defense for the Contractor's 
noncompliance. 

 
(9)   A single goal for minorities and separate single goal for women have been 

established.  The Contractor, however, is required to provide equal 
employment opportunity and to take affirmative action for all minority 
groups, both male and female, and all women, both minority and non-
minority.  Consequently, the Contractor may be in violation of the 
Executive Order if a particular group is employed in a substantially 
disparate manner (for example, even though the Contractor has achieved 
its goals for women generally, the Contractor may be in violation of the 
Executive Order if a specific minority group of women is under utilized). 
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(10) The Contractor shall not use the goals and timetables or affirmative action 

standards to discriminate against any person because of race, color, 
religion, sex, or national origin. 

 
(11) The Contractor shall not enter into any Subcontract with any person or  
        firm debarred from Government contracts pursuant to Executive Order  
        11246. 
 
(12) The Contractor shall carry out-sections and penalties for violation of these 

specifications and of the Equal Opportunity Clause, including suspension, 
termination and cancellation of existing subcontracts as may be imposed 
or ordered pursuant to Executive Order 11246, as amended, and its 
implementing regulations, by the Office of Federal Contract Compliance 
Programs.  Any Contractor who fails to carry out such sanctions and 
penalties shall be in violation of these specifications and Executive Order 
11246, as amended. 
 

(13) The Contractor, in fulfilling its obligations under these specifications, 
shall implement specific affirmative action steps, at least as extensively 
as those standards prescribed in paragraph 7 of these specifications, so as 
to achieve maximum results from its effort to ensure equal employment 
opportunity.  If the Contractor fails to comply with the requirement of the 
Executive Order, the implementing regulations, or these specifications, 
the Director shall proceed in accordance with 41 CFR 60-4.8. 

 
(14) The contractor shall designate a responsible official to monitor all 

employment related activity to ensure that the company EEO policy is 
being carried out, to submit reports relating to the provisions hereof as 
may be required by the Government and to  keep records.  Records shall 
at least include for each employee, the name, address, telephone 
numbers, construction trade, union affiliation, if any, employee 
identification number where assigned, social security number, race, sex, 
status (e.g., mechanic, apprentice trainee, helper, or laborer), dates of 
changes in status, hours worked per week in the indicated trade, rate of 
pay, and location at which the work was performed.  Records shall be 
maintained in an easily understandable and retrievable form; however, to 
the degree that existing records satisfy this requirement, contractors shall 
not be required to maintain separate records. 
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(15) Nothing herein provided shall be construed as a limitation upon the 

application of other laws which establish different standards of 
compliance and upon the application of requirements for the hiring of 
local is or other area residents (e.g., those under the Public Works 
Employment Act of 1977 and the Community Development Block Grant 
Program). 

 
C.    Certification of Non-Segregated Facilities (Contracts over$10,000) 
 

By the submission of this bid, the bidder, offeror, applicant or subcontractor certifies 
that he/she does not maintain or provide for his/her employees any segregated facility 
at any of his/her establishments, and that he/she does not permit employees to perform 
their services at any location, under his/her control, where segregated facilities are 
maintained.  He/She certifies further that he/she will not maintain or provide for 
employees any segregated facilities at any of his/her establishments, and he/she will 
not permit employees to perform their services at any location under his/her control 
where segregated facilities are maintained.  The bidder, offeror, applicant or 
subcontractor agrees that a breach of this certification is violation of the Equal 
Opportunity Clause of this contract.  As used in this certification, the term "segregated 
facilities" means any waiting rooms, work eating areas, time clocks, locker rooms, and 
other storage or dressing areas, Deportation and housing facilities provided for 
employees which are in fact segregated on the basis of race, color, religion, or 
otherwise.  He/She further agrees that (except where he/she has obtained identical 
certifications from proposed subcontractors prior to the award of subcontractors have 
submitted identical certifications for specific time periods). 

 
D.    Civil Rights Act of 1964 
 

Under Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, no person shall, on the grounds of 
race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the 
benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving 
Federal financial assistance. 
 

E.    Section 109 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 
 

No person in the United States shall on the grounds of race, color, national original, or 
sex be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to 
discrimination under any program or activity financed in whole or in part with funds 
made available under this title. 
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F.  "Section 3" Compliance in the Provision of Training, Employment and Business and 

Opportunities  
 

(a)  The work to be performed under this contract is on a project assisted under a 
program providing direct Federal financial assistance from the Department of Housing 
and Urban Development and is subject to the requirements of Section 3 of the 
Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U. S. C. 1701.  Section 
3 requires that to the greatest extent feasible opportunities for training and 
employment be given lower income  residents of the project area and contracts for 
work in connection with the project be awarded to business concerns which are 
located in, or owned in substantial part by persons residing in the area of the project. 
 
(b)  The parties to this contract will comply with the provisions of said Section 3 and 
the regulations issued pursuant thereto by the Secretary of Housing and Urban 
Development set forth in 24 CFR 134, and all applicable rules and orders of the 
Department issued thereunder prior to the execution of this contract.  The parties to 
this contract certify and agree that they are under no contractual or other disability 
which would prevent them from complying with these requirements. 
 
(c)  The Contractor will send to each labor organization or representative of workers 
with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or 
understanding, if any, a notice advising said labor organization or workers' 
representative of his commitments under this Section 3 clause and shall post copies of 
the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for 
employment or training. 
 
(d)  The Contractor will include this Section 3 clause in every subcontract for work in 
connection with the project and will, at the direction of the applicant for or recipient of 
Federal financial assistance, take appropriate action pursuant to the subcontract upon a 
finding that the subcontractor is in violation of regulations issued by the Secretary of 
Housing and Urban Development, 24 CFR Part 135.  The Contractor will not 
subcontract with any subcontractor where it has notice of knowledge that the latter has 
been found in violation of regulations under 24 CFR Part 135 and will not let any 
subcontract unless the subcontractor has first provided it with a preliminary statement 
of ability to comply with the requirements of these regulations. 
 
(e)   Compliance with the provisions of Section 3, the regulations set forth in 24 CFR 
135, and all applicable rules and orders of the Department issued hereunder prior to 
the execution of the contract, shall be a condition of the Federal financial assistance 
provided to the project, binding upon the applicant or recipient for such assistance, it 
successors and assigns.  Failure to fulfill these requirements shall subject the applicant 
or recipient, its contractors or subcontractors, it successors and assigned to those 
sanctions specified by the grant or loan agreement or contract through which federal 
assistance is provided, and to such sanctions as are specified by 24 CFR Part 135. 
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G.    Section 503  Handicapped  (Contracts $2,500 or Over) 
 

(a)  The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for 
employment because of physical or mental handicap in regard to any position for 
which the employee or applicant for employment is qualified.  The Contractor agrees to 
take affirmative action to employ, advance in employment and otherwise treat qualified 
handicapped individuals without discrimination based upon their physical or mental 
handicap in all employment practices such as the following: employment, upgrading, 
demotion or transfer, recruitment, advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or 
other forms of compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship. 
 
(b)   The Contractor agrees to comply with the rules, regulations and relevant orders of 
the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to the Act. 
 
(c)   In  the  event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the requirements of this 
clause, actions for noncompliance may be taken in accordance with the rules, 
regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to the Act. 
 
(d)    The  Contractor  agrees to  post in  conspicuous  places,  available  to  employees  
and applicants for employment, notices in a form to be prescribed by the Director, 
provided by or through the contracting officer.  Such notices shall state the Contractor's 
obligation under the law to take affirmative action to employ and advance in 
employment qualified handicapped employees and applicants for employment, and the 
rights of applicants and employees. 
 
(e)     The Contractor will notify each labor union or representative of workers with 
which it has a collective bargaining agreement or their contract understanding, that the 
contractor is bound by the terms of Section 503 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, and 
is committed to take affirmative action to employ and advance in employment 
physically and mentally handicapped individuals. 
 
(f)   The Contractor will include the provisions of this clause in every subcontract or 
purchase order of $2,500 or more unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of 
the Secretary issued pursuant to Section 503 of the Act, so that such provisions will be 
binding upon each subcontractor or vendor.  The Contractor will take such action with 
respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the Director of the Office of Federal 
Contract Compliance Programs may direct to enforce such provisions, including action 
for noncompliance. 
 

H. Age Discrimination Act of 1975 
 

No person in the United States shall, on the basis of age be excluded from participation 
in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under, any program, or 
activity receiving Federal Financial assistance. 
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9.   CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANCE WITH AIR AND WATER ACTS     
     (Applicable to Federally assisted construction contracts and related subcontracts   
       exceeding  $100,000)  
 
During the performance of this contract, the contractor and all subcontractors shall comply 
with the requirements of the Clean Air Act, as amended, 42 USC 1857 et seq., the Federal 
Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 USC 1251 et seq., and the regulations of the 
Environmental Protection Agency with respect thereto, at 40 CFR Part 15, as amended. 
 
In addition to the foregoing requirements, all nonexempt contractors and subcontractors shall 
furnish to the owner, the following: 

 
(1)   A stipulation by the contractor or subcontractors, that any facility to be utilized in   

the performance of any nonexempt  contract  or subcontract,  is not  listed on  the 
List of Violating Facilities issued by the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) 
pursuant to 40 CFR 15.20. 

 
(2)    Agreement by the contractor to comply with all the requirement of Section 114 of  

the Clean Air Act, as amended, (42 USC 1857c-8) and Section 308 of the Federal 
Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, (33 USC 1318) relating "to inspection, 
monitoring, entry,  reports  and  information,  as well as   all  other  requirements  
specified  in said  Section 114 and Section 308, and all regulations and guidelines 
issued thereunder. 

 
(3)      Stipulation that as a condition for the award of  the  contract prompt  notice will be 

given  of  any  notification  received  from  the  Directors'  office   of  Federal 
Activities,   EPA,  indicating  that  a  facility  utilized  or  to  be  utilized  for   the 
contracts,  is   under   consideration  to  be  listed  on  the   EPA List of Violating 
Facilities. 

 
(4)     Agreement  by  the  Contractor that he will includes or  cause  to  be   included,  the 

criteria  and  requirements in  paragraph  (1)  through  (4)  of this section in every 
non-exempt subcontract and requiring that the Contractor will take such action as 
the Government may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions. 

 
10. SPECIAL CONDITIONS PERTAINING TO HAZARDS, SAFETY STANDARDS                   
      AND ACCIDENT PREVENTION 

 
A.  Lead Based Paint Hazards ( Applicable to contracts for  construction, rehabilitation or               
conversion of residential  structures) 
 
The Contracting entity and subcontractors thereto must comply with the Lead Based Paint 
Regulations (24 CFR part 35) issued pursuant to the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning 
Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. 4831 et seq.) requiring prohibition of the sue of lead-based  
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paint, whenever assistance financed by the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban  
Development ("HUD") is used directly or indirectly for construction, rehabilitation, or 
modernization of residential structures; elimination of immediate lead-based paint hazards 
in residential structures assisted with such  financing; and notification of the hazards of 
lead-based paint poisoning to purchasers, owners or tenants of residential structures 
constructed prior to 1978 who are assisted through HUD financed activities. 
 
B. Flood Prevention and Protection (Applicable to acquisition, rehabilitation and  
construction  activities) 
 
Activities undertaken under this contract are subject to the provisions of the Flood 
Disaster Protection Act of 1973 (Pub. L. 93-234), Executive Order 11988, and the 
regulations thereunder (24 CFR Ch. X, Subchapter B).  Agencies operating under said 
provisions shall not approve any financial assistance for acquisition or construction  
purposes for use in any area that has been identified by the Secretary of Housing and 
Urban Development as an area having special flood hazards unless the community in 
which such area is situated is then participating in the National Flood Insurance Program.  
HUD funds provided through the Community Development Block Grant, HOME, or 
related Programs shall not be expended for acquisition or construction purposes in an area 
identified by the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development as having special flood 
hazards which is located in a community not in compliance with the requirements of the 
National Flood Insurance Program pursuant to section 201(d) of said Act. The use of any 
such funds for acquisition or construction purposes in identified special flood hazard areas 
shall be subject to the mandatory purchase of flood insurance requirements of section 
102(a) of said Act. 
 
C.  Site Safety Measures 
  
Contracting entity and subcontractors thereto shall take necessary precautions to protect 
all employees and persons on the worksite and in the immediate vicinity of the worksite 
with respect to worksite safety hazards, the safety of workmen, authorized visitors, 
adjacent property owners/residents/ businesses, construction inspectors, and members of 
the general public.  Said measures related to this project shall include but are not limited 
to:  limitation of access to hazardous work areas; proper traffic control measures (where 
applicable); provision of safety training for employees and requiring like training for the 
employees of subcontractors, including all classes of labor, heavy and power equipment 
operators, and superintendents; and assuring that properly qualified and trained personnel 
are assigned to perform work required to complete the project activities. 
 

11.  Access to Records/Maintenance of Records 
 
The contracting entity and subcontractors thereto shall maintain accounts and records, 
including personnel, property, and financial records, adequate to identify and account for all 
costs pertaining to the contract and other such records as may be deeded necessary by the 
contracting entity to assure proper accounting for all funds.  These records will be available for  
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audit purposes to the contracting entity, the State of Florida, the U.S. Department of Housing  
and Urban Development, or any of their duly authorized representatives, and will be retained 
for a minimum of six (6) years after contract completion unless permission to destroy said 
records is granted by the contracting entity.  Moreover, the contracting entity, State of Florida, 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, or their duly authorized representatives, 
shall have access to any book, documents, papers and records, of the Contracting entity or 
subcontractors thereto which are directly pertinent to this contract for the purposes of making 
audit, examination, excerpts and transcriptions. 
 
12. Conflict  of   Interest  of   Officers  or  Employees  of   the   Contracting  Entity/Local 
      Jurisdiction, Members of the Local Governing Body, or Other Elected Officials 
 
No member or employee of the contracting entity/local jurisdiction or its designees or agents; 
no member of the governing body; and no other public official of the locality(s) who exercises 
any function or responsibility with respect to this contract, during his/her tenure or for one 
year thereafter, shall have any interest, direct or indirect, in any contract or subcontract, or the 
proceeds thereof, for work to be performed.  Further, the Contractor shall cause to be 
incorporated in all subcontracts, the language set forth in this paragraph prohibiting conflict of 
interest. 
 
13.  Minority and Female Contractor Associations 
 
Lists citing minority, disadvantaged, and female owned businesses   are available from various 
sources including the Florida Department  of Transportation, the University of Florida/School 
of Building Construction, the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development/ 
Jacksonville Office, and the Escambia-Pensacola Human Relations Commission.  These lists 
are provided solely for the benefit of the Contractor for the purpose of assisting him/her in 
meeting the Equal Opportunity Provisions contained in these contract conditions.  No assertion 
is made as to the completeness of these lists, and the information contained in such lists may 
be out of date in some cases. Contracting entity and subcontractors thereto are to make 
reasonable efforts to identify and utilize minority, disadvantaged or female owned businesses 
in the completion of this contract. 
 
14.  Contract Work Hours Act, Safety Standards Act, and Fair Labor Standards Act 
 
These laws apply to all Federally-assisted construction contracts, including those which are 
otherwise exempt from Davis-Bacon Act provisions.  The laws generally require that: 
 

1. A minimum wage of $7.25/hour be paid (unless the minimum wage required by the State  
    of Florida is higher, whereupon the higher Florida minimum wage rate shall be required) 
2. Forty hours constitutes a standard workweek; 
3. "Time and one-half" rates be paid for work in excess of these maximums; 
4. Employers are liable to employees for payment of overtime; 
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5. Equal pay for equal work is required as it effects male and female workers in the  
    same classification; 
6. Failure to pay overtime is punishable by liquidated damages of $10/employee/day; 
7. Contracting entities/local jurisdictions may withhold such damages from   
    progress payments to Contractors; 
8. Intentional violations constitute a Federal misdemeanor and are punishable by fine         
   ($1,000 minimum), imprisonment (6 months in prison),  and  possible debarment  
    by the  U. S.  Department of Housing and Urban Development,  U. S. Department   
    of Labor, the State of Florida,  or other cognizant agencies. 

   
15. Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (as amended) and Executive  Order   
      11063 Regarding Fair Housing 
 
Title VIII and E.O. 11063 prohibit discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex, familial 
status, handicap or national origin in connection with housing and public accommodations and with 
respect to the sale or rental of housing. 
 
16.  Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and Handicapped Accessibility Standards  

  
All contract parties shall fully comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with Disabilities 
Act with regard to employment, accessibility, and prohibition of discriminatory actions.  Further, each 
building or facility (other than a privately owned residential structure) which is designed, constructed 
or altered with HUD funds shall comply with the requirements of the "American Standards 
Specifications for Making Buildings and Facilities Accessible to, and Usable by, the  Physically 
Handicapped," issued subject to the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968, 42 U.S.C. 4151, and 
amendments thereto. 
 
17.  Preservation of Historically Significant Properties 

 
Evaluation of the acceptability of HUD assisted acquisition, construction, rehabilitation or related 
project activities must take into account the effect of the project upon any district, site, building, 
structure or object listed or found by the Secretary of the Interior, pursuant to 34 CFR Part 800, to be 
eligible for inclusion in the National Register of Historic Places.  Actions should be taken to minimize 
any resulting adverse impact on a historic property, subject to requirements set forth in 24 CFR Part 
570.603.  Requirements of Pub. L. 93-291, the Archaeological and Historic Preservation Act of 1974, 
and Executive Order 11593, and any amendments or revisions thereto. 

 
      18.   Prohibition Against Use of Debarred, Suspended, or Ineligible Contractors or  

       Subcontractors 
 
Contracting entity certifies and asserts that his/her business and/or affiliated businesses, and 

further, that the subcontractors selected by the Contracting entity to complete work on this project, are 
not currently debarred, suspended or otherwise ineligible to participate in or undertake contract work 
financed by the U.S. Government under the provisions of 24 CFR Part 24. 
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ATTACHMENT TO FEDERAL LABOR STANDARDS PROVISIONS 

                          SO-CALLED “ANTI-KICKBACK ACT” AND REGULATIONS PROMULGATED PURSUANT TO THE       

SECRETARY OF LABOR, UNITED STATES DEPARTMENT OF LABOR  

 
 Title 18, U.S.C., section 874 

(Replaces section 1 of the Act as of June 13, 1934  (48 Stat. 948, 40 U.S.C., sec 276b)  

pursuant to the Act as of June 25, 1948, 62 Stat. 86.2)                                           

 

               KICKBACKS FROM PUBLIC WORKS EMPLOYEES     

Whoever, by force, intimidation, or threat of procuring dismissal from employment, or by other manner whatsoever induces any 
person employed in the construction , persecution, completion or repair of any public building, public work, or building or work 
financed in whole or in part by loans or grants from the United States, to give up any part of the compensation to which he is 
entitled under his contract of employment, shall be fined not more than $5,000 or imprisoned not more than five years, or both.  

 

SECTION 2 OF THE ACT OF JUNE 13, 1934, AS AMENDED (48 Stat. 948, 62 Stat. 862, 63 Stat. 108, 72 State 967, 40 
U.S.C., Sec. 276c)     

    The Secretary of Labor shall make reasonable regulations for contractors and subcontractors engaged in the construction, 
prosecution, completion or repair of public buildings, public works, or buildings or works financed in whole or in part by loans or 
grants from the United States, including a provision that each contractor and subcontractor shall furnish weekly a statement with 
respect to the wages paid each employee during the preceding week, Section 1001 of Title 18 (United States Code) shall apply to 
such statements.                           

                                                                                                     ---XX—      

 

  Pursuant to the aforesaid Anti-Kickback Act, the Secretary of Labor, United States Department of Labor, has promulgated the 
regulations hereinafter set forth, which regulations are found in title 29, Subtitle A, Code of Federal Regulations, Part 3.   The term 
“this part” as used in the regulations hereinafter set forth, refers to Part 3 last above mentioned.  Said regulations are as follows:

 

29 CFR 3.1 - Purpose and scope. 

Section Number: 3.1  

Section Name: Purpose and scope.  

    This part prescribes ``anti-kickback'' regulations under section 2 of the Act of June 
13, 1934, as amended (40 U.S.C. 276c), popularly known as the Copeland Act. This 
part applies to any contract which is subject to Federal wage standards and which is for 
the  construction, prosecution, completion, or repair of public buildings, public works 
or buildings or works financed in whole or in part by loans or grants from the United 
States. The part is intended to aid in the enforcement of the minimum wage provisions 
of the Davis-Bacon Act and the various statutes dealing with federally assisted 
construction that contain similar minimum wage provisions, including those provisions 
which are not subject to Reorganization Plan No. 14 (e.g., the College Housing Act of 
1950, the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, and the Housing Act of 1959), and in 
the enforcement of the overtime provisions of the Contract Work Hours Standards Act 
whenever they are applicable to construction work. The part details the obligation of 
contractors and subcontractors relative to the weekly submission of statements 
regarding the wages paid on work covered thereby; sets forth the circumstances and 
procedures  governing the making of payroll deductions from the wages of those 
employed on such work; and delineates the methods of payment permissible on such 
work. 
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29 CFR 3.2 - Definitions.  

 Section Number: 3.2  

 Section Name: Definitions.  

     As used in the regulations in this part: 
    (a) The terms building or work generally include construction activity as 
distinguished from manufacturing, furnishing of materials, or servicing and 
maintenance work. The terms include, without limitation, buildings, structures, and 
improvements of all types, such as bridges, dams, plants, highways, parkways, streets, 
subways, tunnels, sewers, mains, powerlines, pumping stations, railways, airports, 
terminals, docks, piers, wharves, ways, lighthouses, buoys, jetties, breakwaters, levees, 
and canals; dredging, shoring, scaffolding, drilling, blasting, excavating, clearing, and 
landscaping. Unless  conducted in connection with and at the site of such a building or 
work  as is described in the foregoing sentence, the manufacture or furnishing  of 
materials, articles, supplies, or equipment (whether or not a Federal or State agency 
acquires title to such materials, articles, supplies, or equipment during the course of the 
manufacture or furnishing, or owns the materials from which they are manufactured or 
furnished) is not a building or work within the meaning of the regulations in this part. 
 
    (b) The terms construction, prosecution, completion, or repair mean all types of work done on a 
particular building or work at the site thereof, including, without limitation, altering, remodeling, painting 
and decorating, the transporting of materials and supplies to or from the building or work by the employees 
of the construction contractor or construction subcontractor, and the manufacturing or furnishing of 
materials, articles, supplies, or equipment on the site of the building or work, by persons employed at the 
site by the contractor or subcontractor. 

 
    (c) The terms public building or public work include building or work for whose construction, 
prosecution, completion, or repair, as defined above, a Federal agency is a contracting party, regardless of  
whether title thereof is in a Federal agency. 

 
   (d) The term building or work financed in whole or in part by loans or grants from the United States 
includes building or work for whose construction, prosecution, completion, or repair, as defined above, 
payment or part payment is made directly or indirectly from funds provided by loans or grants by a Federal 
agency. The term includes building or work for which the Federal assistance granted is in the form of loan 
guarantees or insurance. 

  
   (e) Every person paid by a contractor or subcontractor in any manner for his labor in the construction, 
prosecution, completion, or repair of a public building or public work or building or work financed in 
whole or in part by loans or grants from the United States is employed and receiving wages, regardless of 
any contractual relationship alleged to exist between him and the real employer. 
 
    (f) The term any affiliated person includes a spouse, child, parent, or other close relative of the 
contractor or subcontractor; a partner or officer of the contractor or subcontractor; a corporation closely 
connected with the contractor or subcontractor as parent, subsidiary, or otherwise, and an officer or agent 
of such corporation. 
 
    (g) The term Federal agency means the United States, the District of  Columbia, and all executive 
departments, independent establishments, administrative agencies, and instrumentalities of the United 
States and of the District of Columbia, including corporations, all or substantially all of the stock of which 
is beneficially owned by the United States, by the District of Columbia, or any of the foregoing 
departments, establishments, agencies, and instrumentalities. 
[29 FR 97, Jan. 4, 1964, as amended at 38 FR 32575, Nov. 27, 1973] 
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29 CFR 3.3 - Weekly statement with respect to payment of wages 

 Section Number: 3.3  

 Section Name: Weekly statement with respect to payment of wages.  

  (a) As used in this section, the term employee shall not apply to persons in 
classifications higher than that of laborer or mechanic and those who are the immediate 
supervisors of such employees. 

                           (b) Each contractor or subcontractor engaged in the construction, prosecution, 
completion, or repair of any public building or public work, or building or work financed 
in whole or in part by loans or grants from the United States, shall furnish each week a 
statement with respect to the wages paid each of its employees engaged on work covered 
by this part 3 and part 5 of this chapter during the preceding weekly payroll period. This 
statement shall be executed by the contractor or subcontractor or by an authorized officer 
or employee of the contractor or subcontractor who supervises the payment of wages, and 
shall be on form WH 348, ``Statement of Compliance'', or on an identical form on the 
back of WH 347, ``Payroll (For Contractors Optional Use)'' or on any form with identical 
wording. Sample copies of WH 347 and WH 348 may be obtained from the Government 
contracting or sponsoring agency, and copies of these forms may be purchased at the 
Government Printing Office. 

                                   (c) The requirements of this section shall not apply to any contract of $2,000 or less. 
            (d) Upon a written finding by the head of a Federal agency, the Secretary of Labor may 
        provide reasonable limitations, variations, tolerances, and exemptions from the requirements 
        of this section subject to such conditions as the Secretary of Labor may specify. 

[29 FR 97, Jan. 4, 1964, as amended at 33 FR 10186, July 17, 1968; 47 FR 23679, May 
28, 1982] 
 

29 CFR 3.4 - Submission of weekly statements and the preservation and inspection of weekly payroll records.  

 Section Number: 3.4  

 Section Name: Submission of weekly statements and the preservation and inspection of weekly payroll records.  

    (a) Each weekly statement required under Sec. 3.3 shall be delivered by the contractor or 
subcontractor, within seven days after the regular payment date of the payroll period, to a 
representative of a Federal or State agency in charge at the site of the building or work, or, if 
there is no representative of a Federal or State agency at the site of the building or work, the 
statement shall be mailed by the contractor or subcontractor, within such time, to a Federal or 
State agency contracting for or financing the building or work. After such examination and check 
as may be made, such statement, or a copy thereof, shall be kept available, or shall be transmitted 
together with a report of any violation, in accordance with applicable procedures prescribed by 
the United States Department of Labor. 
    (b) Each contractor or subcontractor shall preserve his weekly payroll records for a period of 
three years from date of completion of the contract. The payroll records shall set out accurately 
and completely the name and address of each laborer and mechanic, his correct classification, 
rate of pay, daily and weekly number of hours worked, deductions made, and actual wages paid. 
Such payroll records shall be made available at all times for inspection by the contracting officer 
or his authorized representative, and by authorized representatives of the Department of Labor. 
(Reporting and recordkeeping requirements in paragraph (b) have been approved by the Office 
of Management and Budget under control number 1215-0017) 
[29 FR 97, Jan. 4, 1964, as amended at 47 FR 145, Jan. 5, 1982] 
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29 CFR 3.5 - Payroll deductions permissible without application to or approval of the Secretary of Labor.  

Section Number: 3.5  

Section Name: Payroll deductions permissible without application to or approval of the Secretary of Labor.  

Deductions made under the circumstances or in the situations described in the paragraphs of this section 
may be made without application to and approval of the Secretary of Labor: 

 
   (a) Any deduction made in compliance with the requirements of Federal, State, or local law, such 
as Federal or State withholding income taxes and Federal social security taxes. 

 
   (b) Any deduction of sums previously paid to the employee as a bona fide prepayment of wages when 
such prepayment is made without discount or interest. A bona fide   prepayment  of  wages  is  considered  
to  have  been  made  only  when  cash   or  its  equivalent   has  been advanced to the person employed in 
such manner as to give him  complete freedom of disposition of the advanced funds. 

 
 (c) Any deduction of amounts required by court process to be paid to another, unless the deduction 

is in favor of the contractor, subcontractor, or any affiliated person, or when collusion or collaboration 
exists. 
 
  (d) Any deduction constituting a contribution on behalf of the person employed to   funds established by 
the employer or representatives of employees, or both, for the purpose  of providing either from principal  
or income, or both, medical or hospital care, pensions or annuities on retirement, death benefits, compensation 
for injuries, illness, accidents, sickness, or disability, or for insurance to provide any of the foregoing, or 
unemployment benefits, vacation pay, savings accounts, or similar payments for the benefit of employees,  
their families and dependents: Provided, however, that the following standards are met: (1) The deduction is   
not otherwise prohibited by law;(2) It is either: (i) Voluntarily consented to by the employee in writing and in 
advance of the period in which the work is to be done and such consent is not a condition either for the obtaining 
of  or for the continuation of employment, or (ii) provided for in a bona fide collective bargaining agreement 
between the contractor or subcontractor and representatives of its employees; (3) No profit or subcontractor  
and representatives of its employees; (3) No profit or other benefit is otherwise obtained, directly or indirectly, 
by the contractor or subcontractor or any affiliated person in the form of commission, dividend, or otherwise;  
and (4) The deductions shall serve the convenience and interest of the employee. 
 
  (e) Any deduction contributing toward the purchase of United States Defense Stamps and Bonds when 
voluntarily authorized by the employee. 
  
  (f) Any deduction requested by the employee to enable him to repay loans to or to purchase shares in  
credit unions organized and operated in accordance with Federal and State credit union statutes. 
 
        (g) Any deduction voluntarily authorized by the employee for the making of contributions to  
governmental or quasi-governmental agencies, such as the American Red Cross. 
 
 
        (h) Any deduction voluntarily authorized by the employee for the making of contributions to 
Community Chests, United Givers Funds, and similar charitable organizations. 
 
         (i) Any deductions to pay regular union initiation  fees and membership dues, not including fines  
or special assessments: Provided, however, That a collective bargaining agreement between the contractor 
or subcontractor and representatives of its employees provides for such deductions and the deductions  
are not otherwise prohibited by law. 
 
        (j) Any deduction not more than for the ``reasonable cost'' of board, lodging, or other facilities 
meeting the requirements of section 3(m) of the Fair Labor Standards Act of 1938, as amended, and  
part 531 of this  title. When such a deduction is made the additional records required under Sec. 
516.25(a) of this title shall be kept. 
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   (k) Any deduction for the cost of safety equipment of nominal value purchased  by  the employee as  
his own property for his personal protection in his work, such as safety shoes, safety glasses, safety gloves, 
and hard hats, if such equipment is not required by  law to be furnished by the employer, if such deduction 
is not violative of the Fair Labor Standards Act or prohibited by other law, if the cost on which the deduction 
is based does not  exceed the actual cost to the employer where the equipment is purchased from him and   
does not include any direct or indirect monetary return to the employer where the  equipment is purchased 
from a third person, and if the deduction is either: 
 
                   (1) Voluntarily consented to by the employee in writing and in advance of the period in which 

 the work is to be done and such consent is not a condition either for the obtaining of  employment 
 or its continuance; or  

 
(2) Provided for in a bona fide collective bargaining agreement between the contractor or  
subcontractor and representatives of its employees. 
             [29 FR 97, Jan. 4, 1964, as amended at 36 FR 9770, May 28, 1971] 
 

29 CFR 3.6 - Payroll deductions permissible with the approval of Secretary of Labor 

Section Number: 3.6  

        Section Name: Payroll deductions permissible with the approval of the Secretary of Labor.  

 
Any contractor or subcontractor may apply to the Secretary of Labor for permission to make any  
deduction not permitted under Sec. 3.5. The Secretary may grant permission whenever he finds that: 

 
                (a)  The contractor, subcontractor, or any affiliated person does not make a profit or benefit directly  
                      or indirectly from the deduction either in the form of a commission, dividend, or otherwise; 

 
(b) The deduction is not otherwise prohibited by law; 
 
(c) The deduction is either (1) voluntarily consented to by the employee in writing and in advance  
      of the period in which the work is to be done and such consent is not a condition either  for the  
      obtaining of employment or its continuance, or (2) provided for in a bona fide collective bargaining  
      agreement between the contractor or subcontractor and representatives of its employees; and 

 
        (d) The deduction serves the convenience and interest of the employee. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  8.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 02/03/2011  

Issue: Neighborhood Stabilization Program 3 (NSP3) Substantial Amendment
From: Keith Wilkins
Organization: Comm & Env Neigh Redevelopment
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Neighborhood Stabilization Program 3 (NSP3) Substantial
Amendment - Keith Wilkins, REP, Community & Environment Interim Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action concerning the Neighborhood Stabilization
Program 3 (NSP3) Substantial Amendment to 2010 Escambia Consortium Annual
Action Plan:
 
A.  Approve and authorize submission of a Substantial Amendment to the 2010
Escambia Consortium Annual Action Plan to incorporate $1,210,487, in Neighborhood
Stabilization Program 3 (NSP3) funding to undertake activities targeting the acquisition,
rehabilitation or redevelopment of foreclosed, vacant or abandoned properties in
designated areas of Escambia County and the City of Pensacola, as provided by the
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) under the National Housing
Economic Recovery Act of 2008 (HERA), as amended; and 

B.  Authorize the County Administrator to execute the 2010 Substantial Amendment and
related NSP3 Program forms, certifications, and any related documents, as may be
required to submit the Amendment to HUD and authorize the County Administrator or
Chairman, as appropriate, to execute all documents required to receive the NSP3 funds
and to implement the NSP3 Program.

[Funding: Fund/Cost Center to be assigned]

BACKGROUND:
The 2010 Escambia Consortium Annual Action Plan was approved by the Board on July



The 2010 Escambia Consortium Annual Action Plan was approved by the Board on July
8, 2010 (see Exhibit I for Board action resume).  The 2010 Annual Plan included
specific listings of CDBG eligible projects planned for the upcoming year.   Congress
approved the National Housing and Economic Recovery Act of 2008 (HERA), which
initially included a one-time $3.9 billion allocation of CDBG-like funds to be used
specifically targeting the acquisition, rehabilitation or redevelopment of foreclosed or
abandoned properties in areas targeted in accordance with HERA requirements.  HUD
was designated to administer this new initiative, now known as  Neighborhood
Stabilization Program 1 (NSP1).  Subsequently HUD developed a national funds
distribution formula targeting each state and those local governments within each state
that exceeded threshold requirements for a direct NSP allocation.  The formula was
generally based upon comparative data, at state and local government levels, of relative
foreclosure rates, high cost loan rates, proclivity for subprime loans, and likelihood for
increased foreclosure rates in the future.   Escambia County’s $4,565,918 NSP1
allocation is 100% obligated, with all projects underway or complete.  

On October 19, 2010 HUD released requirements for allocating a new round of NSP
funds, now commonly known as NSP3.  Escambia County is slated to receive
$1,210,487 in NSP3 funds.   NSP3 largely tracks amended requirements of NSP1, with
the exception that targeting requirements are substantially tighter.  Generally the funds
must be utilized for housing recovery initiatives meeting the combined requirements of
HERA, the NSP Regulations, and CBDG Regulations (to the extent not superseded by
HERA).  More specifically, the funds were approved by Congress for targeted
acquisition, rehabilitation or redevelopment of foreclosed, vacant or abandoned
properties to enhance neighborhood stabilization.  The complete, approved Substantial
Amendment incorporating NSP3 is due to the HUD Jacksonville Office on or before
March 1, 2011.   This is inclusive of the HUD requirement that the draft NSP plan be
completed (written) and made available for public review and comment for a minimum
15-day period prior to submission to HUD.   Availability of the working draft NSP3 plan
was concurrently noticed in the  Pensacola News Journal on January 15, 2011, and
made available on the County’s website for review (see Exhibit II for the public notice
and website location).
 
The NSP3 plan describes the specific housing activities to be undertaken in the local
community, indicates approaches for meeting low income set-aside requirements in the
HERA (25% of the funds must benefit persons with incomes under 50% of the area
median income), provides the allocation of the overall budget by eligible activity, and
stipulates the geographic areas targeted for NSP expenditures based on the HERA
requirements.   A maximum of 10% of the total grant can be used for administrative
costs (including staff, operational support, indirect costs, and contractual or support
services).  The grant will be managed and implemented by Neighborhood Enterprise
Foundation, Inc. (NEFI), with specialized support provided by the County Community
Redevelopment Agency and the EscaRosa Coalition on the Homeless, as well as other
agencies on an as needed basis.  This program is very paperwork intensive with a
myriad of crosscutting regulatory requirements due to the superimposition of HERA,



NSP and CDBG Regulations.   Exhibit III contains the complete draft NSP3 plan and
budget as provided for public review and comment.  HUD anticipates award of the NSP3
funds no later than early April 2011.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
NSP3 funds in the amount of $1,210,487 will be awarded in early 2011.  At that time the
funds will be budgeted via supplemental.  The Plan does not commit any County
General Fund revenue.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
Not applicable at this stage.  Subsequent to award, a number of Agreements will be
required to implement various NSP3 activities.  Those documents will be reviewed by
the County Attorney’s Office at the appropriate time.

PERSONNEL:
County positions will not be impacted by the NSP3.  Plans are to utilize various existing
County and non-profit agencies to carry out the program.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Substantial Amendments to the Escambia Consortium Consolidated Plan and Annual
Action Plans require formal approval by the Board. 
 

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
The Substantial Amendment process for NSP3, culminating in HUD award of NSP3
funds, will be managed by NEFI, in cooperation with the HUD Jacksonville Office and
the County’s Neighborhood Redevelopment Division.  All public and HUD notification
requirements, as well as project clearances, will be accomplished prior to initiating any
of the amended activities.  Housing interests have been involved in drafting the NSP3
plan to the extent possible given the short turnaround time afforded by HUD.   The
proposed NSP3 activities meet currently established NSP 3eligibility criteria based upon
consultation with HUD staff, but this is subject to updates that continue to be released by
HUD.  Agencies and individuals involved in these projects have also been advised of this
recommendation and meeting dates associated therewith.

Attachments
Exhibit I-2010 Annual Plan
Exhibit II-NSP3 ad
Exhibit III-NSP3 Draft Plan
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PUBLIC FORUM WORK SESSION AND REGULAR BCC MEETING MINUTES – Continued 

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR'S REPORT – Continued 

 II. BUDGET/FINANCE CONSENT AGENDA – Continued 

 1-39. Approval of Various Consent Agenda Items – Continued 

 23. Taking the following action concerning approval of the 2010 Escambia Consortium
Annual Action Plan (Funding:  Fund 129/CDBG, Fund 147/HOME, and Fund 110/ESG –
Cost Centers to be assigned): 

  A. Approving the 2010 Escambia Consortium Annual Action Plan for Housing and 
Community Development, including the Escambia County 2010 Annual Plan 
detailing use of 2010 Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds, in the 
amount of $2,260,914; 2010 HOME Investment Partnerships Act (HOME) funds, in 
the amount of $1,783,779; and 2010 Emergency Shelter Grant (ESG) Program 
funds, in the amount of $92,305; and 

  B. Authorizing the Interim County Administrator to execute the 2010 Annual Action Plan 
forms, certifications, and related documents, as required to submit the Plan to the 
U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD), and authorizing the 
Interim County Administrator or Chairman, as appropriate, to execute documents 
required to receive and implement the 2010 CDBG, 2010 HOME, and 2010 ESG 
Programs.

 24. See Page 37. 

 25. Taking the following action regarding the State of Florida Department of Community 
Affairs Community Development Block (CDBG) Disaster Recovery (2008 Storms) Grant 
funding for Sanitary Sewer Improvements within the Barrancas Community 
Redevelopment Area (Lakewood Area) (Funding:  Fund 110/CDBG Disaster Recovery 
Grant, Cost Center 220436; and Fund 124/Affordable Housing, Cost Center 220406):

  A. Approving the Interlocal Agreement with Emerald Coast Utilities Authority, in the 
amount of $3,200,000, providing for the construction of public sanitary sewer system 
improvements in the Barrancas Community Redevelopment Areas (specifically 
including major portions of the Lakewood Subdivision/neighborhood), utilizing CDBG 
Disaster Recovery funds; and

  B. Authorizing the Chairman or Vice Chairman to execute the Agreement and all 
related documents as required to implement the project. 
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  EXHIBIT II 
 
 
 
 

                                                          SUBSTANTIAL AMENDMENT TO 
2010 ESCAMBIA CONSORTIUM ANNUAL ACTION PLAN  

REGARDING THE  
NEIGHBORHOOD STABILIZATION PROGRAM 3 (NSP 3) 

 
 
Escambia County is amending its 2008 Escambia Consortium Annual Action Plan specifically to 
incorporate $1,210,487 in Neighborhood Stabilization Program 3 (NSP 3) Grant funding to be provided 
by the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development as authorized by the Housing Economic 
Recovery Act of 2008 (HERA), as amended.  The funds will be expended only to support activities within 
NSP 3 targeted areas as specifically authorized by HERA, generally including the following: 
 
(1)  Purchase and rehabilitate homes and residential properties that have been abandoned or foreclosed  
      upon, in order to sell, rent, or redevelop such homes and properties 
(2)  Redevelop blighted, demolished or vacant properties to provide housing for low income persons 
(3)  Redevelop demolished or vacant properties through cost sharing partnerships to produce  
      housing for low income persons with special needs, including the homeless  
     
A complete copy of the Draft 2010 Annual Action Plan NSP 3 Amendment can be viewed on the 
Escambia County website at: http://www.myescambia.com/Bureaus/CommunityServices/Nefi.html 
Copies are also available for review at the following locations between the hours of 8:00 A.M. - 4:00 P.M., 
Monday through Friday: Neighborhood Enterprise Foundation, Inc., 3420 Barrancas Ave., Pensacola, FL  
and Pensacola Regional Library, Reference Desk/Second Floor, 200 West Gregory St., Pensacola, FL 
                                                                                                                                                                                         
Comments or questions concerning this amendment are invited through 4:00 p.m. (CST), January 31, 
2011. Interested parties may submit written comments to: Escambia Consortium, C/O Neighborhood 
Enterprise Foundation, Inc., P.O. Box 18178, Pensacola, Florida 32523.  Questions should be directed to 
Randy Wilkerson at (850) 458-0466; TDD (850) 458-0464; or E-mail: Randy_Wilkerson@co.escambia.fl.us   
Escambia County adheres to the Americans with Disabilities Act and will make reasonable 
accommodations for access to services, programs, and activities.  Please call 458-0466 (TDD# 
458-0464) at least 48 hours in advance of the event in order to allow time to provide requested services. 
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1. NSP3 Grantee Information 
NSP3 Program Administrator Contact Information 
  Name (Last, First)  Wilkerson, Randy  
  Email Address  Randy_Wilkerson@co.escambia.fl.us 
  Phone Number  850‐458‐0466 
  Mailing Address   P.O. Box 18178, Pensacola, Florida 32523 

2. Areas of Greatest Need   

Map Submission 
The map generated at the HUD NSP3 Mapping Tool for Preparing Action Plan website is included as an 
attachment.   See Attachment 1 – Areas of Greatest Need Maps. 

Data Sources Used to Determine Areas of Greatest Need 
Describe the data sources used to determine the areas of greatest need.   
Response:  
The areas of greatest need in Escambia County were created using the NSP3 Mapping Tool, in 
combination with local experiences in management and implementation of the NSP1 Program.   

Determination of Areas of Greatest Need and Applicable Tiers 
Describe how the areas of greatest need were established and whether a tiered approach is being 
utilized to determine the distribution of funding.   
Response: 
The areas of greatest need in Escambia County were created using the NSP3 Mapping Tool and the 
accompanying data tables.  Only areas with a minimum average score exceeding 17 (the State of Florida 
minimum score) were considered for inclusion as NSP3 neighborhoods/target areas.   The scores were 
based upon target area boundaries created through the HUD NSP3 Mapping Tool and subsequently 
confirmed as eligible by the data set(s) generated through the HUD system. The specific area boundaries 
were further refined based upon knowledge gained by managing the local Escambia County NSP1 
Program, in order to better focus our efforts in those locations with known or emerging  foreclosure 
and/or abandonment issues.  The Areas of Greatest Need depicted in Attachment 1 are the result of this 
process. The criteria afford priority emphasis to the areas that:  have the highest percentage of home 
foreclosures; have the highest percentage of homes financed by subprime mortgage related loans; and 
those areas that are anticipated to face a significant rise in the rate of home foreclosures. The areas 
detailed in Attachment 1 reflect the highest priority for utilization of the limited NSP3 funds.    A tiered 
approach would be considered only in the later stages of NSP3 implementation, should it become 
evident that the allocation cannot be effectively utilized within the areas delineated in Attachment 1.  

3. Definitions and Descriptions  

Definitions 
Term  Definition 
Blighted Structure  In Escambia County, a “blighted structure” shall be defined as a structure (or 

property) that violates Escambia County’s “Unsafe Building Abatement 
(Code Enforcement) Ordinance” or the City of Pensacola’s “Code of 
Ordinances/ Title XIII Code Enforcement.”  Blighted structures or properties 
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generally include unsafe or dilapidated buildings which are vacant; and/or 
properties that create a nuisance as defined and enforced under the 
applicable Code(s). 

Affordable Rents   The Maximum Affordable Rents shall conform to the Fair Market Rent (FMR) 
published annually by the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development for the Pensacola MSA.  Escambia County will work with the 
City of Pensacola’s Housing Department to review and approve affordable 
rents on an annual basis for any NSP assisted activities that result in rental 
occupancy.  Requirements shall minimally comply with HOME Program 
Standards.  

Foreclosed  Per HUD definitions, a property will be considered foreclosed if the property 
is at least 60 days delinquent on its mortgage and the owner has been 
notified; or the property owner is 90 days or more delinquent on tax 
payments; or under state or local law, foreclosure proceedings have been 
initiated or completed; or foreclosure proceedings have been completed and 
title has been transferred to an intermediary aggregator or servicer that is 
not an NSP grantee, subrecipient, developer or end user. 

Abandoned  Per HUD definitions, a property will be considered abandoned if no mortgage 
or tax payments have been made by the property owner for at least 90 days 
or a code enforcement inspection has determined that the property is not 
habitable and the owner has taken no corrective actions within 90 days of 
notification of the deficiencies. 

Descriptions  

Term  Definition 

Long‐Term Affordability  Properties redeveloped for rental or ownership housing shall minimally 
conform to the HOME Program Homeownership Assistance requirements at 
24 CFR Part 92.254(A)(4), or the Rental Assistance requirements at 24 CFR 
Part 92.252(a)(e), as applicable to the individual housing development 
project.   

Housing Rehabilitation 
Standards 
 

Escambia County and its partner agencies will rehabilitate housing units to 
comply with applicable provisions of the most current edition of the Florida 
Building Code. Construction compliance will be verified by Code Inspections 
performed by the responsible permitting agency(ies) in conjunction with an 
independent certification of completion by a Florida licensed home inspector 
or an in‐house housing rehabilitation inspector.   
 
Additionally, per NSP requirements: 
o All gut rehabilitation or new construction (i.e., general replacement of the 

interior of a building that may or may not include changes to structural 
elements such as flooring systems, columns or load bearing interior or 
exterior walls) of residential buildings up to three stories must be 
designed to meet the standard for Energy Star Qualified New Homes.  

o Other rehabilitation must meet these standards to the extent applicable 
to the rehabilitation work undertaken, e.g., replace older obsolete 
products and appliances (such as windows, doors, lighting, hot water 
heaters, furnaces, boilers, air conditioning units, refrigerators, clothes 



DRAFT:  JANUARY 15, 2011 

NSP3 Application/Substantial Amendment ‐ Draft 
1/15/2011  Page 5 

 

washers and dishwashers) with Energy Star‐46 labeled products.  

o Water efficient toilets, showers, and faucets, such as those with the 
WaterSense label, must be installed.  

o Where relevant, the housing should be improved to mitigate the impact 
of disasters (e.g., hurricane). 

o Energy efficient and environmentally‐friendly green elements will be 
considered as an element of NSP3 assisted rehabilitation or renovation 
projects. 

 

4. LowIncome Targeting 

Low‐Income Set‐Aside Amount 
Enter the low‐income set‐aside percentage in the first field. The field for total funds set aside will 
populate based on the percentage entered in the first field and the total NSP3 grant. 

Identify the estimated amount of funds appropriated or otherwise made available under the NSP3 to 
be used to provide housing for individuals or families whose incomes do not exceed 50 percent of 
area median income.  
Response:  
       Total low‐income set‐aside percentage (must be no less than 25 percent): 45% 
      Total funds set aside for low‐income individuals  = $550,000.00 
 

Meeting Low‐Income Target 
Provide a summary that describes the manner in which the low‐income targeting goals will be met.   
Response:  
The NSP3 low‐income set aside (for the benefit of persons/families below 50% of area median income) 
will be met through the joint efforts of Escambia County and the Area Housing Commission (local PHA), 
wherein up to five vacant duplex units will be renovated to provide permanent, code compliant housing 
for low‐income persons/families, including homeless and/or special needs.  This will be accomplished 
under NSP Eligible Use E. 

5. Acquisition and Relocation 

Demolition or Conversion of LMI Units 
Does the grantee intend to demolish or convert any low‐ and moderate‐income 
dwelling units (i.e., ≤ 80% of area median income)?     

 
No 

 
If yes, fill in the table below.    
Question  Number of Units  
The number of low‐ and moderate‐income dwelling units—i.e., ≤ 80% of area 
median income—reasonably expected to be demolished or converted as a direct 
result of NSP‐assisted activities. 

 
 
N/A 

The number of NSP affordable housing units made available to low‐ , moderate‐, 
and middle‐income households—i.e.,  ≤ 120% of area median income—reasonably 
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expected to be produced by activity and income level as provided for in DRGR, by 
each NSP activity providing such housing (including a proposed time schedule for 
commencement and completion). 

 
 
N/A 

The number of dwelling units reasonably expected to be made available for 
households whose income does not exceed 50 percent of area median income. 

 
N/A 

6. Public Comment  

Citizen Participation Plan 
Briefly describe how the grantee followed its citizen participation plan regarding this proposed 
substantial amendment or abbreviated plan.   
Response: 
Per provisions of the NSP authorized abbreviated Citizens Participation Plan, a summary of the draft 
NSP3 Plan (Substantial Amendment) was published in the Pensacola News Journal on January 15, 2011, 
wherein the public was afforded a minimum 15‐day review and comment period regarding the proposed 
utilization.  Additionally, concurrent with the public notice, a complete copy of the draft Plan was placed 
on the County’s publicly accessible website for review and available at the downtown branch of the 
Pensacola public library.  The link to the document was also provided in the public notice.  Email 
solicitations were also disseminated to citizens, including local neighborhood organizations and non 
profit agencies. 

Summary of Public Comments Received.   
The summary of public comments received is included as an attachment.  See Attachment 2 ‐ Summary 
of Public Comments. 

7. NSP Information by Activity  
Consult the NSP3 Program Design Guidebook for guidance on completing the “Performance Measures” 
component of the activity tables below.  

Activity Number 1 
Activity Name  Escambia Activity 1 – Acquisition/Rehabilitation  

Uses  

Select all that apply:  
  Eligible Use A: Financing Mechanisms 
  Eligible Use B: Acquisition and Rehabilitation 
  Eligible Use C: Land Banking  
  Eligible Use D: Demolition 
  Eligible Use E: Redevelopment  

CDBG Activity or 
Activities 

24 CFR 570.201(a) Acquisition, (b) Disposition, (j) Relocation (as applicable) & 
(n) Direct Homeownership Assistance (including eligible rehabilitation and 
preservation activities for homes and other residential properties per 24 CFR 
part 570.202). Homebuyer Counseling may be provided as a service delivery 
cost. 

National Objective   Low Moderate Middle Income Housing (LMMH) 

Activity Description  

(a) Local Housing Market Conditions Addressed by Activity 1:  This activity 
specifically targets the purchase and rehabilitation/redevelopment of 
foreclosed and abandoned homes and properties, via public and/or non‐profit 
organizations, to return such properties to the affordable housing inventory 
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to aid in meeting the needs of low, moderate and middle income families in 
Escambia County.  Foreclosed, abandoned,  and vacant homes and properties 
in Escambia County are most concentrated in neighborhoods identified in 
Attachment 1.  Targeted purchase and rehabilitation/redevelopment of these 
properties to comply with applicable building codes and standards will 
directly impact blighting conditions in the subject neighborhoods. Housing 
counseling through a HUD approved agency shall constitute an eligible 
expenditure when provided in conjunction with this Activity.  

(b) Overview of NSP Activity 1:  NSP funds will be used to create:  

(i) a revolving, zero interest loan pool from which agencies implementing 
this Activity can access NSP funds to finance costs required to culminate the 
purchase, rehabilitation/redevelopment and resale of foreclosed or 
abandoned  properties to assist eligible LMMI buyers.  Such costs shall 
include all customary expenses, including a reasonable project delivery/ 
development cost payable to the implementing agency(ies).  The Maximum 
Sales Price shall be an amount equal to or less than the aggregate (total) 
cost to acquire and rehabilitate or redevelop the subject home or property 
up to a decent, safe and habitable condition (including related project 
delivery and soft costs).   Project delivery cost shall be calculated as a 
percentage applied to the aggregate acquisition/rehab cost which is added 
to such cost to determine the Maximum Sales Price.  An 8% project 
delivery/development cost shall be deemed reasonable and shall be allowed 
without necessity for detailed justification.  Any percentage above 8% shall 
only be allowed upon submission of detailed cost documentation by the 
implementing agency(ies).    

(ii) soft second/third mortgage assistance to enhance affordability of the 
homes for the ultimate LMMI buyers.  The subordinate mortgage assistance 
shall be for the benefit of the homebuyers and the amount shall reflect the 
financing needs of individual LMMI buyers with respect to underwriting 
requirements of participating first mortgage lenders. Underwriting shall 
minimally meet current FHA or Fannie Mae standards for 15‐40 year fixed 
rate mortgage products with standard amortization.  No subprime, interest 
only, balloon, adjustable rate, or similar unconventional mortgage products 
shall be allowed with respect to this NSP activity.  NSP assistance for the 
benefit of the buyer shall be applied at closing on the purchase of the home 
or property for the benefit of the LMMI buyer.  Any residual financing 
provided to the implementing agency(ies) under #1 (above), which is not 
applied at closing for the direct benefit of the buyer(s), shall be repaid at 
closing to the Escambia County NSP fund by the implementing agency.   In 
the event NSP assisted homes cannot be sold within a reasonable period of 
time the County and /or the participating Agency(ies) may elect to convert 
the home to rental use, either via lease/purchase (with a maximum lease 24 
month lease period) or alternatively, to permanent long term rental 
occupancy under the management of the participating Agency(ies).   If a 
unit is converted to rental use, the affordability period, rental rate and 
occupancy requirements shall conform to the applicable rental occupancy 
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and rental rate provisions stipulated in subsection (d) below.  

(c) Tenure of Beneficiaries:  Homeownership (priority) with option for 
conversion to rental. 

(d) Terms Applicable to NSP Assistance:              

(i)   Affordability Period (duration):  Properties redeveloped for ownership 
or rental housing shall minimally conform to the HOME Program 
Homeownership Assistance requirements at 24 CFR Part 92.254(A)(4), or 
the Rental Assistance requirements at 24 CFR Part 92.252(a)(e), as 
applicable to the individual housing development project.   

(ii)   Financing Terms:  Homebuyers assisted via NSP Activity 01 shall receive 
subordinate mortgage financing in the form of a Deferred Payment Loan at 
zero percent (0%) interest secured by mortgage, note and deed restriction 
with repayment due upon default as a result of the sale, transfer, 
refinancing, encumbrance, or rental of the housing unit or property, unless 
the home or property is subsequently sold to a qualifying LMMI family (see 
Mechanism for Maintaining Continued Affordability section below for 
details).   Repayment requirements are: full repayment is required upon 
default or if the sale, transfer, encumbrance, or rental of the subject 
housing unit occurs within the applicable affordability period.  Assuming 
occupancy and compliance with program requirements for the full duration 
of the applicable affordability period, the NSP assistance will be forgiven. 

(iii)   Discount Rate:  Individual foreclosed or abandoned homes or 
properties assisted through this activity shall be purchased at a minimum 
one percent (1%) discount from the current market‐appraised value as 
defined in the NSP Regulations.   

(iv)  Sales Price:  Shall be in an amount equal to or less than the cost to 
acquire and redevelop or rehabilitate such home or property up to a decent, 
safe, and habitable condition (including related activity delivery costs, which 
generally may include, among other items, costs related to the sale of the 
property).   

(e) NSP Project Area Hiring or Contracting Opportunities: 

Escambia County and its partner agencies will, to the maximum extent 
possible, encourage NSP 3 related contractors or developers to hire 
employees who reside in the vicinity of NSP3 project areas and/or to 
contract with small businesses that are owned and operated by persons 
residing in the vicinity of the NSP 3 project areas.  The County will 
accomplish this by incorporating these stipulations into project related 
development contracts and bid/construction solicitation documents.  
Further, contractors and developers will be required to document efforts to 
secure new hires from the NSP project areas and/or to locate and utilize 
subcontractors or suppliers that are owned or operated by persons residing 
in the NSP3 project areas.  
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(f) Rental Housing Preference Procedures: 

At the present time, Escambia County currently has an excellent supply of 
quality rental units from which MMI (Moderate and Middle Income in the 
50‐120% income range) families seeking affordable rental occupancy can 
select.   The significant rental housing need locally is for units that are 
affordable to low and very low income persons or families, especially those 
with special needs or those experiencing homelessness.  Therefore, Activity 
#1 is structured to allow conversion of the LMMI homebuyer units to rental 
occupancy only as a last resort in cases where the homes cannot be sold to 
an NSP eligible buyer in a reasonable period of time.   

Location Description  Escambia NSP3 Target Areas:  Englewood/Brownsville; Ensley; Warrington 
Source of Funding   Dollar Amount  
NSP3   $  539,439.00 
Private Lender (First Mortgage)  $  325,000.00 (Estimated) 

Budget  

Equity (Buyer)  $    15,000.00 (Estimated) 
Total Budget for Activity   $879,439.00 

Performance Measures  
15 housing units acquired and/or rehabilitated;  15 units sold to NSP eligible 
families (or rented to NSP eligible families if rental option becomes necessary) 

Projected Start Date 
April 15, 2011 (or within 45 days of the effective date of the Grant agreement 
between Escambia County and HUD) 

Projected End Date 
September 30, 2013 (or within 30 months of the effective date of the Grant 
agreement between Escambia County and HUD) 

Name 
Escambia County/Neighborhood 
Enterprise Foundation, Inc.  

Location  P. O. Box 18178, Pensacola, FL 32523 
Responsible 
Organization 

Administrator Contact Info  Randy Wilkerson, 850‐458‐0466 
 
 

Activity Number 2 
Activity Name  Escambia Activity 2 – Housing Redevelopment‐Homeownership 

Use  

Select all that apply:  
  Eligible Use A: Financing Mechanisms 
  Eligible Use B: Acquisition and Rehabilitation 
  Eligible Use C: Land Banking  
  Eligible Use D: Demolition 
  Eligible Use E: Redevelopment  

CDBG Activity or 
Activities 

24 CFR 570.201(a) Acquisition, (b) Disposition, (c) Public Facilities/ 
improvement (that directly support NSP assisted housing), (e) Public Services 
(limited to housing counseling for NSP eligible beneficiaries), (j) Relocation 
(as applicable), Eligible Rehabilitation and Preservation activities for 
demolished or vacant properties per 24 CFR part 570.202, and New 
Construction of Housing as authorized by NSP.  Homebuyer Counseling may 
be provided as a service delivery cost.  

National Objective   Low‐Income Housing to Meet 25% Set‐Aside (LH25)  
LMMH Direct Housing Benefit or LMMC Limited Clientele Benefit 

Activity Description  
(a) Local Housing Market Conditions Addressed by Activity 2:   This activity 
will target blighted properties also meeting foreclosed or abandoned 
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definitions. Under this activity, public and/or non‐profit organizations will 
redevelop code deficient properties concentrated in the target area. 
Removal and redevelopment of these blighted properties will produce 
positive improvements in the subject neighborhoods as well as supplying 
affordable housing inventory to aid in meeting the needs of low income 
families in Escambia County that cannot obtain traditional mortgage 
financing. 
 
(b) Overview of NSP Activity 2:  NSP funds will be used to create: 

(i) a revolving, zero interest loan pool from which agencies implementing 
this Activity can access NSP funds to finance costs required to culminate 
the purchase, rehabilitation/redevelopment and resale of foreclosed or 
abandoned  properties to assist eligible LMMI buyers.  Such costs shall 
include all customary expenses, including a reasonable project delivery/ 
development cost payable to the implementing agency(ies).  The 
Maximum Sales Price shall be an amount equal to or less than the 
aggregate (total) cost to acquire and rehabilitate or redevelop the subject 
home or property up to a decent, safe and habitable condition (including 
related project delivery and soft costs).    

(ii) mortgage assistance to enhance affordability of the homes for the 
ultimate LMMC buyers.  The assistance shall be for the benefit of the 
homebuyers and the amount shall reflect the financing needs of individual 
LMMC buyers. NSP assistance for the benefit of the buyer shall be applied 
at closing on the purchase of the home or property for the benefit of the 
LMMC buyer.   

(iii) new construction shall meet the standard for Energy Star Qualified 
New Homes, which shall assist homebuyers with limited income with the 
maintenance on the home as well as the utilities. 

 (c) Tenure of Beneficiaries:  Homeownership, with this activity limited to 
persons or families with incomes below 50% of area median income. 

(d) Terms Applicable to NSP Assistance: 

(i)    Affordability Period (duration):  Properties redeveloped for ownership 
shall minimally conform to the HOME Program Homeownership Assistance 
requirements at 24 CFR Part 92.254(A)(4). 

(ii)   Financing Terms:  Homebuyers assisted via NSP Activity 3 shall receive 
mortgage financing in the form of a Low Interest Loan (5% interest), 
Deferred Payment Loan (0% interest), Deferred Payment Grant or 
combination thereof secured by mortgage and note with repayment due 
upon default as a result of the sale, transfer, refinancing, encumbrance, or 
rental of the housing unit or property, unless the home or property is 
subsequently sold to a qualifying LMMI family (see Mechanism for 
Maintaining Continued Affordability section below for details).   
Repayment requirements are: full repayment is required upon default or if 
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the sale, transfer, encumbrance, or rental of the subject housing unit 
occurs within the applicable affordability period.  Assuming occupancy and 
compliance with program requirements for the full duration of the 
applicable affordability period, the NSP assistance will be forgiven. 

(iii)   Discount Rate:  Individual foreclosed or abandoned homes or 
properties assisted through this activity shall be purchased at a minimum 
one percent (1%) discount from the current market‐appraised value as 
defined in the NSP Regulations.   

(iv)  Sales Price:  Shall be in an amount equal to or less than the cost to 
acquire and redevelop or rehabilitate such home or property up to a 
decent, safe, and habitable condition (including related activity delivery 
costs, which generally may include, among other items, costs related to the 
sale of the property).   

(e) NSP Project Area Hiring or Contracting Opportunities: 

Escambia County and its partner agencies will, to the maximum extent 
possible, encourage NSP3 related contractors or developers to hire 
employees who reside in the vicinity of NSP3 project areas and/or to 
contract with small businesses that are owned and operated by persons 
residing in the vicinity of the NSP3 project areas.  The County will 
accomplish this by incorporating these stipulations into project related 
development contracts and bid/construction solicitation documents.  
Further, contractors and developers will be required to document efforts 
to secure new hires from the NSP project areas and/or to locate and utilize 
subcontractors or suppliers that are owned or operated by persons 
residing in the NSP3 project areas.  

Location Description  Escambia NSP Target Area:  Englewood/Brownsville 
Source of Funding   Dollar Amount  
NSP3   $170,000.00  

Budget  
Equity (Buyer)   $2000.00 (estimated) 

Total Budget for Activity   $172,000.00 

Performance Measures  
Produce a minimum of 2 units acquired and redeveloped; 2 units sold to NSP 
eligible families at or below 50% AMI  

Projected Start Date 
April 15, 2011 (or within 45 days of the effective date of the Grant agreement 
between Escambia County and HUD) 

Projected End Date 
October 31, 2012 (or within 18 months of the effective date of the Grant 
agreement between Escambia County and HUD) 

Name 
Escambia County/Neighborhood 
Enterprise Foundation, Inc.  

Location  P. O. Box 18178, Pensacola, FL 32523 
Responsible 
Organization 

Administrator Contact Info  Randy Wilkerson, 850‐458‐0466 
 
 

Activity Number 3 



DRAFT:  JANUARY 15, 2011 

NSP3 Application/Substantial Amendment ‐ Draft 
1/15/2011  Page 12 

 

Activity Name 
Escambia Activity 3 – Housing Redevelopment  
Rehabilitate and/or Redevelop  Residential Properties for Permanent Housing for  Special Needs 
Populations including the homeless); or for long‐‐ term Rental Occupancy 

Use  

Select all that apply:  
  Eligible Use A: Financing Mechanisms 
  Eligible Use B: Acquisition and Rehabilitation 
  Eligible Use C: Land Banking  
  Eligible Use D: Demolition 
  Eligible Use E: Redevelopment  

CDBG Activity or 
Activities 

24 CFR 570.201(a) Acquisition, (b) Disposition, (c) Public Facilities/ 
improvement (that directly support NSP assisted housing), (e) Public Services 
(limited to housing counseling for NSP eligible beneficiaries), (j) Relocation 
(as applicable), Eligible Rehabilitation and Preservation activities for 
demolished or vacant properties per 24 CFR part 570.202, and New 
Construction of Housing as authorized by NSP.  Homebuyer Counseling may 
be provided as a service delivery cost.  

National Objective   Low‐Income Housing to Meet 25% Set‐Aside (LH25)  
LMMH Direct Housing Benefit or LMMC Limited Clientele Benefit 

Activity Description  

(a) Local Housing Market Conditions Addressed by Activity 3:   This activity 
targets the effective reuse of existing vacant multifamily (duplex) housing 
units owned by the Area Housing Commission (local PHA) for purposes of 
addressing the need for rental units for low and very low income families, 
including special needs and/or the homeless in the community.   In 
partnership with the local PHA and other local non‐profit agency(ies) these 
vacant, blighted units will be redeveloped and made available as permanent  
housing units/beds for special needs and homeless persons in the local 
community.  Such housing units/beds will be leased to a local non‐profit 
agency that serves the targeted limited clientele populations described in the 
CDBG Regulations at 24, CR Part 570.208(a)(2), including, but not limited to 
the following populations:  homeless/formerly homeless or chronically 
homeless.  This Activity will directly support the Escambia Consortium 
Continuum of Care (CoC) Plan. The EscaRosa Coalition on the Homeless 
assisted the County in prioritizing the use of NSP3 funds for this purpose. 
 
(b) Overview of NSP Activity 3:  NSP funds will be used to create: 

(i)   Financing Terms:  Direct Grants or extremely flexible subordinate 
loans (typically at 0% interest) will be the provided for this Activity.   Long 
term affordability will be secured by deed restriction on the property. 

(ii)   Affordability Period (duration):  The NSP assisted units made 
available through this Activity shall be deed restricted for use in meeting 
the needs of targeted special needs populations for a minimum of 15 
years from the date of the deed restriction.  The only exception to this 
rule will be that the Area Housing Commission will have the option to 
convert the units to affordable rental use in the event they cease to be 
needed for homeless/special needs housing at some future date.  Should 
this occur, for the duration of the affordability period, Rental Assistance 
requirements at 24 CFR Part 92.252(a)(e), shall be applicable to the long 
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term rental and occupancy of the units.   Election of this option shall be 
subject to the mutual approval of the EscaRosa Coalition on the Homeless, 
Inc.; Escambia County; and the Area Housing Commission.  

(c) Tenure of Beneficiaries:  Rental (Permanent) Housing for homeless/ 
formerly homeless/special needs.  This activity will be limited to persons or 
families with incomes below 50% of area median income for the duration of 
the affordability period.   

(d) NSP Project Area Hiring or Contracting Opportunities: 

Escambia County and its partner agencies will, to the maximum extent 
possible, encourage NSP3 related contractors or developers to hire 
employees who reside in the vicinity of NSP3 project areas and/or to 
contract with small businesses that are owned and operated by persons 
residing in the vicinity of the NSP3 project areas.  The County will 
accomplish this by incorporating these stipulations into project related 
development contracts and bid/construction solicitation documents.  
Further, contractors and developers will be required to document efforts 
to secure new hires from the NSP project areas and/or to locate and utilize 
subcontractors or suppliers that are owned or operated by persons 
residing in the NSP3 project areas.  

(e) Rental Housing Preference Procedures: 

Activity 3 will utilize the NSP3 25% set‐aside solely to support 
redevelopment of rental units specifically targeting families at or below 
50% of area median, with priority for special needs and homeless 
occupancy.  This action formally commits in excess of 30% of the available 
NSP3 funds for rental occupancy. 

Location Description  Escambia NSP Target Area:  Englewood/Brownsville 
Source of Funding   Dollar Amount  
NSP3   $380,000.00  
Area Housing Commission will 
provide in‐kind support/services 

In‐Kind by Area Housing Commission  Budget  

 (Other funding source)   $ 

Total Budget for Activity   $380,000.00 
Performance Measures   Produce a minimum of 8 units reserved for special needs/homeless  

Projected Start Date 
April 15, 2011 (or within 45 days of the effective date of the Grant agreement 
between Escambia County and HUD) 

Projected End Date 
October 31, 2012 (or within 18 months of the effective date of the Grant 
agreement between Escambia County and HUD) 

Name 
Escambia County/Neighborhood 
Enterprise Foundation, Inc.  

Location  P. O. Box 18178, Pensacola, FL 32523 
Responsible 
Organization 

Administrator Contact Info  Randy Wilkerson, 850‐458‐0466 
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8. Certifications   

Certifications for State and Entitlement Communities 
(1) Affirmatively furthering fair housing.  The jurisdiction certifies that it will affirmatively further fair 
housing, which means that it will conduct an analysis to identify impediments to fair housing choice 
within the jurisdiction, take appropriate actions to overcome the effects of any impediments identified 
through that analysis, and maintain records reflecting the analysis and actions in this regard. 
 
(2) Anti‐displacement and relocation plan. The applicant certifies that it has in effect and is following a 
residential anti‐displacement and relocation assistance plan.  
 
(3) Anti‐lobbying. The jurisdiction must submit a certification with regard to compliance with 
restrictions on lobbying required by 24 CFR part 87, together with disclosure forms, if required by that 
part.  
 
(4) Authority of jurisdiction. The jurisdiction certifies that the consolidated plan or abbreviated plan, as 
applicable, is authorized under state and local law (as applicable) and that the jurisdiction possesses the 
legal authority to carry out the programs for which it is seeking funding, in accordance with applicable 
HUD regulations and other program requirements.  
 
(5) Consistency with plan. The jurisdiction certifies that the housing activities to be undertaken with NSP 
funds are consistent with its consolidated plan or abbreviated plan, as applicable.  
 
(6) Acquisition and relocation. The jurisdiction certifies that it will comply with the acquisition and 
relocation requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act 
of 1970, as amended (42 U.S.C. 4601), and implementing regulations at 49 CFR part 24, except as those 
provisions are modified by the notice for the NSP program published by HUD.  
 
(7) Section 3. The jurisdiction certifies that it will comply with section 3 of the Housing and Urban 
Development Act of 1968 (12 U.S.C. 1701u), and implementing regulations at 24 CFR part 135.  
 
(8) Citizen participation. The jurisdiction certifies that it is in full compliance and following a detailed 
citizen participation plan that satisfies the requirements of Sections 24 CFR 91.105 or 91.115, as 
modified by NSP requirements.  
 
(9) Following a plan. The jurisdiction certifies it is following a current consolidated plan (or 
Comprehensive Housing Affordability Strategy) that has been approved by HUD. [Only States and 
entitlement jurisdictions use this certification.]  
 
(10) Use of funds. The jurisdiction certifies that it will comply with the Dodd‐Frank Wall Street Reform 
and Consumer Protection Act and Title XII of Division A of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act 
of 2009 by spending 50 percent of its grant funds within 2 years, and spending 100 percent within 3 
years, of receipt of the grant.  
 
(11) The jurisdiction certifies:  

a. that all of the NSP funds made available to it will be used with respect to individuals and families 
whose incomes do not exceed 120 percent of area median income; and  
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b. The jurisdiction will not attempt to recover any capital costs of public improvements assisted 
with CDBG funds, including Section 108 loan guaranteed funds, by assessing any amount against 
properties owned and occupied by persons of low‐ and moderate‐income, including any fee 
charged or assessment made as a condition of obtaining access to such public improvements. 
However, if NSP funds are used to pay the proportion of a fee or assessment attributable to the 
capital costs of public improvements (assisted in part with NSP funds) financed from other 
revenue sources, an assessment or charge may be made against the property with respect to 
the public improvements financed by a source other than CDBG funds. In addition, with respect 
to properties owned and occupied by moderate‐income (but not low‐income) families, an 
assessment or charge may be made against the property with respect to the public 
improvements financed by a source other than NSP funds if the jurisdiction certifies that it lacks 
NSP or CDBG funds to cover the assessment.  

 
(12) Excessive force. The jurisdiction certifies that it has adopted and is enforcing:  

a. A policy prohibiting the use of excessive force by law enforcement agencies within its 
jurisdiction against any individuals engaged in nonviolent civil rights demonstrations; and  

b. A policy of enforcing applicable state and local laws against physically barring entrance to, or 
exit from, a facility or location that is the subject of such nonviolent civil rights demonstrations 
within its jurisdiction.  

(13) Compliance with anti‐discrimination laws. The jurisdiction certifies that the NSP grant will be 
conducted and administered in conformity with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d), 
the Fair Housing Act (42 U.S.C. 3601‐3619), and implementing regulations.  
 
(14) Compliance with lead‐based paint procedures. The jurisdiction certifies that its activities 
concerning lead‐based paint will comply with the requirements of part 35, subparts A, B, J, K, and R of 
this title.  
 
(15) Compliance with laws. The jurisdiction certifies that it will comply with applicable laws. 
 
(16) Vicinity hiring.  The jurisdiction certifies that it will, to the maximum extent feasible, provide for 
hiring of employees that reside in the vicinity of NSP3 funded projects or contract with small businesses 
that are owned and operated by persons residing in the vicinity of NSP3 projects.   

(17) Development of affordable rental housing. The jurisdiction certifies that it will be abide by the 
procedures described in its NSP3 Abbreviated Plan to create preferences for the development of 
affordable rental housing for properties assisted with NSP3 funds.   

 
_________________________________________                   
By:  Charles R. “Randy” Oliver, CPA, PE                                          Date: ____________________ 
Title: County Administrator, Escambia County, Florida   
  
Witnessed: 

_____________________________________        _____________________________________ 
Print Name:                                                                    Print Name: 
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 Appendix: NSP3 Action Plan Contents Checklist 
The checklist below is an optional tool for NSP3 grantees to help to ensure that all required elements of 
the NSP3 Substantial Amendment or the Abbreviated Plan are submitted to HUD.  This checklist only 
includes the minimum required elements that must be included in the NSP3 Action Plan and grantees 
may want to add additional details. This document must be protected, as described above, in order to 
use the checkboxes in this checklist.  

1. NSP3 Grantee Information 
  Yes 

Did you include the Program Administrator’s name, address, phone, 
and email address? 

 
 

 

2. Areas of Greatest Need  
  Yes 

Does the narrative description describe how funds will give priority 
emphasis to areas of greatest need? 

 

 

 
 

 

Does the narrative description specifically address how the funds will 
give priority emphasis to those areas: 

• With the highest percentage of home foreclosures? 

• With the highest percentage of homes financed by subprime 
mortgage related loan?; and 

• Identified by the grantee as likely to face a significant rise in 
the rate of home foreclosures? 

 

 Did you create the area of greatest needs map at 
http://www.huduser.org/NSP/NSP3.html?  
 
Did you include the map as an attachment to your Action Plan?   

ONLY Applicable for States: Did you include the needs of all 
entitlement communities in the State? 

 

3. Definitions and Descriptions  
  Yes 

 

 

Are the following definitions and topics included in your substantial 
amendment?: 

• Blighted structure in context of state or local law, 

• Affordable rents, 

• Ensuring long term affordability for all NSP funded housing 
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 projects, 

• Applicable housing rehabilitation standards for NSP funded 
projects   

 

4. LowIncome Targeting  
  Yes 

Did you identify the estimated amount of funds appropriated to 
provide housing that meets the low‐income set aside target? 

 

Did you provide a summary describing how your jurisdiction will meet 
its low‐income set aside goals? 

 

 

5. Acquisition & Relocation    
  Yes 

 

 

 

For all acquisitions that will result in displacement did you specify: 

• The planned activity, 

• The number of units that will result in displacement, 

• The manner in which the grantee will comply with URA for 
those residents?   

 

6. Public Comment  
  Yes 

Did you provide your draft of the NSP3 substantial amendment for a 
minimum of 15 days for public comment?  

 

Did you include the public comments you received on the NSP3 
substantial amendment in your plan?  

 

 

7. NSP Information by Activity  
  Check all 

that apply 

Did you include a description of all eligible NSP3 activities you plan to 
implement with your NSP3 award? 

 

For each eligible NSP3 activity you plan to implement did you include:    

• Eligible use or uses?    
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• Correlated eligible CDBG activity or activities?    

• Associated national objective?    

• How the activity will address local market conditions?   

• Range of interest rates (if any)?    

• Duration or term of assistance?    

• Tenure of beneficiaries (e.g. rental or homeowner)?    

• If the activity produces housing, how the design of the activity 
will ensure continued affordability?  

 

• How you will, to the maximum extent possible, provide for 
vicinity hiring?   

 

• Procedures used to create affordable rental housing 
preferences?  

 

• Areas of greatest need addressed by the activity or activities?   

• Amount of funds budgeted for the activity?   

• Appropriate performance measures for the activity (e.g. units 
of housing to be acquired, rehabilitated, or demolished for the 
income levels represented in DRGR) ? 

 

• Expected start and end dates of the activity?   

• Name and location of the entity that will carry out the activity?   

 

8. Certifications  
  Yes 

Did you sign and submit the certification form applicable to your 
jurisdiction? 

 

 

9. Additional Documentation 
  Yes 

Did you include a signed SF‐424?    
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ATTACHMENT 1 
MAPS: Areas of Greatest Need  
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NSP3 TARGET AREA #1 – CENTRAL URBAN AREA  

 
THIS TARGET AREA MAP IS SUBJECT TO REVISION BASED 
UPON UPDATES TO THE HUD NSP3 MAPPING DATABASE 
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NSP3 TARGET AREA #2 –  ENSLEY 

 
THIS TARGET AREA MAP IS SUBJECT TO REVISION BASED 
UPON UPDATES TO THE HUD NSP3 MAPPING DATABASE 
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ATTACHMENT 2 
Citizen Participation:  
Public Notification  

Summary of Comments Received 



 
 

 

 

 

SUBSTANTIAL AMENDMENT TO 
2010 ESCAMBIA CONSORTIUM ANNUAL ACTION PLAN  

REGARDING THE  
NEIGHBORHOOD STABILIZATION PROGRAM 3 (NSP 3) 

 
 
Escambia County is amending its 2008 Escambia Consortium Annual Action Plan specifically to 
incorporate $1,210,487 in Neighborhood Stabilization Program 3 (NSP 3) Grant funding to be provided 
by the U. S. Department of Housing and Urban Development as authorized by the Housing Economic 
Recovery Act of 2008 (HERA), as amended.  The funds will be expended only to support activities within 
NSP 3 targeted areas as specifically authorized by HERA, generally including the following: 
 
(1)  Purchase and rehabilitate homes and residential properties that have been abandoned or foreclosed  
      upon, in order to sell, rent, or redevelop such homes and properties 
(2)  Redevelop blighted, demolished or vacant properties to provide housing for low income persons 
(3)  Redevelop demolished or vacant properties through cost sharing partnerships to        produce 
housing for low income persons with special needs, including the homeless  
     

A complete copy of the Draft 2010 Annual Action Plan NSP 3 Amendment can be viewed on the 
Escambia County website at: http://www.myescambia.com/Bureaus/CommunityServices/Nefi.html 

Copies are also available for review at the following locations between the hours of 8:00 A.M. - 4:00 P.M., 
Monday through Friday: Neighborhood Enterprise Foundation, Inc., 3420 Barrancas Ave., Pensacola, FL  
and Pensacola Regional Library, Reference Desk/Second Floor, 200 West Gregory St., Pensacola, FL 

                                                                                                                                                                                          

Comments or questions concerning this amendment are invited through 4:00 p.m. (CST), January 31, 
2011. Interested parties may submit written comments to: Escambia Consortium, C/O Neighborhood 
Enterprise Foundation, Inc., P.O. Box 18178, Pensacola, Florida 32523.  Questions should be directed to 
Randy Wilkerson at (850) 458-0466; TDD (850) 458-0464; or E-mail: Randy_Wilkerson@co.escambia.fl.us   
Escambia County adheres to the Americans with Disabilities Act and will make reasonable 
accommodations for access to services, programs, and activities.  Please call 458-0466 (TDD# 
458-0464) at least 48 hours in advance of the event in order to allow time to provide requested services. 

 
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
This Public Notice was published in the Pensacola News Journal on January 15, 2011.  
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ATTACHMENT 3 

NSP 3 Project and Administrative Budget Detail  
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    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  9.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 02/03/2011  

Issue: Recycling Collection Services Agreement PD 10-11.017
From: Keith T. Wilkins, REP, Interim Bureau Chief
Organization: Community & Environment
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Recycling Collection Services Agreement PD 10-11.017-
Keith Wilkins, REP, Community & Environment Interim Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action concerning Escambia County’s Office Recycling
Program, PD 10-11.017:

A.  Authorize the County to piggyback off the Escambia County School District
Recycling Collection Services Agreement, which was made and entered into as of the
26th day of August, 2010, (the effective date), between the Escambia County School
District and West Florida Recycling, LLC, in accordance with the Escambia County
Code of Ordinances, Chapter 46, Article II; and

B.  Award a Contract to West Florida Recycling, LLC, at no cost to the County, for
collection and processing of County facility generated recyclables. 

[Funding: N/A]

BACKGROUND:
Recycling Operations used to outsource the Office Recycling Program services for
collection and processing of County facility generated recyclables. Several years ago,
subcontracted services were not available at a reasonable market rate which led to the
Division of Solid Waste Management (DSWM) managing the program internally. This
new municipal contract is financially beneficial to the DSWM due to the cost avoidance
in collection costs.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
The contractor will provide all of the recycling collection and processing services at no



The contractor will provide all of the recycling collection and processing services at no
cost. Initially all revenues from the sale of recyclable materials collected by the
contractor from the County facilities shall belong to the contractor. At the time of annual
renewal, the County and contractor will agree to discuss the possibility of a payment of
up to $0.01 per pound of collected recyclable materials from the contractor to the
County. Revenues generated will be deposited to Fund 401 (Solid Waste Funds).

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A

PERSONNEL:
The Division of Solid Waste Management will be administering the contract

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This recommendation is consistent with the Escambia County, FL Code of Ordinances,
Chapter 46 Finance, Article II Purchases and Contract, Section 46-44 Application;
Exemptions and Section 46-44.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A



    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  10.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 02/03/2011  

Issue: Lake Stone Campground Facility Management Agreement
From: Keith Wilkins, REP, Interim Bureau Chief
Organization: Community & Environment
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Lake Stone Campground Facility Management
Agreement - Keith Wilkins, REP, Community & Environment Interim Bureau Chief

That the Board approve the Agreement between the County and Mervyn Leroy
Simmons for the Management of the Lake Stone Campground Facility and authorize the
County Administrator to sign the Agreement.

[Funding Source: General Fund 001, Lake Stone Cost Center 220804 = $10,200, paid
via 12, equal, monthly installments of $850 with housing and utilities provided]

BACKGROUND:
The Lake Stone Campground is located at 801 West Highway 4 in Century, Florida. 
Since the inception of the Lake Stone Campground, the County has entered into an
agreement for onsite caretaker/management services at the facility.  Mervyn Simmons
has served as the caretaker since February 2009, and worked alongside the previous
caretaker prior to that date as well.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
The funding source for the Agreement is General Fund 001, Lake Stone Cost Center
220804 in the amount of $10,200 paid via 12 equal monthly installments of $850 with
housing and utilities provided.  This amount is currently allocated in FY 2011 budget and
will be budgeted in FY 2012.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The County Attorney's Office has approved the Agreement as to form and legal
sufficiency.

PERSONNEL:



N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Board policy requires the approval of all such agreements concerning County property
and facilities.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
The Community & Environment Bureau, Parks Programs Division is responsible for
coordination of all aspects of the Agreement for caretaker/management services at Lake
Stone Campground.

Attachments
Agreement for Management of Lake Stone Campground Facility



















 
 

Board of County Commissioners 
Escambia County, Florida 

 
Title: Lake Stone Campground Rules and Regulations 
Date Adopted: October 1, 2009 
Effective Date: October 1, 2009 
Reference: Section 1; D.3.C 
Policy Superseded: July 19, 2007; March 4, 2004; November 4, 1999; July 6, 1978 
 
 
 
1. Site selection is first come, first served.  Reservations may be made for camping but not 

for specific campsites, up to 45 days in advance only with advanced payment.  Length of 
stay is 14 days at prime sites (18-29) and 30 days at non-prime sites (1-17; 30-77).  If 
campground is not full, a camper may renew his reservation at a non-prime site with 
permission from campground manager and/or Parks & Recreation Director. Renewal can 
be made no earlier than the last day of the current reservation. The Parks & Recreation 
Director, at his/her discretion, may facilitate the removal of disruptive campers, visitors, 
and/or rule violators for up to one year. 
 

2. Parking is not allowed on the main park road.  Extra vehicles must be parked in parking 
area north of caretaker house. 
 

3. No more than eight (8) registered campers per campsite.  Additional campsites must be 
rented to accommodate larger groups of over 8 persons.  Every effort will be made to 
place large groups adjacent to each other, but is not guaranteed.  Groups over eight 
wanting to camp on the same site must pay full camp rate for each 8 campers.   
 

4. Unoccupied recreational vehicles left in a campsite shall pay full daily rate.  The 
maximum time allowed for any recreational vehicle unoccupied is 30 days.  Campers must 
leave emergency numbers with the campground manager in order to leave a recreational 
vehicle unattended.  At the end of 30 days or the days in which the camper is paid 
through, the recreational vehicle will be moved at the owners expense to a storage area 
near the campground manager’s residence.  Escambia County and the campground 
manager are not responsible for accidents or damage to any recreational vehicle. 
 

5. Gathering of firewood is limited to wood found on the ground only.  Campers are 
encouraged to bring their own firewood. 
 

6. The period between 10:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. is designated as quiet time.  All activities 
during this time shall be carried out with respect to others right to rest.  Campers making 
too much noise or being otherwise disruptive during this time will be asked to leave the 
premises. 
 

7. Washing vehicles in campground is strictly prohibited. 
 

8. Pets are allowed but must remain under owners control and on a leash at all times.  
Violators will be asked to leave the campground or remove the animals from the camping 
area. 
 

9. Showers are for registered campers only. 
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10. Sanitary dump is free to campers.  Other users subject to $10.00 plus tax charge. 

 
11. Camping is allowed in designated camping sites only.  Litter barrels are provided and 

requested that the campers use them to help keep the campground clean. 
 

12. Children 17 and under shall have an adult guardian on the premises at all times.  Children 
under age 12 shall be accompanied by an adult while using the fishing pier.  Bicycles are 
prohibited on the pier.  Only registered campers, visitors, and day users are allowed to use 
the pier. 
 

13. Boats must be launched from designated launching areas only.  A boat launch is provided 
just east of the campground. 
 

14. Fires must be within existing fire ring only. 
 

15. Alcoholic beverages prohibited.  See County Ordinance 97-15 Section 1-22-26 Sub 6. 
 

16. Pavilion may be reserved up to one year in advance.  A deposit of $50.00 must be 
received to hold the reservation. The $50.00 deposit will be returned if the facility is 
undamaged after use and made ready for the next use.  The decision of the campground 
manager will be final. 
 

17. Check out time is 10:00 a.m. 
 

18. Gate is closed at 10:00 p.m.  Day users shall exit at 10:00 p.m. 
 

19. The campground manager is authorized one (1) non-water front camping space to be 
designated as a “Camp Host” site, to allow for extended stay at no charge for camping in 
return for assisting the manager with maintenance and management of the campground.  
The Recreation Division Manager, Escambia County Parks & Recreation Department, 
must approve the designated host. 
 

20. Campsites must be kept clean and orderly.  Units and other site structures must be 
cleaned. 
 

21. Each individual is responsible for leaving the campground facilities in clean condition 
after use. 
 

22. Storage of materials not normally associated with camping is prohibited.  Items allowed 
should not detract from the overall appearance of the site.  Campground manager and/or 
Parks & Recreation Department’s Recreation Division Manager has authority to determine 
if item(s) need to be removed. 
 

23. Tents are not to be used for storage, nor should they be left up when not being used for 
current overnight stay. 
 

 
 
 



 
 

FEES AND CHARGES 
  
Daily entrance fees $1.00 (tax included) per person.  Up to six (6) visitors per registered 

campsite may enter at no charge.  Participants at a registered function at 
the pavilion may enter at no charge. 

Camping fees $16.00 per day, plus tax, for residents 
$18.00 per day, plus tax, for non-residents 
Price includes electricity and water hookups. 
 
$9.00 per day, plus tax for Senior Citizens (65 and older) and for 
campers with disabilities, for residents. 
$16.00 per day, plus tax, for Senior Citizens (65 or older) and for 
campers with disabilities, for non-residents 
Price includes electricity and water hookups. 
Proof of age and/or disability is required. 
 

Pavilion Rental $30.00 plus tax, per use, up to a full day, for residents 
$40.00 plus tax, per use, up to a full day, for non-residents 
$20.00 plus tax, per use, up to a full day, for users renting 10 or more 
campsites during use. 
$10.00 sanitary dump fee per use (non-campers) 
$50.00 refundable cleaning deposit at the time of the reservation and/or 
use.  (Pavilion must be made ready for the next user in order to be 
refunded).   
 

 



    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  11.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 02/03/2011  

Issue: State of Florida, Division of Emergency Management Federal Fiscal
Year 2010 Homeland Security Grant Program Award

From: Mike Weaver
Organization: Public Safety
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning State of Florida, Division of Emergency Management
Federal Fiscal Year 2010 Homeland Security Grant Program Award – Michael D.
Weaver, Public Safety Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action concerning the State of Florida, Division of
Emergency Management (FDEM) Federal Fiscal Year 2010 Homeland Security Grant
Program award for the Citizen Corps and Community Emergency Response Team
(CERT) Programs, allocating to Escambia County a Grant totaling $20,951, for
the period of August 1, 2010, through January 31, 2013:

A.  Accept the FDEM Award, allocating $10,475.50 each, for the Citizen Corps and
CERT Grant Programs, to be identified in Fund 110, Other Grants and Projects, Cost
Centers 330458 and 330430, respectively;

B.  Authorize the Chairman to sign the Grant Award Letter; and

C.  Authorize the County Administrator to execute the associated Grant Agreements.

BACKGROUND:
In support of the National effort to develop and enhance Citizen Corps and CERT
Programs, federal funds are being provided to continue the local effort to engage,
educate, and train local citizens in their role as it relates to emergency preparedness,
response, recovery, mitigation, and public health measure for all hazards.  The grant will
provide funds totaling $20,951 with no local match requirement.  The grant period is
from August 1, 2010 through January 31, 2013. 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
These federal funds are designed as a reimbursement program to the Division of



These federal funds are designed as a reimbursement program to the Division of
Emergency Management for costs associated with eligible program activities.  There is
no local match requirement.  Administration fees are not specifically designated as
eligible under this grant.  The Citizen Corps funds will be identified in Fund 110, cost
center 330458 and CERT funds identified in Fund 110, cost center 330430. 

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
Kristin Hual, Assistant County Attorney, has reviewed the award letter and approved it
as to form and legal sufficiency.  

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This recommendation is in compliance with the provisions of the Board’s Competitive
Grants Application Policy and FDEM guidelines. 

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
John Dosh, Division of Emergency Management Manager, will oversee implementation
upon approval of the award letter and subsequent agreements.  Coordination of these
grants will be between FDEM and the Escambia County Division of Emergency
Management, and include any other organization or agency identified for the grant
implementation.  

Attachments
Award Letter











    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  12.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 02/03/2011  

Issue: Florida Department of Health, Bureau of Emergency Medical Services
(EMS), EMS Matching Grant Application

From: Mike Weaver
Organization: Public Safety
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Florida Department of Health, Bureau of Emergency
Medical Services (EMS), EMS Matching Grant Application – Michael D. Weaver, Public
Safety Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action concerning the Florida Department of Health,
Bureau of Emergency Medical Services (EMS), EMS Matching Grant Application for
2010/2011, in the amount of $49,495, with a 25% County match, for the purpose of
providing Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) to each Escambia County Emergency
Medical Specialist:

A.  Approve the EMS Matching Grant Application; and

B.  Authorize the Chairman to sign the Grant Application and all related documents.

[Funding Source:  Fund 408, Emergency Medical Service; Cost Center 330302, EMS
Operations; Account Code 55201, Operating Supplies]

BACKGROUND:
This grant program provides 75% of state funding for approved projects which clearly
improve and expand EMS. This project requests funding to purchase PPE, compliant
with documented industry standards, for every full-time Emergency Medical Specialist
position, plus a surplus that can be rotated among the relief positions. The PPE
currently being used by EMS field personnel was purchased approximately six years
ago and is no longer suitable for use due to degradation from daily use and exposure to
hazards.  In addition, an inadequate supply results in EMS not being able to issue all
field personnel PPE. Proper PPE will help balance the potential hazards routinely
encountered by EMS field personnel on the emergency scene: jagged metal at motor
vehicle accidents (MVAs), fires, chemical spills, or fog on the highway. Last fiscal year,



EMS responded to 35,149 emergency calls, including 2,951 MVAs, 52 burns/explosions,
1,952 gunshot wounds/stabbings, 705 traumatic injuries, 1 bomb threat and 49
hazardous materials incidents. All such incidences were addressed in PPE that is not
compliant with accepted industry standards (National Fire Protection, “Standard for
Emergency Medical Operations,” and the American National Standards Institute,
107-2004 standards).

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
If the project is approved by DOH, Escambia County EMS will be responsible for the
25% local match in the amount of $12,373.75. Although not planned for in this fiscal
year’s budget, funding is available in Fund 408 (Emergency Medical Service) for this
match amount.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
On January 12, 2011, Kristin Hual, Assistant County Attorney, approved the document
as to form and legal sufficiency.

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This complies with the Board’s Competitive Grant Application Policy.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Deadline for submittal of the application packet is 5:00 p.m., February 16, 2011, with
evaluation and final award decisions to be made by June 2011. Trisha Pohlmann, Public
Safety Business Operations Manager, will ensure submittal is received by the
established deadline and will handle any subsequent matters related to the application
and/or possible grant award.

Attachments
2010-11 EMS Matching Grant Applications























    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  13.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 02/03/2011  

Issue: FDLE, Office of Criminal Justice, Residential Substance Abuse
Treatment (RSAT) Grant Application

From: Gordon Pike
Organization: Corrections
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Office of
Criminal Justice, Residential Substance Abuse Treatment Grant for the Corrections
Bureau – Gordon C. Pike, Corrections Bureau Chief

That the Board accept the Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Office of Criminal
Justice, Residential Substance Abuse Treatment (RSAT) Grant for Pathways for
Change Male Group, in the amount of $50,000, with a match of $17,000, for a total of
$67,000, and ratify the Chairman’s signature on the Grant Application and Certification
of Acceptance.

[Funding Source: $17,000 has been budgeted in Fund 001, General Fund, Cost Center
110201, Object Code 54901, to serve as the required 25% match for the Grant]

BACKGROUND:
The purpose of this project is to continue providing services of education, counseling
and rehablitationtreatment to eligible inmates sentenced to minor, non-violent offenses
at Pathways for Change, a local faith-based non-profit agency that works in partnership
with Escambia County.  The grant request is for $50,000; the grantor requires a 25%
cash match.  The County will provide $17,000 to serve as the match.  Total cost of
project will be $67,000.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
$17,000 has been budgeted in Fund 001, Cost Center 110201, Object Code 54901 to
serve as the required 25% match for the grant.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
N/A



N/A

PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Reequires collaborative partnership between Escamnia County and faith-based
non-profit, Pathways for Changes.

Attachments
Residential Substance Abuse Treatment Grant



State of Florida
Office of Criminal Justice Grants

Florida Department of Law Enforcement
2331 Phillips Road

Tallahassee, Florida 32308

SUBGRANT AWARD CERTIFICATE

Subgrantee: Escambia County Board of Commissioners

Date of Award: /J - I ~·I U

Grant Period: From: 08/01/2010 TO: 07/30/2011

Project Title: PATHWAYS FOR CHANGE MALE GROUP

Grant Number: 2011-RSAT-ESCA-1-A9-006

Federal Funds: $ 50,000.00

Agency Match: $ 17,00000

Total Project Cost: $ 67,000.00

Program Area: 0001 : Residential Substance Abuse Treatment

CFDA #: 16.593

Award is hereby made in the amount and for the period shown above of a grant
under Title IV of the Violent Crime Control and Law Enforcement Act of 1994, P.L
103-322, as amended, to the above mentioned subgrantee and subject to any
attached standards or special conditions.

This award is subject to all applicable rules, regulations, and conditions as contained
in the Financial and Administrative Guide for Grants, Office of Justice Programs,
Common Rule for State and Local Governments and A-87, or OMB Circulars A-11 0
and A-21 , in their entirety. It is also subject to such further rules, regulations and
policies as may be reasonably prescribed by the State or Federal Government
consistent with the purposes and authorization of P.L. 103-322, as amended.

I



Application for Funding Assistance
Florida Department of Law Enforcement
Residential Substance Abuse Treatment

In witness whereof, the parties affirm they each have read and agree to the conditions set
forth in this agreement, have read and understand the agreement in its entirety and have
executed this agreement by their duty authorized officers on the date, month and year set
out below.

Corrections on this page, including Strikeovers,
whiteout, etc. are not acceptable.

State of Florida
Department of Law Enforcement
Office of Criminal Justice Grants

Date: leJ-l7- 10

Subgrant Recipient
Authorizing Official of Governmental Unit

(Commission Chairman, Mayor, or Designated Representative)

Typed Name of Subgrant Recipie»t Escambia County Board of county Commissioners

/7 // {};}:N1.., i/ (i.I·U.· . ~\-p _Signature: / v- ,~ v , / __

Grover Robinson, IV Escambia County Commission ChairTyped Name and Title:
/)

( /1. ! o ;.,Date: ~~.'i\..L t; r-LU! ()
/ ~~~~~~--------------------------------

Implementing Agency
Official, Administrator or Designated Representative

Typed Name of Implementing A9,CY: ES~mb:; ~~unty Board of

. /\ ....-::'1n.r" (/ /.) / 1/'. ,(
Signature: ~ co vv\ ~ (/~ ~

Date:
I

Application Ref #

Contract

2010-RSAT-64

-RSAT-ESCA- --

Section #6 Page 1 of 1
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State of Florida
Office of Criminal Justice Grants

Florida Department of Law Enforcement
2331 Phillips Road

Tallahassee, Florida 32308

CERTIFICATION OF ACCEPTANCE OF SUBGRANT AWARD

The subgrantee, through its authorized representative, acknowledges receipt and
acceptance of subgrant award number 2011-RSAT-ESCA-1-A9-006, in the amount
of $ 50,000.00, for a project entitled, PATHWAYS FOR CHANGE MALE GROUP, for
the period of 08/01/2010 through 07/30/2011, in accordance with the statement of
work contained in the subgrant application, and subject to the Florida Department of
Law Enforcement's Conditions of Agreement and any special conditions governing
this subgrant.

S· nature of Subgrantee's Authorized Official

Kevin l~hite, Chairman Escambia County BCC
Typed Name and Title of Official \ ..



State of Florida
Office of Criminal Justice Grants

Florida Department of Law Enforcement
2331 Phillips Road

Tallahassee, Florida 32308

SUBGRANT AWARD CERTIFICATE

Subgrantee: Escambia County Board of Commissioners

Date of Award: IJ - I~.I U

Grant Period: From: 08/01/2010 TO: 07/30/2011

Project Title: PATHWAYS FOR CHANGE MALE GROUP

Grant Number: 2011-RSAT-ESCA-1-A9-006

Federal Funds: $ 50,000.00

Agency Match: $17,000.00

Total Project Cost: $ 67,000.00

Program Area: 0001 : Residential Substance Abuse Treatment

CFDA #: 16.593

Award is hereby made in the amount and for the period shown above of a grant
under Title IV of the Violent Crime Control and Law Enforcement Act of 1994, P.L
103-322, as amended, to the above mentioned subgrantee and subject to any
attached standards or special conditions.

This award is subject to all applicable rules, regulations, and conditions as contained
in the Financial and Administrative Guide for Grants, Office of Justice Programs,
Common Rule for State and Local Governments and A-87, or OMS Circulars A-110
and A-21 , in their entirety. It is also subject to such further rules, regulations and
policies as may be reasonably prescribed by the State or Federal Government
consistent with the purposes and authorization of P.L. 103-322, as amended.



SUBGRANT AWARD CERTIFICATE (CONTINUED)

This grant shall become effective on the beginning date of the grant period provided
that within 30 days from the date of award, a property executed Certification of
Acceptance/ Request for Payment is returned to the department.

Authorize Official
Clayton H. Wilder
Administrator

Date

( ) This award is subject to special conditions (attached).



State of Florida
Office of Criminal Justice Grants

Florida Department of Law Enforcement
2331 Phillips Road

Tallahassee, Florida 32308

SPECIAL CONDITION(S}/GENERAL COMMENT(S)

Grantee: Office of Criminal Justice Grants

Grant Number: 2011-RSAT-ESCA-1-A9-006

Grant Title: PATHWAYS FOR CHANGE MALE GROUP

In addition to the general conditions applicable to fiscal administration, the grant is
subject to the following Special Condition(s)/General Comment(s):

Ref# S15590: Prior to the drawdown of federal funds a copy of the boilerplate
agreement must be submitted to the Office of Criminal Justice Grants.



Application for Funding Assistance
Florida Department of Law Enforcement
Residential Substance Abuse Treatment

Subgrant Recipient

Organization Name: EscambiaCountyBoardof Commissioners
County: Escambia

Chief Official
Name: GroverRobinson
Title: Chairman
Address: 221 PalafoxPlace

Suite400
Pensacola
FL
850-595-4940

City:
State:
Phone:
Fax:
Emall:

Zip:
Ext:

32502

district4@co.escambia.fi.us

Chief Financial Officer
Name: ErnieMagaha
Title: Clerk
Address: 190GovernmentalCenter
City: Pensacola
State: FL Zip: 32502
Phone: 850-595-4310 Ext:
Fax:
Emall: magaha@escambiaclerk.com

Application Ref #

Con\rac\

2010-RSAT-64

2011-RSAT-ESCA-1-A9-006
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Application for Funding Assistance
Florida Department of Law Enforcement
Residential Substance Abuse Treatment

I~,~------------------_I
Implementing Agency

Organization Name: Escambia County Board of Commissioners
County: Escambia

Chief Official
Name: Grover Robinson
Title: Chairman
Address: 221 Palafox Place

Suite 400
Pensacola
FL
850-595-4940

Project Director
Name: Debra Armenti
Title: Grants Coordinator
Address: 221 Palafox Place

Suite 420
Pensacola
FL
850-595-4914

City:
State:
Phone:
Fax:
Email:

City:
State:
Phone:
Fax:
Email:

Zip:
Ext:

32502

district4@co.escambia.fl.us

Zip:
Ext:

32591-1591

Debra_armenti@co.escambia.t1.us

201Q-RSAT-64

2011-RSAT-ESCA-1-A9-006

Section #1 Page 2 of 2Application Ref #
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Application for Funding Assistance
Florida Department of Law Enforcement
Residential Substance Abuse Treatment

General Project Information
Project Title: PATHWAYS FOR CHANGE MALE GROUP

Subgrant Recipient: Escambia County Board of Commissioners

Implementing Agency: Escambia County Board of Commissioners
Project Start Date: 8/1/2010 End Date: 7/30/2011

Problem Identification
In the State of Florida, 102,000 people are incarcerated in prisons and 88% will be released back
into our communities. In Escambia County, forty thousand inmates are arrested and released
each year at a cost of $8 million. Eighty percent of all offenders who enter and/or return to the
corrections system have a drug problem. Untreated, most offenders reenter without proper
education and job skills and to dysfunctional family systems. They return to "old people, places
and things" and back to abusing substances through associations that put them at risk.

Generational studies prove that seventy to eighty percent of incarcerated men and women have
children. Eighty percent of children with significant behavior and disciplinary problems at school
have a parent who is incarcerated. These children are seven times more likely to end up in jail.
Over half of the PFC clients have children, so by helping our clients we are aHacking issues from
the root causes, creating healthy families and a safer community.

With over 40 partners who provide direct service, PFC assists clients and their family members
with education, vocational skills, medical care, dental care, spiritual development and parenting
skills to name just a few areas addressed.

Pathways For Change provides a full continum of care, while housed at the County Work Release
Center, a low but secure facility. A strong PFC focus is on engaging the inmate and their family
members upon the first day of admission to the Therapeutic Community. Family members
understand that to receive the privilege of visitation, they must be active in the client's recovery
program. The 85% success of PFC graduates proves that a full family systems approach is most
effective.

The PFC program started their Therapeutic Community in November of 2005. Since that time the
following benchmarks have been achieved 1) Client capacity has been increased from nine to
thirty five. 2) One hundred percent have stayed drug free while in the residential phases. 3) Staff
include a full time Executive Director; Program Manager; part time Assistant Program Manager;
full time Case Manager; part time Court Liaison; eighteen Masters level and Bachelor level interns
who assist in facilitation of the 22 core courses taught while in residential phases. 4) The Board of
Directors has been updated with a healthy cross section of demographics and talents. 5)
University of West Florida continues to track recidivism and our procedures for best practices. 6)
PFC Executive Director developed the NWF Reentry Task Force with over 90
partners/stakeholders who provide services to our population as well as tackling "doomed to fail"
procedures such as obtaining identification upon release. 7) Two AmeriCorps VISTAs build
capacity for both the PFC program and the NWF Reentry Task Force. 8) Two pieces of land have
been donated to PFC to build a Family Resource Center that will be a Recovery "hub" for our
clients. family members and graduates and a long term Residence is planned with 12 beds that
can house alumni who need support as they payoff fines, fees, child support

Application Ref #

Contract
201 O-RSAT-64

2011-RSAT -ESCA-1-A9-006

Section #2 Page 1 of 4



Application for Funding Assistance
Florida Department of Law Enforcement

Residential Substance Abuse Treatment

and who may need to complete a degree for long term success. The Family Center will launch
reentry services by summer of 2011. 9) PFC initiated and received a contract for a full time case
manager with the DCF for Century Correctional Institute. Twenty inmates will be assessed in this
first year and family intervention has already begun in Pensacola with the support of Operation
Fresh Start. At CCI, ten volunteers provide PFC curriculum such as Victim's Impact; Cage the
Rage; Purpose Driven Life; Growing Strong in God's Family; Financial Planning and Group
Therapy. 10) Sixty eight percent of clients who volunteer for PFC graduate and eighty five percent
of the graduates have not re-offended. 11} AU PFC clients who phased up from residential
treatment are employed.

Project Summary (Scope of Work)
The PFC program houses 26 men in a residential Therapeutic Community setting. A T.C. is a
place organized as a community in which all are expected to contribute to the shared goals of
creating a social organization with healing properties. Clients are admitted into the T.C. every 12
weeks and the clients who are in the later phases mentor the new men as they arrive into the T.C.

To be eligible for services, potential clients complete a request to meet with the Admissions
SpeCialist, who gives a detailed orientation to the program and what will be expected of the client.
The potential client understands upon this first visit, that PFC is a faith-based program with a
Christian emphasis. It is important to the PFC staff to mention that clients are not told how to
believe, but are given material that can be a foundation for a personal relationship with God. We
do not tell them how to believe but give them an opportunity to explore Christian spirituality. The
client is visited several times by our court liaison and admission specialists. The potential dient
understands all of the rules and programs before they accept voluntarily to be court ordered to the
9-18 month program. If the client accepts the requirements of the porgram the client is court
ordered to the program.

Clients understand from the interview process that each 12 week quarter, they can "phase up" if
they have been a contributing member of the community, have completed homework assignments
and not been given a "behavioral contract" for breaking cardinal rules. Clients understand that if
they are not compliant, they will lose the privilege of moving to the next phase. The client will
repeat the curriculum again and will have time to learn basic material that he did not focus on in
the previous term.

Cognitive Behavioral based curriculum created for each 12 week phase:
(1) Phase One-12 weeks and (2) Phase Two-12 weeks are considered residential treatment.
Clients cannot leave the dorm and are working in the T.C. and taking classes from 6 a.m. to 10
p.m. These two phases are funded with RSAT dollars for Full time Program Manager and Part
time Case Manager who oversee programming and client progress during this six month term.
(3) Phase Three clients live in the dorm and take classes on Monday, Friday and Saturday but are
outside the dorm providing community service on Tuesday. Wednesday and Thursdays.
(4) Phase Four are comprised of men who work and/or go to school. They live in the dorm, but are
considered "aftercare" and not funded by RSAT dollars.

Choices Curriculum-designed for inmate populations:
Orientation (1)
Rational Self Counseling (1)

Application Ref #

Contract

2010-RSAT-64

2011-RSAT-ESCA-1-A9-006

Section #2 Page 2 of 4



Application for Funding Assistance
Florida Department of Law Enforcement
Residential Substance Abuse Treatment

Recovery Maintenance (2)
Criminal Thinking (2)

Transition (3)

Institute for Basic Life Principles Curriculum: Anger Resolution (1)
Basic Life Principles (2)

Department of Education and Health-Smoking Cessation (1)
Pennington-Introduction to Centering Prayer (1)
Rick Warren-Purpose Driven Life (1)
Navigator Series-Growing Strong in God's Family, Col 2:7 (1)
Interpersonal Communications-Communication (2)
Eldridge-Wild at Heart (2)
Ken Sande-The Peacemaker (2)
Workforce Escarosa-Job Readiness (2)
Community Drug & Alcohol Commission: Parenting (2)
Office of Victims of Crime: Victim Impact (2)
United Way-Poverty Solutions-Finance (3)
Dr. Ruby Payne: Poverty Solutions-Getting Ahead (3)

Alcoholics Anonymous(1) (2) (3) (4)
Narcotics Anonymous(1) (2) (3) (4)
Most Excellent Way (1) (2) (3) (4)
Big Book Study (1) (2) (3) (4)
Family Forums (1) (2)(3) (4)

CBT core course material created specifically for PFC
Foundations for Success (1)
Grief(1 )
Relapse Prevention/Family Therapy, Open Forum (1) (2) (3)(4)
Physical Training (1) (2) (3)
Pensacola Slate College ABEIGED (1) (2) (3)(4)
Community Service Projects (3)

Cognitive-Behavioral Clinical and Support Intervention
Case management (1) (2) (3) (4)
Employment assessment and placement (1) (2) (3)(4)
Family Therapy (1) (2) (3) (4)
Feelings Group Therapy (1) (2) (3) (4)
Individual Therapy (1) (2) (3) (4)

Phases 1, 2 and 3 receive intensive case management, individual counseling, family counseling
and marriage counseling. Addictions and Recovery are daily themes for all phases as we provide
Big Book Studies (12 Step work) and nightly AA and N.A. meetings in the facility.

The clinical team consists of the Executive Director, an LCSW; Dr. Larry Gilgun, clinical
supervisor. a PhD Psychologist; Program Manager, an MSW; Case manager, a BSW; Recovery
Specialist and 19 master's level counselor interns. All work closely with the case manager to
create an individualized treatment plan and the entire team meets weekly, including the Probation
Officer, to discuss progress with each client.

Application Ref #
Contract

2010-RSAT-64

2011-RSAT-ESCA-1-A9-006

Section #2 Page 3 of 4



Application for Funding Assistance
Florida Department of Law Enforcement
Residential Substance Abuse Treatment

The Executive Director meets weekly with each counselor to review the clinical diagnosis and
treatment plan, identifying the dimensions of change with each client. Clients are receiving clinical
treatment and oversight from 7 a.m. till 10 p.m. seven days per week.

Before clients graduate from PFC they have been assessed for the following:
o Birth certificates, Social Security cards and Florida picture 1.0
" Social Security Disability Applications (SOAR)
o Food stamps application and/or nutritional counseling
" Work Force training & Job placement
" Veteran's Benefits
"Education (GED or AA degrees) and Tutoring
" Financial literacy training and assistance with credit counseling
"Transportation (bus passes or information on how to regain license)
o Behavioral health counseling
o Felon Registration
o Clothing
o Furniture
o Escambia Community Clinic (application for meds & physical exams)
"Dental care (free Dental Clinic)
"Probation Officer (meet and discuss plan)
o legal Clinic
o NAMI: Family support through Nat'l Association of Mental Illness
o AA & NA meetings for addictions support (Sponsor & New Friends
o Spiritual (provide AA program and sponsors and list of churches in area)
" Food: referral to Operation Fresh Start, Washburn Center, etc.
" Parenting classes
" Family law issues or help with reuniting with children in the care of others
o Registration for payment or modification of Child Support

Pathways For Change has had the support of the Escambia Board of County Commissioners, the
Chief Judge, Circuit One as well as the Office of Community Corrections since our inception in
2005. Pathways For Change Staff understand that it is a privilege to be intricatley involved in the
life of a human being and we are grateful to the Florida Department of law Enforcement.
Residential Substance Abuse Treatment for this opportuntiy to serve.

Application Ref #
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General Performance Info:

Performance Reporting Frequency: Quarterly

Federal Purpose Area: 0001 - Residential Substance Abuse Treatment

State Purpose Area: 0001 - Residential Substance Abuse Treatment

Activity Description
Activity: Therapeutic Community
Target Group: Adult Males
Geographic Area: State of Florida
Location Type: Community Corrections Program

Objectives and Measures

Objective: 1A - To report contractor and/or employed salary amounts prorated to include time
spent in RSA T.

Measure: Part 1
Report contractor and/or employed salary amounts prorated to include time spent in
RSAT during the grant period.

Goal: $67,000

Objective: 1B - To report cost of additional residential material (special uniforms, classroom
aids, pharmaceuticals. etc.)

Measure: Part 1
Report the cost of additional residential material (special uniforms, classroom aids,
pharmaceuticals, etc.).

Goal: $0.00

Objective: 1C - To report number of participants enrolled in the program (including drop-outs,
terminations or removals).

Measure: Part 1
Report the number of participants enrolled in the program (including drop-outs,
terminations or removals) during the grant period.

Goal: 20

Objective: 2A - To report number of days between program entry and exit for those completing
the RSAT program during the reporting period.

Measure: Part 1
How many days will there be between program entry and exit for those completing
the RSAT program during the grant period?

Goal: Clients enter PFC every three months and RSAT supports the "residential" portion of
the program. The first six months (180 days) are considered

Application Ref # 201O-RSAT-64 Section #3 Page 1 of 5
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"locked down" and the most intense treatment phases. The following 90 days are
highly monitored as clients perform community service and continue treatment on a
part time basis.

Objective: 2B - To report number of offenders to successfully complete the residential program
during the reporting period.

Measure: Part 1
How many participants will successfully complete the residential program during the
grant period?

Goal: 20

Objective: 3A - To report number of RSAT participants at end of reporting period.

Measure: Part 1
Report the number of RSAT participants at end of each reporting period.

Goal: 20

Objective: 38 - To report number of RSAT participants at beginning of reporting period.

Measure: Part 1
To report the number of RSAT participants at beginning of each reporting period.

Goal: PFC will report the number of RSAT participants enrolled at the beginning of each
quarterly reporting period.

Objective: 4A - To report number of RSAT participants who completed the program and passed
drug testing.

Measure: Part 1
Report the total number of RSAT participants who completed the program and
passed drug testing during the grant period.

Goal: PFC will report the number of residential participants each quarter and the resutls of
weekly drug screens

Objective: 48 - To report number of RSAT participants who completed the program and passed
drug testing during the reporting period.

Measure: Part 1
Report the number of RSAT participants who completed the program and passed
drug testing during each reporting period.

Goal: PFC will report the number of men who complete Phases 1 and 2 and the results of
their weekly drug screens

Objective: SA - To report the number of RSAT participants.

Measure: Part 1
Report the number of RSAT participants during grant period.

Application Ref #
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Goal: PFC will provide the number of adult men who enter the program and the number of
men who complete the residential portion of the program (first 180 days of the
program)

Objective: 6A - To report the total number of RSAT beds created as a result of the current
award.

Measure: Part 1
Report the total number of RSAT beds created as a result of the current award.

Goal: PFC will report the number of RSAT beds for the current award period, which is 26
residential beds.

Objective: 68 - To report the total number of RSAT beds.

Measure: Part 1
Report the total number of RSAT beds available.

Goal: PFC will report the total number of RSAT beds available each quarter and each grant
period.

Objective: 7A - To report number of beds funded with non-RSAT funds.

Measure: Part 1
Report number of beds funded with non-RSAT funds.

Goal: PFC will report the number of men who completed the RSA T period of the program
(180 days) and the number of !hose men who successfully move into aftercare

Objective: 78 - To report total number of beds in facility.

Measure: Part 1
Report total number of beds in facility.

Goal: PFC will report the total number of beds in the facility (currently 300)

Objective: 8A - To report total number of residential service days.

Measure: Part 1
Report the total number of residential service days.

Goal: PFC will report the tala I number of residentail service days (currently 180 days)

Objective: 88 - To report number of offenders to receive residential service (RSAT and non-
RSAT).

Measure: Part 1
Report number of individuals to receive residential service (RSAT and non-RSA T).

Application Ref #

Contract
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Goal: PFC will report the number of men who will receive residential service, both RSAT
and non-RSA T participants

Objective: 9A - To report the number of RSAT completions that remained drug-free during the
residential program.

Measure: Part 1
Report the number of RSAT completions that remained drug-free during the
residential program.

Goal: PFC will report the number of RSAT participants who completed the first 180 days
fully drug free

Objective: 96 - To report the number of residential program completions who remained drug
free.

Measure: Part 1
Report the number of residential program completions who remained drug free.

Goal: 20

Application Ref #
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Section Questions:
Question: What is the total number of beds (treatment and non-treatment) in the facility?

Answer: 300

Question: How many non RSAT-funded treatment beds are in this facility?

Answer: 274

Question: How many RSAT-funded treatment beds are in this facility?

Answer: 26

Question: How is aftercare treatment provided?

Answer: Pathways For Change is a 4 phase program. The first six months are considered
"lock down" and are the main drug treatment phases. Phase 3 clients are required to
complete 3 days of community service and 3 days of treatment groups/classes.
Phase 4 is considered Aftercare and clients are allowed to move home while working
and/or going to school. Phase 4 clients are required to return to the PFC dorm 5
nights per week for Recovery groups and classes and weekly drug screening.

Question: What is the anticipated number of RSAT program completions during each quarterly
reporting period?

Answer: 5

Question: What goals do you plan to accomplish during the subgrant period?

Answer: PFC will continue serving clients in a Therapeutic Community, providing a new way of
thinking and living. A highly structured setting and peer support will provide
accountability for actions. Twenty core courses will teach communication and
parenting skills, basic budgeting, anger management, spiritual development.
educational and vocational opportunities and family therapy. Goals are to include an
Alumni program that will allow PFC graduates and their family members a safe place
to continue their recovery.

Application Ref #
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General Financial Info:

Note: All financial remittances will be sent to the Chief Financial Officer
of the Subgrantee Organization.

Financial Reporting Frequency for this Subgrant: Quarterly

Is the subgrantee a state agency?: No

FLAIR I Vendor Number: 596000598

Budget:

Budget Category Federal Match Total

Salaries and Benefits $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Contractual Services $50,000.00 $17,000.00 $67,000.00

Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Operating Capital $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
OuUay

Indirect Costs $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

-Totals - $50,000.00 $17,000.00 $67,000.00

Percentage 74.6268 25.3731 100.0

Project Generated Income:

Will the project earn project generated income (PGI) ? No

Application Ref #

Contract

2010-RSA T-64

2011-RSAT -ESCA-1-A9-006

Section #4 Page 1 of 3



Application for Funding Assistance
Florida Department of Law Enforcement
Residential Substance Abuse Treatment

Budget Narrative:
Contractual Services
Services provided solely for male inmate residential program.

CONTRACTUAL SERVICES INCLUDE:
One (1) FT Program Manager -$50,000.
One (1) PT Case Manager -$17,000.
The Program Manager and Case Manager are not County employees. They are contracted to
provide services to Pathways For Change.
Total $67,000 toward salaries and benefits.

The $17,000 cash match is provided by Mr. Chan Cox, founder of the Destin Charity Wine Auction
Foundation and The Clinton Cox Foundation, in the name of his deceased son who fought a drug
addiction for many years. The monies have been approved and set aside for billing each
month.The County will invoice the DCWAF each month for that portion of the payment.

Application Ref #
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Section Questions:
Question: Identify specific sources of matching funds.

Answer: The Clinton Cox Memorial Fund and Destin Charity Wine Auction Foundation. Clinton
Cox died of a drug overdose in 2008 and his father has supported the PFC program
for past two years. The CCF will provide support letter stating commitment to cash
match.

Question: Indicate the Operating Capital Outlay (OCO) dollar threshold established by the
subgrantee.

Answer: 1000

Question: Are indirect costs included in the budget? If so, has a copy of the subgrantee's
Indirect Cost Plan approved by the cognizant federal agency, been submitted to the
OCJG?

Answer: no

Question: If a contract for contractual services will be executed by the subgrantee, has a copy
been received by the OCJG?

Answer: Copy on file with OCJG

Question: If salaries and benefits are included in the budget, is there a net increase in
personnel?

Answer: No

Question: Will the project earn Program Generated Income?

Answer: No

Question: Will the applicant be requesting an advance of federal funds?

Answer: No

Application Ref #
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Conditions of agreement requiring compliance by units of local government (subgrant recipients),
implementing agencies and state agencies upon signed acceptance of the subgrant award appear in this
section and will become binding upon approval of this subgrant. Failure to comply with provisions of this
agreement will result in required corrective action up to and including project costs being disallowed.

All persons involved in or having administrative responsibility for the subgrant must read these conditions.
This section must be returned as part of the completed application.

Definitions:
"OCJG", unless otherwise stated, refers to the Florida Department of Law Enforcement, Office of Criminal
Justice Grants.

"Recipient" refers to the governing body of a county that performs criminal justice functions as determined by
the U.S. Secretary of the Interior, and includes an "Implementing Agency" which is a subordinate agency of a
county or an agency under the direction of an elected official (for example, Sheriff).

1. Reports

A. Project Progress Reports:
Regardless of whether project activities occur or not. the recipient must submit Quarterly
Project Progress Reports to the Office of Criminal Justice Grants (OCJG) by February 1, May
1. August 1. and November 1 covering subgrant activities occurring during the previous
calendar quarter. In addition, if the subgrant award period is extended beyond the "original"
project pertod, additional Quarterly Project Progress Reports shall be submitted.

B. Financial Reports:
1. The recipient shall have the choice of submitting either Monthly or Quarterly

Reimbursement Requests to the OCJG. All Reimbursement Requests are due thirty-one
(31) days after the end of the reporting period. A final Reimbursement Request and a .
Criminal Justice Contract (Financial) Closeout Package shall be submitted to the OCJG
within forty-five (45) days of the subgrant end date. Such Reimbursement Requests
shall be distinctly identified as "final".

2. Regardless of whether costs are incurred or not, all claims for reimbursement of
recipient costs shall be submitted on the Reimbursement Request forms prescribed and
provided by the OCJG. A recipient shall submit either monthly or quarterly
reimbursement requests in order to report current project costs. Reports are to be
submitted even when no reimbursement is being requested.

3. Before the "final" Reimbursement Request will be processed, the recipient must submit
to the OCJG all outstanding project performance reports and must have satisfied all
special conditions. Failure to comply with the above provisions shall result in forfeiture
of reimbursement.

4. The recipient shall submit Quarterly Project Generated Income Reports to the OCJG by
February 1. May 1. August 1. and November 1, covering subgrant project generated
income and expenditures occurring during the previous quarter.

C. Other Reports:
The recipient shall submit other reports as may be reasonably required by the OCJG.

2. Fiscal Control and Fund Accounting Procedures
~. TtLeJ~cipienl~h~1I es!abJ~h fis~aJ_cQlJj[9.I_cmc:tf~nQJICCo.lIf}tingprQ..c_eiJu!e~.~~~~.assureJ.>roper_

··--disbtlrsement-and-accounting of-stlbgrant funds-and-required-non-feder-al-expendiltlres-:--AII - --.
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funds spent on this project shall be disbursed according to provisions of the project budget as
approved by the OCJG.

B. All expenditures and cost accounting of funds shall conform to the requirements of the Office of
Justice Programs' Financial Guide, U.S. Department of Justice Common Rule for State and
Local Governments, and those specified in the federal Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Circulars A-21, A-87, A-110 or A-102, as applicable, in their entirety.

C. All funds not spent according to this agreement shall be subject to repayment by the recipient.

3. Compliance with "Consultant's Competitive Negotiation Act"

The recipient, when applicable, agrees to satisfy all requirements provided in Section 287.055. F.S .•
known as the "Consultant's Competitive Negotiation Act".

4. Approval of Consultant Contracts

The OCJG shall review and approve in writing all consultant contracts prior to employment of a
consultant. Approval shall be based upon the contract's compliance with requirements found in the
Office of Justice Programs' Financial Guide and in applicable state statutes. OCJG approval of the
recipient agreement does not constitute approval of consultant contracts.

5. Allowable Costs

Allowance for costs incurred under the subgrant shall be determined according to "General
Principles of Allowability and Standards for Selected Cost /tems" set forth in the Office of Justice
Prograllfs Financial Guide and federal OMB's Circular No. A-87. "Cost Principles for State and local
Governments", or OMB's Circular No. A-21, "Cost Principles for Educational Institutions".

A" procedures employed in the use of federal funds to procure services, supplies or equipment, shall
be according to U.S. OMB's Common Rule for State and Local Governments, or OMS Circular No.
A-110 or A-102 as applicable and Florida Law to be eligible for reimbursement.

6. Delegation of Signature Authority

When a chief officer or elected official of a subgrant recipient designates some other staff person
signature authority that chief officer or elected official must submit a letter or resolution indicating the
staff person given signature authority to the OCJG. The letter indicating delegation of signature
authority must be signed by the chief officer or elected official and the person receiving signature
authority.

7. Personnel Changes
In the event of a Change in Chief Executive Officers for the Subgrantee or Implementing Agency.
Project Director, or Contact Person, the OCJG must be notified in writing with documentation to
include appropriate signatures.

8. Travel and Training
A. All travel reimbursement for out-of-state or out-of-grant-specified work area shall be based upon

written approval of the OCJG prior to commencement of actual travel. Recipients shall obtain
written approval from the OCJG for reimbursement of training costs and related travel prior to
commencement of training, if the specific training was not listed in the approved budget.

B. The cost of all travel shall be reimbursed according to local regulations, but not in excess of
provisions in Section 112.061, F.S.
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C. All bills for any travel expenses shall be submitted according to provisions in Section 112.061,
F.S.

9. Written Approval of Changes in this Approved Agreement

Subgrantees must provide written requests signed by the Chief Official, of any significant changes to the
subgrant. OCGJ approval of any grant amendment request must be received prior to the incorporation of
said amendment. These include, but are not limited to: Changes in project activities, designs or research
plans set forth in the approved agreement, Budget deviations that do not meet the following criterion.
That is, a recipient may transfer funds between budget categories as long as the total amount of transfer
does not exceed ten (10) percent of the total approved budget and the transfer is made to an approved
budget line item; or,
A. Transfers of funds above the ten (10) percent cap shall be made only if the Department

approves a revised budget.

B. Under no circumstances can transfers of funds increase the total budgeted award. Transfers do
not allow for increasing the quantitative number of items documented in any approved budget
line item. (For example, equipment items in Operating Capital Outlay or Expense categories or
staff positions in the Salaries and Benefits category.)

10. Reimbursement Subject to Available Funds

The obligation of the State of Florida to reimburse recipients for incurred costs is subject to the
availability of federal funds authorized under the Residential Substance Abuse Treatment for State
Prisoners Formula Grant Program.

11. Procedures for Reimbursement Request

All requests for reimbursement of recipient costs shall be submitted on the form prescribed and
provided by the Department. A recipient shall submit reimbursement requests on a monthly or
quarterly basis, as specified in order to report project costs incurred during the specified reporting
period. All requests for reimbursement shall be submitted in sufficient detail for proper pre-audit and
post-audit.

12. Advance Funding

Advance funding is authorized up to twenty-five (25) percent of the federal award for each project
according to Section 216.181(15)(b), F.S. and the Office of Justice Programs' Financial Guide.
Advance funding shall be provided to a recipient upon a written request to the Department justifying
the need for such funds.

13. Commencement of Project

If a project has not begun within sixty (60) days after acceptance of the subgrant award, the recipient
shall send a letter to the OCJG requesting approval of a new project starting date. The letter must
outline steps to initiate the project, explain reasons for delay, and specify an anticipated project
starting date.

If a project has not begun within ninety (90) days after acceptance of the subgrant award, the
recipient shall send another letter to the OCJG, again explaining reasons for delay and requesting
approval of a revised project starting date.

Upon receipt of the ninety (90) day letter, the OCJG shall determine if the reason for delay is justified
or shall, at its discretion, unilaterally terminate this agreement and re-obligate subgrant funds to

___ ·...:other-projects"·ap~roved uby4he-8epartment.··If-warranted-by·extenuating-circumstances,the .. .._-
Department may extend the starting date of the project beyond the ninety (gO) day penod, but only----
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by execution of a formal written amendment to this agreement.

14. Extension of a Contract for Contractual Services

Extension of a contract for contractual services between the subgrantee and a contractor (which
includes all project budget categories) shall be in writing for a period not to exceed six (6) months
and is subject to the same terms and conditions set forth in the initial contract. Only one extension
of the contract shall be acceptable, unless failure to complete the contract is due to events beyond
the control of the contractor.

15. Excusable Delays

Except with respect to defaults of consultants, the recipient shall not be in default by reason of any
failure in performance of this agreement according to its terms (including any failure by the recipient
to make progress in the execution of work hereunder which endangers such performance) if such
failure arises out of causes beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the recipient.
Such causes include but are not limited to acts of God or of the public enemy, acts of the
government in either its sovereign or contractual capacity, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine
restrictions, strikes, freight embargoes, and unusually severe weather, but in every case the failure
to perform shall be beyond the control and without the fault or negligence of the recipient.

If failure to perform is caused by failure of a consultant to perform or make progress, and if such
failure arises out of causes beyond the control of recipient and consultant. and without fault or
negligence of either of them, the recipient shall not be deemed in default, unless:
A. Supplies or services to be furnished by the consultant were obtainable from other sources,

B. The Department ordered the recipient in writing to procure such supplies or services from other
sources, and

C. The recipient failed to reasonably comply with such order.
Upon request of the recipient, the OCJG shall ascertain the facts and the extent of such failure, and
if the OCJG determines that any failure to perform was occasioned by one or more said causes, the
delivery schedule shall be revised accordingly.

16. Obligation of Recipient Funds

Recipient funds shall not under any circumstances be obligated prior to the effective date or
subsequent to the termination date of the grant period. Only project costs incurred on or after the
effective date and on or prior to the termination date of the recipient's project are eligible for
reimbursement. A cost is incurred when the recipient's employee or consultant performs required
services. or when the recipient receives goods, notwithstanding the date of order.

17. Program Income (also known as Project Generated Income)

The term "program income" or "project generated income" means the gross income earned by the
recipient during the subgrant period. as a direct result of the subgrant award. Program income shall
be handled according to the Office of Justice Programs' Financial Guide and the U.S. Department of
Justice's Common Rule for State and Local Governments.

18. Performance of Agreement Provisions

In the event of default, non-compliance or violation of any provision of this agreement by the
recipient. the recipient's consultants and suppliers, or both, the Department shall impose sanctions it
deems appropriate including withholding payments and cancellation. termination or suspension of

-- ------~the-agFeemeAt-in-whole-or~in-part.-ln-'-Slich evenli-tl'le Department-shall-notify-the r~cipient-of-its-
decision thirty (30) days in advance of the effective dale of such sanctron. The recIpient shall"b=-=e:----
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paid only for those services satisfactorily performed prior to the effective date of such sanction.

19. Retention of Records

The recipient shall maintain all records and documents for a minimum of five (5) years from the date
of the project completion as provided by the Florida Department of State. General Schedule for
local Government GS1·l, and be available for audit and public disclosure upon request of duly
authorized persons.

20. Access To Records

The Florida Department of law Enforcement, Auditor General of the State of Florida, the U.S.
Department of Justice, the U.S. Com ptroller General or any of their duly authorized representatives,
shall have access to books, documents, papers and records of the recipient, Implementing Agency
and contractors for the purpose of audit and examination according to the Office of Justice
Program's Financial Guide.

The Department reserves the right to unilaterally terminate this agreement if the recipient,
Implementing Agency or contractor refuses to allow public access to all documents, papers, letters.
or other materials subject to provisions of Chapter 119, F.S .• and made or received by the recipient
or its contractor in conjunction with this agreement.

21. Audit
A. Subgrant recipients that expend $500,000 or more in a year in Federal awards shall have a single or

proqram-speciflc audit conducted for that year. The audit shall be performed in accordance with the
federal OMS's Circular A·133 and other applicable federal law. The contract for this agreement shall
be identified with the subject audit in The Schedule of Federal Financial Assistance. The contract
shall be identified as federal funds passed-through the Florida Department of law Enforcement and
include the contract number, CFDA number, award amount, contract period, funds received and
disbursed. When applicable, the subgrant recipient shall submit an annual financial audit which
meets the requirements of Chapters 11.45 and 215.97, Florida Statutes; and. Chapters 10.550 and
10.600, Rules of the Florida Auditor General.

B. A complete audit report which covers any portion of the effective dates of this agreement must be
submitted within 30 days after its completion, but no later than nine (9) months after the audit period.
In order to be complete, the submitted report shall include any management letters issued separately
and management's written response to a/l findings, both audit report and management letter findings.
Incomplete audit reports will not be accepted by the Department and will be returned to the subgrant

recipient.

C. The subgrant recipient shall have all audits completed by an independent public accountant (IPA).
The IPA shall be either a Certified Public Accountant or a licensed Public Accountant. The subgrant
recipient shall take appropriate corrective action within six (6) months of the issue date of the audit
report in instances of noncompliance with federal laws and regulations.

D. The subgrant recipient shall ensure that audit working papers are made available to the Department,
or its designee. upon request for a period of three (3) years from the date the audit report is issued,
unless extended in writing by the Department.

E. Subgrant recipients that expend less than $500.000 in Federal awards during a fiscal year are exempt
from the audit requirements of OMB Circular A·133 for that fiscal year. In this case, written
notification shall be provided to the Department by the Chief Financial Officer. or designee, that the
subgrant recipient is exempt. This notice shall be provided to OCJG no later than March 1 following
the end of the fiscal year .

.-.-----~--.- -~------ ---..----.~-.------..~~
F. If this agreement is closed out without an audit, the Department reserves the right to recover any
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disallowed costs identified in an audit completed after such closeout.

G. The completed audit reports should be sent to the following address:

Florida Department of Law Enforcement
Office of Criminal Justice Grants

2331 Phillips Road
Tallahassee, Florida 32308

22. Ownership of Data and Creative Material

Ownership of material, discoveries, inventions, and results developed. produced. or discovered
subordinate to this agreement is governed by the terms of the Office of Justice Program's Financial
Guide and the federal OMB Circular A-110 or A-102, as applicable.

23. Property Accountability

The recipient agrees to use all non-expendable property for criminal justice purposes during its
useful life or request Department disposition.

The recipient shall establish and administer a system to protect. preserve, use, maintain and
dispose of any property furnished to it by the Department or purchased pursuant to this agreement
according to federal property management standards set forth in the Office of Justice Programs'
Financial Guide and the federal OMB Circular A-110 or A-102, as applicable. This obligation
continues as long as the recipient retains the property, notwithstanding expiration of this
agreement. .

24. Disputes and Appeals

The Department shall make its decision in writing when responding to any disputes, disagreements
or questions of fact arising under this agreement and shall distribute its response to all concerned
parties. The recipient shall proceed diligently with the performance of this agreement according to
the Department's decision.

If the recipient appeals the Department's decision. it also shall be made in writing within twenty-one
(21) calendar days to the Department's agency clerk. The recipient's right to appeal the
Department's decision is contained in Chapter 120, F.5., and in procedures set forth in Chapters
28-5 and 9-5, F.A.C. Failure to appeal within this time frame constitutes a waiver of proceedings
under Chapter 120. F.S.

25. Conferences and Inspection of Work

Conferences may be held at the request of any party to this agreement. At any time, a
representative of the Bureau, of the U:S. Department of Justice's Bureau of Justice Assistance or
both have the privilege of visiting the project site to monitor, inspect and assess work performed
under this agreement.

26. Publication or Printing of Reports

The recipient shall submit one copy of all reports and proposed publications resulting from the
agreement twenty (20) days prior to public release. Any publications (written, visual, or sound),
whether published at the recipient's or government's expense. shall contain the following statement:
(NOTE: This excludes press releases, newsletters, and issue analysis.)

====-~_=_.:==.-:.aThis--prOjecfWas·SilppOrted bv::Gcant N62001 :'RT;'BX-004A~araed:b.y~-e:BDreallfjtlrrStjM-
Assistance, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice. Points of view in this
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document are those of the author and do not necessarily represent the official position of policies of
the U.S. Department of Justice."

27. Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO)

A. Federal laws prohibit recipients of financial assistance from discriminating on the basis of race,
color, national origin, religion, sex, disability, or age in funded programs or activities. All subgrant
recipients and implementing agencies must comply with any applicable statutorily-imposed
nondiscrimination requirements. which may include the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets
Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. § 3789d); the Victims of Crime Act (42 U.S.C. § 10604(e»; The Juvenile
Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. §5672(b»; the Civil Rights Act of
1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d); the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794); the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. § 12131-34); the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C.
§§1681, 1683, 1685-86); the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101-07); and
Department of Justice Non-Discrimination Regulations 28 CFR Part 42; see Ex. Order 13279
(equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community organizations).

B. A subgrant recipient or implementing agency must develop an EEO Plan if it has 50 or more
employees and it has received any single award of $25,000 or more from the Department of
Justice. The plan must be prepared using the on-line short form at
http://WWW.ojD.UsdoLgov/aboutlocr/eeopcomply.htm. must be retained by the subgrant recipient
or implementing agency, and must be available for review or audit. The organization must also
submit an EEO Certification to FDLE.

C. If the subgrant recipient or implementing agency is required to prepare an EEO Plan and has
received any single award of $500,000 or more from the Department of Justice. it must submit its
plan to the Department of Justice for approval. A copy of the Department of Justice approval
letter must be submitted to FDLE. The approval letter expires two years from the date of the
letter.

D. A subgrant recipient or implementing agency is exempt from the EEO Plan requirement if it is has
fewer than 50 employees or if it does not receive any single award of $25,000 or more from the
Department of Justice or if it is a nonprofit organization, a medical or educational institution, or an
Indian Tribe. If an organization is exempt from the EEO Plan requirement. it must submit an EEO
Certification to FDLE.

E. The subgrant recipient and implementing agency acknowledge that failure to comply with EEO
Requirements within 60 days of the project start date may result in suspension or termination of
funding, until such time as it is in compliance.

F. In the event a Federal or State court of Federal or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color. religion, national origin,
sex, or disability against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the
Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs.

28. Payment Contingent on Appropriation

The State of Florida's performance and Obligation to pay under this agreement is contingent upon
an annual appropriation by the Florida Legislature.

29. Certifications Regarding Lobbying; Debarment, Suspension and other Responsibility Mattersi
and Drug-Free Workplace Requirements

Applicants should refer to the regulations cited below to determine the certification to which they are
-requir-ed-to"""8ttest-Applicents -should-also-review-the-instructions-for--GeFtifiGatien--included-in .the- ---
regulations before completing this form. Signature of this form provides for compliance with certification
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requirements under 28 CFR Part 69. "New Restrictions on Lobbying" and 28 CFR Part 67. "Govemment-
wide Debarment and Suspension (Nonpro-curement) and Govemment-wide Requirements for Drug-
Free Workplace (Grants)." The certifications shall be treated as a material representation of fact upon
which reliance will be placed when the Department of Justice determines to award the covered
transaction, grant, or cooperative agreement.

A. LOBBYING As required by Section 1352, Title 31 of the U.S. Code. and implemented at 28 CFR Part
69, for persons entering into a grant or cooperative agreement over $100.000. as defined at 28 CFR
Part 69, the applicant certifies that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
undersigned. to any person for in-f1uencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee
of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee
of a Member of Congress in con-nection with the making of any Federal grant, the entering
into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension. continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal grant or cooperative agreement;

2. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with this Federal grant or cooperative agreement, the undersigned
shall complete and submit Standard Form -lLL. "Disclosure of Lobbying Activities," in
accordance with its instructions;

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this cer-tification be included in the award
documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subgrants, contracts under grants and
cooperative agreements, and subcontracts) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and
disclose accordingly.

B. DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS (DIRECT
RECIPIENT)

As required by Executive Order 12549, Debarment and Suspension, and implemented at 28 CFR
Part 67, for prospective partiCipants in primary covered transactions, as defined at 28 CFR Part
67, Section 67.510

1. The applicant certifies th~t it and its principals:

a. Are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible,
sentenced to a denial of Federal benefits by a State or Federal court. or voluntarily
excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency;

b. Have not within a three-year period preceding this application been convicted of or had a
civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State, or
local) transaction or contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State
antitrust statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery. bribery, falsification or
destruction of records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

c. Are not presently indicted for or otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a govemmental
entity (Federal, State, or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in
paragraph (1)(b) of this certification; and (d) Have not within a three-year period preceding
this application had one or more public transactions (Federal, State, or local) terminated
for cause or default; and

1. Where the applicant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, he or she
shall attach an explanation to this application.

---_.. -=========::.:::..:==~===------ --_._--- .... _ ..
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C. DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE (GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS)

As required by the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, and implemented at 28 CFR Part 67,
Subpart F, for grantees, as defined at 28 CFR Part 67 Sections 67.615 and 67.620

1. The applicant certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

a. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession, or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee's
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of
such prohibition;

b. Establishing an on-going drug-free awareness program to inform employees about

1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs;
and

4. The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

c. Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the
grant be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

d. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will

1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and

2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug
statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

e. Notifying the agency, in writing, within 10 calendar days after receiving notice under
SUbparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such
convic-tion. Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position
title, to: Department of Justice, Office of Justice Programs, AnN: Control Desk, 633
Indiana Avenue, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20531. Notice shall include the identification
num ber(s) of each affected grant;

f. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted

1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or

2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local
health, law enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

g. Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e), and (t).
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As the duly authorized representative of the applicant. I hereby certify that the applicant will comply
with the above certifications.

If a state agency. the recipient agrees to comply with Section 319 of Public Law 101-121 set forth in
"New Restrictions on Lobbying; Interim Final Rule." published in the February 26, 1990, Federal
Register. Each person shall file the most current edition of this Certification And Disclosure Form,
if applicable. with each submission that initiates agency consideration of such person for award of
federal contract. grant. or cooperative agreement of $100.000 or more; or federal loan of $150.000
or more. This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when
this agreement was made. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite to entering into this
agreement subject to conditions and penalties imposed by Section 1352. Title 31. U.S.C. Any
person who fails to file the required certification is subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000
and not more than $100.000 for each failure to file.

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief. that:

D. No federally appropriated funds have been paid or shall be paid to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any federal agency, a member of congress, an
officer or employee of congress, or an employee of a member of congress in connection with the
awarding of any federal loan, the entering into of any renewal, amendment, or modification of
any federal contract, grant, loan or cooperative agreement.

E. If any non-federal funds have been paid or shall be paid to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of congress, or an employee of a member of
congress in connection with this federal contract, grant loan. or cooperative agreement, the
undersigned shall complete and submit the standard form, Disclosure of Lobbying Activities,
according to its instructions.

F. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in award
documents for all subgrant awards at all tiers and that all recipients shall certify and disclose
accordingly.

30. State Restrictions on Lobbying

In addition to the provisions contained herein, the expenditure of funds for the purpose of lobbying
the legislature or a state agency is prohibited under this contract.

31. Project Closeout

Project funds which have been properly Obligated by the end of the subgrant funding period will
have forty-five 45) days in which to be liquidated (expended). Any funds not liquidated at the end of
the 45-day period will lapse and revert to the Department. A subgrant-funded project will not be
closed out until the recipient has satisfied all closeout requirements in one final subgrant closeout
package.

All refunds or repayments to be made to the Department under this Agreement are to be made
payable to the order of "Florida Department of Law Enforcement", and mailed directly to the
Department at the following address:

Florida Department of Law
Enforcement

Office of Criminal Justice Grants
2331 Phillips Road

Tallahassee, FL _~?3()~.
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32. Background Check

It is strongly recommended that all programs targeting juveniles, implemented by other than a
sworn law enforcement officer or program licensed by the Department of Children and Family
Services, conduct background checks on all personnel providing direct services.

33. Purchase of American-Made Equipment and Products

To the greatest extent practicable, all equipment and products purchased with program funds
should be American-made.

34. Eligibility for Employment In the United States

The State of Florida will not intentionally award publicly-funded contracts to any contractor who
knowingly employs unauthorized alien workers, constituting a violation of the employment
provisions contained in 8 U.S.C. Section 1324A(e) [Section 274A(e) of the Immigration and
Nationality Act ("INAn)]. The Department shall consider the employment by any contractor of
unauthorized aliens a violation of Section 27 4A( e) of the INA. Such violation by the recipient of the
employment provisions contained in Section 274A{e) of the INA shall be grounds for unilateral
cancellation of this Agreement by the Department.

35. National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA)
A. The subqrantee agrees to assist FDLE in complying with the NEPA and other related federal

environmental impact analyses requirements in the use of subgrant funds by the subgrantee.
This applies to the following new activities whether or not they are being specifically funded with
these subgrant funds. That is, it applies as long as the activity is being conducted by the
subgrantee or any third party and the activity needs to be undertaken in order to use these
subgrant funds,

1. New construction;
2. Minor renovation or remodeling of a property either (a) listed on or eligible for listing on the

National Register of Historic Places or (b) located within a 100-year flood plain;
3. A renovation, lease, or any other proposed use of a building or facility that will either (a)

result in a change in its basic prior use or (b) significantly change its size; and,
4. Implementation of a new program involving the use of chemicals other than chemicals that

are (a) purchased as an incidental component of a funded activity and (b) traditionally used,
for example, in office, household, recreational, or educational environments.

B. For any of a subgrantee's existing programs or activities that will be funded by these subgrant,
the subgrantee, upon specific request from the Department and the Bureau of Justice
Assistance (BJA), agrees to cooperate with BJA in any preparation by BJA of a national or
program environmental assessment of that funded program or activity.

36. Assurance of Political Activities Limitations

The subgrantee assures that it will com ply with provisions of Federal law which limit certain political
activities of State or local government employees whose principal employment is in connection with
an activity financed in whole or part by Federal grants (5USC 1501, et seq.)

A. Environmental Protection Agency's (EPA) list of Violating Facilities
The sUbgrantee assures that the facilities under its ownership, lease or supervision which shall
be utilized in the accomplishment of the Program Purpose are not listed an the EPA's list of
Violating Facilities and that it will notify the FDLE of the receipt of any communication from the
Director of the EPA Office of Federal Activities indicating that a facility to be used in the project

_.__.---- _----'-Is under considerationfor~lis.!i!!g.::Qy:~the-EPA:-- ~~~ --------~---.::...= .-..:....:..:.:.---=-.. ..:,::.- .:..::.--~~-.:.:=======
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B. Flood Disaster Protection Act
The subgrantee will comply with Section 102(a) of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of 1973, Public
Law 93-234,87 Stat. 975, requiring that the purchase of flood insurance in communities where such
insurance is available as a condition of the receipt of any federal financial assistance for
construction or acquisition purposes for use in any area that has been identified as an area having
special flood hazards.

C. National Historic Preservation Act

The subgrantee will assist the FDLE in its compliance with Section 106 of the National Historic
Preservation Act of 1966 as amended (16 USC 470), Executive Order 11593, and the Archeological
and Historical Preservation Act of 1966 (16 USC 569a-1 et seq.) by (a) consulting with the State
Historic Preservation Officer as necessary, to identify properties listed in or eligible for inclusion in
the National Register of Historic Places that are subject to adverse effects (see 36 CFR Part 800.8)
by the activity, and notifying the FDLE of the existence of any such properties and by (b) complying
with all requirements established by the Federal grantor agency to avoid or mitigate adverse effects upon
such properties.

37. The Coastal Barrier Resources Act

The subgrantee will comply and assure the compliance of all contractors with the provisions of the Coastal
Barrier Resources Act (P.L. 97-348) dated October 19, 1962 (16 USC 3501 et seq.) which prohibit the
expenditure of most new Federal funds within the units of the Coastal Barrier Resources System.

38. "Pay to Stay"

Thesubrecipient agrees that funds provided under this award may not be used to operate a "pay-to-stay"
program in any local jail. The subrecipient further agrees not to subaward funds to local jails which
operate upay-to-stay* programs.

39. If a Governmental Entity:

it will comply with the requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real property
Acquisitions Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C. § 4601 et seq.), which govem the treatment of persons displaced
as a result of federal and federally-assisted programs; and it will comply with requirements of 5 U.S.C.
§§ 1501-08 and §§ 7324-28, which limit certain political activities of State or local govemment
employees whose principal employment is in connection with an activity financed in whole or in part by
federal assistance.

40. Americans with Disabilities Act

Subgrant recipients must comply with the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA),
Public Law 101-336, which prohibits discrimination by public and private entities on the basis of
disability and requires certain accommodations be made with regard to employment (Title I), state and
local government services and transportation (Title II), public accommodations (Title III), and
telecommunications (Title IV).

41. Immigration and Nationality Act

No public funds will intentionally be awarded to any contractor who knowingly employs unauthorized
alien workers, constituting a violation of the employment provisions contained in 8 U.S.C. Section
1324a(e), Section 214A(e) of the Immigration and Nationality Act rINAft). The Department shall
consider the employment by any contractor of unauthorized aliens a violation of Section 214A(e) of the

. --- -rlifA:·S~loiation-bY:th~u69rant-r.ecipi6nt~tne.:'empIQymeR4lro¥iSlons..Comainecfrn-Secboi'~.=-~·~- .-
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274A(e) of the INA shall be grounds for unilateral cancellation of this contract by the Department.

42. Limited English Proficiency (LEP)

In accordance with Department of Justice Guidance pertaining to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of
1964, 42 U.S.C. § 2000d, recipients of Federal financial assistance must take reasonable steps to
provide meaningful access to their programs and activities for persons with LEP. For more
information on the civil rights responsibilities that recipients have in providing language services to
LEP individuals, please see the website at http://www.lep.gov.

43. Equal Treatment for Faith Based Organizations

The grantee agrees to comply with the applicable requirements of 28 C.F.R. Part 38, the Department
of Justice regulation governing "Equal Treatment for Faith Based Organizations" (the "Equal
Treatment Regulation"}. The Equal Treatment Regulation provides in part that Department of Justice
grant awards of direct funding may not be used to fund any inherently religious activities, such as
worship, religious instruction, or proselytization. Recipients of direct grants may still engage in
inherently religious activities, but such activities must be separate in time or place from the
Department of Justice funded program, and participation in such activities by individuals receiving
services from the grantee or a sub-grantee must be VOluntary. The Equal Treatment Regulation also
makes clear that organizations participating in programs directly funded by the Department of Justice
are not permitted to discriminate in the provision of services on the basis of a beneficiary's religion.
Notwithstanding any other special condition of this award, faith based organizations may, in some
circumstances, consider religion as a basis for employment. See
http://www.ojD.qov/abouUocr/equalfbo.htm.

44. Certification for Employees Working Solely on a Single Federal Award

Any project staff that are fully funded by the grant must certify that they worked solely on the grant.
The certification must be prepared at least semi annually and must be signed by the employee and by
a supervisory official having first hand knowledge of the work performed by the employee.

------_ ..-
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CERTIFICATION FORM

Recipient Name and Address: Escambia County Board of County Commissioners

Grant Title: RSAT Grant Number: 2010-RSAT -64 Award Amount: 50,000---------------------------------
Contact Person Name and Title: Deb Armenti, Grants Coordinator Phone Number: (850)595-4914

------------------ ------ ----- ---
Federal regulations require recipients of financial assistance from the orrlCe of Justice Programs (OIP), its component agencies, and the
Office of Community Oriented Policing Services (COPS) to prepare, maintain on file. submit to OJP for review, and implement an Equal
Employment Opportunity Piau (EEOP) in accordauce with 28 C.F.R §§ 42.301-.308. The regulations exempt some recipients from all of
the EEOP requirements. Other recipients, according to the regulations. must prepare, maintain on me and implement an EEOP, but they
do not need to submit the EEOP to OlP for review. Recipients that claim a complete exemption from the EEOP requirement must
complete Sectloo A below. Recipients that claim the limited exemption from the submission requirement, must complete Section B
below. A recipient sbould complete dIlle, Seetion A or SectioD B, not lIotb. If a recipient receives multiple OlP or COPS grants,
please complete a form for each grant, ensuring that any EEOP recipient certifies as completed and on file (if applicable) bas been
prepared within two years of the latest grant. Ple89C send the completed formes) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs,
U.S. Department of Justice. 8] 0 7'" Street. N. W., Wasbington, D.C. 20531. For assistance in completing this form, please call (202)307-
0690 or TTY (202) 307-2027.

Section A- Declaration Claiming Complete Exemption from the EEOP Requirement Please check at/lhe boxes that
QPpJy·

o
o
CJ

Recipient has less than 50 employees,
Recipient is a Don-profit organization.
Recipient is a medical institution,

o Recipient is an Indian tribe,
o Recipient is an educational institution, or
CJ Recipient is receiving an award less tban $25,000

I. Grover Robinson, IV (responsible official], certify that
Escambia County [recipient] is not required to
prepare an EEOP for the reason(s) checked above. pursuant to 28 C.F.R §42.302. I further certify that. ---
Escambla County [recipient) wilt comply with applicable Federal civil rights
laws that prohibit discrimination in employment and in the delivery of services.
Grover Robinson, IV, Escambia County Commission Chairperson
Prial or type Name aDd Title Sigaature Dlite

Seetion B- Declaration Claiming EXemption from the EEOP Submission Reguirement and Certifying That an
EEOP Is on File for Review.

If a recipient agency has 50 or more employees and is receiving 11 single aWllrd or subaward for $25,000 or more. but less than S500,OOO,
then the recipient agency does Dot have to submit an EEOP to OJP for review as long as it certifies the foUowing (42 C.F.R. § 42.305):

1, Grover Robinson, IV (responsible official), certify that
the EscarnbIa County County Board of Commissioner's 0fIIce Irecipient), which has SO or more
employees and is receiving a single award or subaward for $25,000 or more, but less than $500,000, bas formulated an
EEOP in accordance with 28 CFR §42.30 1. et seq .• subpart E. I further certify that the EEOP bas been formulated and
signed into effect within the past two years by the proper authority and tbat it is available for review. The EEOP is on me in
the office of: County Commissioner's [organization).
at 221 Palafox Place, Pensacola Florida 32502 laddress),for review by the public and
employees or for review or audit by officials of the relevant state planning agency or the Office for Civil Rights. Office of
Justice Programs, U. S. Department of Justice, as required by relevm.y laws and ~a~ons.

Grover Robinson, IV • Escambia County Commlssfon Chairperson ~ fa'ZL-~ bII /' 0
Pri •• or type Name aDd Title Signature Date

OMS Approval No_ 1121-0140 Expiratim Dale: 01131106
-_._---- ------.- ---- ----



CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING; DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBILInY
MATTERS; AND DRUG..fREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

Florida Department of Law Enforcement
Resldendlal Substance Abuse Treatment Proaram

Form Provided by the U.S. DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE, OFFICE OF JUSTICE PROGRAMS,
OFFICE OF THE COMPTROLLER

CERTIFICATIONS REGARDING LOBBYING; DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER RESPONSIBIUTY
MATTERS; AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

Applicants should refer to the regulations cited below to determine the certification to which they are required to
attesl Applicants should also review the instructions for certification included in the regulations before completing this
fonn. Signature of this fonn provides for compliance with certification requirements under 28 CFR Part 69. "New
Restrictions on Lobbying" and 28 CFR Part 67. "Govemment-wide Debarment and Suspension (Non-procurement) and
Govemment-wide Requirements for Drug-Free Wort<place (Grants)". The certifications shall be treated as a material
representation of fact upon which reliance will be ptaced when the Department of Justice determines to award the
covered transaction. grant. or cooperative agreement.

1. LOBBYING

As ~ by Section 1352, Tille 31 of the u.s. Code. and impIememed a128
CFR Part 69, for perscna entering inlO a grant or c:oopemIlve agreement 0118I
$100,000, as defined lit 28 CFR Part 89.1he applicant c:er\Ifies thai:

(a) No fedefaJ opptOpriaIed funds haw been paid or will be paid. by or on behalf
of !he undllrsiglled, to any peISIlI\ for Influencing 01BIt~ to influenca an
IIfficlet 01employee of any agency. a mamber of Congress. an dIicer or employee
of~. or an employee of a Member of Congress In c:onnec:tion with \he
maJdng of any federal grant. the entllllng Into of any cooperative agruement. and
\he exlension, cxmtInWlllon, rEfI8W8I, amendment, or mocfif!caticn of any federal
glBnt 01c::ooperdve agreement;

(b) If any funds other than fedenII appropriaIed funds hIM! been paid or will be
pad 10 any panIOIIlntluenc:ing or Blt8ll1llfng to lnfluenao an aIfice( or employee at
any ogency. 8 member of Congress. an afIIcer or an employee of Congress. or an
eIrflIoyee of a member of Congress In CIOnra:tlan with this federal grant or
~ agraemenl,lhe undersigned shall conqlIete and submit S1anderd
Farm -lLL. ·DIscIosure of LoIlby!ng AdMtIes·, In accordanCD with its instructions;

(c) The undefsigned shall require \IIaI the language of this certification be
Induded in \lie award documents far aD subBwards at ell tiers (including subQnlnts.
cantrads IIIldef grants and coaperattw agreemants. and IlUbcorItracta) and \hat all
subreclpIents ahaII certify and dIsdase 8CICOIdingly.

2.. DEBARMEHT. SUSPENSION. AND OTHER
RESPONSIBIUTY MATTERS
(DIRECT RECIPIENT)

As required by Exoc:utIw Order 12549. Debarment and Slr.Ij)IInsian, and
impIemenIed at 28 CFR Part 67. far prospecIMt participants in primary CO\IeI8CI
lnInSadions. as defined at 28 CFR Part 67, 5ecIion 67.510·

A. The applicant cefIifies thai it and ita principals:

(8) Are not pIeS8IIIly debarred. suspended, proposed far debarment. declared
ineligible. $8I\Ianced to 8 denial at fedBfal benefits by a StIlle Of' Federal Q)IU\. or
1/OIunlllrily wcduded from cawred transac:IIans by any federal department at
8IJIII1'Yo

(b) Haw I\Cll within a ~year period preceding this application
be8n ccn-.!ded 01 or had a civil judgement nmdered against \hem for
c:ornrnI.son at fraud Ct'a aimlnel atrense in eonnec:tfon with
oblSning. IIItBmpting to obtain. or perfonning a public (Federal. Stale.
or local) \r8rIII8Cdan or amlrect under a puIlIlCtransadian; violalion of
Federal or State antitnIst 5latllles or ccrnmIssIon of embeZzlement,
theft forgery. bribery. faI.nation or deslnrctlon of rec:ords, maJdng
false statarnants. 01 receiving stolen pmperty;

Ic) Ale not p-mIy inc!ided for or otherwise aininally or civilly
c:hIUged by. governmental entity (Federal. $1ate, or 10C1II) with
commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1) (b) 01
this certifk:allon; and

Id) Haw net within a I/truo-yeat period preceding Ihia application
had one or more putllictransactiolls(FedenlI. S1ate, arlocal)
lennfnated for cause 01defaull; and

B. Where the applICant is unable to certify to any 0/ \lie Slatements in
this certificallol •• he Of'she shafI atIaCh an explanation to \his
appIicaIlon.

3. DRUG.fREE WORKPLACE
(GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS)

As required by the Dnlg-Free Wor1<pIace Act of 1988, and
Irnplernefded at 28 CFR Part 61. SutJpart F. for gl'lllUlleS. as defined
at 28 CFR Part 87 Sections 67.815 and 61.620-

A, The appliCant certifies \hat II will or wiD CXJntinue to pnMde a drug-
freeWQ~by:

(a) Publisltlng 8 statement notifying employees tIIat \lie unllJWful
manufacture. dlstribution. dispensing, possession, Of use of a
CIOIIInlIled substance 1$ prohiIitod [n IhII grantee's V«IIIqJIace and
specifying \lie actions \hat wiD be taken agGtnst employeeS for
violation of such prohibition;

Ib) EstabIishlng an on-gaing drug-lrea _ prggram to Inform
ernptoyws 1Ibaut·

11) The danger5 of drug abuIIe In the V/OI1qII8c8;

(2) The grantee's policy 01 maintaining a dnQ-fIee woricpIace;

(3) Any available drug counseling, I1Il1a1li1i1a11on,and employee
assisIance p-agnatlS; and

(41 The penalties U\at may be tmpased upon employees for drug
abuse violations occurring in \he worIIpIeat;

FDLEMAT Gl8llt Application P.ckage Lobbying. Debalment, SU!peMlon, and DnlttFree Worl!plac:e CenII1catJon.. _. ~.-"--.~~_:...=.. -~_ _ ~--".~.::,:,,~--_._~: _"_-_~_-.. ..:....::.:...-__ -'PaJIe-1-" __



CERnFiCAnON REGARDING LOBBYING; DEBARMENT. SUSPENSION. AND OTHER RESPONSIBILmV
MATTERS; AND DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

Florida Department of Law Enforcement
Resldendlal Substance Abuse Treatment Proaram

(e) ~ it a reqWement thai each ~ to be tlIIlIIIII'ld In \he pat/om_noe
of the grant be given a c:upy of the stalement IeqUired by paragraph (a);

(d) NcCifying the ~ In the sIaIemenI requiIed by paragraph <al thai, as a
cunditIun of e~ under the grunt. the ~wiIJ.

It) AIIide by the 1_ of the .aatement; and

(2) Notify the I!I1tpIorer In writing of his or her ounw:tian fur a 1IIuIaIIoo of •
aImInaI drug statute uuuuntng In the wudcpIace no laterlllan five CIHndar days
lifter the ClUIWicIiun;

Co) Noti¥ng 11I8agency. In willing. wIWn 10 cal8ndardays after receiving notice
under subparagraptl (eI) (2) from an omp/uyee urutrlerlMsa raceMng actual nutk:e
of sudI ClIlIMdion. EmpIuyer$ of 0UII'f'icflIdemployees must pnMde naIlce
if1duc!Ing pusiIion titIo. to: DepaItmenI of Justioe. 0IIice of JIIIIIice PIosramiJ.
ATrN: Control Desk, 633lnciana Awnua. N.W.• W8sI1ingIUn. D.C. 20531. Notice
shall Include the identification number(s) of each atrec:ted gmnt;

(It Tilling one of the fuOowing actiuM. within 30 calendar" days of reaIMng nuIice
under adlpaI8!JI8J'h (eI) (2). willi Iespec:l to any employee wfIu is GOcurwided-

(1) Tilling apprupriate personnel action against sudI an empfuyue. up to and
including tanninatian. CIOIISiSIIIntv.ftIIthe requiIemenIs of \he RehabilillJlion Ad of
1973. as amended; or

(2) Requiring sucII empIuvee to pallk:ipate satisfactorily In a dNg abuse
assisIanoe or reIIab1itaI!cn pogrom appRM!d for sudI purpuses by a Feden!I,
Slate, or 1uoaI1IeaIttI.1aw enfUlcemeul, or DIller epprupriaIe agency:

(g) MaIling a good fath efI'uIl to CXIIIIinueto maintain a drug4n:o wartpIago
tIuough impIemenIaIion of par1IIJl1IIIhs (a), (b), (e). (d). (el. and (f).

B. T1Ie grantee may insmt in the space jICO'iided be'- the Ili!8(s) fur the
pecfoml8llCe of wort done in ocnnecIion wi1h the specific grant:

PIBce of Petformziloe (SIIeeI address. city. COIIf1tr. stale. zip code)

CIIUdt hImI _ If thImI &nI wmIqlIaces on file 1hat .", nut Identified
here.

Sediun 67.630 of the AIgIIIat!ons pnMdes tIIat • grantee tIIat is a
Slate may oIed to make one c:erIiftcaIiun In each FecIerBI fiscal year.
A copy of v.tlIcIIlIhauId be Induded with eactI application fur
Depurtrnent of Justice fwIding. Stales and Stat. agencies may elect
to usa OJP Form 4061f1.

Chect!lent _ If the Stale has elected to oompIele OJP Form
4061f1.

DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE
(GRANTEES WHO ARE INDMDUALS)

As required by \he Orug-Free Wurttplace Ad of 1988. and
fmplomented at 28 CFR ParI 67. Subpart F. for grwrteoa. as defined
at28CFR Pm 67: Sections 67.615 and 67.620-

A. As a ~ of the grant. I ceIIify Ihet I wiD nut engage in the
unlawful manutacturo. disIribuIiun. dispensing, possession. or use of
a ccnwIIed substance In conducting &It'f edivily wi1h the grant; and

B. If CXII1Vided of a aiminal drug oIfense .-siting fIcm a violalion
occurring durtng the anfuof of any grant activity. I wiD report the
C'.ICIfMc:tion,in 'IWIIting. within 10 calender dap of the QOIMction. to:
DepwtmenI of Justice. Office of Justica Prugrems, AlTN: Control
Desk, 633 Indiana Awnue. N.W .• Wsshington. D.C. 20531.

As the duly authorized representative of the applicant, I hereby certify that the applicant will comply with the above
certifications.

1. Grantee Name and AddreSS:.__ E_s_c_a_mh_i_a_C_o_u_n_t..;;¥:......B_o_a_r_d_o_f_C_o_u_n_t..:¥_c_o_rrmu_·_s_s;..:i_o;..:n.:...e:....r_s_

2 Project N RSAT Male Group. ame:. ~ _

3. Typed Name and Title of Authorized Representative: Grover Robinson. IV Escam County Comm Chair

5. Date:.~b +-1!4-/--=' 0 _7 )

._------ -
.-. c.' -~ ..__~_··_···_c·c-~ '--'Page2 --



DESTIN .

CHARITY W:' NE AUCTION
FOUNDATION

May 28, 2010

Connie Bookman, Executive Director
Pathways For Change
1211 West Fairfield Drive
Pensacola, FL 32501

Dear Mrs. Bookman,

This letter verifies that the Destin Charity Wine Auction Foundation has committed
$17,000 from its Clinton Cox Memorial Fund to Pathways For Change, to facilitate your
possible award of the Residential Substance Abuse Treatment (RSA T) grant.

With an eighty five percent success rate, Pathways For Change is making a difference in
the lives of the men in treatment and our community. Thank you for your work.

Sincerely,

Todd Vucovich
Executive Director

-_.--------



    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  14.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 02/03/2011  

Issue: Reallocation of Fiscal Year 2010/2011 Capital Improvement Funds
From: Joy D. Blackmon, P.E.
Organization: Public Works
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Reallocation of Fiscal Year 2010-2011 Capital
Improvement Program Funds - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public Works Bureau Chief

That the Board approve the reallocation of funds totaling $4,365,860, from Fiscal Year
2010/2011 Capital Improvement Program to projects listed in Attachment "A".  Various
issues have hindered progress and affected the ability to construct some projects as
previously scheduled, so staff is requesting the Board's approval to reallocate funds, so
that we can move forward with projects that are currently in progress or are ready for
design/construction.

[Funding Source:  Fund 352, "Local Option Sales Tax III", Account 210107]

BACKGROUND:

The table shown in Attachment "A" provides a list of the construction projects, by
District, which will be affected by the reallocation of funds.  Various issues have
hindered progress and affected the ability to construct some projects as previously
scheduled.  Staff requests the Board's approval in order to move forward with projects
that are currently in progress or are ready for design/construction.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:

No budgetary impact occurs.  Funding is currently available in Fund 352 "Local Option
Sales Tax III", Account 210107.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:



N/A

PERSONNEL:

Engineering staff will implement changes upon Board approval.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:

Scheduling and prioritization of capital improvement projects is at the discretion of
the Board.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:

N/A

 

Attachments
Reallocation of Funds



Attachment A

Dist
Old 
Type Exisiting Project New Type New Project New Project  Description $ Amt

1 Drainage Tracy/Ogden Drainage Barefoot Estates Construct pond modifications 435,108$          
1 Drainage LiFair Drainage Drainage Bartow Avenue Drainage Roadway reconstruction and drainage improvements 632,000$          
1 Drainage LiFair Drainage Drainage Choctaw Drainage Construct ditch to alleviate drainage problems 200,000$          

Total District 1 1,267,108$       

2 Drainage Elsa Avenue Drainage Drainage Beach Haven Design plan for drainage improvements in area 466,251$          
2 Drainage Lake Charlene Drainage Coral Creek Drainage Construct Phase 2 drainage improvements 632,501$          

Total District 2 1,098,752$       

5 Drainage Muscogee Road Drainage Greenbrier Upgrade drainage structures in area 250,000$          
5 Drainage Muscogee Road Transportation Highway 297A - Pine Forest to Sandicrest Additional funding for roadway and drainage improvements 1,000,000$       
5 Drainage Muscogee Road Transportation Highway 297A - Sandicrest to kingsfield Additional funding for roadway and drainage improvements 750,000$          

Total District 5 2,000,000$       
Grand Total 4,365,860$       

 

Reallocation of Transportation & Drainage LOST III Funds: Table A

FROM TO



    Budget/Finance Consent    Item #:  15.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 02/03/2011  

Issue: Acquisition of Property for Drainage Improvements in the Greenbrier
Boulevard Drainage Area

From: Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Bureau Chief
Organization: Public Works-Infrastructure Branch
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Acquisition of Property, by Donation, for Drainage
Improvements in the Greenbrier Boulevard Drainage Area - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E.,
Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action concerning acquisition of property, by donation,
for drainage improvements in the Greenbrier Boulevard Drainage Area:

A.  Authorize staff to negotiate and resolve any matters related to, or associated with the
acquisition of property, by donation, for drainage improvements in the Greenbrier
Boulevard Drainage Area, and to gather information and conduct inspections as needed,
to allow the Board’s acceptance of the real property;

B.  Authorize the payment of documentary stamps because the property is being
acquired for governmental use, which is for drainage Easements, and the County
benefits from these acquisitions because they facilitate the installation of drainage
improvements, which will result in a more efficient and safe roadway, enhancing the
quality of life for the citizens of Escambia County;

C.  Authorize the payment of incidental expenditures associated with the acquisition of
these properties, which includes, but is not limited to, a title search, documentary stamp
tax and recording of documents; and

D.  Authorize staff to prepare and the Chairman or Vice Chairman to accept the drainage
Easements as of the day of delivery of the Easements to the Chairman or Vice
Chairman, and authorize the Chairman or Vice Chairman to acknowledge the Board’s
acceptance at that time, subject to Legal review and sign-off.

[Funding Source: Fund 352, LOST III, Account 210107/56301, Project #11EN0955



"Greenbrier"] 

BACKGROUND:
The County has a project in design to improve the stormwater drainage in the
Greenbrier Boulevard / Scenic Hills Golf Course area. The County has existing
easements in this area, but the existing structures are inadequate and in some areas
the structures are outside the existing easement area. The existing structures will be
incorporated in the design to expand the easement area and to maintain/modify the
existing structures. Completion of this the drainage project will require that the County
obtain additional drainage easements from adjacent property owners. Board approval is
required to authorize Staff to proceed with the acquisitions, by donation, and for the
Board’s acceptance of the acquired easements.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Funds for incidental expenses associated with these projects are available in Fund 352
LOST III, Account 210107/ 56301, Project #11EN0955 “Greenbrier”.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
Deed and Easement forms to be used in the acquisition process have been previously
approved by the County Attorney’s Office.

PERSONNEL:
All work associated with this request is being done in-house and no additional staff is
required.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Upon Board approval to start the acquisition process, County Staff will proceed in
compliance with Section 46-139 of the Escambia County Code of Ordinances.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Once Board approval is granted, staff will proceed with the acquisition of required road
rights-of-way and easements associated with this project.

Attachments
Map



ESCAMBIA COUNTY         
ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT

JCC  01/12/11          DISTRICT 5

ACQUISITION OF PROPERTY FOR DRAINAGE IMPROVEMENTS IN THE GREENBRIER BOULEVARD DRAINAGE AREA

Proposed Acquisition/Drainage Improvement Area

VICINITY MAP

SCENIC HILLS GOLF COURSE



    Discussion    Item #:  1.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 02/03/2011  

Issue: Modification of Payroll Procedures
From: Charles R. (Randy) Oliver, CPA PE
Organization: County Administrator's Office
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning County Payroll Procedures - Charles R. "Randy" Oliver,
CPA PE, County Administrator

That the Board approve changing the County payroll procedures to reflect an
employee's choice of payment by either direct deposit or the Bank of America Payroll
Debit Card Program.  This will result in no further need to print or distribute paychecks or
direct deposit vouchers.

BACKGROUND:
The Clerk of the Court and County staff are continuously searching for methods to
automate processes and reduce costs.  The change to the payroll procedures to offer
two choices in receiving earnings of direct deposit to the employees' bank account or
the Bank of America Payroll Debit Card Program will accomplish both.  All activity fees
(one per pay period) for the Payroll Debit Card Program have been waived by Bank of
America and the initial setup charge will be paid by the Clerk's office; consequently, the
employees will not incur any expense for the program.  New employees will be required
to use direct deposit.

We would like to thank Lisa Bernau and Patty Sheldon, with the Clerk's office, for
making this change possible.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
This change in procedure will save all parties a substantial amount of staff time and
expense; however, the exact amount has not been determined.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The Clerk of the Court has had their legal counsel sign off on this recommendation.



PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
The ATU and PBA have acknowledged and cooperated in the implementation of this
change.  We would like to thank them for their participation.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
The implementation date is April 1, 2011.



    Discussion    Item #:  2.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 02/03/2011  

Issue: Resolution to Adopt a Development Services Policy Entitled "72-Hours
Or Its Free"

From: T. Lloyd Kerr, AICP
Organization: Development Services
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning a Resolution to Adopt Development Services Policy
Entitled "72-Hours or It's Free" - T. Lloyd Kerr, AICP, Development Services Bureau
Chief

That the Board adopt a Resolution to establish a Development Services Policy entitled
"72-Hours or It's Free" that will provide timely and responsive service for the citizens in
regard to Building Permitting Procedures, and providing an effective date. 

BACKGROUND:
County Staff has committed to providing timely and responsive service to Escambia
County citizens through the policy "72-Hours or It's Free" (three business days).  This
Policy will promote the expeditious and efficient approval of properly-completed Building
Permit Applications for new Single-Family Dwellings within a Platted Sub-division with a
Plat Book and Page Number as established by Escambia County Resolution R2003-93
permit fees and shall remain applicable to any new or revised fees for the same permit
established through a subsequent resolution and fee schedule unless otherwise directed
by the Board of County Commissioners.

This Resolution will continue to promote the public health, safety and welfare of the
citizens of Escambia County. 

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
There are no budgetary impacts anticipated as part of this Resolution.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
Legal sign-off by Ryan E. Ross was approved on January 27, 2011.



PERSONNEL:
No additional personnel are anticipated for the implementation of this Resolution.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Board of County Commission action is required for providing an effective date.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
No implementation required.

No coordination required.

 

Attachments
Resolution







    Discussion    Item #:  3.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 02/03/2011  

Issue: Revenue Settlement with BP for Fiscal Year 2010
From: Amy Lovoy
Organization: Management and Budget Services
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Revenue Settlement with BP for Revenues Lost in Fiscal
Year 2010 as a Result of the Deepwater Horizon Oil Spill - Amy Lovoy, Management &
Budget Services Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action concerning the Settlement with BP for revenues
lost in Fiscal Year 2010:

A.  Approve a settlement with BP for revenues lost in Fiscal Year 2010 as a result of the
Deepwater Horizon Oil Spill as shown in the backup; and 

B.  Approve a release with BP for these revenues subject to Legal sign-off.

BACKGROUND:
The Gulf Oilspill caused Escambia County to lose revenues throughout the course of
fiscal year 2010.  This recommendation will authorize the County to settle with BP for
the attached revenues and to release BP from future claims as it relates to these
revenues.  This release will only include the revenues listed in the attached
documentation and only for fiscal year 2010.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
This action will result in revenues of $2,027,441.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The subsequent release will be subject to legal sign-off.

PERSONNEL:
N/A



POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
Lost Revenues to BP



Lost Revenue Recap
Escambia County, Florida

Title Amount

Tourist Development Tax $614,893
Bob Sikes Toll Bridge 239,163
Local Option Sales Tax 923,522
Local Option Gas Tax 37,382
9th Cent Gas Tax 8,690
Electric Franchise Fee 15,711
Natural Gas Franchise Fee 28,332
Tipping Fees 159,747
Total $2,027,441



ESCAMBIA COUNTY OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET
REVENUE CYCLES‐TOURIST PROMOTION TAX

Claim # 6866 124 528330
Tax ID # 59600598
Jurisdication Escambia County, Florida
Collection Method: Collected monthly and locally.  Remitters have until the 20th of a month 

to remit the previous month's taxes.

Lost
MONTH FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010 Growth Revenue

OCTOBER $384,103 $369,926 $366,536
NOVEMBER 318,121 308,481 317,897
DECEMBER 274,940 247,156 285,967
JANUARY 218,220 226,312 219,667
FEBRUARY 240,925 235,697 229,180
MARCH 303,149 286,841 268,631
APRIL 458,868 396,260 440,348
MAY 404,960 451,024 478,495 8.45%
JUNE 633,151 516,684 556,380 8.45% 3,942
JULY 807,652 798,223 681,237 8.45% 184,401
AUGUST 916,736 952,160 713,340 8.45% 319,237
SEPTEMBER 563,335 543,233 481,799 8.45% 107,314

Total Lost Revenue $614,893



ESCAMBIA COUNTY OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET
REVENUE CYCLES‐BOB SIKES TOLL BRIDGE

Claim # 6866 124 528330
Tax ID # 59600598
Jurisdication Escambia County, Florida
Collection Method: $1.00 per vehicle bridge toll on the Bob Sikes Bridge.  $50 annual pass.  

$70 annual commercial  vehicle pass.  The Bob Sikes Bridge is the only 
roadway onto Santa Rosa Island and Pensacola Beach from Escambia 
County.  Santa Rosal Island sits on the Gulf of Mexico and is a primary 
tourist destination.

Lost
MONTH FY 2009 FY 2010 Growth Revenue

OCTOBER $152,458.50 $163,770.96
NOVEMBER 154,098.00 160,596.95
DECEMBER 278,494.26 250,570.80
JANUARY 213,929.29 247,583.76
FEBRUARY 184,495.06 153,942.42
MARCH 255,052.80 257,055.55
APRIL 261,106.01 304,872.26 8.87%
MAY 310,493.46 303,273.13 8.87% 34,753
JUNE 344,282.95 304,083.58 8.87% 70,728
JULY 354,023.55 305,382.69 8.87% 80,033
AUGUST 259,772.57 229,157.76 8.87% 53,649
SEPTEMBER 194,612.12 222,213.42 8.87%

Total Lost Revenue $239,163



ESCAMBIA COUNTY OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET
REVENUE CYCLES‐LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX

Claim # 6866 124 528330
Tax ID # 59600598
Jurisdication Escambia County, Florida
Collection Method: Levied locally but collected by the State Department of 

Revenue and remitted back to the County.

Lost
MONTH FY 2009 FY 2010 Growth Revenue

OCTOBER 2,342,224.50 2,296,879.51
NOVEMBER 2,484,729.78 2,268,348.88
DECEMBER 3,089,926.82 2,952,178.25
JANUARY 2,521,395.90 2,566,221.39
FEBRUARY 2,117,326.25 2,086,483.32
MARCH 2,962,374.68 2,888,232.35
APRIL 2,308,243.04 2,561,367.21
MAY 2,382,207.08 2,429,978.52 6.42% 105,049
JUNE 3,103,851.64 3,092,106.23 6.42% 210,860
JULY 2,594,033.79 2,623,341.02 6.42% 137,102
AUGUST 2,637,747.17 2,520,301.69 6.42% 286,659
SEPTEMBER 2,998,370.64 3,006,865.27 6.42% 183,853

Total Lost Revenue $923,522



ESCAMBIA COUNTY OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET
REVENUE CYCLES‐LOCAL OPTION GAS TAX

Claim # 6866 124 528330
Tax ID # 59600598
Jurisdication Escambia County, Florida
Collection Method: Levied locally but collected by the State Department of 

Revenue and remitted back to the County.

Lost
MONTH FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010 Growth Revenue

OCTOBER 598,463.67 589,025.33 578,470.79
NOVEMBER 792,775.66 554,386.94 630,106.13
DECEMBER 412,446.02 542,091.05 533,205.21
JANUARY 547,470.08 637,099.35 564,256.79
FEBRUARY 587,688.26 551,742.88 493,606.57
MARCH 607,991.49 530,154.98 538,961.43
APRIL 642,305.11 599,124.41 625,404.83
MAY 574,608.69 639,240.03 590,012.46 ‐1.85% 37,382
JUNE 604,470.20 613,826.05 690,735.89
JULY 618,984.33 630,921.46 658,434.88
AUGUST 663,371.76 612,280.55 608,941.84
SEPTEMBER 534,006.07 652,833.27 660,959.46

Total Lost Revenue $37,382



ESCAMBIA COUNTY OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET
REVENUE CYCLES‐LOCAL OPTION 9th CENT GAS TAX

Claim # 6866 124 528330
Tax ID # 59600598
Jurisdication Escambia County, Florida
Collection Method: Levied locally but collected by the State Department of 

Revenue and remitted back to the County.

Lost
MONTH FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010 Growth Revenue

OCTOBER 132,919.22 130,352.92 127,779.60
NOVEMBER 176,173.07 123,690.88 139,761.97
DECEMBER 92,071.76 120,289.93 118,120.16
JANUARY 121,890.27 141,641.94 125,264.67
FEBRUARY 131,235.43 123,547.38 109,914.64
MARCH 135,474.34 118,069.85 119,981.44
APRIL 142,814.57 132,933.84 138,606.01
MAY 128,090.40 142,940.97 131,006.25 ‐2.27% 8,690
JUNE 135,318.42 136,775.98 153,439.60
JULY 136,981.66 139,327.22 145,478.82
AUGUST 147,782.93 135,642.54 135,775.66
SEPTEMBER 113,482.52 145,333.72 146,726.49

Total Lost Revenue $8,690



ESCAMBIA COUNTY OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET
REVENUE CYCLES‐ELECTRIC FRANCHISE FEE

Claim # 6866 124 528330
Tax ID # 59600598
Jurisdication Escambia County, Florida
Collection Method: Collected monthly and locally.  Remitters have until 

the 20th of a month to remit the previous month's taxes.

Lost
MONTH FY 2008 FY 2009 FY 2010 Growth Revenue

OCTOBER 865,056.31 868,410.92 868,850.49
NOVEMBER 694,929.99 720,884.98 680,241.69
DECEMBER 735,611.86 826,914.35 774,281.06
JANUARY 835,416.02 826,302.18 909,623.60
FEBRUARY 808,952.06 837,392.04 862,528.61
MARCH 715,837.58 755,508.55 814,229.79
APRIL 701,903.63 696,712.97 692,544.89
MAY 721,338.28 782,641.49 744,598.74 ‐2.85% 15,711
JUNE 924,286.79 901,208.43 905,869.57
JULY 964,906.47 1,022,065.09 974,636.66
AUGUST 978,576.39 969,952.91 991,697.16
SEPTEMBER 1,013,702.20 916,218.06 958,034.45

Total Lost Revenue $15,711



ESCAMBIA COUNTY OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET
REVENUE CYCLES‐ GAS FRANCHISE FEE

Claim # 6866 124 528330
Tax ID # 59600598
Jurisdication Escambia County, Florida
Collection Method: Collected monthly and locally.  Remitters have until 

the 20th of a month to remit the previous month's taxes.

Lost
MONTH FY 2009 FY 2010 Growth Revenue

OCTOBER 100,605.42 76,701.77
NOVEMBER 124,317.99 96,807.51
DECEMBER 189,863.54 144,184.33
JANUARY 213,317.45 229,556.84
FEBRUARY 223,988.30 223,249.04
MARCH 162,728.61 209,268.11
APRIL 108,950.09 114,718.59
MAY 75,041.55 72,950.95 2.00% 3,591
JUNE 87,531.99 71,264.20 2.00% 18,018
JULY 68,940.58 65,982.78 2.00% 4,336
AUGUST 69,502.11 68,192.25 2.00% 2,699
SEPTEMBER 73,972.76 72,171.61 2.00% 3,280

Total Lost Revenue $28,332



ESCAMBIA COUNTY OFFICE OF MANAGEMENT AND BUDGET
REVENUE CYCLES‐ TIPPING FEES

Claim # 6866 124 528330
Tax ID # 59600598
Jurisdication Escambia County, Florida
Collection Method: Collected monthly and remitted in the same month.

Tonnage Tonnage Revenue Revenue Lost
MONTH FY 2009 FY 2010 FY 2009 FY 2010 Growth Revenue

OCTOBER 26,096.28 22,908.37 1,032,107.87 906,026.03
NOVEMBER 21,034.88 21,753.93 831,929.50 860,367.93
DECEMBER 24,174.25 23,828.32 956,091.59 942,410.06
JANUARY 23,704.52 20,875.52 937,513.77 825,626.82
FEBRUARY 21,123.85 20,813.63 835,448.27 823,179.07
MARCH 25,879.89 25,885.43 1,023,549.65 1,023,768.76
APRIL 26,927.24 26,507.22 1,064,972.34 1,048,360.55 ‐0.78%
MAY 25,985.34 24,101.31 1,027,720.20 953,206.81 ‐0.78% 66,447
JUNE 25,086.87 25,005.51 992,185.71 988,967.92 ‐0.78%
JULY 26,102.97 24,693.71 1,032,372.46 976,636.23 ‐0.78% 47,633
AUGUST 24,618.16 24,169.38 973,648.23 955,898.98 ‐0.78% 10,107
SEPTEMBER 24,052.21 22,964.31 951,264.91 908,238.46 ‐0.78% 35,560

Total Lost Revenue $159,747

Average Cost per Ton $39.55



    Discussion    Item #:  4.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 02/03/2011  

Issue: Siguenza Cove Canal Dredging
From: Joy D. Blackmon, P.E.
Organization: Public Works
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Discussion Concerning Siguenza Cove Canal Dredging - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E., Public
Works Bureau Chief

That the Board consider the following action concerning the Siguenza Cove Canal
dredging:

A.  Authorize staff to pursue the acquisition of Hold Harmless Agreements or other
financial assurances;

B.  Upon satisfactory receipt of the Hold Harmless Agreements, accept for permanent
County maintenance and public use the canal (Canal) as shown on the plat of Siguenza
Cove Subdivision, recorded in Plat Book 5, Page 12, of the Public Records of Escambia
County, Florida;

C.  Approve transferring $80,000 from Fund 352, "LOST III" (Local Option Sales Tax III),
Account 210107, Project #08EN0301, "Coral Creek S/D Drainage", to Fund 352, "LOST
III", Account 210107, Project Number to be set up, "Siguenza Cove"; and

D.  Authorize the Chairman or Vice-Chairman to execute the Hold Harmless
Agreements subject to Legal review and sign-off.

BACKGROUND:
The Plat of Siguenza Cove S/D, recorded on September 30, 1958, designated the canal
as a right-of-way. This canal is abutted by 38 properties, many of which utilize the canal
for boat access. This access was greatly hindered by sediment being deposited from the
tide waters during Hurricane Ivan. The County has acquired, from 32 of the 38 property
owners, agreements allowing the County to dredge the deposited sediments.  It is
unlikely that Agreements will be received from the remaining property owners.



Wetland Sciences conducted a cross-sectional survey of the canal which shows the
amount of dredging required for the success of this project. Wetland Sciences then
submitted a Risk Assessment Report (attached), dated January 20, 2011, which details
the potential risk to adjacent properties during the dredging process. This risk is to be
assumed by the owners, the dredging contractor or other insurance.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Funding for this Project will require the transfer of $80,000 from Fund 352, "LOST III"
(Local Option Sales Tax III), Account 210107, Project #08EN0301, "Coral Creek S/D
Drainage", to Fund 352, "LOST III", Account 210107, Project Number to be set up,
"Siguenza Cove".   If the Board approves this  Project, the required funding will be
transferred  as indicated, and the County will be responsible for all future maintenance
of the canal.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The Hold Harmless Agreements were prepared by the County Attorney's Office and will
be approved by the County Attorney's Office prior to execution by the Chairman and
recording in the public records.

PERSONNEL:
All work associated with this request is being done in-house and no additional staff is
required.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
Staff recommends that the County develop a policy regarding canal dredging that can
be applied in a fair and consistent manner.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
Siguenza Cove Plat
Siquenza Cove Risk Assessment 





1829 Bainbridge Ave.       �   Pensacola, Florida 32507  � Telephone: (850) 453-4700  �  Facsimile: (850) 453-1010 

January�20,�2011�
�
Timothy�Day�
Environmental�Programs�Manager���Coastal�Systems�and�Floodplains�
Local�Mitigation�Strategy�(LMS)�Coordinator�
Community�and�Environment�Bureau�
Water�Quality�and�Land�Management�Division�
P.O.�Box�1591�
Pensacola,�Fl�32591�1591�
�
Re:� Risk�Assessment�

Siguenza�Cove�Canal,�Escambia�County,�Fl��
� WSI�REFERENCE�#2010�065�
�
Dear�Mr.�Day,�
�
As�discussed�during�our�meeting�on�January,�6,�2011,�this�letter�is�intended�to�summarize�the�County’s�
risk�exposure�for�six�lot�owners�that�have�not�executed�hold�harmless�agreements�for�the�proposed�
dredging�activities�in�Siguenza�Cove�Canal.���The�following�is�a�summary�of�our�findings.���
�
As�described�in�the�Environmental�Resource�Permit�Application�submitted�to�both�the�Florida�
Department�of�Environmental�Protection�and�the�Department�of�the�Army�Corps�of�Engineers,�Escambia�
County�has�requested�authorizations�to�mechanically�dredge�approximately�2,526�cubic�yards�of�
sediments�and�debris�from�42,187.62�sq.�ft.�of�tidal�waters�of�a�canal�adjacent�to�Big�Lagoon�and�located�
in�the�Siguenza�Cove�subdivision�in�Section�26,�Township�3�South,�Range�32�West,�Perdido�Key,�Escambia�
County,�Florida.��
�
The�canal�will�be�dredged�by�an�excavator�with�a�reach�of�sixty�feet�positioned�on�a�barge�with�
dimensions�of�30��x�110�ft.��and�maintain�a�loaded�draft�of�2�ft.��Two�to�four�thirty�yard�roll�off�
dumpsters�will�also�be�positioned�on�the�barge�to�contain�the�spoil.��The�extended�reach�excavator�will�
manually�remove�sediments�from�the�canal�and�place�the�material�into�the�dumpsters�positioned�on�the�
barge.��Once�the�dumpsters�are�filled�with�spoil�the�barge�will�be�moved�just�offshore�and�north�of�the�
spoil�disposal�cell.��The�barge�will�be�securely�held�in�place�by�the�deployment�of�vertical�steel�shafts�
(known�as�spuds).���The�excavator�will�remove�material�from�the�dumpsters�and�stockpile�the�material�in�
the�upland�disposal�site.��During�the�dredging�process�the�barge�will�be�required�to�make�multiple�runs�
along�the�1,300�linear�feet�of�canal�which�will�be�dredged.���
�
Three�of�the�six�properties�for�which�hold�harmless�agreements�were�not�acquired�are�located�at�the�
northern�terminus�of�the�canal.��As�noted�in�the�application�submitted�to�both�the�DEP�and�Corps�
dredging�will�not�extend�into�the�northern�terminus�of�the�canal�as�existing�depths�are�well�beyond�the�
control�depth.���In�my�opinion,�the�proposed�dredging�activity�poses�no�risk�to�these�three�properties�
(6026�Don�Carlos,�6337�Siguenza,�and�6333�Siguenza).���
�
There�are�inherent�risks�associated�with�the�remaining�three�properties.��I�will�offer�my�opinion�of�those�
risks�for�each�property�separately.����
�



1829 Bainbridge Ave.       �   Pensacola, Florida 32507  � Telephone: (850) 453-4700  �  Facsimile: (850) 453-1010 

6117�Siguenza.��This�property�contains�no�structures�within�the�canal�and�the�shoreline�is�not�protected�
(natural).��This�property�has�approximately�100�linear�feet�fronting�the�canal�system.��The�dredging�
activity�will�occur�within�ten�feet�from�the�rear�property�line.���The�dredging�could�alter�the�near�shore�
beach�profile�of�this�property�through�slumping�where�the�excavated�and�un�excavated�areas�seek�
equilibrium.��This�is�unlikely�as�the�depth�of�the�dredge�will�be�limited�to�–�4.0�ft.�mean�low�water�
leaving�a�profile�greater�than�4:1�to�the�shoreline.��Wave�energy�and�tidal�flushing�(those�factors�under�
normal�circumstances�that�accelerate�erosion)�is�extremely�limited�in�the�canal�and�therefore�I�do�not�
expect�the�modification�of�the�near�shore�beach�profile�to�change�along�the�subject�property.���
�
13416�Gongora.��This�property�contains�a�100�ft.�wooden�seawall�along�the�entire�canal�front�and�a�20�
ft.�x�7�ft.�marginal�dock.��The�existing�seawall�and�marginal�dock�are�in�disrepair.��Dredging�will�occur�
within�twenty�feet�from�the�rear�property.��Limited�amounts�of�material�(approximately�1�2�feet)�will�be�
removed�from�the�center�portions�of�the�canal�(30�ft.�in�width)�waterward�of�this�lot.��This�will�result�in�
very�slight�modification�of�the�near�shore�beach�profile.��This�will�result�is�a�profile�greater�than�5:1.��
Wave�energy�and�tidal�flushing�(those�factors�under�normal�circumstances�that�accelerate�erosion)�is�
extremely�limited�in�the�canal�and�therefore�I�do�not�expect�the�modification�of�the�near�shore�beach�
profile�to�impact�the�marginal�dock�and�seawall.��Replacement�costs�for�the�existing�seawall�is�estimated�
at�$11,000�and�the�dock�$2,100.���
�
1339�Gongora�Dr.��This�property�contains�a�100�ft.�seawall�along�the�entire�canal�front�and�a�60�ft.�x�6�ft.�
marginal�dock.�Dredging�will�occur�within�sixteen�feet�from�the�rear�property.��Limited�amounts�of�
material�(approximately�1�2�feet)�will�be�removed�from�the�center�portions�of�the�canal�(30�ft.�in�width)�
waterward�of�this�lot.��This�will�result�in�very�slight�modification�of�the�near�shore�beach�profile.��This�will�
result�is�a�profile�greater�than�5:1.��Wave�energy�and�tidal�flushing�(those�factors�under�normal�
circumstances�that�accelerate�erosion)�is�extremely�limited�in�the�canal�and�therefore�I�do�not�expect�
the�modification�of�the�near�shore�beach�profile�to�impact�the�marginal�dock�and�seawall.��Replacement�
costs�for�the�existing�seawall�is�estimated�at�$12,000�and�the�dock�$5,400.���
�
This�concludes�our�report.��Should�you�have�any�questions,�please�feel�free�to�contact�me�at�850�453�
4700.���
�
Sincerely,�
WETLAND�SCIENCES,�INC.�

�
�
Keith�Johnson�
Environmental�Scientist�



    Discussion    Item #:  5.     
County Administrator's Report
Date: 02/03/2011  

Issue: Approval of a Ground Lease and Memorandum of Lease with The
School Board of Escambia County, Florida

From: Joy D. Blackmon, Bureau Chief
Organization: Public Works-Infrastructure Branch
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning the Approval of a Ground Lease and Memorandum of
Lease with The School Board of Escambia County, Florida - Joy D. Blackmon, P.E.,
Public Works Bureau Chief

That the Board take the following action concerning the approval of a Ground Lease and
Memorandum of Lease between Escambia County, Florida, and The School Board of
Escambia County, Florida, for a one acre parcel of property, located at the southwest
corner of the Warrington Elementary School property, for the purpose of constructing a
sub-station facility for the Escambia County Sheriff's Office:

A.  Approve the Ground Lease and Memorandum of Lease at a cost of $10 annually for
a period of 99 years;

B.  Authorize the payment of incidental expenditures associated with the approval of the
Ground Lease and Memorandum of Lease; which includes, but is not limited to,
recording of documents; and

C.  Authorize the Chairman or Vice Chairman to execute, subject to legal review and
sign off, the Ground Lease and Memorandum of Lease as of the day of delivery and
authorize the Chairman or Vice Chairman to acknowledge the Board’s acceptance at
that time.

[Funding Source: Fund 351, LOST II, Account 540110/56101]

(GROUND LEASE & MEMORANDUM OF LEASE TO BE DISTRIBUTED UNDER
SEPARATE COVER)

BACKGROUND:



The Escambia County Sheriff’s Office has been searching for property in the Warrington
area for the location of a sub-station facility in the 3rd Precinct area. Staff has been
unsuccessful in locating a suitable and affordable parcel in this area. The Sheriff’s Office
has negotiated with the School Board to lease a one acre parcel of vacant land located
at the southwest corner of the Warrington Elementary School property subject to the
terms and conditions contained in the Ground Lease and Memorandum of Lease.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
Funds for incidental expenses and the payment of rental fees are available in Fund 351,
LOST II, Account 540110/56101.

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
The Ground Lease and Memorandum of Lease will be approved as to form and legal
sufficiency by the County Attorney's office prior to Chairman's signature.

PERSONNEL:
All work associated with this request is being done in-house and no additional staff is
required.

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
This recommendation is consistent with the Board of County Commissioner’s mission
statement: “To provide efficient, responsive services that enhance our quality of life,
meet the common needs and promote a safe and healthy community”.

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
Staff has completed the requirements of Section 46-139, County Code of Ordinances for
the recording of the Memorandum of Lease associated with this project. Staff has
coordinated with Escambia County Sheriff's Office and The School Board of Escambia
County, Florida.

Attachments
Map
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AI-380     Item #:  14.     
BCC Regular Meeting
Date: 02/03/2011  

SUBJECT:

Attachments
CAT Report Feb 3 2011



               
COUNTY ATTORNEY'S REPORT

 

February 3, 2011
             
I.    FOR ACTION

 

1. Pensacola Bay Fishing Bridge, Inc. vs. Escambia County, Florida Settlement
Approval; Case No.: 2008 CA 003398

  Recommendation Concerning Pensacola Bay Fishing Bridge, Inc. Settlement Approval

That the Board approve a mediated settlement agreement in which Pensacola Bay
Fishing Bridge, Inc. will forgo its right to appeal the Final Summary Judgment entered by
Judge Boles on January 19, 2011.  In exchange, the County will not pursue taxable
costs, attorney fees, and will pay the fees of the mediator for the mediation which took
place on January 19, 2011. 

 



    Action    Item #:  1.     
County Attorney's Report
Date: 02/03/2011  

Issue: Pensacola Bay Fishing Bridge, Inc. vs. Escambia County, Florida Settlement
Approval; Case No.: 2008 CA 003398

From: Charles V. Peppler, Deputy County Attorney
Organization: County Attorney's Office
CAO Approval: 

RECOMMENDATION:
Recommendation Concerning Pensacola Bay Fishing Bridge, Inc. Settlement Approval

That the Board approve a mediated settlement agreement in which Pensacola Bay Fishing
Bridge, Inc. will forgo its right to appeal the Final Summary Judgment entered by Judge Boles
on January 19, 2011.  In exchange, the County will not pursue taxable costs, attorney fees, and
will pay the fees of the mediator for the mediation which took place on January 19, 2011. 

BACKGROUND:
This office met with the Board of County Commissioners in an Attorney-Client Session and
obtained settlement authority for the mediation conference which took place on January 19,
2011 before Alan Bookman, a certified Circuit Court Mediator.  Prior to meeting with the Board,
this office had filed a Motion for Final Summary Judgment on April 28, 2010 and had provided
supplemental memoranda of law to the Court on December 15, 2010 and January 5, 2011. At
the time of the mediation conference, Judge Boles had not ruled on the County's Motion for Final
Summary Judgment. 

During the course of Mediation, it was learned that Judge Boles had granted the County's
Motion for Final Summary Judgment. A copy of the Final Judgment is attached. In order to
extinguish any further avenues for appeal and the uncertainties of litigation, this office is
recommending that in exchange for Pensacola Bay Fishing Bridge, Inc.'s waiver of an appeal of
Judge Boles's Final Summary Judgment entered on January 19, 2011, that the County forgo
seeking a judgment for the expenses of litigation including attorney's fees and that the County
pay the fees of the mediator for conducting the mediation conference mandated by the Court.  In
this way, the County is assured that the Final Summary Judgment entered by Judge Boles will
be undisturbed by an appeal and that it will incur no further liability relating to the operating
contract entered into on July 3, 1997 with Pensacola Fishing Bridge, Inc.

BUDGETARY IMPACT:
N/A

LEGAL CONSIDERATIONS/SIGN-OFF:
See above.



PERSONNEL:
N/A

POLICY/REQUIREMENT FOR BOARD ACTION:
N/A

IMPLEMENTATION/COORDINATION:
N/A

Attachments
Order on County's Motion for Summary Judgment



IN THE CIRCUIT COURT IN AND FOR ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA

PENSACOLA BAY FISHING BRIDGE, INC.,

a Florida corporation,

Plaintiff,

vs. Case No.: 2008-CA-003398

Division: "E"

ESCAMBIA COUNTY, FLORIDA,

a political subdivision of the State of Florida,

Defendant.

ORDER ON DEFENDANT'S MOTION FOR SUMMARY JUDGMENT

THIS CAUSE having come before the Court on the Motion for Summary Judgment of

the Defendant, Escambia County, and the Court, after reviewing the pleadings and filings of

record, hearing arguments from counsel, and being otherwise duly advised in the premises, finds

as follows:

As to Count I of the Amended Complaint alleging breach of contract, the Court finds that

the provisions of Plaintiffs contract with the Defendant dated July 3, 1997 and the First

Amendment thereto are clear and unambiguous and specifically provide that the Plaintiff is

obligated to promptly repair and restore the fishing pier in the event of damages caused as a

result of a natural disaster. Paragraph 5 of the parties' contract of July 3, 1997 involves permits

and impositions, but in no way shifts the burden to the Defendant to obtain financing on the part

of the Plaintiff in order for Plaintiff to fulfill its obligation to promptly repair and restore the

fishing pier damaged as a result of a natural disaster. As such, the Court finds that there is no

genuine issue of material fact and Defendant is entitled to judgment as a matter of law as to

Count I.

As to Count II of the Amended Complaint alleging a count of unjust enrichment, such a

claim is not available when there is an express written contract governing the same subject



matter. See Diamond "S" Development Corporation v. Mercantile Bank. 989 So. 2d 696 (Fla.

1st DCA 2008). Although the contract does not address the possibility of the Defendant

receiving funds from FEMA, the contract clearly addresses the Plaintiffs responsibility to repair

and restore the fishing pier if damaged as a result of a natural disaster. The Plaintiff was unable

to perform under the contract and the First amendment to the contract and the contract was

terminated by the Defendant as a result. As such, the Court finds that there is no genuine issue

of material fact and the Defendant is entitled to judgment as a matter of law as to Count II of the

Amended Complaint.

NOW THEREFORE, it is hereby

ORDERED AND ADJUDGED that the Defendant's Motion for Summary Judgment as

to both counts of the Plaintiffs Amended Complaint is hereby granted. The Plaintiff is to take

nothing by this action and the Defendant is to go hence without day.

DONE AND ORDERED in Chambers at Pensacola, Escambia County, Florida on this

day ofJanuary, 2011.

IS! W.JOEL BOLES

W. JOEL BOLES

CIRCUIT JUDGE

Conformed copies to:

John Asmar, Esq.

\- Charles V. Peppier, Esq.
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